
Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID No.1 – June 21, 2022 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 3 

 
NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO.1 

will be held at 3:00 P.M., Tuesday, June 21, 2022 
In-Person - 1070 Faraday Street, Santa Ynez, CA - Conference Room 

OR 
VIA TELECONFERENCE 

TELECONFERENCE PHONE NUMBER:  1-669-900-9128 
MEETING ID:  929 0039 9487# 

PARTICIPANT ID NO.: 180175# 
MEETING PASSCODE: 180175# 

 

Important Notice Regarding Public Participation in This Meeting:  For those who may not 
attend the meeting in person or teleconference but wish to provide public comment on an 
Agenda Item, please submit any and all comments and written materials to the District via 
electronic mail at general@syrwd.org.  All submittals should indicate “June 21, 2022 Board 
Meeting” in the subject line.  Public comments and materials received by the District will 
become part of the post-meeting Board packet materials available to the public and posted on 
the District’s website.  In the interest of clear reception and efficient administration of the 
meeting, all persons participating via teleconference are respectfully requested to mute their 
voices after dialing-in and at all times unless speaking. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. REPORT BY THE SECRETARY TO THE BOARD REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
POSTING OF THE NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 

4. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 820 – A Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez 
River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1 Authorizing Remote Teleconference 
Meetings Under the Ralph M. Brown Act in Accordance with AB 361 
 

5. ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS, IF ANY, TO THE AGENDA 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT - Any member of the public may address the Board relating to any non-agenda matter within the District’s 
jurisdiction.  The total time for all public participation shall not exceed fifteen (15) minutes and the time allotted for each individual shall 
not exceed three (3) minutes.  The District is not responsible for the content or accuracy of statements made by members of the public.  No 
action will be taken by the Board on any public comment item.  
 

7. CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF MAY 17, 2022 
 

8. CONSENT AGENDA - All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be approved or rejected in a 
single motion without separate discussion.  Any item placed on the Consent Agenda can be removed and placed on the Regular Agenda 
for discussion and possible action upon the request of any Trustee. 

CA-1. Water Supply and Production Report 
CA-2. Central Coast Water Authority Update 
 

9. MANAGER REPORTS - STATUS, DISCUSSION, AND POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING 
SUBJECTS: 
A. DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION 

1. Financial Report on Administrative Matters 
a) Presentation of Monthly Financial Statements – Revenues and Expenses 
b) Approval of Accounts Payable 

 
 
 



Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID No.1 – June 21, 2022 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 3 

2. Appropriation Limit for the 2022/2023 Fiscal Year - Article XIIIB (Proposition 13) 
a) Resolution No. 821:  A Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water 

Conservation District, Improvement District No.1 Establishing the Appropriation Limit for 
Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Pursuant to Article XIIIB of the California Constitution 
 

3. Consider Adoption of the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
a) Final Budget Summary 
b) Resolution No. 822:  A Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water 

Conservation District, Improvement District No.1 Adopting the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 
2022/2023 and Requesting an Assessment Levy Required to Collect $875,000 

 

10. REPORT, DISCUSSION, AND POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING SUBJECTS: 
 

A. SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT 
1. Eastern Management Area Update 
 

B. CALIFORNIA DROUGHT CONDITIONS 
1. Update Regarding Statewide Drought Conditions 
 

C. CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 
1. Update Regarding CCWA’s Temporary Warren Act Contract for the Cachuma Project 

 

11. REPORTS BY THE BOARD MEMBERS OR STAFF, QUESTIONS OF STAFF, STATUS REPORTS, 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, COMMITTEE REPORTS, AND OTHER MATTERS AND/OR COMMUNICATIONS NOT 
REQUIRING BOARD ACTION 
 

12. CORRESPONDENCE:  GENERAL MANAGER RECOMMENDS FILING OF VARIOUS ITEMS 
 

13. REQUESTS FOR ITEMS TO BE INCLUDED ON THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING AGENDA:  Any member of the 
Board of Trustees may place an item on the meeting Agenda for the next regular meeting.  Any member of the public may submit a written 
request to the General Manager of the District to place an item on a future meeting Agenda, provided that the General Manager and the 
Board of Trustees retain sole discretion to determine which items to include on meeting Agendas. 
 

14. NEXT MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES:  The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees is 
scheduled for July 19, 2022 at 3:00 p.m. 
 

15. CLOSED SESSION: 
To accommodate the teleconferencing component of this meeting, the public access line will be closed 
for up to forty-five (45) minutes while the Board of Trustees convenes into closed session.  Upon the 
conclusion of the closed session, the public participation teleconference access will be reopened for 
the remaining Agenda Items.   
 

The Board will hold a closed session to discuss the following items: 
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 
Subdivision (d)(1) of Section 54956.9 of the Government Code – 2 Cases 

1. Name of Case: Adjudicatory proceedings pending before the State Water Resources 
Control Board regarding Permit 15878 issued on Application 22423 to the City of Solvang, 
Petitions for Change, and Related Protests 
 

2. Name of Case:  Central Coast Water Authority, et al. v. Santa Barbara County Flood 
Control and Water Conservation District, et al., Santa Barbara County Superior Court 
Case No. 21CV02432 

 
 
 
 

 



Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID No.1 – June 21, 2022 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 3 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – POTENTIAL INITIATION OF LITIGATION BY THE AGENCY 
Subdivision (d)(4) of Section 54956.9 of the Government Code – 1 Matter 

 

Public teleconference access to the meeting (Dial-In Number and Passcode above) will be reopened 
when the Board of Trustees concludes closed session.   

 

16. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 
[Sections 54957.1 and 54957.7 of the Government Code] 

 

17. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This Agenda was posted at 3622 Sagunto Street, Santa Ynez, California, and notice was delivered in accordance with Government Code Section 
54950, specifically Section 54956.  This Agenda contains a brief general description of each item to be considered.  The Board reserves the right 
to change the order in which items are heard.  Copies of the staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business on 
the Agenda are on file with the District and available for public inspection during normal business hours.  A person who has a question 
concerning any of the Agenda items may call the District’s General Manager at (805) 688-6015.  Written materials relating to an item on this 
Agenda that are distributed to the Board of Trustees within 72 hours (for Regular meetings) or 24 hours (for Special meetings) before it is to 
consider the item at its regularly or special scheduled meeting(s) will be made available for public inspection at 3622 Sagunto Street, during 
normal business hours.  Such written materials will also be made available on the District's website, subject to staff’s ability to post the 
documents before the regularly scheduled meeting.  If you challenge any of the Board’s decisions related to the Agenda items above in court, 
you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice or in written 
correspondence to the Board prior to the public hearing.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance 
to review Agenda materials or participate in this meeting, please contact the District Secretary at (805) 688-6015.  Notification 72 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  



Agenda Item 4. 

RESOLUTION NO. 820 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT N0.1 

AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS UNDER THE RALPHM. 
BROWN ACT IN ACCORDANCE WITH AB 361 

WHEREAS, the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District 
No.1 (District) is committed to promoting and preserving complete public access and 
participation in meetings of the Dis triers Board of Trustees, as required and set forth by the Ralph 
M. Brown Act (Gov. Code § 54950 et seq.) (Brown Act); and 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act contains special provisions for remote teleconference 
participation in meetings when the Governor of the State of California has declared a state of 
emergency pursuant to Government Code section 8625 and either state or local officials have 
imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing, or where in-person meetings 
would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom issued a Proclamation of a State 
of Emergency for the COVID-19 pandemic, which state of emergency has not been rescinded; the 
County Health Officer for the County of Santa Barbara has issued numerous Health Orders 
regarding health and safety requirements and protocols since the beginning of and throughout 
the COVID-19 pandemic, including recent Health Officer Order No. 2022-10.1, effective February 
16, 2022, which incorporates guidance issued on February 7, 2022 by the California Department 
of Public Health (CDPH) requiring unvaccinated persons to wear masks in all indoor public 
settings, requires universal masking in only specified settings, and recommends continued 
indoor masking when the risk of COVID-19 transmission is high; and 

WHEREAS, on April20, 2022, CDPH issued updated Guidance for the Use of Face Masks 
which provides, among other things, that effective March 1, 2022, the requirement that 
unvaccinated individuals mask in indoor public settings will move to a strong recommendation 
that all persons, regardless of vaccine status, continue indoor masking, and that universal making 
shall remain required in specified high-risk settings, and that after March 11, 2022, the universal 
masking requirement for K-12 and Childcare settings will terminate, and that CDPH strongly 
recommends that individuals in these settings continue to mask in .indoor settings when the 
universal making requirement lifts; and 

WHEREAS, on September 28, 2021 the County Health Officer and County Public Health 
Director issued a Health Official AB 361 Social Distance Recommendation which states, among 
other things, that utilizing teleconferencing options for public meetings is an effective and 
recommended social distancing measure to facilitate participation in public affairs and encourage 
participants to protect themselves and others from COVID-19, and that such recommendation is 
further intended to satisfy the requirements of the Brown Act which allows local legislative 
bodies in the County of Santa Barbara to use certain available teleconferencing options set forth 
in the Brown Act, where such recommendation is also based in part on the increased case rate of 
the highly transmissible Delta variant of COVID-19 within the nation and the Countyi and 



WHEREAS, the District finds that the current circumstances relating to COVID-19 and 
variants thereof can cause, and can continue to cause, risks to the health and safety of persons 
within the County, and therefore the District may conduct its meetings to allow remote 
teleconference participation in the manner authorized by AB 361, specifically including 
Government Code section 54953(e); and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution is exempt from review under the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to the exemption set forth under Section 15061(b)(3) of Title 14 of 
the California Code of Regulations (CEQA Guidelines) because remote teleconference meetings 
during a declared state of emergency do not have the potential for causing a significant effect on 
the environment. 

NOW, THEREFORE.~ BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River 
Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1, as follows: 

1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into tltis 
Resolution by this reference. 

2. The District may conduct its meeting to allow remote teleconference participation in 
the manner authorized by AB 361, specifically including Government Code Section 
54953(e), 

3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and shall remain in 
effect for up to thirty (30) days as provided in Government Code section54953(e)(3). 

WE.~ THE UNDERSIGNED, being the duly qualified President and Secretary, respectively, of the 
Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District 
No.1, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted 
and passed by the Board of Trustees of said District at a Regular meeting held on June 21, 2022 
by the following roll call vote: 

A YES, and in favor thereof, Trustees: 

NOES.~ Trustees: 
ABSENT, Trustees: 

ArrEST: 

Mary Martone, Secretary to the Board of Trustees 



Agenda Item 7. 

1 
2 
3 
4 

SANTA YNEZ RivER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICf, 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICf N0.1 
MAY 17,2022 R EGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

5 
6 

~ 

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, 
Improvement District No.1, was held at 3:00p.m. on Tuesday, May 17, 2022, in-person at 1070 Faraday 
Street and via teleconference. 

9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 

Trustees Present 

Trustees Absent: 

Others Present: 

Jeff Clay 
Lori Parker 

Michael Burchardi 

Paeter Garcia 
Gary K vis tad 
Eric Tambini 

18 1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 

Brad Joos 

Jeff Holzer 

Mary Mattone 
Karen King 
Nick DiCroce 

19 President Oay called the meeting to order at 3:00p.m., he stated that this was a Regular Meeting 
20 of the Board of Trustees. Ms. Martone conducted roll call and reported that three Trustees were 
21 present, and Trustees Burchardi and Holzer were absent. 
22 
23 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

24 Ptesident Clay led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
25 
26 3. REPORT BY THE SECRETARY TO TilE BOARD REGARDING COMPLIANCE WlTII THE REQUIREMENTS 
27 FOR POSTING OF THE NOTICE AND AGENDA: 

28 Ms. Martone presented the affidavit of posting of tl1e Agenda, along wiili a true copy of the 
29 Agenda for this meeting. She reported that ilie Agenda was posted in accordance wifu ilie 
3 0 California Government Code commencing at Section 54953, as well as District Resolution No. 340. 
31 The affidavit was filed as evidence of tile posting of the Agenda items contained therein. 
32 
33 4. CONSIDERATION OF REsOLUTION NO. 819: A Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Santa 
34 Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1 Authorizing Remote 
35 Teleconference Meetings Under the Ralph M. Brown Act in Accordance with AB 361 
36 
37 Mr. Garcia presented Resolution No. 819 and explained iliat pursuant to amendments to the 
38 Brown Act (Assembly Bill 361), public agencies are authorized to conduct remote meetings via 
39 video/teleconference during the COVID-19 pandemic, provided certain conditions exist and 
40 findings are made. He stated that in order for the Board to continue to meet under the provisions 
41 of AB 361, either remotely or under a hybrid approach of remote and in-person attendance, the 
42 Board is required to review and reconsider its determinations at least every 30 days. Mr. Garcia 
43 reported that because fue State of California remains m a declared state of emergency related to 
44 the COVID-19 pandemic and because state and local recommendations remain m place to reduce 
45 the transmission of COVID-19, approval of Resolution No. 819 would allow the Board to hold 
46 meetings under fue provisions of AB 361. 
47 
48 No public comment was provided. 
49 
50 It was MOVED by Trustee Joos, seconded by Trustee Parker, to adopt Resolution No. 819, a 
51 Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, 
52 Improvement District No.1 Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings Under the Ralph M. 
53 Brown Act in Accordance with AB 361. 

May 17,2022 Minutes Pogc1 of7 



1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 
52 
53 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

The Resolution was adopted and carried by the following 3-0-0 roll call vote: 

AYES, Trustees: 

NOES, Trustees: 
ABSTAIN, Trustees: 
ABSENT, Trustees: 

Jeff Clay 
Brad]oos 
Lori Parker 

None 
None 
Michael Burchardi and Jeff Holzer 

ADDlTIONS OR CORRECTIONS, IF ANY, TO THE AGENDA: 

There were no additions or corrections to the Agenda. 

PuBLIC COMMENT: 
President Oay welcomed any members of the pltblic participating remotely and offered time for 
members of the public to speak and address the Board on matters not on the agenda. Mr. Garcia 
reported that no written comments were submitted to the District for the meeting. Mr. Nick 
DiCroce provided comment to the Board. 

CONSIDERA TlON OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 19, 2022: 
The Regular Meeting Minutes from April19, 2022 were presented for consideration. 

President Oay asked if there were any changes or additions to the Regular Meeting Minutes of 
April19, 2022 as presented. No changes or additions were requested. 

It was MOVED by Trustee Joos, seconded by Trustee Parker, and carried by a 3-0-0 roll call vote, 
with Trustees Burchardi and Holzer absent, to approve the April19, 2022 Minutes as presented. 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
The Consent Agenda Report was provided in tl1e Board packet. 

Mr. Garcia reviewed the Consent Agenda materials for the month of April. 

It was MOVED by Trustee Joos, seconded by Trustee Parker, and carried by a 3-0-0 roll call vote, 
with Tru.stees Burchardi and Holzer absent, to approve the Consent Agenda. 

MANAGER R EPORTS· STATUS, DISCUSSION, AND POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING 
SUBJECTS: 
A. DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION 

1. Financial Report on Administrative Matters 
a) Presentation of Monthly Financial Statements- Revenues and Expenses 

Ms. Martone rumounced that the Financial Statements were emailed to the Board 
members earlier that afternoon and posted on the District's website in the Board 
packet materials for any members of the public wishing to follow along or receive a 
copy. 

Ms. Martone reviewed the Statement of Revenues and Expenses for the month of 
April. She highlighted various line-items related to revenue and expense transactions 
that occurred during the month and also referenced the Fiscal Year to Date Statement 
of Revenues and Expenses that provides a budget to actual snapshot from July to 
April. Ms. Martone reported that the District revenues exceeded the expenses by 
$576,025.15 and the year-to-date net income is $2,634,999.01. 

May 17, 2022 Minutes Page2of7 



1 
2 ., 
.) 

4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 
52 
53 

2. 

b) Approval of Accounts Payable 
Ms. Martone announced that the Warrant List was emailed to the Board members this 
afternoon and posted on the District's website in the Board packet materials for any 
member of the public wishing to follow along or receive a copy. 

The Board reviewed the Warrant List which covered warrants 24471 through 24522 in 
the amount of $2,477A15.41. 

It was MOVED by Trustee Joos, seconded by Trustee Parker, and carried by a 3-0-0 roll 
call vote, with Trustees Burchardi and Holzer absent, to approve the Warrant List for 
Apri120, 2022 through May 17, 2022. 

Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Preliminary Budget 
The Board packet included materials for the Preliminary Budget for FY 2022/2023, 
including a staff report and line-item details. 

Mr. Garcia reported that management prepared a PowerPoint presentation providing an 
overview and highlights of the Preliminary Budget, whicl1 would be presented by Ms. 
Martone. He reported that the staff report and fiscal year 2022/2023 Preliminary Budget 
have been made available on the District website and was being presented for 
consideration, discussion and comments. Mr. Garcia expressed his appreciation and 
compliments to Disb.ict staff for their hard work and collaboration in preparing the 
preliminary budget. 

Ms. Martone provided a PowerPoint presentation, which included the budget process, 
reporting, budget and reserve fund background, and budget categories. Ms. Martone 
reported that revenues are anticipated to be sufficient to meet the District's Operations & 
Maintenance expenses, General & Administrative expenses, Debt Service obligations, 
Other expenses, and proposed Capital Improvement Program projects forecasted for FY 
2022/2023, with a net revenue balance of $279,031 to be added to the District Reserves. 
She also highlighted the fact that the final payment for the Series A 2004 bond will be 
made in FY 2023 pursuant to the terms of the bond indenture. 

Mr. Garcia stated that the last rate adjustment pursuant to the 2016 Water Rate Schedule 
went into effect on July 1, 2021 and is assumed to remain in effect for the proposed FY 
2022/2023 Preliminary Budget. He reported that the Preliminary Budget also assumes 
no increase in the $875,000 Special Assessment/ Ad Valorem Tax, even though the 
authorized limit for FY 2022/2023 is $2,300,918. 

Board discussion ensued on topics such as the ltistorical and current amount of the Special 
Assessment/ Ad Valorem Tax, reduction of DWR/ CCW A fixed costs, USBR costs, reserve 
balances, and water sales. 

Mr. Garcia asked that the Board review the 2022/2023 Preliminary Budget and provide 
any comments or questions to management by early June for possible incorporation into 
the 2022/2023 Final Budget which will be presented at the June Board meeting. 

President Oay asked if there was any public comment on the Preliminary Budget. There 
was no public comment. 

The Board thanked Mr. Garcia, Ms. Martone, and District staff for their hard work in 
preparing the FY 2022/2023 Preliminary Budget. 

May 171 2022 Minutes Pagc3of7 



1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

3. Setting the Appropriation Limit for the 2022/2023 Fiscal Year- Article XmB (Proposition 
13) 

May 17, 2022 Minutes 

a) California Department of Finance Calculations for 2022/2023 Appropriation 
Limitations and Authorization to Post Notice and make Public the 2022/2023 
Appropriation Limi ta lion Calculation 

The Board packet included the May 2022 California Department of Finance lelter 
regarding the FY 2022/2023 Appropriation Limitation Calculation, Price Factor, 
and Population Information. 

Mr. Garcia explained that in connection with establishing an annual 
appropriation, certain language must be read verbatim into the public record, as 
follows: "Pursuant to Section 7910 oftlte California Government Code, a resolution will 
be presented for adoption by tlte board ofTrustees nt its Regular Meeting on June 21, 2022, 
which will set the limitations on appropriations for fiscal yem' 2022(2023 under Article 
XIIIB of the Constihttion of the State of California (Proposition 13), and tltat the 
documentation used in determining the appropriation limitations will be available at the 
District office and on the District's website for examination by tire public for at least 15 
days prior to the adoptim1 of the proposed resolution." 

Mr. Garcia explained the appropriation calculation provided by the California 
Department of Finance and how the calculations are applied to the District's Ad 
Valorem Special Tax Assessment limitations. He indicated that based on the 
compu tations for the appropriation limitation, the District's FY 2022/2023 
maximum assessment amount is $2,300,918. Mr. Garcia explained that this year 
the per capita personal income factor was 7.55% and the County population 
chan ge factor was 0.14%. He stated that although the District can set the Special 
Assessment up to the maximum amount, the FY 2022/2023 Preliminary Budget 
proposes no increase this year, with the assessment to remain at $875,000. 

Mr. Garcia requested Board authorization for the Secretary to the Board of 
Trustees to post the Public Notice setting forth the appropriation limit and 
calculation factors. He reported that the Public Notice and FY 2022/2023 
appropriation limitation calculation would be posted a t the District Office and on 
the District's website, beginning May 18, 2022, and published in the local 
newspaper on or about June 9, 2022 and June 16, 2022. The Board reviewed the 
Public Notice. 

lt was MOVED by Trustee Clay, seconded by Trustee Joos, and carried by a 3-0-0 
roll call vote, with Trustees Burchardi and Holzer absent, to authorize the 
Secretary to the Board to post and publish the Public Notice to set the Piscal Year 
2022/2023 limit of appropriations pursuant to Article XIIIB of the California 
Constitution. 

b) Review of Draft Resolutions to be presented for adoption at the June 21, 2022 
Board Meeting 
1. Draft Resolution No. XXX: A Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Santa 

Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1 
Establishing the Appropriation Limit for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Pursuant to 
Article XITIB of the California Constitution 

Page4 of7 



1 2. Draft Resolution No. XXX: A Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Santa 
2 Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1 Adopting 
3 the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 and Requesting an Assessment 
4 Levy Required to Collect $875,000 
5 
6 Mr. Garcia explained that each year the draft resolutions are presented a 
7 month in advance of the adoption of the final budget and establishment of an 
8 appropriations limit, and no action is required at this time. He stated the two 
9 resolutions would be presented for consideration at the June 21, 2022 Board 

10 meeting. 
l l 
12 4. Office Pavement Replacement Project 
13 a) Notice of Completion 
14 The Board packet inc1uded a Notice of Completion for the Office Pavement 
15 Replacement Project. 
16 
17 Mr. Garcia reported that the District's parking lot has been repaved and the project is 
18 complete. He stated that Ramsey Asphalt finished the repaving on schedule and did 
19 an excellent job. Mr. Garcia requested approval to authorize the General Manager to 
20 sign and file the Notice of Completion with the Santa Barbara County Clerk Recorders 
21 Office. 
22 
23 It was MOVED by Trustee Joos, seconded by Trustee Parker, and carried by a 3-0-0 roll 
24 call vote, with Trustees Burchardi and Holzer absent, to authorize the General 
25 Manager to sign and file the Notice of Completion for the Office Pavement 
26 Replacement Project with the Santa Barbara County Clerk Recorders Office. 
27 
~~ 10. REPORT, D ISCUSSION, AND POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING SUBJECTS: 

30 A. SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT 
31 1. Eastern Management Area Update 
32 The Board packet included notice of the next Regular Meeting of the Eastern Management 
33 Area (EMA) Groundwater SustainabiHty Agency (GSA) scheduled for May 26,2022 at 6:30 
34 p.m., Santa Barbara County Public Health Department Virtual Public Workshop materials 
35 for the County's proposed Temporary Water Well Permitting Ordinance and State of 
36 California Executive Order N-7-22 
37 
38 Mr. Garcia reported on the activities related to the EMA GSA. He announced that he 
39 attended the May 10, 2022 Santa Barbara County virtual public workshop regarding the 
40 County's proposed temporary water well permitting ordinance in response to the 
41 Governor's Executive Order N-7-22. Mr. Garcia summarized the workshop materials 
42 included in the Board packet and discussed topics related to the County's well permitting 
43 process, and development of a processes for the EMA GSA to implement the Govemor's 
44 Executive Order. He stated that the County's draft well permitting ordinance will be 
45 considered by the County Board of Supervisors at their meeting scheduled for May 26, 2022. 
46 Mr. Garcia reported that the EMA GSA is continuing its discussions related to future 
4 7 governance, projects and management actions, and funding. He reported the next regular 
48 meeting of the EMA GSA will be held on May 26, 2022. 

May 17, 2022 Minutes PageS of7 



1 B. CALIFORNIA DROUGHT CONDITIONS 

2 1. Update Regarding Statewide Drought Conditions 
3 The Board packet included the Department of Water Resources (DWR) Current Reservoir 
4 Conditions, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California's April 26, 2022 Board 
5 Meeting materials, and the State of California Governor's Executive Order N-7-22 
6 
7 Mr. Garcia reviewed the Board packet materials, including the current and historical 
8 conditions of the major reservoirs in California as published by the Department of Water 
9 Resources (DWR). He reported that the 2022 State Water Project Table A Allocation will 

10 likely remain at the 5% due to the continued dry conditions. Mr. Garcia summarized the 
11 Metropolitan Water District_/ s Board materials which involve measures in portions of 
12 southern California to respond to ongoing statewide drought conditions. He stated that ID 
13 No.1 is fortunate to have a diversified water supply portfolio which assists in managing 
14 dry year periods. Mr. Garcia reported that the recent water conservation regulations 
15 adopted by the State Water Resources Control Board are similar to and consistent with the 
16 District's current ,Water Supply Alert_/' stage of water conservation requirements that have 
17 been in place for the District since 2017. Trustee Joos requested an update at the next Board 
18 meeting on the potential trigger points for when the District may need to implement 
19 additional water use restrictions. 
20 
21 C. CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORJTY 
22 1. Update Regarding CCWA's Temporary Warren Act Contract for the Cachuma Project 
23 The Board packet included an April22, 2022 Santa Y nez River Water Conservation District 
24 (Parent District) letter regarding comments on the Draft Environmental Assessment for 
25 the proposed Central Coast Water Authority Temporary Warren Act Contract. 
26 
27 Mr. Garcia provided an overview of the existing Central Coast Watet Authority (CCWA) 
28 Warrant Act Contract with the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) and explained 
29 that CCW A is working to negotiate an interim contract extension because the current 
30 contract is set to expire in June 2022. He explained that the National Marine Fisheries 
31 Services (NMFS) is reviewing the interim contract and proposing new restrictions which 
32 are causing complications and delays in the process. Mr. Garcia referenced the Parent 
33 District's April22nd comment letter and concerns that the restrictions being proposed by 
34 NMFS cause significant impacts to downstream water quality and the legal framework 
35 that has been adopted to mitigate such impacts. He noted that various parties, including 
36 CCW A, USBR, the Parent District, ID No.1, and agencies on the south coast are attempting 
37 to work together and find solutions to the complications at hand. Mr. Garcia stated that 
3 8 more information would be provided as available. 
39 
40 11. REPORTS BY THE BOARD MEMBERS OR STAFF, QUESTIONS OF STAFF, STATUS REPORTS, 

41 ANNOUNCEMENTS, COMMITTEE REPORTS, AND OTHER MAITERS AND/OR COMMUNICATIONS 
42 NOT REQUIRING BOARD ACTION: 
43 The Board packet included the May 2022 Family Farm Alliance Monthly Briefing. 
44 
45 12. CORRESPONDENCE: GENERAL MANAGER R ECOMMENDS FILING OF V ARlO US ITEMS: 

46 The Correspondence List was received by the Board. 
47 
48 13. REQUESTS FOR ITEMS TO BE INCLUDED ON THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING AGENDA: 

49 Trustee Joos requested that staff provide an update to the Board on water conservation measures 
50 and potential triggers for further water use restrictions. 

May 17,2022 Minutes Page6 of7 



1 14. NEXT MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES: 
2 President Clay stated the next Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees is scheduled for June 21, 
3 2022 at 3:00p.m. 
4 
5 15. CLOSED SESSION: 
6 The Board adjourned to closed session at 5:40p.m. 
7 
8 A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- EXISTING LITIGATION 

9 [Subdivision ( d){1) of Section 54956.9 of the Goverrunent Code - 2 Cases] 
10 1. Name of Case: Adjudicatory proceedings pending before the State Water Resources 
11 Control Board regarding Permit 15878 issued on Application 22423 to the City of 
12 Solvang, Petitions for Change, and Related Protests 
13 
14 2. Name of Case: Central Coast Water Authority, et al. v. Santa Barbara Cow1ty Flood 
15 Control and Water Conservation District, et al., Santa Barbara County Superior Court 
16 Case No. 21CV02432 
17 
18 16. R ECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION: 
19 [Sections 54957.1 and 54957.7 of the Government Code] 
20 
21 The public participation phone line was re-openedJ and the Board reconvened to open session 
22 at approximately6:07 p.m. 
23 
24 Mr. Garcia announced that the Board met in closed session concerning Agenda Items 15.A.1 
25 and 15.A.2 and that there was no reportable action from closed session. 
26 
27 17. ADJOURNMENT: 
28 Being no further business, it was MOVED by Trustee Clay, seconded by Trustee Joos, and carried 
29 by a 3-0-0 roll call vote, with Trustees Burchardi and Holzer absent, to adjourn the meeting at 
30 approximately 6:08p.m. 
31 
32 R ESPECTFULLY SUBMI'ITED, 

33 
34 
35 
36 
3 7 Mary Martone, Secretary to the Board 
38 
39 
40 ArrEST: 
41 
42 
43 MINUTES PREPARED BY: 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 Karen King, Board Administrative Assistant 

May 17,2022 Minutes Pa.ge7 of7 



Agenda Item 8. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
SANTA YNEZIUVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT N0.1 
June 21, 2022 

Consent Agenda Report 

CA-l . Water Supply and Production Report. Total water production in May 2022 (398 AF) was 75 AF 
greater than total production in Apri l (323 AF), slightly higher than the most recent 3-year running average 
(2019-2021) for the month of May (365 AF), yet notably less than the most recent 10-year running 
average (2012-2021) for the month of May (458 AF). Generally, the District's overall demands and total 
production have been trending well below historic levels for domestic, rural residential, and agricultural 
water deliveries due to water conservation, changing water use patterns, and private well installations. 
However, exceptionally dry conditions in 2022 bave caused demands and total production over the 
last several months to be higber tban tbe most recent 3-year average. 

For the month of May, approximately 195 AF was produced from the Santa Ynez Upland wells, and 
approximately 203 AF was produced from the 4.0 cfs and 6.0 cfs Santa Ynez River well fields. As 
reflected in the Monthly Water Deliveries Report from the Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA), the 
District did not request or take delivery of any SWP supplies for the month. Direct diversions to the 
County Park and USBR were 1.79 AF. 

The USBR Daily Operations Report for Lake Cachuma in May (ending May 31, 2022) recorded the end 
of month lake elevation at 707.51' with the end of month storage of 84,738 AF. USBR recorded total 
precipitation at the lake of 0.0 inches in May. For the month, reservoir storage was supplemented with 
621.2 AF of SWP deliveries for South Coast entities. Reservoir evaporation in May was 1,011.3 AF. 

Based on the maximum storage of 193,305 AF, Cachuma reservoir currently (as of June 13, 2022) is at 
approximately 42.9% of capacity, with current storage of 82,731 AF (Santa Barbara County Flood 
Control District, Rainfall and Reservoir Summary). At a point when reservoir storage exceeds 100,000 
AF, the Cachuma Member Units typically have received a full allocation. Conversely, a 20% pro-rata 
reduction from the full allocation is scheduled to occur in Water Years beginning at Jess than 100,000 AF, 
where incremental reductions may occur (and previously have occurred) at other Lower storage levels. 
For the federal WY 2021-2022 (October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2022), the Cacbuma 
Member Units jointly requested an allocation of approximately 83% of the Project's annual 
operational yield of25,714 AF. By letter dated September 24,2021, USBR issued a 70% allocation 
decision for wY 2021-2022, which equates to 18,000. ID No.1's 10.31% share of this allocation 
amounts to 1,855 AF (current water year balance is approximately I ,727 AF). In addition to its 2021-
2022 allocation, ID No.1 currently holds approximately 2,215 AF of previous years carryover water in 
the reservoir, subject to evaporation. 

Water releases for the protection of fish and aquatic habitat are made from Cachuma reservoir to the lower 
Santa Y nez River pursuant to the 2000 Biological Opinion issued by the National Marine Fisheries 
Service (NMFS) and the 2019 Water Rjghts Order (WR 2019-0 L48) issued by the State Water Resources 
Control Board (SWRCB). These releases are made to Hilton Creek and to the stilling basin portion of the 
outlet works at the base ofBradbury Dam. The water releases required under the NMFS 2000 Biological 
Opinion to avoid jeopardy to steelhead and adverse impacts to its critical habitat are summarized as 
follows: 

Consent Agenda Report: June 21, 2022 



NMFS 2000 Biological Opinion 

• When Reservoir Spills and the Spill Amount Exceeds 20, 000 AF: 
o 10 cjs at Hwy 154 Bridge during spill year(s) exceeding 20, 000 AF 
o 1.5 cfs at Aliso/ Bridge when spill amount exceeds 20,000AF and ifsteelhead are present 

at Alisal Reach 
o 1. 5 cfs at A lisa/ Bridge in the year immediately following a spill that exceeded 20, 000 AF 

and if steel head are present at A lisa/ Reach 

• When Reservoir Does Not Spill ot When Reservoir Spills Less Than 20, 000 AF: 
o 5 eft at Hwy 154 when Reservoir does not spill and Reservoir storage is above 120.000 

AF, or when Reservob· spill is less than 20,000 AF 
o 2.5 eft at Hwy 154 in all years when Reservoir storage is below 120,000 AF but greater 

than 30.000AF 
o 1.5 cjs at Aliso/ Bridge if the Reservoir spilled in the preceding year and the spill amount 

exceeded 20,000 AF and if steel head are present at A lisa/ Reach 
o 30 AF per month to "refresh the stilling basin and long pool" when Reservoir storage is 

less than 30,000 AF 

The water releases required under the SWRCB Water Rights Order 2019-0148 for the protection offish and other 
public trust resources in the lower Santa Y nez River and to prevent the waste and unreasonable use of water are 
summarized as follows: 

SWRCB Order WR 2019-0148 

• During Below Normal, Dry, and Critical D1y water years (October I - September 30), releases 
shall be made in accordance with the requirements of the NMFS 2000 Biological Opinion as set 
forth above. 

• During Above Normal and Wet water years, the following minimum flow requirements must be 
maintained at Hwy 154 and A lisa/ Bridges: 

o 48 cjs from February 15 to April 14 for spawning 
o 20 cjs from February 15 to June 1 for incubation and rearing 
o 25 eft from June 2 to June 9 for emigration, with ramping to 10 cjs by June 30 
o 10 eft from June 30 to October 1 for rearing and maintenance of resident fish 
o 5 cjs from October 1 to February 15 for resident fish 

• For purposes ofSWRCB Order WR 2019-0148, water year classifications are as follows: 
o Wet is when Cachuma Reservoir injlow is greater than 117,842 AF; 
o Above Normal is when Reservoir inflow is less than or equal to 117,842 AF or g7·eater 

than 33, 707 AF; 
o Below Normal is when Reservoir inflow is less than or equal to 33,707 AF or greater 

than 15,3 66 AF; 
o Dry is when Reservoir inflow is less than or equal to 15,366 AF or greater than 4,550 

AF 
o Critical Dry is when Reservoir inflow is less than or equal to 4,550 AF 

For the month of May, water releases for fish were approximately 56.2 AF to Hilton Creek and 
approximately 565.0 AF to the outlet works for a total of 621.2 AF. As of the end of May 2022, a 
total of approximately 46,697.6 AF of Cachuma Project water has been released under regulatory 
requirements for the protection of fish and fish habitat below Bradbury Dam since the year after the last 
spill in 201 1. 

Consent Agenda Report: June 21, 2022 2 



CA-2. State Water Project (SWP) and Central Cpast Water Authority CCCWA) Updates. 
As previously reported, on January 20, 2022, the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) 
issued a Notice to SWP Contractors that the 2022 SWP Table A allocation has been increased from 0 
percent to 15 percent.1 That increased allocation translated to 105 AF for ID No.1's 2022 share ofTable 
A supplies through CCW A. However, by Notice to SWP Contractors dated March 18, 2022, DWR 
has reduced the Table A allocation from 15 percent down to 5 percent. This decreased allocation 
equates to 35 AF for ID No.1's share of Table A supplies tbrougb CCW A. The District also holds 
approximately 181 AF of prior years carryover in San Luis Reservoir. 

As indicated in the May 26, 2022 and June 9, 2022 meeting agendas for the CCW A Board of Directors 
(enclosed), CCWA is currently addressing a variety of matters relating to the SWP, including but not 
limited to: SWP supplies and ongoing drought conditions; SWP operations; the 2022 Supplemental Water 
Purchase Program; a proposed temporary CCWA Warren Act Contract for Cachuma Reservoir; potential 
water management strategies; and pending litigation against the Santa Barbara County Flood Control and 
Water Conservation District. The June 2022 meeting of the CCWA Board of Directors has been 
cancelled. 

1 By way of background, on December 1, 2021, DWR issued an Initial 2022 S WP Table A allocation stating 
that DWR would be allocating 2022 SWP available supplies on a basis that ensures the SWP Contractors can 
meet their outstanding minimum human health and safety demands for water. According to DWR, that initial 
"Health and Safety" allocation was to be based on minimum unmet water demands for domestic supply, fire 
protection, and sanitation needs during the year, which the SWRCB has established as not more than 55 gallons 
per capita per day. Because no CCWA agencies identified unmet health and safety demands, DWR' s December 
2021 Notice translated to an Initial 0 percent Table A allocation for CCWA and its participants. 

Consent Agenda Report: J unc 21, 2022 3 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
U.S. BUREAU OF RECLAMATION-CACHUMA PROJECT-CALIFORNIA 

MAY 2022 LAKE CACHUMA DAILY OPERATIONS RUN DATE: June 1, 2022 

DAY ELEV STORAGE COMPUTED• CCWA PRECIPON RELEASE· AF. EVAP PRECIP 
ACRE-FEET INFLOW INFLOW RES. SURF. HILTON AF. INCH INCHES 

IN LAKE CHANGE AF. AF. AF. TUNNEL CREEK OUTLET SPILLWAY 

709.10 87,575 
709.05 87,484 ·91 20.4 17.2 .0 82.3 1.9 14.0 .0 30.4 .250 .00 

2 708.99 87,376 -108 7.2 12.5 .0 81.5 1.8 14.0 .0 30.4 .260 .00 
3 708.94 87,286 -90 10.8 12.5 .0 67.1 1.9 14,0 .0 30.3 .250 .00 
4 708.91 87,232 -54 36.9 12.5 .0 61 .6 1.9 12.0 .0 27.9 .230 .00 
5 708.86 87,141 -91 14.2 12.5 .0 71.0 1.8 17.0 .0 27.9 .230 .00 

6 708.81 87,051 -90 29.8 12.7 .0 76.5 1.9 19.0 .0 35.1 .290 .00 
7 708.76 86,961 -90 5.7 22.8 .0 68.7 1.8 19.0 .0 29.0 .240 .00 
8 708.70 86,853 -108 -14.2 22.8 .0 64.4 1.8 19.0 .0 31.4 .260 .00 
9 708.65 86,763 -90 7.8 22.8 .0 63.5 1.9 19.0 .o 36.2 .300 .00 
10 708.59 86,655 -108 · 12.6 22.8 .0 63.6 1.8 19.0 .0 33.8 .280 .00 

11 708.53 86,548 -107 -14.0 22.8 .0 63.7 1.8 19.0 .0 31.3 .260 .00 
12 708.48 86,459 -89 16.6 22.8 .0 75.1 1.8 19.0 .0 32.5 .270 .00 
13 708.44 86,388 -71 36.0 22.7 .0 82.3 1.9 19.0 .0 26.5 .220 .00 
14 708.38 86,282 -106 12.9 22.7 .0 79.9 1.8 19.0 .0 40.9 .340 .00 
15 708.34 86,210 ·72 48.4 22.7 .0 86.2 1.8 19.0 .0 36.1 .300 .00 

16 708.28 86,104 - 106 -23.1 22.7 .0 59.6 1.8 19.0 .0 25.2 .210 .00 
17 708.25 86,050 -54 37.8 22.7 .o 62.5 1.8 19.0 .0 31.2 .260 .00 
18 708.18 85,926 -124 -1 2.2 14.3 .0 78.7 1.8 18.0 .0 27.6 .230 .00 
19 708.13 85,837 -89 37.9 12.5 .o 87.5 1.8 19.0 .0 31.1 .260 .00 
20 708.07 85,712 -125 13.1 12.5 .0 90.3 1.8 19.0 .0 39.5 .330 .00 

21 708.01 85,624 ·88 31.6 12.5 .0 82.6 1.8 19.0 .0 28.7 .240 .00 
22 707.95 85,517 ·107 5.5 12.5 .0 74.5 1.7 19.0 .0 29.8 .250 .00 
23 707.91 85,446 -71 45.2 12.5 .0 73.5 1.8 20.0 .0 33.4 .280 .DO 
24 707.84 85,321 -125 ·2.6 12.5 .0 73.6 1.8 19.0 .o 40.5 .340 .00 
25 707.80 85,250 -71 51 .1 12.5 .0 74.5 1.8 19.0 .0 39.3 .330 .00 

26 707.74 85,143 -107 14.0 12..5 .0 74.7 1.8 19.0 .o 38.0 ,320 .00 
27 707.69 85,054 -89 7.6 30.1 .0 76.2 1.8 19.0 .0 29.7 .250 .00 
28 707.65 84,983 -71 20.1 36.6 .0 71.3 1.8 19.0 .0 35.6 .300 .00 
29 707.59 84,8n -106 -11.8 36.7 .o 74.6 1.7 19.0 .0 35.6 .300 .00 
30 707.55 84,808 -69 4.1 36.7 .0 54.6 1.8 19.0 .0 34.4 .290 .00 

31 707.51 84.738 -70 -11 .6 36.6 .0 42.2 1.8 19.0 .0 32.0 .270 .00 

TOTAL CAFl -2,837 412.6 621.2 .0 2,238.3 56.2 565.0 .0 1,011 .3 8.430 .00 
(AVG) 86,099 

COMMENTS: 
• COMPUTED INFLOW IS THE SUM OF CHANGE IN STORAGE, RELEASES, AND EVAPORATION MINUS PRECIP ON THE RESERVOIR SURFACE AND CCWA 
INFLOW. 
DATA BASED ON 24·HOUR PERIOD ENDING 0800. 
INDICATED OUTLETS RELEASE INCLUDE ANY LEAKAGE AROUND GATES. 



Santa Barbara County - Flood Control District 
130 East Victoria Streo:t, Snnta Bnrbarn CA 9310 I • 805.568.3440 • www.countyofsb.org/pwd 

Rainfall and Reservoir Summary 
Updated Sam: 6/13/2022 Water Year: 2022 Storm Number: NA 

Notes: Daily rainfall amounts are recorded as of Sam for the previous 24 hours. Rainfall units arc expressed in inches. 
All data on this page are from automated sensors, are preliminary, and subject to verification. 
*Each Water Year (WY) runs from Sept I through Aug 31 and is designated by the calendar year in which it ends 
Cnuntl Rclll- rime Rainfall anu Reservoil' Website link: > ht!I!://www.count~ofsh.OI'~hldrolnax 

Rainfall lD 24 hrs Storm Month Year* %to Date %of Year* AI Odny(s) 

Buellton (Fire Stn) 233 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.11 55% 55% 

Cachuma Dam (USSR) 332 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.69 65% 64% 

Carpinteria (Fire Stn) 208 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.02 59% 58% 

Cuyama (Fire Stn) 436 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.51 60% 59% 

Figueroa Mtn. (USFS Stn) 421 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.17 62% 61% 12.5 

Gibraltar Dam (City Facility) 230 0.00 0.00 0.00 17.70 68% 67% 12.5 

Goleta (Fire Stn-Los Cameros) 440 0.00 0.00 0.00 11.88 65% 64% 

Lompoc (City Hall) 439 0.00 0.00 0.01 9.94 69% 68% 12.5 

Los Alamos (Fire Stn) 204 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.30 61% 61% 

San Marcos Pass (USFS Stn) 212 0.00 0.00 0.00 26.77 80% 79% 

Santa Barbara (County Bldg) 234 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.38 74% 73% 

Santa Maria (City Pub. Works) 380 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.95 60% 60% 

Santa Ynez (Fire Stn /Airport) 218 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.13 65% 64% 

Sisquoc (Fire Stn) 256 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.47 50% 49% 

County-wide percentage of "Normal-to-Date" rainfall : 64% 

County-wide percentage of ''Normal Water-Year" rainfall: 63% 
----------------------~~--~--~-------------

County-wide percentage of ''Normal Water-Year" rainfall calculated Al CAntmdeot Index 1 sou Wemm> 
assuming no more rain through Aug. 31, 2022 (End of WY2022). 6.0 and below = Wet (min. c 2.5) 

6.1 - 9.0 • Moderntc 
9.1 nnd above • Dry (mnx. • 12.5) 

Reservoir Elevations referenced to NGVD-29. 
Reservoirs HCachuma is full ood subject to spilling nt elevation 750 n. 

However, the lake is surcbnrged to 7 53 ft . for fisb rolc:ilse water. 
(Cachumn water seorngo is based on Dec 2013 copocity revision) 

Spillway Current Max. Current Current Storage Storage 

Click on Site for 
Elev. Elev. Storage Storage Capacity Change Change 

Real· Time Readings (ft) (ft) (ac-ft) (ac-ft) (%) Mo.(ac-ft) Year*(ac-ft) 

Gibraltar Reservoir 1,400.00 1,388.73 4,693 2,425 51.7% -160 2,151 

Cachu rna Reservoir 753.** 706.93 192,978 82,731 42.9% -944 -16,539 

.Jameson Reservoir 2,224.00 2,208.56 4,848 3,120 64.4% -35 35 

Twit~h~ll Rc~er:1::oir 651.50 NA 194,971 NA NA NA 

ece~ICU:i Ba1Dfi111 actl BllS:Q!Cit SUDJDJiltlll:i 



California Irrigation Management Information System (CIMIS) 

CIMIS Daily Report 
Rendered in ENGLISH Units. 
Sunday, May 1, 2022- Tuesday, May 31, 2022 
Printed on Wednesday, June 1, 2022 

Santa Ynez ·Central Coast Valleys· Station 64 
Dato 

5/1/2022 

5/212022 

5/312022 

5/4/2022 

515/2022 

51612022 

5f712022 

51612022 

5/912022 

5/1012022 

5/11/2022 

5112/2022 

511312022 

5/W2022 

5/15/2022 

511612022 

5/1712022 

511812022 

5/1912022 

5/2012022 

5/2112022 

512212022 

512312022 

512412022 

512512022 

5/2612022 

512712022 

512812022 

5129/2022 

513012022 

5131/2022 

ETo 
(In) 

Proclp 
(In) 

Tol,IAvgs 

0.21 

0.21 

0.23 

0.24 

0.22 

0.22 

0.21 

0.24 

0.23 

0.23 

0.24 

0.24 

0.27 

0.27 R 

0.20 

0.22 

0.21 

0.24 

0.25 

0.22 

0 .24 

0.22 

0.24 

0.25 

0.2.5 

0.18 

0.19 

0.22 

0.26 

0,24 

0.24 

7.13 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

o.oo 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

I 
I A - Historical Average 

I C or N - Not Collected 

SoiRad 
(Lyld ay) 

670 

655 

703 R 

705 R 

890 

692 

&45 

722 R 

704 

734 R 

737 R 

722 R 

738 R 

724 R 

816 

687 

680 

704 

723 

708 

721 

669 

714 

717 

731 

587 

594 

690 

752 R 

742 R 

738 

697 

H - Hourly Missing or Flagged 
Data 

I 
I L~fda~/2.065=W/sg.m 

I meh • 0.447 = m/s 

II 
II 
II 

II 
II 

Avg Vap 
Pres 

(mBare) 

12.2 

12.0 

10.5 

11.1 

12..0 

13.4 

13.0 

9.0 

6.5 y 

7.3 y 

7.8 

9.3 

9.4 

12.5 

15.0 

14.1 

12.9 

13.4 

13 .1 

13.4 

13.3 

12.9 

12.8 

14A 

18.1 

16.2 

14.4 

12.5 

11.9 

11.3 

11 .3 

12.1 

Max Aft 
Tamp 
(' F) 

72.4 

74.8 

79.8 

88.3 

84.8 

77.5 

75.9 

70.1 

68.6 

69.7 

71.0 

80.0 

94.9 y 

95.4 y 

79.8 

75.0 

74.4 

88.5 

84,8 

73.5 

79.6 

82,3 

85,2 

91.9 y 

91.9 y 

77.5 

78.5 

75.1 

82.3 

74.8 

8o.:z 
79.9 

Min Air 
Temp 
('F) 

<18.5 

46.0 

42_6 

36.8 

44.7 

<15.8 

48.7 

43.9 

43.0 

35.8 

36.7 

41.7 

38.8 

43.5 

53.3 

52.2 

48.8 

49.2 

46.2 

49.7 

45.8 

48.8 

47.7 

47.5 

50.7 

57.3 

51.2 

<17.4 

46.8 

45.2 

42.8 

46. 1 

Flag Legend 

I - Ignore 

M - Missing Data 

Avg Alr 
Tomp 
(' F) 

58.1 

57.4 

58.7 

62.1 

59.4 

61.0 

59.5 

55.9 

55.0 

52.8 

53.6 

57.3 

84.9 

68.6 y 

62.8 

60.8 

59.6 

65.7 

64.5 

61.3 

62.3 

60..4 

62.8 

68.2 

69.1 y 

63.7 

83.2 

eo.8 
61.8 

58..5 

60.5 

81.0 

II 
II 

Q - Related Sensor Missing II 
Conversion Factors 

inches • 25.4 = mm II 
mBars • 0.1 = kPa II 

Max Rot 
Hum 
(%) 

99 

100 

100 

99 

100 

100 

100 

100 

83 

100 

97 

100 

97 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

98 

93 

100 

100 

100 

100 

TOO 

100 

98 

100 

100 

100 

100 

99 

Min Rot 
H11m 
l'f•l 
47 

47 

32 

27 

27 

48 

46 

38 

23 

23 

1& 

25 

10 

22 

45 

50 

47 

33 

37 

5<1 

4.ol 

38 

38 

33 

33 

54 

so 
45 

34 

40 

34 
37 

AvgRel 
Hum 
{%) 

74 

74 

62 

58 

69 

73 

75 

59 

44 Y 

53 y 

56 

58 

45 

52 y 

77 

78 

74 

62 

63 

72 

69 

72 

66 

61 

ff'TY 

80 

73 

69 

63 

68 

63 

65 

Dow Point Avg Wind Wind Run 
('F) Spoad (milo•) 

(mph) 

49.6 

49.4 

45.7 

47.3 

49.3 

52.4 

51.6 

41.8 

33.6 y 

36.4 y 

38.1 

42.6 

43.0 

50AY 

55.4 

53.8 

51.3 

52.3 

51.8 

52.3 

52.1 

51.2 

51.1 

54.3 

57.5 y 

57.5 

54.4 

50.5 

49.2 

47.8 

47.8 

49.1 

4.6 

4.4 

3.6 

3.2 

3.9 

3.9 

4.7 

6.3 

5.7 

4.5 

5.2 

3.9 

4.0 

3.5 

4.2 

4.6 

4.0 

3.3 

3.8 

3.9 

3.5 

3.7 

3.8 

2.9 

3.2 

3.5 

3.6 

4,1 

4.9 

4.1 

3.4 

4.1 

110.0 

104.4 

86.1 

77.5 

92.4 

94.3 

112.2 

151.9 

137.0 

108.8 

124.9 

94.8 

96.3 

83.8 

99.9 

110.6 

96.6 

79.9 

90.6 

93.8 

84.8 

8~.2 

81.3 

70.7 

76.5 

84.9 

88.1 

98.1 

116.6 

98.3 

81 .8 

97.A 

R- Far out of nonnal range 

S - Not in service 

Y - Moderately out of range 

(F-32} .. 519 = c 

miles • 1.60934 = km 

Avg Soli 
Temp 
('F) 

6?'.8 

68.3 

68.4 

68.5 

68.9 

69.3 

69.7 

69.9 

69.5 

69.1 

68.8 

68.8 

69.1 

69.7 

70.5 

70.8 

71.1 

71.3 

71.7 

72.1 

72.3 

72_4 

72.5 

72.7 

73.3 

74.0 

74.1 

74.0 

73.9 

73.8 

73.6 

71.0 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

Ray Stokes, Executive Director 
Dessi Mladenova, Controller 

Christine Forsyth, Administrative Assistant 

Monthly Water Deliveries 

June 1, 202.2 

According to the CCWA revenue meters at each turnout, the following deliveries were made during the 
month of May 2022: 

ProJect Participant Delivery Amount (acre-feet) 
Chorro ............................................................ 182.26 

L6pez .............................................................. 244.04 

Shandon ............................................................. 0.00 

Guadalupe .......................................................... 1.22 

Santa Maria .................................................... 136.01 
Golden State Water Co ................................. ..... 0.42 

Vandenberg .. ........................................... ........... 0.00 

Buellton .............................................................. 4.46 
Solvang ............................................................ 52.7 4 

Santa Ynez 10#1 ................................................ 0.00 

Bradbury ....... ................................................ 634.12 
TOTAL ........................................................ 1,255.27 

In order to reconcile these deliveries with the DWR revenue meter, which read 1,272 acre-feet, the 
following delivery amounts should be used for billing purposes: 

Project Participant Delivery Amount (acre-feet) 
Chorro ............................................................. 187 
L6pez ............................................................... 251 
Shandon ............................................................... 0 
Guadalupe ............................................................ 1 
Santa Maria ...................................................... 139* 
Golden State Water Co ....................................... 1 * 
Vandenberg ........................................................ 0 
Buellton ............................................................... 5 
Solvang .............................................................. 54 

Santa Ynez 10#1 ................................................. 0 
Bradbury ......................................................... ~ 
TOTAL ........................................................... 1,272 

*Golden State Water Company delivered 1 acre-feet into its system through the Santa Maria 
turnout. This delivery is recorded by providfng a credit of 1 acre-feet to the City of Santa Marla 
and a charge in the same amount, to the Golden State Water Company. 



Notes: Santa Ynez ID#1 water usage is divided into 0 acre-feet of Table A water and 0 acre-feet of 
exchange water. 

cc: 

The exchange water is allocated as follows 

Project Participant 
Goleta 
Santa Barbara 
Montecito 
Carpinteria 
TOTAL 

Exchange Amount (acre-feet) 
0 
0 
0 
Q 
0 

Bradbury Deliveries into Lake Cachuma are allocated as follows: 

Project Participant 
Carpinteria 
Goleta 
La Cumbre 
Montecito 
Morehart 
Santa Barbara 
Raytheon 
TOTAL 

Delivery Amount (acre-feet) 
127 
352 
45 

0 
10 

100 
Q 

634 

Tom Bunosky, GWD REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF 
Mike Babb, Golden State WC 
Rebecca Bjork, City of Santa Barbara 
Janet Gingras, COMB 
Craig Kesler, San Luis Obispo County 
Paeter Garcia, Santa Ynez RWCD ID#1 
Shad Springer, City of Santa Maria 
Shannon Sweeney, City of Guadalupe 
Robert MacDonald, Carpinteria Valley WD 
Mike Alvarado, La Cumbre Mutual WC 
Pernell Rush, Vandenberg AFB 
Nick Turner, Montecito WD 
Jose Acosta, City of Solvang 
Rose Hess, City of Buellton 

DELIVERY E RDS AND ASSOCIATED 
CAL LA 10 S 

·ations and Engineering 
uthority 



Eric fl'iedmnn 
Olairman 

Ed Andrisek 
Vlc~ Chairman 

Ray A. Stokes 
Executive Dlrector 

Browmtein Hyatt 
Fnrbet Schreck 
Genc:ral Counsel 

Member Agcntics 

City of Buellton 

Carpinteria Valley 
Water District 

City of Guadalupe 

City ol Santa Barbam 

City of San to Marla 

Goleta Water Dlstnct 

Montecito Water District 

Santa Yncz Rlver Water 
Conservation District, 
Improvement District 111 

As~oc/Qte Member 

Ln Cumbre Mutual 
Water Company 

255 Industrial Way 
Buellton, CA 93427 
(805) 688·2292 
Fax (805) 686-4700 
www.ccwa.corn 

A Meeting of the 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

will be held at 9:00a.m., on Thursday, May 26, 2022 
a t 255 Industrial Way, Buellton, California 93427 

REVISED 

Members of the public may participate by vldeo call or telephone via 
URL: https:ljv.ringcentral .com/ioin/008789477 

or by dialing (650) 419-1505 and entering access Code/Meeting iD: 008789477 # 

Public Comment on agenda items may occur via video call or telephonically, or by submission to the 
Board Secretary via email at lfw@ccwa.com no later than 8:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting. In your 
email, please specify (1) the meeting date and agenda item (number and title) on which you are 
providing a comment and (2) that you would like your comment read into the record during lhe meeting. 
If you would like your comment read Into the record during the meeting (as either general public 
comment or on a specific agenda item), please limit your comments to no more than 250 words. 

Every effort will be made to read comments into the record, but some comments may not be read due 
to time limitations. Please also note that if you submit a written comment and do not specify that you 
would like this comment read into the· record during the meeting, your comment will be forwarded to 
Board members for their consideration. 

Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available on the CCWA internet web site, accessible at https://www.ccwa.com. 

I. 

II. 

Ill. 

IV. 

v. 

Call to Order and Roll Call 

CLOSED SESSION 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 

Government Code section 54956.9(d) (1) 
Name of case: Central Coast Water Authority, et al. v. Santa Barbara County 
Flood Control and Water Conservation District, et al. (Case No. 21CV02432) 

B. CLOSED SESSION: CONFERENCE W ITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
Government Code section 54956.8 
Property: Warren Act Contract 
Agency negotiator: Ray Stokes 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code§ 54956.9(d)(2) 
Number of cases: 1 

Agenda Item II, the Closed Session, Is anticipated to take 30 minutes. The remainder of 
the Meeting will start no earlier than 9:30 am. 

Return to Open Session 
A. Report on Closed Session Actions (if any) 

Public Comment- (Any member of the public may address the Board relating to 
any matter within the Board's jurisdiction. Individual Speakers may be limited to 
five minutes; all speakers to a total of fifteen minutes.) 

Consent Calendar 
* A. Minutes of the April 28, 2022 Regular Meeting 
*B. Bills * C. Controller's Report 
* D. Operations Report 

Staff Recommendation: Approve the Consent Calendar 
I 

Continued [ 

• Indicates attachment of document to original agenda packet. + 
#FINAL Board Agenda 05·26·2022 (revisod 5_23_ 1 3e,}l3.1) 

24193003.1 



VI. Executive Director's Report * A. Temporary Warren Act Contract Between CCWA and United States Bureau of 
Reclamation 
Staff Recommendation: Informational item only. 
Staff Recommendation: That the Board authorize the Executive Director to execute 
a fee agreement with Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck LLP for government 
relations services on a month-to-month basis 

B. Water Supply Situation Report 
Staff Recommendation: Informational item only. * C. 2022 Supplemental Water Purchase Program 
1. Mojave Water Agency 

Staff Recommendation: That the Board Adopt Resolution No. 22-04: A 
Resolution Of The Board Of Directors Of The Central Coast Water Authority 
Approving The 2022 Purchase Of Supplemental State Water Project Water 
Supplies From Mojave Water Agency 

2. State Water Contractor Dry Year Transfer Program 
Staff Recommendation: That the Board authorize the Executive Director to 
enter Into contracts with numerous Dry Year Transfer Program sellers on 
behalf of three CCWA Participants 

D. Update on the Voluntary Agreement, Jennifer Pierre, State Water Contractors 
Staff Recommendation: Informational item only. * E. CCWAJSan Luis Obispo County State Water Transfer Proposal 
Staff Recommendation: That the Board authorize the Executive Director to 
negotiate a contract based on the attached draft term sheet. * F. Aquaterra Water Bank 
Staff Recommendation: Informational item only. * G. Amendment to Chemical Contract: (1) ChemTrade Inc. for Liquid Aluminum Sulfate 
at an initial cost of $476.27 per dry ton and {2) JCI Jones Chemical Inc. for Liquid 
Chlorine at an initial cost of $1,838 per dry ton 
Staff Recommendation: That the Board Authorize the Executive Director to execute 
the contract amendments allowing a quarterly pricing review for the following 
chemical venders and initial pricing: 
• Chemtrade LLC for Liquid Aluminum Sulfate at a cost of $476.27 per dry ton. 
• JCI Jones Chemical for Liquid Chlorine at a cost of $1,838.00 per ton. 

* H. State Water Contractors Update 
Staff Recommendation: Informational item only. 

* I. Legislative Report 
Staff Recommendation: Informational item only. 

VII. Reports from Board Members for Information Only 

VIII. Items for Next Regular Meeting Agenda 

IX. Date of Next Regular Meeting: June 23, 2022 

X. Adjournment 

#FINAL Board Agenda 05-26-2022 (revised 5_23_22){24193003.1) 
24193003.1 



Eric Friedman 
Chairman 

Ed Andrtsck 
Vice Chairman 

Ray A. Stokes 
Executive Director 

Brownstein Hyatt 
Farber Schreck 
General Counsel 

Member Ag~rcies 

City of Buellton 

Carplnhttla Valley 
Water Distrkt 

City of Guadalupe 

C1ty of Santa Barbara 

City of Santa Maria 

Goleta Water District 

Montecito Water District 

Santa Ynez River Water 
Conservation District, 
Improvement District #1 

A~socin tc Member 

La Cumbre Mutuat 
Water Company 

255 Industrial Way 
Buellton, CA 93427 
(805) 688·2292 
Fax (805) 686-4700 
www.ccwa.com 

A Special Meeting of the 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

will be held at 2:00 p.m., on Thursday, June 9, 2022 
at 255 Industrial Way, Buellton, California 

and 
Rincon Room, 1021 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, California 

Members of the public may participate by v.ideo call or telephone via 
URL: https://v.ringcentral.com/ioln/597324184 

or by dialing (650) 419-1505 and entering access Code/Meeting 10 : 597324184 # 

Public Comment on agenda items may occur via video call or telephonically, or by submission to the 
Board Secretary via email at lfw@ccwa.com no later than 8:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting. In your 
email, please specify (1) the meeting date and agenda item (number and title) on which you are 
providing a comment and (2) that you would like your comment read into the record during the meeting. 
If you would like your comment read into the record during the meeting (as either general public 
comment or on a specific agenda Item), please limit your comments to no more than 250 words. 

Every effort will be made to read comments into the record, but some comments may not be read due 
to time limitations. Please also note that If you submit a written comment and do not specify that you 
would like this comment read into the record during the meeting, your comment will be forwarded to 
Board members for their consideration. 

Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda Items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available on the CCWA internet web site, accessible at https://www.ccwa.com. 

I. Call to Order and Roll Call 

II. 

Ill. 

IV. 

v. 

CLOSED SESSION 
A. CLOSED SESSION: CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 

Government Code section 54956.8 
Property: Warren Act Contract 
Agency negotiator: Ray Stokes 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code § 54956.9(d)(2) 
Number of cases: 1 

Agenda Item II, the Closed Session, is anticipated to take 30 minutes. The remainder of 
the Meeting wllf start no earlier than 2:30p.m. 

Return to Open Session 
A. Report on Closed Session Actions (if any) 

Public Comment - (Any member of the public may address the Board relating to 
any matter within the Board 's jurisdiction. Individual Speakers may be limited to 
five minutes; all speakers to a total of f ifteen minutes.) 

Executive Director's Report 
• A. Temporary Warren Act Contract Between CCWA and United States Bureau of 

Reclamation 
Staff Recommendation; 
1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-05 for Approval of Temporary Warren Act 
Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 with United States Bureau of Reclamation approving 
the Temporary Warren Act Contract and authorizing the Chair of the Board to 
execute the Temporary Warren Act Contract; and 

2. Authorize the Chair of the Board to do and cause to be done any and all 
acts and things necessary or appropriate to allow for CCWA's continued use of the 
Cachuma Project on a temporary, interim, or emergency basis for a period not to 
exceed 90 days. 

• Indicates attachment of document to original agenda packet. continued 



VI. Reports from Board Members for Information Only 

VII. Items for Next Regular Meeting Agenda 

VIII. Date of Next Regular Meeting: June 23, 2022 

IX. Adjournment 

#49695_1.docx 



CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

TO: 

FROM: Ray Stokes 
Executive Dir 

MEMORANDUM 

SUBJECT: Cancellation of June 23, 2022 Board of Directors Meeting 

June 13, 2022 

This memo is notice that after consultation with Chairman Freidman, the CCWA Board 
meeting scheduled for June 23, 2022 has been canceled. 

The next regular meeting of the CCWA Board of Directors Is scheduled for July 28, 
2022. 

Please call me if you have any questions. 

RAS 

cc: Operating Committee 
Stephanie Hastings, Brownstein Hyatt Farber and Schreck, LLP 

49708_1.docx 



Agenda ltetn 9. A. 2. a). 

RESOLUTION NO. 821 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT N0.1 
ESTABLISHING THE APPROPRIATION LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 

PURSUANT TO ARTICLE XIIIB OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation 
District, Improvement District No.1 (" District''), Santa Barbara County, California, that 

WHEREAS,. the District is required pursuant to Government Code Section 7910 to establish by 
Resolution its appropriation limit for the 2022/2023 fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, the documentation used in the determination of said limit has been available to the 
public at the District office and on the District website for at least fifteen (15) days prior to the date of this 
Resolution, and was published in a newspaper of general circulation within the District on June 9, 2022 
and on June 16, 2022. 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that, in accordance with information published by the California 
Department of Finance, the appropriation limit of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, 
Improvement DiStrict No.1, for the 2022/2023 fiscal yea:t is established at $2,300,918. 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, being duly qualified President and Secretary, respectively, of the Board of 
Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing Resolution was du1y and regularly adopted and passed by the Board 
of Trustees of said District at a Regular Meeting held on June 21, 2022, by the following roll call vote: 

A YES, in favor thereot Trustees: 

NOES, Trustees: 
ABSENT, Trustees: 

Jeff Oay, President 

A'ITEST: 

Mary Martone, Secretary to the Board of Trustees 



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT No.1 
3622 SAGUNTO STREET- P.O. BOX 157 

SANTA YNEZ, CA 93460 
{805) 688-6015 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez 
River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1 will consider 
adopting a Resolution setting the limit of appropriations pursuant to Article XIIIB of 
the Constitution of the State of California for fiscal year 20'22/ 2023 at a Regular 
Meeting to be held on Tuesday, June 21, 20'22., at 3:00p.m. 

Documentation used in determining said limit is available to the public at the 
District office located at 36'22. Sagunto Street, Santa Ynez, and on the District's website 
as of the date of this notice. To view at the District office please call (805) 688-6015 to 
make an appointment or visit the District's outside bulletin board. 

Dated: May 17,2022 

Posted: Wednesday, May 18, 20'22 at the District Office 

Newspaper Publication Dates: 
Thursday, June 9, 20'22 
Thursday, June 16,2022 



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICI' 

IMPROVEMENr DrsTRicr No.1 

2022/2023 FISCAL YEAR APPROPRIATION UMIT ATION CALCULATION 

Population and California per capita personal income change data provided by the State 
of California Department of Finance effective January 1, 2022 are used in computing the 
2022/2023 Appropriation Limitation Calculation as follows: 

2021/22 Appropriation Limit 

Per Capita Personal Income 
Percentage Change over Prior Year 

Population Change over Prior Year 
Santa Barbara County 

Per Capita converted to a ratio: 

Population converted to a ratio: 

CPIFactor 
Population Factor 
CPI Factor X Population Factor 

1.0770 X $2,136,415 = 

$2,136,415 

7.55 percent 

0.14 percent 

7.55 + 100 = 1.0755 
100 

0.14 + 100 = 1.0014 
100 

1.0755 
1.0014 
1.0770 

A Resolution will be presented to the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water 
Conservation District, Improvement District No.1, for adoption of the 2022/2023 
Appropriation Limit at a Regular Meeting on June 21, 2022. 

Posted: Wednesday, May 18, 2022 at the District Office and on the District Website 

Newspaper Publication Dates: 
Thursday, June 9, 2022 
Thursday, June 16,2022 



Agenda Item 9. A. 3. a). 

SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT N0.1 

FINAL BUDGET 

FY 2022/2023 



Page | 2 

 
 
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Jeff Holzer 
Division 1 

 
Jeff Clay - President 

Division 2 
 

Lori Parker 
Division 3 

 
Michael Burchardi 

Division 4 
 

Brad Joos - Vice President 
Trustee-At-Large 

 
 

 

This Budget was prepared under the direction of: 

Paeter Garcia, General Manager 

Mary Martone, Assistant General Manager/Secretary to the Board 

 

STAFF CONTRIBUTORS 

Eric Tambini, Water Resources Manager 

Joe Come’, Operations & Maintenance Superintendent 

  



Page | 3 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
DISTRICT OVERVIEW, STRUCTURE AND STAFFING 
 
The Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1 (District) was formed 
in 1959 under the Water Conservation District Law of 1931, Division 21, Section 74000 et seq. of 
the California Water Code (the Act) for the purpose of furnishing water and related water supply 
services within the District’s boundaries.  The District has operated continuously since 1959. 
 
Located in the central portion of Santa Barbara County, the District serves the communities of 
Santa Ynez, Los Olivos, Ballard, the Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians, and the City of Solvang 
(limited basis).  With a service area population of approximately 7,022 (excluding the City of 
Solvang), the District currently provides water directly to approximately 2,624 municipal and 
industrial customers (including domestic/residential, commercial, institutional, rural residential, and 
fire service) and approximately 97 agricultural customers.  The District encompasses an area of 
approximately 10,850 acres (including approximately 1,300 acres within Solvang).   
 
The District obtains its water supplies from the Cachuma Project/State Water Exchange, direct 
diversions from the Cachuma Project (as needed), contractual deliveries from the State Water 
Project as a member agency of the Central Coast Water Authority, production from the Santa Ynez 
Uplands Groundwater Basin, and diversions from the Santa Ynez River alluvium.  The District’s 
major activities include acquisition, construction, operation, and maintenance of works and facilities 
for the development and use of water resources and water rights, including without limitation, works 
and facilities to divert, store, pump, treat, deliver, and sell water for reasonable and beneficial uses 
by the District’s domestic and agricultural accounts.   
 
 
Operational Information 
 
 District Pipelines (in miles) = 92 
 Number of Booster Pump Stations = 5 with 11 pumps 
 Number of Active Wells = 19 
 SWP/ID No.1 Turnout = 5 pumps 
 Number of water storage reservoirs/tanks = 4 with a total capacity of 16.7 million gallons 
 Current number of approved, funded full-time equivalent (FTE) positions = 20 

 

To  provide  the  residential  and  agricultural  customers  in  the 

Santa  Ynez  River  Water  Conservation  District,  Improvement 

District No.1 service area with reasonably priced, reliable, high 

quality  water  supply,  and  efficient  and  economical  public 

services. 



Page | 4 

ORGANIZATION CHART 

FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 

 

 

 

 

  

 

TOTAL POSITIONS = 20

FULL TIME = 20

 

  Treatment

Treatment

Board of Trustees

General Manager
(FTE)

Water Resources

Manager (FTE)

Water Resources 
Associate (FTE) 

Assistant General
Manager

(FTE)

Administrative 
Services, Human 

Resources, 
Finance, Board 

Support

Administrative 
Assistants

Admin. Assistant II 

(3 FTE)

Board Administrative
Assistant (FTE)

Distribution & 
Operations

Supervisor (FTE)

Legal Counsel
BHFS & BBK

Government Affairs  
Associate

(FTE)

Operations & 
Maintenance

Superintendent (FTE) Office 

Administrator
(FTE)

Operation Technicians
Op Tech III (1 FTE)

Op Tech II (2 FTE)

Opertor-in-Training (2 FTE)

Maintenance Worker (1 FTE)

Water Resources 
Technician (FTE)

Government Affairs  
& Policy

Manager (FTE)



Page | 5 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
FISCAL YEAR 2022/23  

 
BUDGET PROCESS 
The District’s fiscal year budget is one of the most important documents prepared by 
management for the Board of Trustees.  The financial accounts and line items reflected in this 
document and the FY 2022/23 Final Budget describe the annual fiscal year budget beginning 
July 1, 2022 and ending on June 30, 2023.  
 
The development and adoption of the District’s annual budget is based on projected revenues 
and expenditures, as well as identified projects and programs which provides the financial 
foundation for District activities.  The budget serves as a roadmap for ensuring reasonable costs 
and predictable customer rates.  The budget blends advanced revenue forecasting and effective 
expenditure management with the infrastructure investment needed to deliver safe, reliable, cost-
effective, and sustainable water supplies to the communities served by the District. 
 
Through the process of planning and preparing the budget, management compared the 2016 
Water Rate Study results with the prior year financial conditions and year-end  estimated 
outcomes, then forecasted the funding needs of the District in order to continue to provide 
high levels of water service, meet regulatory requirements, and comply with applicable 
financial obligations throughout the fiscal year and beyond.   
 
To determine the annual operating budget and capital costs necessary to provide water service, 
the General Manager and Assistant General Manager work with the Water Resources Manager 
and the Operations & Maintenance Superintendent to identify and prioritize estimated operating 
expenditures and capital improvement projects.  Once a Final Budget is prepared, it is 
presented to the Board of Trustees at a public meeting to provide the opportunity for questions, 
modifications, and direction to staff to finalize the budget for Board approval at a subsequent 
public meeting.  The Final Budget provides a necessary foundation for the District’s 
administrative, operations, and maintenance programs, debt service obligations, and other 
financial commitments and service objectives for the coming year. 
 
REPORTING BASIS 
The District utilizes the accrual basis for budgeting purposes and for accounting and financial 
reporting.  The accrual method recognizes revenues and expenses in the period in which they 
are earned and incurred.  The accrual method is the Generally Accepted Accounting Principal 
(GAAP) for financial reporting.    
 
The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund.  This method of reporting is used to 
account for operations that are financed and administered in a manner similar to a private 
business enterprise.  The costs of providing water and services to customers on a continuing 
basis (including replacement of existing assets) should be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges and the costs are borne by the customers who are receiving the benefit of 
the assets. 
 
The FY 2022/23 Final Budget was developed from the Uniform System of Accounts for Water 
Utilities which includes a set of tables providing details for revenue and expenditure categories 
of the District.  The tables contained in this Report are intended to be reviewed in 
connection with the FY 2022/23 Final Budget document.  The accounting for the 



Page | 6 

budget is supported by the QuickBooks accounting system which is verified annually by an 
independent audit performed by Bartlett, Pringle & Wolf.  The budget tables show categories 
of the operating revenues as compared to operating expenditures along with debt service and 
special studies expenditures, including but not limited to compliance with various state and 
federal regulatory requirements applicable to fisheries protection in the Lower Santa Ynez River, 
compliance with water rights orders issued by the State Water Resources Control Board, and 
implementation of contractual requirements.  The District’s operating expenses and Capital 
Improvement Project program are to be fully funded by operating revenues, and as necessary 
and appropriate from reserve funds.  The Capital Improvement Project expenditures can be 
funded by a combination of operating revenues and reserves. 
 

BUDGET AND RESERVE FUND BACKGROUND 
The District’s 2016 Water Rate Study, inclusive of the approved Water Rate Schedule, was 
adopted by the District’s Board of Trustees on December 13, 2016 and became effective on 
February 1, 2017.  The Water Rate Study and Schedule provide the foundation for incrementally 
increased revenues over a five-year period.  Rates were developed to meet operating expenses, 
debt service obligations, capital improvement projects (partially), and other planned 
expenditures.  The Water Rate Study also includes a Reserves analysis and a plan for adding to 
the District’s reserve funds over the same five-year period to allow for recovery of reserve deficits 
that occurred over the previous six-year period.   The last rate adjustment pursuant to the Water 
Rate Schedule went into effect on July 1, 2021 and remains in effect for the FY 2022/23 budget 
cycle.  The  FY 2022/23 Final Budget proposes to fully fund all expense categories, including 
Operations and Maintenance (O&M), General and Administrative (G&A), Debt Service, Other 
Expenses and Special Studies, and Capital Improvement Project program costs, leaving a net 
balance of $279,031 which will be added to the District’s reserves.  

 
Below are the past fiscal year and the most current fiscal quarter-end Reserve balances based 
on actual accounting and audit information.  
 

 
Table 1 RESERVE BALANCES  

 June 30, 2021 March 31, 20221

BOARD RESERVED  
Debt Repayment Obligation $619,153                                $1,960,5292 
Repair & Replacement $2,817,609                               $4,353,712   
Plant Expansion $4,100,041                              $5,636,144  

Subtotal $3,963,101                               $11,950,385  
RESTRICTED RESERVE  
Dev. Fee; SY Septic $109,212                                   $109,212 
State Water Project Reserve3 $3,000,000                               $3,000,000 

 

1. Amounts reflected in this column represent the reserve balance at 9-months of current FY 2021/22.  The year-end reserve amount 
will change at June 30, 2022 to reflect a balance based on actual accounting for projects and debt service expenditures. 

2. This amount represents a Debt Payment Obligation reserve balance at 9-months of current FY 2021/22.  The year-end reserve 
amount in this category will change at June 20, 2022 to reflect payments for the 2004A Bond payable on June 1, the SWP payment 
due on June 1, and the USBR Safety of Dams Repayment Contract payment. 

3. One year set aside payment established to guarantee ID No.1’s contractual debt obligation in the event of a default by the City of 
Solvang. 

  



Page | 7 

BUDGET IN DETAIL 
The specific revenue and expenditure categories of the budget account for the adopted water 
rates and revenues, prior year audit data, and financial account information.  The categories are 
displayed using actual 9-month revenue and expenditure data from the current fiscal year, and 
are also projected to show the fiscal year-end figures (June 30, 2022).  This information is used 
as part of the evaluation to develop the FY 2022/23 Final Budget.  
 
The FY 2022/23 Final Budget of $12,315,275 reflects an overall 10% decrease compared to 
the projected June 30, 2022 year-end results, but is 4.5% less than the financial projections 
adopted as part of the 2016 Water Rate Study.  As noted above, the FY 2022/23 Final Budget 
assumes that water rates remain static based upon the last rate increase that went into effect 
July 1, 2021.  The water rates are applied to forecasted water sales and meter charges in FY 
2022/23 based on actual sales and charges in the current and prior fiscal years. The budget also 
assumes no increase in the $875,000 Special Assessment / Ad Valorem Tax, even though the 
authorized limit for FY 2022/23 is $2,300,918.  Other factors such as capital facilities charges and 
interest income are integral parts of the forecast.  The information below shows that budgeted 
revenues will meet projected operating expenditures and debt service obligations, and result 
in a projected net revenue balance of $3,459,348.  This revenue balance will fund the Other 
Expenses and Special Studies categories as further detailed in the Final Budget, leaving a 
balance of $2,675,848 in net operating revenues, which will fully fund the proposed $2,396,817 
Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Program for FY 2022/23, leaving a net balance of $279,031 
which will contribute to the District’s reserves.  

 

SUMMARY OF REVENUES 
The District operates according to cost of service, with revenues derived primarily from water 
sales, the special tax assessment, fixed monthly service charges, and other water services.  For 
the FY 2022/23 Final Budget, the total operating revenues are projected at $12,315,275 
including the SWP revenue of $2,240,562 from the City of Solvang.  Actual projected total 
revenues are $10,074,713 without the SWP pass-through payment.  Table 2 below summarizes 
the distribution of the District’s projected revenue sources for FY 2022/23.   
 

Table 2 

 

  SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES 
Based on the FY 2022/23 Final Budget, the District’s projected water sales and other operating 
revenues, including the FY 2022/23 special tax assessment, will fully fund the overall operating 
expenditures, including all categories of Operation & Maintenance, General & Administrative, 
and Debt Service, and result in a net revenue balance of $3,459,348.  This net balance of 



Page | 8 

operating revenues is proposed to fund the District’s Other Expenses and Special Studies 
categories as further detailed in the Final Budget.  Thereafter, a net revenue balance of 
$2,675,848 is proposed to fully fund the District’s FY 2022/23 CIP program.  Table 3 below 
shows all expenditure categories for FY 2022/23 in comparison to the previous fiscal year. 

 

Table 3 

 
                                        
EXPENDITURES - OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE (O&M) 
The overall budget for O&M expenditures for FY 2022/23 is 20% ($1,220,640) less than last 
year’s FY 2021/22 budget, with the Source of Supply category having the single largest 
decrease. This is directly attributable to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) 
charges for State Water Project (SWP) deliveries being reduced by $654,333 for ID No.1 and 
$691,321 for the City of Solvang’s passthrough expenses for the year. The reductions are a 
result of reduced costs in the Transportation Minimum expense, Water System Revenue Bond, 
and Transportation Capital expenses.  Additionally, the United States Bureau of Reclamation 
(USBR) charges for Cachuma Project supplies reflect a $32,780 reduction in the coming 
fiscal year. Other categories of Pumping, Water Treatment, and Transmission & Distribution all 
realized slight increases based upon inflationary and vendor increases.  Table 4 below illustrates 
the distribution of costs for the O&M expense categories. 

 
Table 4 
EXPENDITURES - GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION (G&A) 



Page | 9 

The overall budget for G&A expenditures for FY 2022/23 is 3.5% ($95,619) less than last year’s 
FY 2021/22 budget.  The decrease is primarily due to the removal of the Other Post-Employment 
Benefits (OPEB) line-item #21001 which was $235,000 in FY 2021/22.  Through discussion with 
the District’s auditors, the decision was made to remove this line-item from the forecasted budget 
due to the fact that there is no direct “cash” transaction that occurs with reference to this line-item.  
The OPEB amount is calculated by a third-party actuarial consultant as required and recorded as 
part of the District’s annual audit process.  Once the liability is determined, it is added to the 
District’s Balance Sheet for reporting purposes.  
 
Other administrative expenses, including payroll taxes, office maintenance, office supplies, and 
miscellaneous service contracts are projected to increase slightly due to inflationary and vendor 
cost increases related to the current economic climate.  Notably, the slight increases are partially 
offset by reductions in health and dental expenses as estimated by ACWA JPIA for calendar year 
2023 and removal of beneficiaries from the plan (adult dependents).   
 
The proposed District-wide salaries reflect a slight increase due to a proposed 5.4% Cost of Living 
Adjustment (COLA) and merit increases in accordance with the District’s adopted Personnel 
Policy and Salary Schedule.  The COLA is consistent with industry standards and the District’s 
past practice, and is based upon the Consumer Price Index (CPI) nine-month calculation data 
(July-March).  The COLA adjustment is obtained by averaging the prior nine-month indexes for 
all urban wage earners and clerical workers and comparing that average to the previous nine-
month averaged data for the Los Angeles-Long Beach-Anaheim area of California.  Table 5 below 
illustrates the distribution of costs for the G&A expense categories. 
 

 
Table 5 

 
 
DEBT SERVICE 
The District’s Debt Service accounts for FY 2022/23 include (1) the USBR Safety of Dams 
repayment (principal and interest) which remains constant for the 50-year term at $26,976 per 
year, and (2) the Series 2004A Bond repayment (principal and interest) of $225,088, which 
represents the final payment in accordance with the Bond repayment terms.  As detailed above, 
the FY 2022/23 operating revenues, inclusive of the special tax assessment, are projected to fully 
fund the District’s operating expenses plus debt service. 

 

 
  



Page | 10 

OTHER EXPENSES 
For FY 2022/23, the budgeted amount of $783,000 in the Other Expenses category will be funded 
by the net revenue balance of $3,459,348.   The FY 2022/23 budget for Other Expenses is 
$240,000 higher than what was budgeted in FY 2021/22, which is primarily due to estimated 
Special Legal costs associated with the current litigation matter involving the Central Coast 
Water Authority and the Santa Barbara County Flood Control and Water Conservation District. 
As fully detailed in the 2022/23 Final Budget, the cost categories are projected to shift in several 
ways, which reflect ongoing work related to the 2019 State Water Resource Control Board Order 
and related studies for the Cachuma Project, the ongoing federal Endangered Species Act 
Section 7 re-consultation process for the Cachuma Project, ongoing water right proceedings in 
the Lower Santa Ynez River, an updated District-wide water system study, and the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act, among other matters.  Table 6 below illustrates the distribution 
of costs for the Other Expenses and Special Studies categories. 

 
Table 6 

 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) 
Infrastructure planning and investment is critical to the ongoing reliability of the District’s water 
production and distribution system.  In years past, the District’s CIP program was seriously 
compromised by shortfalls in operating revenues caused by outdated water rates and a multi-year 
suspension on the levy of a special tax assessment.  Those shortfalls required incremental 
drawdowns of District reserves simply to meet annual operating expenses and debt service.  
Consequently, monies were not available to fund the CIP program, and needed capital 
improvements to the District’s aging water system were deferred.  

 
On the other hand, when operating revenues are healthy and able to meet and exceed operating 
expenses, net revenues are available to fund the District’s Debt Service and Other Expenses 
(including Special Studies) and then contribute to building reserves and/or funding the CIP 
program.  In FY 2018/19, revenues began to stabilize, allowing for net revenues to be added 
to reserves for capital improvements.  In FY 2021/22, the District was able to budget for important 
infrastructure investments.  While many of those CIP projects were undertaken and completed, 
several of them were suspended or delayed due to the COVID-19 pandemic and related orders 
and restrictions issued by federal, state, and local authorities, as well as production halts and 
shipping delays for various parts and materials.  Those capital projects that were unable to be 
completed during FY 2021/22 have been rolled forward into the FY 2022/23 Final Budget.   



Page | 11 

 
 
For FY 2022/23, a total of $2,396,817 is budgeted for the CIP program.  This amount is 
$559,378 more than the $1,837,439 CIP budget in FY 2021/22, where nearly half of the increase 
is attributable to purchasing the remaining meters to complete the District’s systemwide meter 
replacement program.  Of particular note, the entire CIP program for FY 2022/23 will be funded 
from the District’s net revenues of $2,675,848 (after funding Other Expenses and Special Studies) 
and will not require funding from District reserves.  The CIP items include projects needed for 
replacements, betterments, upgrades, and repairs of the District water supply, production, 
and distribution system.  Projects that were not completed during FY 2021/22 are identified as 
“Rollforward Projects” below. 

 
Account 900332 ($125,000) – Water Treatment Plant/Building (Rollforward Project) – This 
account was originally budgeted to include a combination steel building to house a water 
treatment and control system for the District’s office wells, along with a garage bay for District 
equipment and needed expansion and upgrade of field crew quarters.  Final architectural 
and engineering design work has been completed.  The budgeted amount for FY 2022/23 
has been reduced from the prior fiscal year, which will be directed to design modifications to 
incorporate a District-designated Board Room, finalizing the building design, and initial 
permitting costs and processing.   

 

900333 ($285,000) – Cr6 Blending Station/Facilities (Rollforward Project) – With the 
resurgence of a new Cr6 water quality standard (10 ppb MCL) that is expected to be re-
adopted by the State Water Resources Control Board in the coming fiscal year.  Funds are 
budgeted for engineering and design of treatment and distribution facilities to comply with 
the new regulation.  
 

900372 ($65,750) – Office Computers, Furniture & Equipment - This account includes 
replacement of the District’s main network server which is at the end of its lifecycle. The 
server replacement cost includes the purchase of equipment and programming by the 
District’s IT vendor ($21,050).   
 

Additional funds are included for security controls that will be implemented to reduce 
cybersecurity risks, which include the migration to 365 exchange that will provide an 
umbrella that houses several software components and necessary equipment. This project 
consists of the purchase of equipment, software, and programming by the District’s IT 
vendor ($14,700).   
 

The remaining funds ($30,000) will be utilized for the initial phase of implementing a 
Laserfiche Enterprise Document Management System.  Since the District’s formation, the 
District continues to maintain much of its documentation in original form.  Limited space has 
become a factor in meeting document storage needs, and a Laserfiche Document 
Management System will modernize the business operations of the District and provide 
more efficiency for searching, locating, and storing documents.   
 

  



Page | 12 

 
900318 ($710,0000) – Meter Replacement/Utility Billing – The Districtwide meter 
replacement program began in FY 2019/20.  This multi-phase replacement program consists 
of purchasing and installing new meters to replace existing ones that have been in service 
for approximately 20 years and have diminished capabilities to provide accurate accounting 
of water use.  Phase 1, which began mid-year FY 2019/20, resulted in a total of 292 meters 
being replaced, along with the purchase of necessary hand-held devices for meter reading.  
Phase 2 was intended to commence at the beginning of FY 2020/21, but was delayed due 
to COVID-19.  During FY 2021/22, a total of 981 meters were budgeted for and installation 
and will be completed by June 30, 2022. The FY 2022/23 Final Budget  amount ($710,000) 
will complete Phase 3 of the meter replacement program.          
  
900371 ($61,250) – Office Building/Shop Improvements (Rollforward Project) – This account 
includes construction modifications to the existing staff room at the District office to create a 
semi-private office space for the Office Administrator position, as well as minor renovations 
to the office kitchen to upgrade counter tops, cabinets, electrical outlets, and fixtures that 
have been in place since the 1960s.  Both modifications/upgrades are estimated at a total 
cost of $56,250.  The remaining $5,000 will be utilized for upgrades to the shop area, 
including additional shelving for tools and equipment, workbenches, and related work 
stationing for the field crew.   
 

900376 ($20,000) – Communication/Telemetry Equipment (SCADA) – This account 
includes $20,000 to add Well No.15 to the SCADA monitoring network. The project will 
include on-site telemetry equipment (e.g., radio, controller, and other appurtenances), and 
programming of the on-site controller, as well as integration into and programming of the 
newly upgraded SCADA system.  
 

900181 ($1,000) – ESRI CAD-GIS – This account includes $1,000 for equipment needs 
and/or software upgrades necessary to continue operation of the District’s GIS system that 
is used to update the District’s atlas.     
 

900378 ($10,000) – Major Tools, Shop & Garage Equipment – Funds will be used as needed 
for the purchase and/or replacement of major tools and equipment during the fiscal year. 
 

900350 ($332,781) – Upland Wells (Partial Rollforward Project) – Funds will be used to 
upgrade the electrical panels at Well Nos. 7, 25, and 28  for a total of $182,781.  The work 
associated with these three well sites are Rollforward Projects from FY 2021/22 due to 
lengthy fabrication time extending over 50 weeks which caused significant parts and 
materials delays.  The current electrical panels at each site are substantially obsolete and 
pose potential safety hazards.  The panel components need to be improved to current day 
standards which will improve efficiency and operational safety.  Funds to complete this task 
include design work, construction drawings, specifications, arch flash analyses, and 
installation work for Well Nos. 7 and 25.  Costs for the Well No. 28 electrical panel will include 
Final design work, construction drawings, bid support from a licensed electrical engineer, 
and a materials purchase deposit. Installation work for Well No. 28 will be budgeted in the 
next fiscal year.  
 

New project work under this line-item ($150,000) includes costs for pump and motor 
replacements at Well Nos. 15 and 24.  
 
 



Page | 13 

900106 ($60,000) – Rehabilitate/Replace/New Transmission Mains/Laterals/Valves (Partial 
Rollforward Project) – Funds will be used for the replacement of mainline valves that are 
broken or inoperable at seven locations, as well as valve insertions at various locations   
within the District ($28,000). This was budgeted last fiscal year 2021/22; however, all work 
was not completed due to various circumstances including materials shipping delays and 
workload prioritization. 
 

Additionally, $23,700 will be utilized for engineering services to develop plans, 
specifications, and surveying to relocate the District’s water line located on the old Highway 
154 bridge spanning Alamo Pintado Creek. The need for this project is due to Caltrans’ 
removal and replacement of the old Highway 154 bridge (now used as a pedestrian bridge).  
The construction portion of the project will be included in the next fiscal year budget.  
 

The remaining $8,300 will be utilized for any mainline breaks or mainline reconfiguration that 
may occur or be necessary during the fiscal year.  
 

900170 ($96,522) – 6 CFS Well Field (Rollforward Project)  – Funds ($66,522) will be used 
to upgrade the electrical panels at the 6 CFS well field. The current electrical panels are 
substantially obsolete and pose potential safety hazards.  The panel components need to 
be improved to current day standards which will improve efficiency and operational safety.  
This is a Rollforward Project from FY 2021/22 due to lengthy fabrication time extending over 
50 weeks which caused significant parts and materials delays.  Funds to complete this task 
include Final design work, construction drawings, bid support from a licensed electrical 
engineer, and a materials purchase deposit. Construction will be budgeted in the next fiscal 
year.  
 

This account also includes $30,000 for the replacement of a pump and motor at the 6 CFS 
well field.   
 

900335 ($5,000) – SWP Pump Station/Pipeline - This account includes funds for the needed 
replacement of valves and mechanical equipment at the Mesa Verde Pump Station to 
ensure reliable deliveries of SWP entitlement and Cachuma exchange water.   
 

900373 ($47,000) – Fleet Vehicle Replacement (Rollforward Project) – This account 
includes funds for the purchase of one replacement fleet vehicle (field truck). This vehicle 
will replace an existing 2004 model with approximately 152,000 miles.   The Board awarded 
the bid for the vehicle purchase in October of 2021 and the order was placed that same 
month. To date, the vehicle has not been received due to factory shut downs.  The vehicle 
is due to be received sometime in FY 2022/23.  
 
900171 ($102,313) – 4 CFS Well Field (Partial Rollforward Project) – This account includes 
$22,000 for roof repairs to a wooden vault and installation of a new drain line.  This project 
is required to maintain the integrity of the well.  New project work under this line-item 
($30,000) includes the cost for a pump and motor replacement at the 4 CFS well field.  
  
The remaining $50,313 will be used to complete the installation of a manual transfer switch 
for emergency generator use at the 4 CFS well field. Additionally, a voltage monitor will be 
installed within the existing electrical panels due to voltage fluctuations delivered by PG&E 
at this location. Estimated contractor costs include all materials and labor ($46,976).  
Electrical engineer time for bidding support, submittal review, and construction support is 
estimated at $5,425.  
 



Page | 14 

900195 ($50,313) – Refugio 2 Booster Pump Station – Funds will be utilized to complete the 
installation of a manual transfer switch for emergency generator use at the Refugio 2 Booster 
Pump Station site. Additionally, a voltage monitor will be installed within the existing 
electrical panels due to voltage fluctuations delivered by PG&E at this location. Estimated 
contractor costs include all materials and labor ($46,976).  Electrical Engineer time for 
bidding support, submittal review, and construction support is estimated at $5,425.  
 
900196 ($174,573) – Alamo Pintado Booster Pump Station (Partial Rollforward Project) – 
Funds from this account will be used to upgrade the electrical panel, add a manual transfer 
switch, and complete an arch flash analysis at the Alamo Pintado Booster Pump Station, 
which is substantially obsolete and poses a potential safety hazard.  The current electrical 
panel and components need to be improved to current day standards which will improve 
efficiency and operational safety.  Part of the work associated with this project is a 
Rollforward Project from FY 2021/22 due to lengthy materials fabrication and delivery times 
estimated between 15 and 25 weeks.  
 
900197 ($63,793) – Refugio 3 Booster Pump Station (Rollforward Project) – Funds from this 
account will be used to upgrade the electrical panel at the Refugio 3 Booster Pump Station, 
which is substantially obsolete and poses a potential safety hazard.  The current electrical 
panel and components need to be improved to current day standards which will improve 
efficiency and operational safety.  Lengthy materials fabrication and delivery times are 
estimated between 25 and 35 weeks.  
 
900198 ($76,522) – Meadowlark Booster Pump Station (Partial Rollforward Project) – Funds 
from this account will be used for two different projects.  The first project is the construction 
of an open sided metal roof pole barn structure to house the District’s large equipment, 
trailers, and materials to mitigate weather damage currently being incurred for lack of 
protective cover.   Approximately $10,000 in materials and supplies is anticipated to be spent 
on this project.  The construction work will be completed by the District’s field team. 
 
The remaining $66,522 will be used to upgrade the electrical panels at the Meadowlark 
Booster Pump Station. The current electrical panels are substantially obsolete and pose 
potential safety hazards.  The panel components need to be improved to current day 
standards which will improve efficiency and operational safety.  This project is a Rollforward 
Project from FY 2021/22 due to lengthy fabrication time extending over 50 weeks which 
caused significant parts and materials delays.  Funds to complete this task include Final 
design work, construction drawings, bid support from a licensed electrical engineer, and a 
materials purchase deposit. Construction will be budgeted in the next fiscal year.  
 
900102 ($110,000) – Zone 1, 2, 3 Reservoir – Funds for this project will be used for cleaning, 
inspection, and repair work at the 3.2-million-gallon concrete water storage tank (Zone 3 
Reservoir).  Work will include clean-out and resealing floor joints, preparing and recoating 
the 12” inlet over-flow piping, crack sealing for columns and column footings, and 
waterproofing of footings and columns as needed. 
 

If additional CIP expenditures are needed, funding will come from the Repair and Replace and/or 
Plant Expansion Reserves.  If such funding is not sufficient or undesirable, the projects will be 
deferred or re-prioritized. 
 
 



Page | 15 

FY 2022/23 FINAL BUDGET CONCLUSION 
The FY 2022/23 Final Budget revenues of $12,315,275 are projected to be sufficient to meet total 
O&M expenses, G&A expenses, and Debt Service obligations of $8,855,927 with a net revenue 
balance of $3,459,348.  This net revenue balance of $3,459,348 will be used to fund the $783,500 
of Other Expenses (including Special Studies) for necessary engineering, design, legal, and 
consulting work to maintain protection and preservation of the District’s water rights and to ensure 
compliance with various regulatory orders and requirements applicable to the District’s rights and 
water supply portfolio, including but not limited to state-mandated water quality standards and 
fishery protections applicable to the Cachuma Project in accordance with State Water Resources 
Control Board Orders and the federal Endangered Species Act. The remaining net revenue 
balance of $2,675,848 will be used to fully fund the District’s FY 2022/23 CIP program as detailed 
above in the amount of $2,396,817.  The remaining net revenue balance of $279,031 will be 
added to the District’s Reserves. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Board of Trustees adopt Resolution No. 822 approving and adopting the FY 2022/23 
Final Budget and requesting the collection of an assessment levy of $875,000 for Fiscal Year 
2022/23.        



Agenda Item 9. A. 3. b). 

RESOLUTION No. 822 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT N0.1 
ADOPTING THE FINAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022{2023 

AND REQUESTING AN ASSESSMENT LEVY REQUIRED TO COLLECT $875,000 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation 
District, Improvement District No.1 ("District" ), Santa Barbara County, California, that: 

WHEREAS, on January 5, 1960 a Special Election was held and voters approved a contract with 
the United States Bureau of Reclamation, Contract No. 14.-06-200-8253 ("Contract"), for the purpose of 
providing an adequate system of water supply, storage and distribution facilities, mains and 
appurtenances, and lands and easements necessary presently and prospectively for the Santa Ynez 
River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1, and its inhabitants; and 

WHEREAS, Article 18(b) of the Contract requires the District to cause to be levied ad valorem 
taxes and assessments to fulfill its contractual obligations; and 

WHEREAS, Water Code Section 74630, provides the statutory basis which authorizes the District 
to levy annual assessments to meet its obligations under a voter-approved contract, including the 
Contract debt obligations, and the continuing operation and maintenance of such project works; and 

WHEREAS, the District refinanced its Contract debt obligations with the issuance of bonds in 
1988, 1993, and 2004 and continues to pay its debt obligations incurred under the Contract, and 
continues to incur and pay the costs of the continuing operations, maintenance, repair, replacement, 
and betterment of the project works; and 

WHEREAS, the bond documents require that the income and receipts of the bond fund will be 
derived from the collection of an ad valorem tax assessment to be collected at the same time and in the 
same manner as is provided by law for the collection of annual property taxes which may be levied for 
purposes of the District, which as collected is paid into the bond fund as needed; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District 
Improvement District No.1, is required to forward to the Board of Supervisors and the County Auditor 
of the County of Santa Barbara an estimate, in writin& of the amount of ad valorem tax assessment 
money needed for the purposes of the District for the ensuing fiscal year July 1~ 2022 to June 30, 2023, 
and any reserve funds; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with information published by the California Department of Finance, 
the appropriation limit of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1 
for fiscal year 202212023 is established at $2,300,918 and the District adopted Resolution No. 821 on 
June 21, 2022 establishing said appropriation limit for fiscal year 202212023 pursuant to Government 
Code Section 7910; and 

WHEREAS, notwithstanding the District's fiscal year 202212023 appropriation limit of 
$2,300,918, and notwithstanding the financial projections from the District's 2016 Water Rate Study that 
the District would collect an assessment levy in the amount of $875,000 in fiscal year 201712018, and 
$1,000,000 in fiscal year 2018 I 2019, and $1J25,000 in fiscal year 2019 I 2020, and $1,250,000 in fiscal year 



202012021, and $1,250,000 in fiscal year 202112022/ and $1/250,000 in fiscal year 202212023, the District 
has limited its assessment amount to $875,000 for fiscal years 2017 I 2018 through 2021 I 2022/ and it has 
been determined that an assessment levy of $875,000 for fiscal year 2022/2023 will provide sufficient 
funds to meet the obligations of the District as stated above; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees previously has considered a preliminary budget for the fiscal 
year 202212023. 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the ~oard of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation 
District, Improvement District No.1, that the Secretary to the Board is hereby authorized and directed 
to forward to the Board of Supervisors and the Cmmty Auditor of the County of Santa Barbara, in 
writing, a request for an assessment levy of $875,000 for the fiscal year 202212023; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Final Budget as set forth in Exhibit" A" attached hereto and 
incorporated by this reference is hereby approved and adopted for the fiscal year 202212023. 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, being duly qualified and acting President and Secretary of the Board 
of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted and passed by the 
Board of Trustees of said District at a Regular Meeting held on the 2151 day of June 2022, by the following 
roll call vote: 

A YES, in favor thereof, Trustees: 

NOES, Trustees: 
ABSENT, Trustees: 

Jeff Clay, President 

A TrEST: 

Mary Martone, Secretary to the Board of Trustees 



Ju
ne

 2
1,

 2
02

2

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
F

Y
 2

1
/2

2
F

Y
 2

1
/2

2
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 R

e
ve

n
u

e
s

 F
in

a
l B

u
d

g
e

t 

A
cc

ou
nt

  N
o.

S
e

rv
ic

e
 &

 S
a

le
s

 B
u

d
g

e
t

9
-M

o
n

th
 R

e
ve

n
u

e
s

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

2
 Y

e
a

r-
E

n
d

 F
Y

 2
2

/2
3

  
  

  
  

  

60
10

00
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
 W

at
er

 S
al

es
 &

 M
et

er
 C

ha
rg

es
1,

34
7,

76
7

$ 
   

   
93

2,
69

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

31
3,

03
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

34
4,

33
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(3

,4
30

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
60

20
00

D
om

es
tic

 W
at

er
 S

al
es

 &
 M

et
er

 C
ha

rg
es

4,
63

7,
99

8
$ 

   
   

3,
69

6,
30

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
01

2,
07

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
63

1,
35

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

(6
,6

45
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

60
21

00
R

ur
al

 R
es

/L
m

t'd
 A

g 
S

al
es

 &
 M

et
er

 C
ha

rg
es

2,
46

5,
76

1
$ 

   
   

1,
95

5,
66

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
68

6,
88

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
45

8,
81

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

(6
,9

50
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

60
22

00
C

ac
hu

m
a 

P
ar

k 
W

at
er

 S
al

es
19

,5
75

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

,9
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,3
07

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

,5
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
60

00
W

at
er

 S
al

es
 to

 C
ity

 o
f S

ol
va

ng
16

8,
22

2
$ 

   
   

   
52

,7
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
66

,5
31

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

9,
72

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

1,
50

3
$ 

   
   

   
 

60
80

00
W

at
er

 S
al

es
 -

 O
n-

D
em

an
d

40
,6

22
$ 

   
   

   
  

11
,0

04
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
,6

89
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

36
,0

18
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(4

,6
04

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
61

15
00

F
ire

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
ha

rg
es

12
2,

25
8

$ 
   

   
   

92
,8

79
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
5,

43
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
1,

71
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
0,

53
9)

$ 
   

   
   

  
60

40
00

T
em

po
ra

ry
 W

at
er

 S
al

es
6,

72
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
16

,3
72

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

21
,3

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

,1
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
,4

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

S
u

b
to

ta
l W

at
er

 S
al

es
8,

80
8,

92
8

$ 
   

   
6,

76
8,

60
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
9,

25
5,

30
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
8,

90
1,

71
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
92

,7
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

61
11

00
N

ew
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

F
ee

s
40

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
21

,3
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
46

,3
87

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

61
12

00
A

ct
iv

at
io

n/
R

ec
on

ne
ct

io
n 

F
ee

s
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
12

,6
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,1
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

61
19

00
N

ew
 F

ire
 S

er
vi

ce
 F

ee
s

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
6,

08
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

08
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

61
24

00
P

en
al

tie
s

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

45
,1

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

48
,3

61
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

S
u

b
to

ta
l S

e
rv

ic
e

83
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

85
,1

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
5,

94
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

, F
ee

s 
&

 O
th

er
 R

ev
en

u
e

62
70

00
-6

27
20

0
S

pe
ci

al
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t
87

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
53

0,
36

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
94

3,
39

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
87

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
62

80
00

-6
30

30
0

In
te

re
st

 In
co

m
e 

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

19
,0

52
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

44
,9

68
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

55
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(2

0,
00

0)
$ 

   
   

   
  

6
2

5
2

0
0

A
p

p
lic

a
tio

n
 F

e
e

s/
S

p
e

ci
a

l S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
0

,0
0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

10
,9

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
,9

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

6
1

1
6

0
0

C
a

p
ita

l F
a

ci
lit

ie
s 

C
h

a
rg

e
s 

7
0

,0
0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

61
,8

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

83
,7

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

70
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
62

00
06

R
ei

m
bu

rs
ed

 F
ie

ld
 L

ab
or

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
27

,2
87

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
16

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
62

00
08

R
ei

m
bu

rs
ed

 A
dm

in
. L

ab
or

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
4,

53
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

99
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

62
40

00
O

th
er

 M
is

c 
R

ev
en

ue
s

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

36
,3

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

48
,7

16
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
63

41
00

In
su

ra
nc

e 
C

la
im

s
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

89
01

00
S

ol
va

ng
 S

W
P

 P
ay

m
en

t 
2,

93
1,

88
3

$ 
   

   
3,

03
5,

51
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

03
5,

51
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

24
0,

56
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(6

91
,3

21
)

$ 
   

   
   

S
ub

to
ta

l A
ss

es
sm

en
t &

 F
ee

s
4,

00
2,

88
3

$ 
   

   
3,

72
5,

90
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

20
4,

32
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

31
0,

56
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(6

92
,3

21
)

$ 
   

   
   

T
O

T
A

L
12

,8
94

,8
11

$ 
   

 
10

,5
79

,6
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

13
,5

75
,5

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

,3
15

,2
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(5
79

,5
36

)
$ 

   
   

   

Sa
nt

a 
Yn

ez
 R

iv
er

 W
at

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t, 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t D
is

tr
ic

t N
o.

1
FI

N
A

L 
B

U
D

G
E

T
 F

Y
 2

02
2-

23

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

Pa
ge

 1
Fi

na
l B

ud
ge

t -
 Ju

ne
 2

1,
 2

02
2



E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

 &
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 

 
 

 

A
cc

ou
nt

 N
o.

S
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
S

u
p

p
ly

 F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

  
B

u
d

g
e

t 
 F

Y
 2

1
/2

2
 9

-M
o

n
th

 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s
 

 P
ro

je
c

te
d

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

 
6

/3
0

/2
2

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

 F
in

a
l B

u
d

g
e

t 
F

Y
 2

2
/2

3
 

70
30

00
C

ac
hu

m
a 

P
ro

je
ct

 (
U

S
B

R
) 

W
at

er
 P

ur
ch

as
e

28
7,

28
2

$ 
   

   
   

13
5,

06
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
8,

04
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
4,

50
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(3
2,

78
0)

$ 
   

   
   

  
70

32
00

C
ac

hu
m

a 
P

ro
je

ct
 R

en
ew

al
/E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l F

un
d

22
,7

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

22
,7

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
,7

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
,0

55
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(6

,6
45

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
70

40
00

S
ta

te
 W

at
er

 C
ha

rg
e-

 D
is

tr
ic

t P
ay

m
en

t
1,

74
5,

82
3

$ 
   

   
1,

17
6,

74
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

56
8,

99
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

09
1,

49
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(6

54
,3

33
)

$ 
   

   
   

86
00

00
S

ta
te

 W
at

er
 P

ro
je

ct
 -

 C
ity

 o
f 

S
ol

va
ng

 p
ym

t
2,

93
1,

88
3

$ 
   

   
3,

03
5,

51
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

03
5,

51
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

24
0,

56
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(6

91
,3

21
)

$ 
   

   
   

70
50

00
G

ro
un

d 
W

at
er

 C
ha

rg
es

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

17
,6

01
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

43
,8

01
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

47
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

70
60

00
C

lo
ud

se
ed

in
g 

P
ro

gr
am

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

00
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

00
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

70
70

00
R

iv
er

 W
el

l F
ie

ld
 L

ic
en

se
s 

(4
.0

cf
s 

, 6
.0

cf
s,

 G
al

le
ry

)
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
17

,5
82

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
17

,5
82

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
S

u
b

to
ta

l S
. o

f 
S

.
5,

04
3,

18
8

$ 
   

  
4,

41
2,

20
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

92
3,

63
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

67
2,

60
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(1
,3

70
,5

79
)

$ 
   

  
In

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
71

10
00

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f 

W
el

ls
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
6,

36
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

71
20

00
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f M
ai

ns
45

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
16

,9
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
45

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

71
30

00
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f R
es

er
vo

irs
28

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
7,

04
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

,0
45

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
3,

00
0)

$ 
   

   
   

  
71

40
00

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f S

tr
uc

tu
re

s
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

87
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

37
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
S

u
b

to
ta

l I
n

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
12

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
32

,2
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

51
,4

21
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
3,

00
0)

$ 
   

   
   

 
P

u
m

p
in

g
72

60
00

P
um

pi
ng

 E
xp

en
se

 -
 P

ow
er

68
9,

68
7

$ 
   

   
   

45
9,

69
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

67
6,

69
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

71
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,3

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
73

00
00

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f P

um
p 

S
tr

uc
tu

re
s/

S
ta

tio
ns

15
,4

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

5,
03

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,4

34
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(5

,4
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
73

20
00

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f E

qu
ip

m
en

t
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
56

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
71

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
S

u
b

to
ta

l P
u

m
p

in
g

70
6,

58
7

$ 
   

   
  

46
5,

29
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

68
9,

83
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

72
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

,9
13

$ 
   

   
   

   
W

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t

74
40

00
C

he
m

ic
al

s
35

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
43

,1
42

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
68

,5
62

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
84

,7
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

49
,7

32
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
74

80
00

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f T

re
at

m
en

t S
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

&
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

19
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

48
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
74

81
00

W
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t/S
am

pl
in

g/
M

on
ito

rin
g 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

11
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

2,
67

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
35

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

,0
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
7

4
9

0
0

0
W

at
er

 A
n

a
ly

si
s

1
4

,0
0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

9,
68

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,1

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

S
u

b
to

ta
l W

.T
.

63
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

56
,6

83
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
88

,5
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
1,

73
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
48

,7
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
T

ra
n

sm
is

si
o

n
 &

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

75
10

00
F

ie
ld

 S
er

vi
ce

 L
ab

or
62

1,
28

7
$ 

   
   

   
43

8,
60

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
60

3,
60

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
68

6,
27

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
64

,9
91

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

77
50

00
P

E
R

S
 -

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

13
7,

61
3

$ 
   

   
  

12
1,

03
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
1,

49
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
9,

48
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
41

,8
73

$ 
   

   
   

   
77

54
00

A
C

W
A

 -
 H

ea
lth

 B
en

ef
its

 
22

5,
95

6
$ 

   
   

  
15

1,
83

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

6,
51

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

3,
85

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
2,

10
4)

$ 
   

   
   

 
77

52
00

A
C

W
A

 -
 D

el
ta

 D
en

ta
l

8,
71

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

6,
79

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

8,
77

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

9,
21

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
7

7
5

3
0

0
A

C
W

A
 -

 V
is

io
n

1,
6

5
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

22
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

58
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

66
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

79
95

00
U

ni
fo

rm
s

16
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

13
,2

21
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

,7
21

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

75
20

00
W

or
k 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 &

 S
up

pl
ie

s
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
4,

59
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
7,

59
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
21

00
S

af
et

y 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

32
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

90
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7

5
3

0
0

0
S

C
A

D
A

 M
ai

n
te

n
a

n
ce

1
4

,0
0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
24

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

9,
37

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(3

,5
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

7
5

4
0

0
0

S
m

a
ll 

T
o

o
ls

1
5

,5
0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
,6

33
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

,6
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(5

,5
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

7
5

4
1

0
0

S
m

a
ll 

T
o

o
l R

e
p

a
i r

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

15
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

51
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
50

00
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
(V

eh
ic

le
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
/F

ue
l)

65
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

45
,7

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
69

,8
40

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

70
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

75
60

00
M

et
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 (
N

ew
)

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

14
,0

23
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
21

,0
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

61
00

M
et

er
 a

nd
 S

er
vi

ce
 R

ep
ai

r
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
11

,1
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
,9

90
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
75

70
00

R
oa

d 
C

on
tr

ac
ts

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

91
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

75
81

00
M

et
er

 R
ea

di
ng

 S
ys

te
m

 (
S

en
su

s)
 (

N
ep

tu
ne

)
8,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
7,

54
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
7,

54
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
8,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

90
00

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f S

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
an

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
3,

75
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

65
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
76

00
00

F
ire

 H
yd

ra
nt

s 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
35

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
69

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

76
10

00
B

ac
k 

F
lo

w
 D

ev
ic

es
 T

es
tin

g
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
76

20
00

B
ac

kh
oe

/G
en

er
at

or
s 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

6,
90

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,6

40
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
S

u
b

to
ta

l T
. &

 D
.

1,
17

7,
22

3
$ 

   
  

84
7,

12
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
14

5,
12

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
27

6,
51

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
99

,2
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
T

O
T

A
L

7,
11

7,
99

9
$ 

   
  

5,
81

3,
58

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
89

8,
52

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
89

7,
35

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(1

,2
20

,6
40

)
$ 

   
  

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

Pa
ge

 2
Fi

na
l B

ud
ge

t -
 Ju

ne
 2

1,
 2

02
2



E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
 G

&
A

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

P
ro

je
c

te
d

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

F
in

a
l B

u
d

g
e

t

A
cc

ou
nt

 N
o.

G
en

er
al

 &
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t

9
-M

o
n

th
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
2

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
F

Y
 2

2
/2

3

7
7

2
0

0
0

S
ta

te
 U

n
e

m
p

. C
la

im
s

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

77
30

00
E

le
ct

io
ns

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
65

60
P

ay
ro

ll 
E

xp
en

se
s

1,
20

0
85

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
98

8
1,

20
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

77
40

00
A

C
W

A
 W

or
ke

rs
 C

om
p 

In
s

32
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

16
,7

86
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
,3

81
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

27
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(5

,0
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
77

50
00

P
E

R
S

 -
 R

et
ire

m
en

t 
23

4,
68

1
$ 

   
   

   
18

2,
43

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
21

2,
94

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

8,
98

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

,3
09

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

77
54

00
A

C
W

A
 -

 H
ea

lth
 B

en
ef

its
 

31
6,

76
9

$ 
   

   
   

18
1,

50
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
0,

37
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

29
9,

35
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
7,

41
6)

$ 
   

   
   

  
77

52
00

A
C

W
A

 -
 D

el
ta

 D
en

ta
l 

11
,6

40
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
84

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
18

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
,2

18
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(4

22
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
77

53
00

A
C

W
A

 -
 V

is
io

n 
2,

26
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
49

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
01

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
28

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
77

71
00

M
an

ag
em

en
t &

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

 S
al

ar
ie

s
1,

33
5,

04
9

$ 
   

   
83

2,
60

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

11
1,

16
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

40
3,

36
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
68

,3
11

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

21
00

1
O

th
er

 P
os

t E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t B
en

ef
its

23
5,

69
2

$ 
   

   
   

17
6,

76
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
5,

69
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

35
,6

92
)

$ 
   

   
   

77
80

00
E

du
ca

tio
n,

 T
ra

in
in

g 
&

 T
ra

ve
l

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

3,
06

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
82

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
77

90
00

D
ue

s 
&

 S
ub

sc
rip

tio
n

34
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

28
,2

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
,6

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

34
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
78

00
00

O
ff

ic
e 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

9,
41

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

14
,4

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
79

95
25

G
ar

de
ni

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
2,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
16

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
88

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
78

10
00

O
ff

ic
e 

S
up

pl
ie

s
15

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

,0
59

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

,5
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

78
11

00
C

o m
pu

te
r 

S
up

pl
ie

s,
 S

of
tw

ar
e,

 T
ra

in
in

g
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
44

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
94

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

78
20

00
P

os
ta

ge
 &

 P
rin

tin
g

56
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

37
,8

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

52
,9

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

56
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
7

8
3

0
0

0
U

til
iti

e
s

1
0

,0
0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

11
,2

23
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
,1

23
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

78
40

00
T

el
ep

ho
ne

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

11
,4

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
,4

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

18
,6

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

78
50

00
S

er
vi

ce
s 

(U
S

A
, W

eb
si

te
, S

ec
ur

ity
, A

ns
w

er
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s

17
,0

0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
13

,5
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

,5
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
78

51
00

G
ov

er
nm

en
t F

ee
s 

(C
ou

nt
y,

 S
ta

te
, L

oc
al

)
16

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
15

,4
61

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,4
61

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7
8

6
0

0
0

A
C

W
A

 L
ia

b
ili

ty
 In

su
ra

n
ce

 
5

5
,0

0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
46

,5
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
62

,3
57

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
78

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

23
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
78

70
00

P
ay

ro
ll 

T
ax

es
 -

 F
ed

er
al

 a
nd

 S
ta

te
13

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
98

,7
83

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

2,
78

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

78
80

00
A

ud
it 

&
 A

cc
ou

nt
in

g
34

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
34

,8
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
34

,8
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
39

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
78

90
00

Le
ga

l -
 G

en
er

al
 

 
B

H
F

S
55

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
38

,2
21

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
,2

21
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
55

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  S
tr

ad
lin

g
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

71
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6,

71
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

79
00

00
C

on
su

lti
ng

 -
 G

en
er

al
/P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l

18
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

7,
45

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
31

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
79

10
00

C
on

su
lti

ng
 -

 P
la

nn
in

g/
R

es
ea

rc
h

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

3,
08

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
79

20
00

C
us

to
m

er
 D

eb
t -

 W
rit

e 
O

ff
s

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

77
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
79

30
00

O
ff

ic
e 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t/C

om
pu

te
r 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

tr
ac

ts
40

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
32

,2
88

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
43

,5
88

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
79

41
00

A
nn

ua
l F

ee
/B

on
d 

R
ed

em
pt

io
n 

C
os

ts
1,

42
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
37

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
37

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

,4
25

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
79

70
00

T
ru

st
ee

 F
ee

s
29

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
17

,2
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

,6
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
29

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

79
90

00
P

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
F

ee
s,

 A
dm

in
. E

xp
en

se
s,

 M
ed

ic
al

 C
os

ts
 

35
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

32
,0

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

39
,0

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

79
96

00
C

us
to

m
er

 R
ef

un
ds

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
S

u
b

to
ta

l G
&

A
2,

80
2,

12
3

$ 
   

   
1,

85
9,

73
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

43
0,

28
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

70
6,

50
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(9

5,
61

9)
$ 

   
   

   
  

T
O

T
A

L
2,

80
2,

12
3

$ 
   

   
1,

85
9,

73
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

43
0,

28
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

70
6,

50
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(9

5,
61

9)
$ 

   
   

   
  

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
 

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

P
ro

je
c

te
d

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

F
in

a
l B

u
d

g
e

t

 B
u

d
g

e
t

9
-M

o
n

th
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
2

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
F

Y
 2

2
/2

3

G
&

A
/O

&
M

T
O

T
A

L
9,

92
0,

12
2

$ 
   

   
7,

67
3,

31
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
9,

32
8,

80
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
8,

60
3,

86
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,3
16

,2
59

)
$ 

   
   

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

Pa
ge

 3
Fi

na
l B

ud
ge

t -
 Ju

ne
 2

1,
 2

02
2



D
E

B
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

P
ro

je
c

te
d

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

F
in

a
l B

u
d

g
e

t

A
cc

ou
nt

 N
o.

D
eb

t 
S

er
vi

ce
 B

u
d

g
e

t
9

-M
o

n
th

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

2
 Y

e
a

r-
E

n
d

F
Y

 2
2

/2
3

71
70

00
U

S
B

R
 S

O
D

 R
ep

ay
m

en
t (

P
rin

ci
pa

l &
 In

te
re

st
)

26
,9

76
$ 

   
   

   
  

26
,9

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

26
,9

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

26
,9

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
79

40
00

S
er

ie
s 

20
04

 A
 R

ep
ay

m
en

t (
B

on
d 

In
te

re
st

)
14

,9
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
14

,8
82

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

,8
82

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

08
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(9

,8
12

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
21

82
00

S
er

ie
s 

20
04

 A
 R

ep
ay

m
en

t  
(B

on
d 

P
rin

ci
pa

l)
21

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
21

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
21

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

S
u

b
to

ta
l D

e
b

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

25
1,

87
6

$ 
   

   
  

25
1,

85
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
1,

85
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
2,

06
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
18

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

T
O

T
A

L
25

1,
87

6
$ 

   
   

   
25

1,
85

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

1,
85

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

2,
06

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

T
O

T
A

L
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S

 
F

Y
 2

1
/2

2
F

Y
 2

1
/2

2
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s
F

in
a

l B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

9
-M

o
n

th
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
2

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
F

Y
 2

2
/2

3

1
0

,1
7

1
,9

9
8

$
  

  
  

 
7

,9
2

5
,1

7
7

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
,5

8
0

,6
6

7
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
,8

5
5

,9
2

7
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,3

1
6

,0
7

1
)

$
  

  
  

  
 

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

P
ro

je
c

te
d

F
in

a
l B

u
d

g
e

t
B

u
d

g
e

t
9

-M
o

n
th

 A
c

tu
a

l
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
2

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
F

Y
 2

2
/2

3

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

 L
E

S
S

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
2,

7
2

2
,8

1
3

$ 
   

   
2,

65
4,

50
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

99
4,

90
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

45
9,

34
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
73

6,
53

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

G
&

A
/O

&
M

/D
E

B
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

   
   

 T
O

T
A

L

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

Pa
ge

 4
Fi

na
l B

ud
ge

t -
 Ju

ne
 2

1,
 2

02
2



O
T

H
E

R
  E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
F

Y
 2

1
/2

2
F

Y
 2

1
/2

2
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s
F

in
a

l B
u

d
g

e
t

A
cc

ou
nt

 N
o.

S
p

ec
ia

l S
tu

d
ie

s/
P

ro
g

ra
m

s
B

u
d

g
e

t
9

-M
o

n
th

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

2
 Y

e
a

r-
E

n
d

F
Y

 2
2

/2
3

F
is

h
er

ie
s 

P
ro

g
ra

m
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
82

58
00

B
iO

p 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

60
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

22
,3

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
37

,3
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

60
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
82

54
01

B
iO

p 
S

tu
di

es
/C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
(S

te
ts

on
/H

an
so

n)
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
14

,9
97

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
,7

46
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
02

01
B

iO
p/

R
e

co
n

su
lta

tio
n

/E
S

A
 (

B
B

K
)

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
,1

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
19

,8
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

82
61

01
S

W
R

C
B

 O
rd

er
/S

tu
di

es
 (

S
te

ts
on

/H
an

so
n)

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

35
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

44
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

0,
00

0)
$ 

   
   

   
 

8
2

6
2

0
1

S
W

R
C

B
 O

rd
e

r/
S

tu
d

ie
s 

(B
B

K
)

1
5

,0
0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

50
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

63
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(5

,0
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

82
54

02
S

W
R

C
B

 H
ea

rin
gs

 S
up

po
rt

 (
S

te
ts

on
/H

an
so

n)
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(4

,0
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

S
p

e
c

ia
l S

tu
d

ie
s

82
55

00
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 S
Y

R
; C

ac
hu

m
a 

W
at

er
, R

iv
er

W
ar

e 
(S

te
ts

on
)

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

82
56

01
In

te
gr

at
ed

 R
eg

io
na

l W
at

er
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
25

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
85

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

,0
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

82
56

00
W

at
er

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
/B

M
P

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

4,
05

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
05

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
  

54
,5

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
81

,8
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
(2

1,
00

0)
$ 

   
   

   
 

 
L

e
g

a
l &

 E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
L

e
g

a
l

8
0

0
1

0
1

S
W

R
C

B
 H

e
a

rin
g

s 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 (

B
B

K
)

5
,0

0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(4

,0
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

80
02

02
In

te
ra

ge
nc

y 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
05

00
U

na
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 o
r 

E
xt

ra
or

di
na

ry
 S

pe
ci

al
 L

eg
al

B
H

F
S

3
0

,0
0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
0,

54
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
2,

54
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

23
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
B

B
K

1
5

,0
0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

62
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
E

n
g

in
e

e
ri

n
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

80
03

01
D

ow
ns

tr
ea

m
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
03

00
E

as
em

en
ts

, S
ur

ve
y 

&
 W

at
er

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

24
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

05
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
01

02
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 M

an
ag

em
en

t A
ct

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

53
,0

55
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
68

,0
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

60
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
80

01
03

S
G

M
A

 R
ei

m
bu

rs
ab

le
 C

os
t S

ha
re

s
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
S

u
b

to
ta

l L
e

g
a

l/E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
13

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
15

7,
45

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

5,
64

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
39

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

N
o

n
 R

ec
u

rr
in

g
 E

xp
en

se
s

/P
ro

je
ct

s
82

60
00

C
R

6 
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

P
la

n 
&

 M
is

c.
 T

re
at

m
en

t P
ro

je
ct

s
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
86

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
82

57
00

W
at

er
 R

at
e 

S
tu

d
y

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

51
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

51
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
85

05
00

U
S

B
R

 C
ac

hu
m

a 
P

ro
je

ct
 C

on
tr

ac
t/C

ap
ita

l P
ro

gr
am

s 
 

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

3,
60

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
60

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

02
03

R
iv

er
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
 P

ro
ce

ed
in

gs
 (

B
H

F
S

)
40

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
39

,4
98

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
02

04
R

iv
er

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

 P
ro

ce
ed

in
gs

 (
S

te
ts

on
/H

an
so

n)
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

62
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

82
59

00
W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

 S
tu

dy
 U

pd
at

es
 (

S
te

ts
on

)
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
31

,6
52

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

31
,6

52
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(5
,0

00
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
S

u
b

to
ta

l N
o

n
-A

n
n

u
a

l
20

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
78

,9
88

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
,7

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
21

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
54

3,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
29

1,
02

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
36

3,
28

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
78

3,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

T
O

T
A

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

P
ro

je
c

te
d

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

F
in

a
l B

u
d

g
e

t
B

u
d

g
e

t
9

-M
o

n
th

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

2
 Y

e
a

r-
E

n
d

F
Y

 2
2

/2
3

T
O

T
A

L
54

3,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
29

1,
02

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
36

3,
28

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
78

3,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 S

u
b

to
ta

l S
tu

d
ie

s/
P

ro
g

ra
m

s

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

Pa
ge

 5
Fi

na
l B

ud
ge

t -
 Ju

ne
 2

1,
 2

02
2



B
U

D
G

E
T

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
F

Y
 2

1
/2

2
F

Y
 2

1
/2

2
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 Y

r-
e

n
d

F
in

a
l B

u
d

g
e

t
B

u
d

g
e

t
9

-M
o

n
th

 A
c

tu
a

l
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
2

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
F

Y
 2

2
/2

3

T
O

T
A

L
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
12

,8
94

,8
11

$ 
   

10
,5

79
,6

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
13

,5
75

,5
73

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,3

15
,2

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(5

79
,5

36
)

$ 
   

   
  

T
O

T
A

L
 O

&
M

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
(7

,1
1

7
,9

9
9

)
$ 

   
 

(5
,8

13
,5

83
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(6
,8

98
,5

21
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(5
,8

97
,3

59
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(1
,2

20
,6

40
)

$ 
   

  
T

O
T

A
L

 G
&

A
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S

(2
,8

0
2

,1
2

3
)

$ 
   

 
(1

,8
59

,7
36

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(2

,4
30

,2
88

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(2

,7
06

,5
04

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(9

5,
61

9)
$ 

   
   

   
 

T
O

T
A

L
 D

E
B

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
(2

5
1

,8
7

6
)

$ 
   

   
 

(2
51

,8
58

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
51

,8
58

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
52

,0
64

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
S

ub
to

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
 B

al
an

ce
2,

72
2,

81
4

$ 
   

  
2,

65
4,

50
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

99
4,

90
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

45
9,

34
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

73
6,

53
4

$ 
   

   
   

T
O

T
A

L 
O

th
er

 E
xp

en
se

s 
(S

pe
c 

S
tu

dy
/L

eg
al

/E
ng

/N
A

R
E

(5
43

,5
00

)
$ 

   
   

 
(2

91
,0

22
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
(3

63
,2

85
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(7

83
,5

00
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
S

u
b

 T
o

ta
l  

B
a

la
n

ce
2,

17
9,

31
4

$ 
   

  
2,

36
3,

48
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

63
1,

62
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

67
5,

84
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

49
6,

53
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
B

a
la

n
c

e
2,

1
7

9
,3

1
4

$ 
   

  
2,

36
3,

48
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

63
1,

62
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

67
5,

84
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

49
6,

53
4

$ 
   

   
   

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

Pa
ge

 6
Fi

na
l B

ud
ge

t -
 Ju

ne
 2

1,
 2

02
2



C
A

P
IT

A
L

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
F

Y
 2

1
/2

2
F

Y
 2

1
/2

2
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s
F

in
a

l B
u

d
g

e
t

A
cc

ou
nt

 N
o.

P
la

n
t 

E
x

p
a

n
s

io
n

B
u

d
g

e
t

9
-M

o
n

th
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
2

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
F

Y
2

2
/2

3
90

03
32

W
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t/D
is

tr
ic

t B
ui

ld
in

g 
37

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

53
,7

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
50

,0
00

)
$ 

   
   

  
9

0
0

3
3

3
C

r6
 T

re
a

tm
e

n
t S

ta
tio

n
/F

a
ci

lit
ie

s 
3

8
5

,0
0

0
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
28

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
00

,0
00

)
$ 

   
   

  
90

03
72

O
ff

ic
e 

C
om

pu
te

rs
, F

ur
ni

tu
re

 &
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
22

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
11

,1
84

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

19
,1

84
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
65

,7
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

43
,7

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

9
0

0
3

1
8

M
et

er
 R

e
p

la
ce

m
e

n
t/U

til
ity

 B
ill

in
g

4
8

1
,2

0
0

$ 
   

   
  

35
6,

39
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

45
1,

29
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

71
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

8,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
90

03
71

O
ff

ic
e 

B
ld

g/
S

ho
p 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

55
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
,8

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
27

,8
73

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

61
,2

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6,

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

9
0

0
3

7
6

C
om

m
u

n
ic

a
tio

n
/te

le
m

et
ry

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t (

S
C

A
D

A
)

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

90
01

81
E

S
R

I C
A

D
-G

IS
 S

ys
te

m
; E

qu
ip

m
en

t
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

90
03

78
M

aj
or

 T
oo

ls
, S

ho
p 

&
 G

ar
ag

e 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

88
,7

66
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

1,
24

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

90
03

50
U

pl
an

ds
 W

el
ls

 
11

4,
13

9
$ 

   
   

  
22

,1
97

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

82
,1

02
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
33

2,
78

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

21
8,

64
2

$ 
   

   
   

1,
43

3,
33

9
$ 

   
  

49
1,

41
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

73
6,

44
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
61

0,
78

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
17

7,
44

2
$ 

   
   

   

A
c

c
o

u
n

t 
N

o
.

R
e

p
a

ir
 &

 R
e

p
la

c
e

90
01

06
R

eh
ab

/R
ep

la
ce

/N
ew

-T
ra

ns
. M

ai
ns

/L
at

er
al

s/
V

al
ve

s 
 

60
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

7,
96

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
,6

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9
0

0
1

7
0

6
.0

 C
F

S
 W

el
l F

ie
ld

2
5

,0
0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

59
,2

83
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
64

,8
83

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

96
,5

22
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
71

,5
22

$ 
   

   
   

   
9

0
0

3
3

5
S

W
P

 P
u

m
p 

S
ta

tio
n

/P
ip

e
lin

e
5,

0
0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
05

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
05

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9
0

0
3

7
3

F
le

e
t V

e
h

ic
le

 A
d

d
iti

on
 &

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
47

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
47

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9
0

0
.1

7
1

4
.0

 C
F

S
 W

el
l F

ie
ld

2
2

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
  

1,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
2,

31
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
80

,3
13

$ 
   

   
   

   
9

0
0

.3
1

1
C

h
lo

rin
e

 F
a

ci
lit

ie
s/

W
el

ls
1

1
,8

3
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
,8

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
1,

83
7)

$ 
   

   
   

 
90

0.
19

5
R

ef
ug

io
 2

 B
P

S
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

,3
13

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

43
,3

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

90
0.

19
6

A
la

m
o 

P
in

ta
do

 B
P

S
13

4,
26

3
$ 

   
   

  
3,

52
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

06
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
17

4,
57

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
,3

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

90
0.

19
7

R
ef

ug
io

 3
 B

P
S

48
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

92
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
04

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

63
,7

93
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

,2
93

$ 
   

   
   

   
90

0.
19

8
M

ea
do

w
la

rk
 B

P
S

23
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
,0

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,2
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

76
,5

22
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
53

,0
22

$ 
   

   
   

   
90

0.
10

2
Z

on
e 

1,
 2

, 3
 R

es
er

vo
irs

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
0,

81
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0,

81
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
90

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
40

4,
10

0
$ 

   
   

  
18

6,
44

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
22

3,
15

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
78

6,
03

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

38
1,

93
6

$ 
   

   
   

1,
83

7,
43

9
$ 

   
   

67
7,

85
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

95
9,

59
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
39

6,
81

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

55
9,

37
8

$ 
   

   
   

 

T
O

T
A

L
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

P
ro

je
c

te
d

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

F
in

a
l B

u
d

g
e

t
B

u
d

g
e

t
9

-M
o

n
th

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

2
 Y

e
a

r-
E

n
d

F
Y

 2
2

/2
3

T
O

T
A

L
1,

83
7,

43
9

$ 
   

   
67

7,
85

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
95

9,
59

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

39
6,

81
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
55

9,
37

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

 P
ro

je
ct

s

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l -
 P

la
n

t 
E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 P

ro
je

c
ts

S
u

b
to

ta
l R

ep
ai

r 
&

 R
ep

la
ce

 P
ro

je
ct

s

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

Pa
ge

 7
Fi

na
l B

ud
ge

t -
 Ju

ne
 2

1,
 2

02
2



R
E

S
E

R
V

E
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

F
Y

 2
1

/2
2

P
ro

je
c

te
d

 Y
r-

e
n

d
F

in
a

l B
u

d
g

e
t

A
cc

ou
nt

 N
o.

 
 

B
u

d
g

e
t

9
-M

o
n

th
 A

c
tu

a
l

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

2
 Y

e
a

r-
E

n
d

F
Y

 2
2

/2
3

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 R

E
M

A
IN

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
  

2,
17

9,
31

5
$ 

   
  

2,
36

3,
48

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
63

1,
62

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
67

5,
84

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
49

6,
53

4
$ 

   
   

   

27
18

00
R

ep
ai

r 
&

 R
ep

la
ce

 R
es

er
ve

(4
04

,1
00

)
$ 

   
   

 
(1

86
,4

47
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
(2

23
,1

56
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(7

86
,0

36
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
38

1,
93

6
$ 

   
   

   
27

20
00

P
la

nt
 E

xp
an

si
on

 R
es

er
ve

(1
,4

33
,3

39
)

$ 
   

 
(4

91
,4

11
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
(7

36
,4

42
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

,6
10

,7
81

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
17

7,
44

2
$ 

   
   

   

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l C
IP

 R
es

er
ve

s
(1

,8
37

,4
39

)
$ 

   
  

(6
77

,8
58

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(9

59
,5

98
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,3

96
,8

17
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

55
9,

37
8

$ 
   

   
   

 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 R

e
s

e
rv

es
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 R
e

s
e

rv
es

3
4

1
,8

7
6

$ 
   

   
  

1,
68

5,
62

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
67

2,
02

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

27
9,

03
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   

 

T
O

T
A

L
 B

U
D

G
E

T
F

Y
 2

1
/2

2
F

Y
 2

1
/2

2
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 Y

r-
e

n
d

F
in

a
l B

u
d

g
e

t

 B
u

d
g

e
t

9
-M

o
n

th
 A

c
tu

a
l

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

2
 Y

e
a

r-
E

n
d

F
Y

 2
2

/2
3

T
O

T
A

L
12

,8
94

,8
11

$ 
   

 
10

,5
79

,6
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

13
,5

75
,5

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

,3
15

,2
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(5
79

,5
36

)
$ 

   
   

   

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

  
  

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 B
u

d
g

et
  

Pa
ge

 8
Fi

na
l B

ud
ge

t -
 Ju

ne
 2

1,
 2

02
2



NOTICE AND AGENDA OF REGULAR MEETING 

GROUNDWATER SUST AINABILITY AGENCY 
FOR THE EASTERN MANAGEMENT AREA 

Agenda Item 10. A. 

IN THE SANTA YNEZ RIVER GROUNDWATER BASIN 

REGULAR MEETING WILL BE HELD 
AT 06:30P.M., THURSDAY, MAY 26, 2022 

AT THE SANTA YNEZ COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, CONFERENCE ROOM 
1070 FARADAY ST., SANTA YNEZ, CALIFORNIA 

Remote public participation available via ZOOM 

Pursuant to AB361, Directors may participate in this meeting via teleconference. 

The public can only participate via teleconference. There will be no public meeting location. 

To access the meeting via telephone, please dial: 1-669-900-6833 
And/or via the Web at= http://join.zoom.us 

"Join a Meeting" - Meeting ID: 876 0782 0632 - Meeting Passcode: 296556 

• You do NOT need to create a ZOOM account or login with email for meeting participation. 

• If your device does not have a microphone or speakers, you can call in for audio with the 
phone number and Meeting ID listed above to listen and participate. 

• In the interest of clear reception and efficient administration of the meeting, all persons 
participating remotely are respectfully requested to mute their line after logging or dialing
in and remain muted at all times unless speaking. 

Video/Teleconference Meeting During Corooavirus (COVlD-19) State of Emergency: As a result of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, this meeting will be available via video/teleconference as recommended by Santa Barbara 
County Public Hei'lith and nuthorized by Govenunent Code section 54953te) (Stale Assembly Bill 361). 

Important Notice Regarding Public Participation in Video/Teleconference Meeting: Those who wish to provide 
public comment on an Agenda Item. or who otherwise are making a presentation to the GSA Committee, may 
participate in the meeting using the remote access referenced above. T hose wishing to submit written comments 
instead, please submit a ny and all comments and materials to the GSA via electronic mail at 
bbuelow@syrwcd.com. AJ I submittals of written comments must be received by the GSA 110 later tl1an 
Wednesday, May 25, 2022 , and snould indicate "May 26, 2022 GSA Meeting" in the subject line. To the exteot 
practicable, public comments and materials received in advance pursuant to this timeframe will be read into the 
public record during the meeting. Public comments and materials not read into the record will become part of the 
post-meeting materials available to the public and posted on the SGMA website. 

AGENDA ON NEXT PAGE 

EMA GSA Committee Meeting - May 26, 2022 
Pa11e1 



GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 
FOR THE EASTERN MANAGEMENT AREA 

IN THE SANTA YNEZ RNER GROUNDWATER BASIN 

THURSDAY, MAY 26,.2022, 6:30P.M. 

AGENDA OF REGULAR MEETING 

l. Call to Order and Roll Call 

U. Consider findings under Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to authorize 
continuing teleconference meetings under Resolution EMA-2021-00 1 

ill. Additions or Deletions to the Agenda 

rv. Public Comment (Any member of the public may address the Committee relating to 
any non-agenda matter within the Committee's jurisdiction. The total time for all 
public participation shall not exceed fifteen minutes and the time allotted for each 
individual shall not exceed five minutes. No action will be taken by the Committee 
at this meeting on any public item.) Staff recommends any potential new agenda 
items based on issues raised be held for discussion under Agenda Item "EMA GSA 
Committee requests and comments" for items to be included on the next Agenda. 

V. Review and consider approval of meeting minutes of February 24 and March 24, 2022 

VI. Review and consider approval ofFinancial Statements and Warrant List 

VII. Update on Executive Order N-7-22 

VIII. Update on Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin Well Metering Program 

lX. Update on future govemance/JP Ninterim cost sharing and long-term funding for 
EMA expenses 

X. Update on change of GSA Financial Institution 

XI. Next Regular EMA GSA Meeting, Thursday, August 25,2022, at 6:30p.m. 

XII. EMA GSA Committee requests and comments 

XIII. Adjournment 

[This agenda was posted 72 hours prior to the scheduled special meeting at 3669 SagJ.lnto Street, Suite 101 , Santa 
Ynez, California, and hltns://www, sanlaynezwaler.org in accordance with Government Code Section 54954. I.n 
compliance with the Americans witb Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to review agenda materials or 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District at (805) 693-1156. 
Notification 24 hours prior to the meeting will enable the GSA to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting.] 

2 

EMA GSA Committee Meeting • May 26, 2022 
Page 2 



EXECUTlVE DEPARTM E 1T 
STATE Of CALlfO RNll\ 

EXECUTIVE ORDER N-7-22 

WHEREAS on Aprill2, 2021. May 10. 2021 . July 8, 2021. and October 19. 
2021 , I proclaimed s1otes o1 emergency that continue today and exist across all 
the counties of California, due to extreme and expanding drought conditions; 
and 

WHEREAS climate change continues to Intensify the impacts of droughts 
on our communities. environment, and economy, and California is in a third 
consecutive year of dry conditions. resulting in continuing drought in oil ports of 
the State; and 

WHEREAS the 21st century to date has been characterized by record 
warmth and predominantly dry conditions, and the 2021 meteorological 
summer in California and the rest of the western United States was the hottest on 
record; and 

WHEREAS since my October 19. 2021 Proclamation, early rains in October 
and December 2021 gave way to the driest January and February in recorded 
history for the watersheds that provide much of California's water supply; and 

WHEREAS the ongoing drought will have significant, immediate impacts on 
communities with vulnerable water supplies. forms that rely on irrigation to grow 
food and fiber. and fish and wild ijfe that rely on stream flows and cool water; 
and 

WHEREAS the two largest reservoirs of the Central Volley Project, which 
supplies water to forms and communities in the Central Volley and the Santo 
Claro Valley and provides critical cold-water habitat for salmon and other 
onodromous fish. have water storage levels that ore approximately 1.1 million 
acre-feet below lost year's low levels on this dote; and 

WHEREAS the record-breaking dry period in January and February and the 
absence of significant rains in March hove required the Deportment of Water 
Resources to reduce anticipated deliveries from the State Water Project to 
5 percent of requested supplies; and 

WHEREAS delivery of water by bottle or truck is necessary to protect 
human safety and public health in those places where water supplies ore 
disrupted; and 

WHEREAS groundwater use accounts for 41 percent of the State's total 
water supply on on overage annual basis but as much as 58 percent In a 
critically dry year. and approximately 85 percent of public water systems rely on 
groundwater as their primary supply; and 

WHEREAS coordination between local entities that approve permits for 
new groundwater wells and local groundwater sustoinability agencies is 
important to achieving sustainable levels of groundwater in critically 
overdrafted basins; and 

EMA GSA Committee Meeting - May 26, 2022 



WHEREAS the duration of the drought. especially following a multiyear 
drought that abated only five years ago. underscores the need for California to 
redouble neoh medium-. and long-term efforts to adopt its water management 
and delivery systems to a changing climate, shifting precipitation patterns. and 
water scarcity; and 

WHEREAS the most consequential, immediate action Californians can toke 
to extend available supplies is to voluntarily reduce their wafer use by 
15 percent from their 2020 levels by implementing the commonsense measures 
identified in operative paragraph 1 of Executive Order N-10-21 (July 8. 2021 ); 
and 

WHEREAS to protect public health and safety. if is critical the State toke 
certain immediate actions without undue delay to prepare for and mittgote the 
effects of the drought conditions. and under Government Code section 8571. I 
find that strict compliance with various statutes and regulations specified in this 
Proclamation would prevent. hinder. or delay the mitigation of the effects of the 
drought conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor of the State of California. 
in accordance with the authority vested in me by the State Constitution and 
statutes. including the California Emergency Services Act. and in particular. 
Government Code sections 8567, 8571. and 8627, do hereby issue the following 
Order to become effective immediately: 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

1. The orders and provisions contained in my April21. 2021. May 10, 2021. 
July 8, 2021. and October 19. 2021 Proclamations remain in full force 
and effect, except as modified by those Proclamations and herein. 
State agencies shall continue to implement all directions from those 
Proclamations and accelerate implementation where feasible, 

2. To help the State achieve its conservation goals and ensure sufficient 
water for essential indoor and outdoor use. I call on all Californians to 
strive to limit summertime water use and to use water more efficiently 
indoors and out. The statewide Save Our Water conservation 
campaign at SaveOurWoter.com provides simple ways for Californians 
to reduce water use in their everyday lives. Furthermore, I encourage 
Californians to understand and track the amount of water they use 
and measure their progress toward their conservation goals. 

3. By May 25. 2022. the State Water Resources Control Board (Water 
Board) shall consider adopting emergency regulations that include all 
of the following: 

a. A requirement that each urban water supplier. as defined in 
section 10617 of the Water Code, shdll submit to the Departmen1 
of Water Resources a preliminary annual water supply and 
demand assessment consistent with section 10632.1 of the Water 
Code no later than June 1, 2022. and submit a final annual water 

EMA GSA Commlttoe Meeting • May 2 61 2022 



supply and demand assessment to the Department of Water 
Resources no later than the deadline set by section 1 0632.1 of 
the Water Code; 

b. A requirement that each urban water supplier that has 
submitted a water shortage contingency plan to the 
Department of Water Resources implement. at o minimum. the 
shortage response actions adopted under section 10632 of the 
Water Code for a shortage level of up to twenty percent (Level 
2), by a date to be set by the Water Board; and 

c. A requirement that each urban water supplier that has not 
submitted a water shortage con1ingency plan to the 
Department of Water Resources implement. at a minimum, 
shortage response actions established by the Water Board, 
which shall take into consideration model actions that the 
Department of Water Resources shall develop for urban water 
supplier water shortage contingency planning for Level 2. by a 
dale to be set by the Water Board. 

To further conserve water and improve drought resiliency if the drought 
lasts beyond this year, I encourage urban water suppliers to conserve 
more than required by the emergency regulations described in this · 
paragraph and to voluntarily activate more stringent local 
requirements based on a shortage level of up to thirty percent (Level 
3). 

4. To promote water conservation, the Department of Water Resources 
shall consult with leaders in the commercial. industrial. and institutional 
sectors to develop strategies for improving water conservation, 
including direct technical assistance, financial assistance, and other 
approaches. By May 25. 2022. the Water Board shall consider adopting 
emergency regulations defining "non-functional turf" (that is. a 
definition of turf that is ornamental and not otherwise used for human 
recreation purposes such as school fields, sports fields. and parks) and 
banning irrigation of non-functional turf in the commercial, industrial, 
and institutional sectors except as it may be required to ensure the 
health of trees and other perennial non-turf plantings. 

5. In order to maximize the efficient use of water and to preserve water 
supplies critical to human health and safety and the environment, 
Public Resources Code, Division 13 (commencing with section 21000) 
and regulations adopted pursuant to that Division are hereby 
suspended, with respect to the directives in paragraphs 3 and 4 of this 
Order and any other projects and activities for the purpose of water 
conservaiion to the extent necessary to address the impacts of the 
drought. and any permits necessary to carry out such projects or 
activities. Entities that desire to conduct activities under this suspension, 
other than the directives in paragraphs 3 and 4 of this Order, shall first 
request that the Secretary of the Natural Resources Agency make o 
determination that the proposed activities ore eligible to be 
conducted under this suspension. The Secretary shall use sound 
discretion in applying this Executive Order to ensure that the suspension 
serves the purpose of accelerating conservation projects that are 
necessary to address impacts of the drought. while at the same time 

EMA GSA Committee Meeting • May 261 2022. 



protecting public health and the environment . The entities 
implementing these directives or conducting activities under this 
suspension shall maintain on their websites a list of all activities or 
approvals for which these provisions are suspended. 

6. To support voluntary approaches to improve fish habitat that would 
require change petitions under Wafer Code section 1707 and either 
Water Code sections 1425 through 1432 or Water Code sections 1725 
through 1732, and where the primary purpose is to improve conditions 
for fish, the Water Board shall expeditiously consider petitions that add 
a fish and wildlife beneficial use or point of diversion and place of 
storage to improve conditions for anadromous fish . California Code of 
Regulations, title 23, section 1064. subdivisions (a) ( 1 )(A) (i)-(ii) are 
suspended with respect to any petition that is subject to this 
paragraph. 

7. To facilitate the hauling of water for domestic use by local 
communities and domestic waler users threatened with the loss of 
water supply or degraded water quality resulting from drought. any 
ordinance, regulation, prohibition, policy, or requirement of any kind 
adopted by o public agency that prohibits the hauling of water out of 
the water's basin of origin oro public agency's jurisdiction is hereby 
suspended. The suspension authorized pursuant to this paragraph shall 
be limited to the hauling of water by truck or bottle to be used for 
human consumption. cooking, or sanitation in communities or 
residences threatened with the loss of affordable safe drinking water. 
Nothing in this paragraph limits any public health or safety requirement 
to ensure the safety of hauled water. 

8. The Wafer Boord shall expand inspections to determine whether illegal 
diversions or wasteful or unreasonable use of water are occurring and 
bring enforcement actions against illegal diverters and those engaging 
in the wasteful and unreasonable use of water. When access is not 
granted by o property owner. the Water Board may obtain an 
inspection warrant pursuant to the procedures set forth in Title 13 
(commencing with section 1822.50) of Port 3 of the Code of Civil 
Procedure for the purposes of conducting on Inspection pursuant to 
this directive. 

9. To protect health, safety, and the environment during this drought 
emergency, a county, city, or other public agency shall not: 

a. Approve a permit for a new groundwater well or for alteration of 
an existing well in a basin subject to lhe Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act and classified as medium- or 
high-priority without first obtaining written verification from a 
Groundwater Sustoinability Agency managing the basin or area 
of the basin where the well is proposed to be located that 
groundwater extraction by the proposed well would not be 
inconsistent with ony sustainable groundwater management 
program established in any applicable Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan adopted by that Groundwater Susloinability 

EMA GSA Committee Mooting- May 26, 2022 



Agency and would not decrease the likelihood of achieving a 
sustoinobility goal for the basin covered by such a plan; or 

b. Issue o permit for a new groundwater well or for alteration of on 
existing well without first determining that extraction of 
groundwater from the proposed well is ( 1) not likely to interfere 
with the production and functioning of existing nearby wells. and 
(2) not likely to cause subsidence that would adversely impact or 
damage nearby infrastructure. 

This paragraph shall not apply to permits for wells that will provide less 
than two acre-feet per year of groundwater for individual domestic 
users. or that will exclusively provide groundwater to public water 
supply systems as defined in section 116275 of the Health and Safety 
Code. 

10. To address household or small community drinking water shortages 
dependent upon groundwater wells that have failed due to drought 
conditions. the Department of Water Resources shall work with other 
state agencies to investigate expedited regulatory pathways to 
modify, repair, or reconstruct foiled household or small community or 
public supply wells. while recognizing the need to ensure the 
sustainability of such wells as provided for in paragraph 9. 

11. State agencies shall collaborate with tribes and federal. regional, 
and local agencies on actions related to promoting groundwater 
recharge and increasing storage. 

12. To help advance groundwater recharge projects. and to 
demonstrate the feasibility of projects that can use available high 
water flows to recharge local groundwater while minimizing flood 
risks, the Water Board and Regional Water Quality Control Boards 
shall prioritize water right permits. water quality certifications. waste 
discharge requirements. and conditional waivers of waste discharge 
requirements to accelerate approvals for projects that enhance the 
ability of a local or state agency to capture high precipitation events 
for local storage or recharge, consistent with water right priorities and 
protections for fish and wildlife. For the purposes of carrying out this 
paragraph, Division 13 (commencing with section 21000) of the 
Public Resources Code and regulations adopted pursuant to that 
Division, and Chapter 3 (commencing with section 85225) of Part 3 of 
Division 35 of the Water Code and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto ore hereby suspended to the extent necessary to address the 
impacts of the drought. This suspension applies to (a) any actions 
Ioken by state agencies, (b) any actions token by local agencies 
where the state agency with primary responsibility for the 
implementation of the directives concurs that local action is required, 
and (c) permits necessary to corry out actions under (a) or (b). The 
entities implementing these directives shall maintain on their websites 
a list of all activities or approvals for which these provisions ore 
suspended. 

13. With respect to recharge projects under either Flood-Managed 
Aquifer Recharge or the Deportment of Water Resources Sustainable 

EMA GSA Committee Meeting • May 26, 2022 



Groundwater Management Grant Program occurring on open and 
working lands to replenish and store water in groundwater basins that 
will help mitigate groundwater conditions impacted by drought. for 
any (a) actions token by state agencies. (b) actions Ioken by a local 
agency where the Deportment of Water Resources concurs that 
local action is required. and (c) permits necessary to corry ou1 
actions under (o) or (b). Public Resources Code. Division 13 
(commencing with section 21000) ond regulations adopted pursuant 
to that Division are hereby suspended to the extent necessary to 
address the impacts of the drought. The entities implementing these 
directives shall maintain on their websiles a list of all activities or 
approvals for which these provisions are suspended. 

14. To increase resilience of state water supplies during prolonged 
drought conditions. the Department of Water Resources shall prepare 
for the potential creation and implementation of a multi-year transfer 
program pilot project for the purpose of acquiring water from willing 
partners and storing and conveying water to areas of need. 

15. By April 15. 2022. slate agencies shall submit to the Department of 
Finance for my consideration proposals to mitigate the worsening 
effects of severe drought including emergency assistance to 
communities and households and others facing water shortages as a 
result of the drought. facilitation of groundwater recharge and 
wastewater recycling. improvements in water use efficiency, 
protection of fish and wildlife. mitigation of drought-related 
economic or water-supply disruption. and other potential investments 
to support short- and tong-term drought response. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that as soon as hereafter possible. this Order be 
filed in the Office of the Secretary of State and that widespread publicity and 
notice be given of this Order. 

This Order is not intended to. and does not, create any rights or benefits. 
substantive or procedural. enforceable at law or in equity, against the State of 
California, its agencies. departments. entities. o fficers. employees, or any other 
person. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set 
my hand and caused the Great Seat of the 
State of California to be affixed this 28th 
day of March 2022. 

I 

~ I 
. ;1;. /ii. 
. ··( if---tte-

GAVIN NEWSOM 
Governor of California 

ATTEST: 

SHIRLEY N. WEBER, PH.D. 
Secretary of State 

EMA GSA Committee Moo ng :lil~ 



TO: 

FROM: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Agenda Number: 

AGENDA LETTER 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
1 OS E. Anapamu Street, Suite 407 

Santa Barbara, CA 931 01 
(805) 568-2240 

Board of Supervisors 

Department Name: 

Department No.: 

For Agenda Of: 

Placement: 

Estimated Time: 

Continued Item: 

If Yes, date from: 

Vote Required: 

Department Van Do-Reynoso, MPH, PhD, Director 
Director(s) Public Health Department 
Contact Info: Lars Seifert, Director 

Public Health 
041 
May 24,2022 
Departmental 
30 minutes 
No 

Environmental Health Services 805-681-4934 
SUBJECT: Temporary Water Well Permitting Ordinance Related to Drought Emergency 

and Governor's Executive Order- Urgency Ordinance and Fee Resolution 

County Counsel Concurrence 

As to form: Yes 

Other Concurrence: Risk Management 

As to form: Yes 

Recommended Actions: 

That the Board of Supervisors~ 

Auditor-Controller Concurrence 

As to form: Yes 

a) Pursuant to California Government Code sections 25123(d) and 25131 and the California 
Executive Order N -7-22, adopt an Urgency Ordinance to amend Chapter 34A of County Code in 
order to implement changes to the process for water well permitting in accordance with 
California Executive Order N-7 -22 until the County's Proclamation of Local Emergency Caused 
by Drought Conditions is terminated and the Executive Order, as may be superseded, is 
rescinded (Attachment A); and 

b) Read the title and waive further reading of Urgency Ordinance; and 

c) Adopt a Resolution amending fees for Environmental Health Services relating to Water Wells 
and Private Water Systems (Attachment B); and 

d) Determine that adoption of the Urgency Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15269(c), 15061(b)(3), 15307, and 
15378(b )(5); and that approval of the Fee Resolution is exempt from CEQA pursuant to Public 
Resources Code sections 21 080(b )(8)(A) and (B) and CEQA Guidelines section 15273 because 



Temporary Water Well Permitting Ordinance Related to Drought Emergency and Governor's Executive Order- Urgency 
Ordinance and Fee Resolution 
Agenda Date: May 24, 2022 
Page 2 of6 

fees will be used for operating expenses and for the purchase of supplies, equipment, and 
materials and direct staff to file a Notice of Exemption on that basis (Attachments C and D). 

Summary Text: 

This urgency ordinance would amend Chapter 34A of the County Code in order to implement process 
changes for watet well permitting in accordance with the Governor's Drought Emergency Executive 
Order N-7-22 (Executive Order) issued on March 28, 2022 and which took immediate effect, until 
Executive Order N-7-22, or as may be superseded, is rescinded and the County's Proclamation of Local 
Emergency Caused by Drought Conditions is terminated; and to amend the Water Well and Private 
Water System Fee Schedule to prescribe fees to pay the reasonable expenses of Environmental Health 
Services to implement the temporary water well permit review and processing provisions required by the 
Executive Order. 

Background: 

On July 8, 2021, the Governor of California added Santa Barbara County to the list of counties 
experiencing a drought subject to his emergency declaration initially issued on Aprill 0, 2021 . On July 
13, 2021, the Board proclaimed a Local Emergency Caused by Drought Conditions, which has been 
reviewed andre-ratified by your Board every 60-days thereafter. Proclaiming the existence of a 
Drought Emergency within the County provides the County and local water utilities the ability to take 
immediate actions to mitigate and respond to the current drought conditions. 

On March 28, 2022, due to extreme and expanding drought conditions in the State of California, the 
Governor issued Executive Order N-7-22 (Executive Order) (Attachment E), which in part, seeks to: 

• improve coordination between local agencies that approve pennits for new groundwater wells or 
for the alteration of an existing well; 

• enable groundwater sustainability agencies to achieve sustainable levels of groundwater in 
medium- and high-priority basins; and 

• require local agencies to make certain findings prior to issuing a well permit for a new 
groundwater well for the alteration of an existing well. 

The Executive Order became effective immediately on March 28, 2022. The Executive Order states that 
ongoing drought conditions have the potential for significant, immediate impacts on communities with 
vulnerable water supplies and farms that rely on irrigation to grow food and fiber. 

Paragraph 9 of the Executive Order prohibits a county from approving a permit for a new groundwater 
well or alteration of an existing well during the drought emergency without first obtaining written 
verification from a Groundwater Sustainability Agency managing a medium- and high-priority 
groundwater basin that extraction by the proposed well would: (i) not be inconsistent with any 
sustainable groundwater management program established in any applicable Groundwater Sustainability 
Plan adopted by that Groundwater Sustainability Agency; and (ii) not decrease the likelihood of 
achieving a sustainability goal for the basin covered by such a plan; and secondly, determining that 
extraction of groundwater from the proposed well is (iii) not likely to interfere with the production and 
functioning of existing nearby wells, and (iv) not likely to cause subsidence that would adversely impact 
or damage nearby infrastructure. 



Temporary Water Well Pennitting Ordinance Related to Drought Emergency and Governor's Executive Order- Urgency 
Ordinance and Fee Resolution 
Agenda Date: May 24, 2022 
Page 3 of6 

In Santa Barbara County, currently designated medium- and high-priority groundwater basins include 
Cuyama Valley, Carpinteria, Montecito, San Antonio Creek Valley, and the Santa Ynez River Valley. 
More information on the status of local groundwater resources and how to conserve water in Santa 
Barbara County can be found at www.waterwisesb.org. 

Water wells that provide less than two (2) acre-feet per year of groundwater for individual domestic 
users, or that will exclusively provide groundwater to public water supply systems are exempted from 
the Executive Order's requirements on local water well permitting. 

Currently, Chapter 34A (Wells) of the Santa Barbara County Code requires only that an applicant 
submit an application with enumerated data points such as applicant name, driller information, and well 
location, provide a plot plan (Sec. 34A-4), and pay the fee (Sec. 34A-5). If Environmental Health 
Services (EHS) as the administering authority determines that the proposed work is in compliance with 
all applicable standards of Chapter 34A and the applicant has provided the required information and 
paid the fee, the County must issue a water well permit (Sec. 34A-6). 

However, because Executive Order N-7-22 requires EHS to obtain additional information from an 
applicant related to the intended use and location of the proposed water well, EHS requests that Chapter 
34A be amended to add (as Article II of Chapter 34A) temporary water well permitting provisions 
related to drought emergency conditions for consistency with the Executive Order. EHS requests that 
this be done through an Urgency Ordinance for the immediate protection of public health, safety, and the 
envirorunent, and to ensure that Santa Barbara County residents and businesses who rely on vulnerable 
groundwater supplies, and local farms that rely on irrigation wells to grow food and fiber are able to 
access this water resource, while also allowing EHS to reasonably consider the findings required by the 
Executive Order for the sustainability of groundwater basins in the county, 

Since issuance of the Governor's Executive Order on March 28, 2022, EHS is in receipt of six water 
well permit applications subject to the Order to which EHS is not able to process. On average, each year 
since 2017, approximately 110 water well permit applications are reviewed by EHS for permit issuance 
to construct new wells or to alter existing wells, such as deepening or replacement of a well casing. 
Over one half (57%) of these wells in the past five years listed the intended use of the water well as 
irrigation only, which if permitted today, would be subject to the required frndings of this Executive 
Order. 

Urgency Ordinance to Amend Chapter 34A to Add Article ll 

Based on modeling of hypothetical water well drawdown using conservative, yet anticipated values for 
transmissivity, storage coefficient, and anticipated pumping yields to support field grown agriculture 
commodities, EHS' in-house certified hydrogeo1ogist (CHG) has detennined that a new well located 
more than 1,000 feet from an existing well is not likely to interfere with the production of a nearby well 
as locally defined This is based on the modeling of induced drawdown at a one-year interval from the 
proposed well. Moreover, a review of the State Water Resources Control Board's Low-Threat 
Underground Storage Tank Case Closure Policy, a 1 ,000-foot separation from active production wells 
to contamination plumes is considered to be sufficient to pose a low threat to human health, safety or the 
environment, and appropriate for no further action determination based on the enumerated groundwater
specific criteria. 



Temporary Water Well Permitting Ordinance Related to Drought Emergency and Governor' s Executive Order- Urgency 
Ordinance and Fee Resolution 
Agenda Date: May 24, 2022 
Page4 of6 

With regard to subsidence findings required by the Executive Order, the US Geological Survey has 
identified areas ofland subsidence in Santa Barbara County only within the Cuyama Valley basin area. 1 

While groundwater pumping is an identified cause of subsidence in this basin, the permitting of new 
wells and alteration of existing wells as defmed require written verification from the CUyama Basin 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency that the proposed extraction is consistent with the sustainable 
groundwater management program, including a consideration of subsidence in the basin that may 
adversely impact surface land uses. The basin currently does not meet the requirements for an 
undesirable condition of land subsidence.2 

If Article II of Chapter 34A is adopted as part of the Recommended Actions, water well permits for new 
(non-exempt) wells or for the alteration of a well located more than 1,000 feet from an existing well will 
be issued as a ministerial permitting action. Water wells replacing an existing well that do not exceed 
the production capacity of the existing well as originally permitted or constructed, and where the 
existing well will be destroyed upon replacement, are also considered not likely to interfere with the 
production and functioning of nearby wells for purposes of this urgency ordinance, and EHS would 
proceed with the review and issuance of replacement water well permits pursuant to local ordinance and 
the Executive Order. 

Where a proposed well is located less than 1,000 feet from an existing well, the applicant will be 
required to provide pertinent information from a third party CHG with the application in order for EHS' 
in-house CHG to analyze the data to determine the likelihood of impacts, including specified 
hydrogeology and well extraction data to model potential impacts to nearby wells or structures. EHS 
will consider the environmental effects of the proposed well and will require the applicant to comply 
with CEQA, as applicable. Review of water wells associated with coastal zone development permits 
and land development permits will be processed in coordination with County Planning & Development 
Services. 

New domestic wells providing less than two~acre feet per year of groundwater, including those serving 
four or less residential parcels, and public water system wells inclusive of State small water systems 
(se.rving 5-15 residential connections) are exempted from the drought emergency permitting provisions 
in the requested urgency ordinance to ensure an ongoing safe, reliable supply of water for human 
consumption is available during the drought emergency. While the Executive Order does not 
specifically exempt domestic water wells serving multiple parcels or State small water systems, the 
stated intent of the Executive Order is to protect human safety and public health due to extreme and 
expanding drought conditions; whereas otherwise restricting these existing water systems from domestic 
well drilling to provide water for human consumption to these systems would not meet that intent. 

EHS may also adopt other policies, procedures, and/or permit application forms and amendments as 
necessary consistent with Chapter 34A to implement the provisions of the Order. As proposed, Article 
II of Chapter 34A includes a provision requiring a property owner to enter into an indemnification 
agreement with the County as is presently required for other land development permit applications in the 
county. 

1 Everett, R.R., Gibbs, D.R., Hanson, R. T., Sweetkind, D.S., Brandt, J.T., Falk, S.E. and Haricb, C.R., 2013, Geology, water-quality, 
hydrology, and geomechanics of the Cuyama Valley groundwater basin, Califomia, 2008-12: U.S. Geological Survey Scientific 
Investigations Report 2013-5108 (httus://ca. water.usgs.gov/land subsidence/califomia~subsidence-areas.btml). 
2 Woodard & Curran. Cuyama Basin Groundwater Sustainabiliiy Plan, December 2019, 3-7 (bttps://cuyamabasin.orglresources). 



Temporary Water Well Pennitting Ordinance Related to Drought Emergency and Governor's Executive Order - Ur.gency 
Ordinance and Fee Resolution 
Agenda Date: May24, 2022 
Page 5 of6 

Resolution to Amend EHS Fee Schedule 

Currently, Section 34A-5(b)(4) of Santa Barbara County Code allows EHS to recover labor costs in 
excess of hourly time limits established by the fee resolution for permit processing and related 
inspections, The well permit fees established during the 2019 EHS Fee Study for water well 
construction, modification and destruction were based on the average time spent in the permitting of 
water wells at that time. The proposed fee resolution specifies an hourly time limit of two hours for 
permit review and processing. Any additional staff time needed for permit processing including, but not 
limited to consultation, report review, appeals, or public bearings that may be needed to implement the 
provisions of the urgency ordinance will be assessed at the existing hourly rate for EHS. The proposed 
fee resolution also establishes a fee to recover the direct cost of CEQA processing and filing fees 
established by the Clerk of the Board, where applicable. The Fee Schedule for Water Wells and Private 
Water Systems will not sunset with the rescission of the Local Drought Proclamation and Executive 
Order. The Resolution to amend the EHS Fee Schedule is included in Attachment B. 

Outreach and Countywide Drought Emergency Efforts 

Environmental Health Services (EHS) has provided an informational presentation related to the 
Executive Order and its effects on irrigation water well permitting at the County's Agricultural Advisory 
Conunittee on May 5, 2022. Additionally, a virtual public workshop for well drillers, groundwater 
sustainability agencies and other interested stakeholders was conducted by EHS on May 10,2022. 
Information was provided on the Executive Order's drought emergency provisjons and exemptions for 
the county water well pennitting process, local agency and groundwater sustainability agency review 
requirements, proposed regulatory fees and the required temporary process steps for water well permit 
issuance in Santa Barbara County during the declared drought emergency. 

The County has also established ongoing internal and external drought task forces to manage the 
County's drought response, share information, and develop emergency plans for significant drought 
related water outages. The internal task force consists of staff from Office ofEmergency Management, 
the County Water Agency and Environmental Health Services, and continues to identify how to support 
the County's ongoing compliance with State emergency drought measures. 

Fiscal Analysis: 

There are no one-time costs or staffing requested as a result of this urgency ordinance. Adopting an 
amended Environmental Health Services fee resolution to utilize the ex.isting Board-approved hourly 
rate will fully recover regulatory costs. Increased staff time associated with permit reviews may be 
necessary; however, a decrease in water well pennit applications during the drought emergency may 
also be realized by EHS. Staff workload will be adjusted as necessary to other funded program activities 
if a decrease in buqgeted well pennit revenue occurs during the effective dates of the temporary water 
well permitting provisions. 

Staffing Impacts: 

There will be no increase or decrease in staff as a result of adopting the proposed resolution and urgency 
ordinance. 



Temporary Water Well Permitting Ordinance Related to Drought Emergency and Governor's Executive Order - Urgency 
Ordinance and Fee Resolution 
Agenda Date: May 24, 2022 
Page 6 of6 

Special Instructions: 

L That the Clerk of the Board publish notice of this hearing, per the attached Public 
Notice, in a newspaper of general circulation in Santa Barbara County 10 days prior to 
the hearing and again 5 days prior to the hearing in compliance with Government Code 
§ 6062a. 

2. Before the expiration of 15 days after passage of this urgency ordinance, a summary of it 
shall be published once together with the names of the members of the Board of 
Supervisors voting for and against the same in a newspaper of general circulation in 
Santa Barbara County, in compliance-with Government Code· Section 25124. 

3. Following Board approval, Clerk of the Board to please post the Notice of Exemption 
and forward a stamped copy to the Environmental Health Services Director. 

4. Request the Clerk of the Board to return one copy of the original adopted resolution, one 
copy of the original adopted ordinance, and one Minute Order to the Public Health 
Department, Attention: Kelly Lazarus at KLazarus@sbcphd.org. 

Attachments: 

A. Urgency Ordinance amending Chaptet 34A of the Santa Barbara County Code 
B, Resolution amending fees for Environmental Health Services 
C. CEQA Notice of Exemption, Urgency Ordinance 
D. CEQA Notice of Exemption, Fee Resolution 
E. March 28, 2022 Governor's Executive Order 
F. Notice of Public Hearing 
G. Urgency Ordinance amending Chapter 34A of the Santa Barbara County Code Presentation 

Authored by: 

Lars Seifert, Environmental Health Services Director 

££.:. 
Kelly Hubbard, Office of Emergency Management 
Matt Young, Public Works Department 
Jeffrey Wilson, Planning & Development Services 



Santa B a rbara County 

~1'Health ~) DEPARTMENT 

WATER WELL PERMITTING AND 
DROUGHT EMERGENCY 

May 24, 2022 
Board of Supervisors Hearing 



--ca 
~ c 
"iii 
tt: -ca 
E 
0 
z 
~ 

0 
..... c 
C1) 
0 ... 
C1) 
a.. 

300% -

250% 

200% -

150% -

100% -

50% -

0% ! 

232% 

34% 

95% 
84% 

LOCAL DROUGHT EM~RGENCY 

Countywide Percent-of-Normal Water-Year Rainfall 

i11% 

93% 

Updated through March 1, 2022 
(Rainfall as a percentage of an entire average water-year) 

Wet Years • (>120% Normal Rain) 
Dry Years • (< 80% Normal Rain) 
Avg Years • (within .:!.20% Normal) 
Current WY (Year-to-Dale) -- ---

245% 

204% 
,,· 193% 

163% 
'154% 

129% 133% 136% 
128% 

114% 116% 
109% 105% 102% 100% 

r.nO• I a?ot ... 

81% 
'B5'1o 

80% I ~ 65~9% 66% 66% 69% 
63% 

58% 54% 54% 48~3oA 50% 
44% 47% r 46o/~no, 

r- - ....._ 
~1"10 •~ • v ..... 1- r-

I'. 
1: 1: ' 

I~ 
I I ' 1 . ' ' . 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Water Year 



Environmental Health Services 

Governor's Executive Order N-7-22 

(issued March 28, 2022) 

•!• Domestic wells exempt(< 2 acre-feet) 

•!• Public water wells exempt 

EHS Proposes: 

•!• Temporary water well ordinance 

•!• Water well permit fees 



Santa Barbara County 

P~ICHealt 
- ta ~~--------
~~ D E P A R T M E N T 

Environmental Health Services 

A cone of depression 
Large water withdrawals from an aquifer can lower the water 
table and create a "cone of depression" that can result in 
shallow wells going dry. 

~ 

/ 
Cone of 

depression 

Well pump 

Water line 
before 

pumping 

Well casing - · 

+ ,{ :::: "!" :> :' • , :: 5~ t i:!< 



Santa Barbara County 

P~~~-~1'Hea lth il DEPARTMENT 

Environmental Health Services 

Drought EO N-7-22: Action 9 

For new wells or alterations to existing wells* GSA ACTION 

REQUIRED 

9a. Consultation with the GSAs, Prior to Approving a Well Permit 
• In high and medium priority basins, where there is a GSA and GSP 
• Obtain written verification from the GSA 
• Consistency with GSP & sustainability goals 

9b. Permit Evaluation, Prior to Issuing a Well Permit 

COUNTY ACTION 

REQUIRED 

1. Not likely to interfere with production and functioning of existing nearby wells 
2. Not likely to cause adverse subsidence impact or damage nearby infrastructure 

*excludinq individual domestic wells who use less than two acre-feet per year and public water system supply who rely 
exclusivelY on groundwater wells 



Environmental Health Services 

STEP 1- INDICATE TYPE, 
LOCATION, AND USE 

OR 



Santa Barbara County 

P~#~·~1'H ea lth 
• DEPARTMENT 

'San Luos Obispo 
County 

Santa Barbara 
County 

Environmenta l Health Services 

STEP 2- GSA BASIN 
VERIFICATION 

(EON-7-22 §9A) 

Kern 
Counly 

Ventura 
County 

o.,..,..,..,..."*"'-"'-
c:~"':e;~ .... .-. ......... 

" :1~===== 
Groundwater Basins 
i::J~mr£RI/. 
~ ClJ't.Vh\Y.Al(..e'\' 

-·o~T~L~ 
• =.er• 
c::J IAOU1£CITO 

~ s.At'AtfTO,.IIO~EJ<.'IJ.u.E' 

.. 3AtHio t.t~-'RhtER:\'"'-LE't 
$AJ.tTA YlCZ RI'A'..=l •:Al~EV 

. .... --;·:. ·· :· ·::·.: . .. 
... •. .. _., • . • 0. 

S..nu. b_.,.n~• 

C:.N.;~ur l•·•u:.- 8MiA; 

-

.. ·~-~t~ •: . -~~ 
. 

. 
:~, .. o. J il r 

~.._ • .,:ut-· •••·•.,•,o, ,._, , 'of~ 



-- Araa of influence -_____ ..., 

Environmental Health Services 

STEP 3- ASSESSMENT OF 
IMPACT TO NEARBY WELLS 

Wells >1,000 feet to nearby wells 
•!• No further information required 

·:· Setback to nearby wells met for no impact finding 

Wells <1,000 feet to nearby wells 
·:· Aquifer data required from hydrogeologist 

•!· Findings required by EHS prior to permit issuance 

Replacement Wells 
·:· If 11like for like" no further actions required 



Santa Barbara County 

P~#~·~1'Health 
\ .. ~»---
~ D E P A R T M E N T 

Environmental Health Services 

' 

PROJECT TYPE APPLICATION, FEE, GSA VERIFICATION LOCATION-SPECIFIC CEQA REVIEW 

INDEMNIFICATION EO·N-7·22 9A HYDROLOGY DATA 

AGREEMENT EO-N-7-22 §98 

(STEP 1) (STEP 2) (STEP 3) 

NEW WELL OR YES IF IN A MEDIUM- OR HIGH- ONLY IF PROPOSED WELL IS YES -LIKELY 

PRIORITY BASIN LESS THAN 1,000 FEET FROM CATEGORI CALLY 
ALTERATION OF EXISTING WELL AN EXISTING WELL EXEM PT 

{INCREASING CAPACITY) 

. 
REPLACEMENT WELL YES IF IN A MEDIUM- OR HIGH- EXEMPT YES - LIKELY 

(NO INCREASE IN CAPACITY) PRIORITY BASIN CATEGORICALLY 
EXEMPT 

INDIVIDUAL DOMESTIC WELLS YES EXEM PT EXEMPT YES - LIKELY 

STATUTORILY EXEM PT 
AS A MINISTERIAL 

ACTION 

PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY WELLS YES EXEMPT EXEMPT YES - LIKELY 

STATUTORILY EXEMPT 
AS A MINISTERIAL 

ACTION 
v 



Santa Barbara County 

PUBLIC 
~ Healt 

-~- _D_E_P_A_R_T_M_E_N_T 

Environmental Health Services 

FEES 

~ Water Well Construction Permit Fee ($721)- No Change 

~ Additional Technical Review (Hourly Rate)- NEW 

• Two hours included in flat permit fee 

• Additional review at $161 /hour 

~ CEQA Filing Fee ($50) - NEW 



Environmental Health Services 

STAKEHOLDER OUTR~ACH 

~ Agricultural Advisory Committee 

• May 5, 2022 (committee members) 

~ Virtual Public Workshop 

May 10, 2022 (interested parties; well drillers; groundwater 
sustainability agencies) 

» Groundwater Sustainability Agencies 

}> Environmental Health Services website 

.... ......... SBC Public Health 
"""'Health 
~ ·········· @SBCPubl icHealth 

Join us for a virtual workshop 
to learn more about the County's 
proposed water well permitting 
ordinance to temporarily amend 
Santa Barbara County Code in 
response to the Governor's 
Drought Emergency Executive 
Order. 

Full details here: ow.ly I 
L9Ey501YzNK 

VIRTUAL 
PUBLIC 

WORKSHOP 
L-<H.un tnt.JH: ahvut 'h!J Couuty'!: 

PtQpO:l1:d Ttl'mporory WcbH Well 
Pcrmlluns O:dlnc:nc-<- ~ctatcQ to 
Goveruor•o F.xecut1v4: Order and 

Orou:)ht EmMgeney 



Santa Barbara County 

P~.·~·~1'H ea t 
• DEPARTMENT 

Environmental Health Services 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

On May 24, 2022: 

1. Pursuant to California Government Code sections 25123( d) and 25131 and the 
California Executive Order N-7-22, adopt an Urgency Ordinance to amend 
Chapter 34A of County Code in order to implement changes to the process for 
water well permitting in accordance with California Executive Order N-7 -22 until 
the County's Proclamation of Local Emergency Caused by Drought Conditions 
is terminated and the Executive Order, as may be superseded, is rescinded 
(Attachment A); 

2. Read the title and waive further reading of Urgency Ordinance; 



Environmental Health Services 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
On May 24, 2022, also: 

3. Adopt a Resolution amending fees for Environmental Health Services 
relating to Water Wells and Private Water Systems; and 

4. Determine that adoption of the Urgency Ordinance is exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15269(c), 15061 (b )(3), 15307 and 15378(b )(5); and 
that approval of the Fee Resolution is exempt from CEQA pursuant to 
Public Resources Code sections 21080(b)(8)(A) and (B) and CEQA 
Guidelines section 15273 because fees will be used for operating 
expenses and for the purchase of supplies, equipment, and materials, 
and direct staff to file a Notice of Exemption on that basis. 



Environmental Health Services 

DEPARTMENT 

QUESTIONS? 

Santa Barbara County Environmental Health Services 
May 24, 2022 Board of Supervisors Hearing 



ATTACHMENT A 

TEMPORARY WATER WELL PERMITTING ORDINANCE 
RELATED TO DECLARED DROUGHT EMERGENCY AND 

EXECUTIVE ORDER- Urgency Ordinance 



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA AMENDING 
CHAPTER 34A OF THE SANTA BARBARA COUNTY CODE TO ADD ARTICLE II, 
SECTIONS 34A-22 TO 34A~30 PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 

25123(d) AND 25131 AND CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR NEWSOM'S EXECUTIVE ORDER 
N-7-22, TO AMEND WATER WELL PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS UNTIL THE SANTA 

BARBARA COUNTY LOCAL DROUGHT EMERGENCY PROCLAMATION IS 
TERMINATED AND THE GOVERNOR'S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-7-22J AS MAY BE 

SUPERSEDED, IS RESCINDED 

The Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa Barbara hereby ordains as follows: 

SECTION 1. Emergency Findings. This urgency ordinance is adopted pursuant to California 
Government Code Sections 25123(d) and 25 131 and shall take effect immediately upon its 
approval by at least a four-fifths vote of the Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors 
finds that this ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health 
and safety, based upon the following declaration of facts constituting the urgency: 

1. Chapter 12, Sec. 12-S(a) of the Santa Barbara County Code, empowers the County of 
Santa Barbara, Director of Emergency Services, to proclaim a local emergency if the 
Board of Supervisors is not in session; and 

2. Section 8558(c) of the Government Code defines a "Local Emergency" as: "the duly 
proclaimed existence of conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of 
persons and property within the territorial limits of a county, city and county, or city, 
caused by such conditions as air pollution, fire, flood, storm, epidemic, riotJ drought, 
sudden and severe energy shortage, plant or animal infestation or disease, the 
Governor's warning of an earthquake or volcanic prediction, or an earthquake, or 
other conditions, other than conditions resulting from a labor controversy, which 
conditions are or are likely to be beyond the control of the services, personnel, 
equipment, and facilities of that political subdivision and require the combined forces 
of other political subdivisions to combat"; and 

3. Drought conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen 
within the County of Santa Barbara; and 

4. On March 19,2019 the Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors passed 
Resolution 19-93 Concern Regarding Prolonged Water Supply Shortage within Santa 
Barbara County, which recognized the long-term impacts of that drought and the need 
for Water Purveyors, the County and its residents to continue to work together to 
conserve and to improve water security from future droughts; and 



5. Groundwater Sustainability Agencies have been established within Santa Barbara 
County, and the groundwater levels in many of these basins are at or near historical 
lows; and 

6. On July 8, 2021, the Govemor proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist due to 
drought conditions in the County of Santa Barbara; and 

7. On July 13, 2021, the Board of Supervisors found that conditions of extreme peril 
warranted and necessitated a Proclamation of Local Emergency Caused by Drought 
Conditions, and has reviewed the need for the continued existence of the 
Proclamation of Local Emergency at least every 60 days; and 

8. Drought conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property in Santa 
Barbara County persist, and warrant the Proclamation of Local Emergency Caused by 
Drought Conditions; and 

9. The ongoing drought will have significant, immediate impacts on communities with 
vulnerable groundwater supplies and farms that rely on irrigation to grow food and 
fiber; and 

10. Coordination between local entities that approve permits for new groundwater wells 
and local groundwater sustainability agencies is important to achieving sustainable 
groundwater management; and 

ll. On March 28, 2022, the Governor issued Executive Order N-7 -22 due to the extreme 
and expanding drought conditions, which declared in part that in order to protect 
health, safety, and the environment during this drought emergency, a county shall not 
issue a permit for a new groundwater well or for an alteration of an existing well 
without first determining that such well would not decrease the likelihood of 
achieving sustainable Levels of groundwater as determined by the applicable 
Gmundwater Sustainability Agency, nor interfere with existing nearby wells, nor 
cause subsidence that would damage structures; and 

12. For the immediate protection of health, safety, and the environment, the emergency 
drought conditions warrant and necessitate that the County adopt this urgency 
ordinance to establish temporary local drought emergency well permitting provisions 
consistent with Executive Order N-7-22, as may be superseded; and 

13. These provisions to implement local drought emergency water well permitting 
provisions shall be in effect only until the County's Proclamation of Local 
Emergency Caused by Drought Conditions is terminated and the Governor's 
Executive Order related to urgency water well permitting provisions has been 
rescinded. 



SECTION 2. Chapter 34A of the Santa Barbara County Code is hereby amended to incorporate 
sections 34A-1 through 34A-21 inclusive~ as Article I) and add sections 34A-22 through 34A-30 
inclusive, as Article II, which read as follows: 

TEMPORARY WATER WELL PERMITTING ORDINANCE RELATED TO 
DROUGHT EMERGENCY AND EXECUTIVE ORDER 

Sections: 

34A-22 Drought Emergency. Purpose. 
34A-23 Drought Emergency. Definitions. 
34A-24 Drought Emergency. Permit required. 
34A-25 Drought Emergency. Permit procedure for construction of new wells or alteration 

of existing wells. 
34A-26 Drought Emergency. Permit procedure for individual domestic and public water 

supply wells. 
34A-27 Drought Emergency. Permit procedure for replacement wells. 
34A-28 Drought Emergency. Permit issuance. 
34A-29 Drought Emergency. Severability. 
34A-30 Drought Emergency. Effective Date. 

• Sec. 34A-22 - Drought Emergency. Purpose. 

This urgency ordinance adopts and defines local drought emergency water well permitting 
provisions established in response to the Governor's Executive Order N -7-22 as may be 
superseded. This urgency ordinance shall be effective until the County's Proclamation of Local 
Emergency Caused by Drought Conditions is terminated and the Executive Order N-7 -22, as may 
be superseded, is rescinded . The administrative authority may adopt policies and procedures to 
implement and administer this urgency ordinance and the Executive Order as may be superseded 
within the unincorporated area of Santa Barbara County. 

Unless otherwise set forth in this this urgency ordinance, this urgency ordinance does not 
relieve a water well applicant's obligation to comply with Chapter 34-A. California Water Well 
Standards, or with any sustainable groundwater management program or basin adjudication as 
established under the authority of the State of California or its Courts. 

County Code Chapter 34A, including, but not limited to, sections 34A-18 and 34A-19, shall 
apply to the provisions of this chapter. Any violation of the provisions of t his urgency ordinance 
by any person [s subject to administrative fines as provided in chapter 2.4A of this Code. 

• Sec. 34A-23 -Drought Emergency. Definitions. 



(a) The followihg words and phrases, whenever used in this urgency ordinance, shall be 
constructed as defined in this section. Unless the context requires otherwise, the 
definitions set forth in Sec. 34A-2 shall still govern the construction of this chapter. 

(1) "Alteration of an existing well" means the "modification" of a water well as defined 
In Sec. 34A-2 of this chapter, in order to increase the production capacity of the 
existing well as originally permitted or constructed 

(2) "Individual domestic well" means a well that provides less than two acre-feet per 
year of groundwater and is used to supply water for domestic needs for an 
individual residence or to systems having four or less residential service 
connections. 

(3) "Public water supply well" means a well that serves a public water system or a state 
small water system as defined in section 116275 of the California Health and Safety 
Code for provision of piped water to the public for human consumption. 

(4) "Nearby well" means any existing water well located within 1,000 feet of the 
proposed new well or alteration of an existing well. 

(5) "New well" means a new groundwater well or replacement of an existing well with a 
new well that exceeds the production capacity of the existing well as origihally 
permitted or constructed. This definition shall not include geothermal heat 
exchange wells, cathodic protection wells, or wells constructed for the purpose of 
monitoring or abating contaminants in underground waters that are associated 
with a hazardous materials release. 

(6) "Not likely to cause subsidence" means that the soil geology at the well location 
and distance to nearby structures is such that the proposed new well will not result 
in any structural damage to a building or infrastructure. 

(7) "Not likely to interfere" means that the estimated average annual yield and peak 
pumping capacity of groundwater from the proposed new well will not reduce the 
static groundwater level within a nearby well greater than 5 feet over a one-year 
period. 

(8) "Replacement Well" means a water well to be constructed of equal or less 
production capacity as an existing well as originally permitted or constructed, when 
said existing well shall be destroyed under permit within 90 days of completion of 
the replacement well. This definition does not apply to individual domestic or 
public water supply wells. 

(9) "Water well'' or "well" means the same as defined in Sec. 34A-2 of this Chapter. 

• Sec. 34A-24- Drought Emergency. Permit required. 



(a) An application for a permit required by this chapter shall be made in writing on such 
forms as may be prescribed by the administrative authority. 

(b) Unless disallowed by State law, at the time of the filing of an application, the 
application shall be accompanied by an indemnification agreement signed by the legal 
owner to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the County or its agents or officers and 
employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the County or its agents, 
officers or employees, to attack, set aside, void, or annul, in whole or in part, an 
approval of the application by the County. 

(c) The application shall be accompanied by the appropriate fee as established by 
resolution of the Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors. No part of said fee shall 
be refundable except as provided in such fee resolution. 

(d) No person may construct, modify or destroy a well without the permit required by this 
urgency ordinance, notwithstanding the emergency provisions of Section 34A-1 0. 

• Sec. 34A-25 - Drought Emergency. Permit procedure for 

construction of new wells or alteration of existing wells. 

(a) An application for a new well construction permit or for alteration of an existing well 
shall include all required items of Sec 34A-4, and the following intended use and 
location information: 

(1) Intended use of the proposed new well or alteration of an existing well; 

(2) Anticipated yield and production capacity of the well; 

(3) Well location and designated groundwater basin; 

(4) Written verification from an applicable Groundwater Sustainability Agency for a 
medium- or high-priority basin that the proposed new well or alteration of an 
existing well would not be inconsistent with any sustainable groundwater 
management program established in a Groundwater Sustainability Plan; and 

(5) A plot plan indicating all nearby wells within 1,000 feet of the proposed new well or 
alteration of an existing well. 

(b) An application for new well construction or alteration of existing wells with nearby wells 
shall include hydrogeology and well extraction data including but not limited to 
transmissivity, storativity, and estimated height of water column in the proposed well, 
prepared under the direction or supervision of a California Certified Hydrogeologist or 
California Professional Geologist that can provide documentation at the request of the 
administrative authority demonstrating the requ isite experience in responsible charge 
of hydrogeologic assessments, as requested by the administrative authority in order for 
the administrative authority to determine whether or not the proposed new well or 



alteration of the existing well is not likely to cause subsidence and not likely to interfere 
with an existing well. 

• Sec. 34A-26- Drought Emergency. Permit procedure for 

individual domestic and public water supply wells. 

(a) An application for individual domestic and public water supply wells shall include all 
required items of Sec 34A-4, and the following intended use and location information: 

(1) Intended use of the proposed individual domestic or public water supply well: 

(2) Anticipated yield and production capacity of the well; 

(3) Well location and designated groundwater basin; 

(4) A plot plan indicating all nearby wells within 1,000 feet of the proposed individual 
domestic or public water supply well; and 

(5) Identify the structure(s) to be served by the new domestic or public water supply well. 

(b) Applications for a well to serve a multiple-parcel water system, state small water system, or 
public water system shall be completed by an authorized representative of the water system, 
and include legal easement and rights including, but not limited to, access and operation and 
maintenance of the well and site. 

• Sec. 34A-27 - Drought Emergency. Permit procedure for 

replacement wells. 

(a) An application for replacement wells shall include all required items of Sec 34A-4, and the 
following intended use and location informat ion: 

(1) Intended use of the proposed replacement well; 

(2) Anticipated yield and production capacity of the well; 

(3) Yield and production capacity of the well as originally permitted; 

(4) Well location and. designated groundwater basin; 

(5) Written verification from an applicable Groundwater Sustainability Agency for a 

medium- or high-priority basin that the replacement well would not be inconsistent 



with any sustainable groundwater management program established in a Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan; and 

(6) A plot plan indicating all nearby wells within 1,000 feet ofthe proposed replacement 
well. 

(b) Concurrently with the submittal of an application for a replacement welt the applic~:~nt 
shall submit an application for the destruction of the well to be replaced, in accordance with 
Sec 34A-4. The existing well shall be destroyed within 90 days of the completion of the 
replacement well. 

• Sec. 34A-28- Drought Emergency. Permit issuance. 

(a) For new wells or the alteration of existing wells, that do not have nearby 
wells. If the administrative authority finds the application for a requested permit for 
new wells, or the alteration of existing wells that do not have nearby wells subject to 
this urgency ordinance to contain all the requ ired information, and the proposed water 
well is found to be in compliance with all applicable standards as specified in Chapter 
34A and the Governor's Executive Order N-7-22, as may be superseded, the 
administrative authority shall issue a well permit. 

(b) For new wells or the alteration of existing wells, with nearby wells. If the administrative 
authority finds the application for a requested permit for new wells, or the alteration of 
existing wells with nearby wells subject to this urgency ordinance to contain all the 
required information, and the proposed water well is found not likely to cause 
subsidence and not likely to interfere with existing wells pursuant to the Governor's 
Executive Order N-7-22 as may be superseded, and found to be in compliance with all 
applicable standards as specified in Chapter 34A, the administrative authority shall 
issue a well permit. 

(c) For individual domestic and public water supply wells, or replacement wells. If the 
administrative authority finds the application for a requested permit for individual 
domestic and public water supply wells, or replacement wells subject to this urgency 
ordinance to contain all the required information, and the proposed water well is found 
to be in compliance with all applicable standards as specified in Chapter 34A and the 
Governor's Executive Order N-7 -22, as may be superseded, the .administrative authority 
shall issue a well permit. 

(d) The permit approval received from the administrative authority is separate from any 
other permit or clearance that may be required by another governmenta l agency or 
groundwater sustainability agency. 

• Sec. 34A-29- Drought Emergency. Severability. 



If any provision of this urgency ordinance or application thereof to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this urgency 
ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. To this end, the 
provisions of this urgency ordinance are severable. The Board of Supervisors hereby declares that 
it would have adopted this urgency ordinance irrespective of the invalid ity of any particular portion 
thereof. 

• Section 34A-30 Drought Emergency. Effective Date. 

This urgency ordinance, sections 34A-22 through 34A-30, shall take effect and be in full force 
immediately upon adoption by at least a four-fifths vote of the Board of Supervisors pursuant to 
Government Code Section 25123 and shall remain in effect and operative until the Santa Barbara 
County local drought emergency proclamation is terminated and the Governor's Executive Order 
as may be superseded has been rescinded. 



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa 
Barbara, State of California, this the 24rb day of May, 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA 

AITEST: 
MONA MIYASATO 
COUNTY EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
CLERK OF THE BOARD 

By: 
Deputy Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
RACHEL VAN MULLEM 
COUNTY COUNSEL 

By: 
Deputy County Counsel 

JOAN HARTMANN 

Cbair, Board of Supervisors 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
GREG MILLIGAN, ARM 
RISK MANAGER 

By: 
Risk Management 



CALIFORNIA MAJOR WATER SUPPLY RESERVOIRS 
CURRENT CONDITIONS 

4552 

4000 

3000 

2000 

1000 

2447.7 . 

2000 

1000 

381~ 

::: 1- 1 
36% 159% 

Sonoma 

Data From: Jun 11 1933 1.1 
100 

5: • 
43% 157% 

Cachuma 

2041 

2000 

1000 

0 

3535 
3000 

2000 

1000 . 

43% 168% 
San Luis 

2545 

100 
50 

0 

31% J 41% 
Cas1tas 

Updated 06/13/2022 12:18 PM 

0 

/ 
417 

977 

600 

300 

0 

300 --1--+-
150 

0 ---'==c:-:-

oo 
,.,., 

y 

328 
200 
100 

0 

.. -· - 0 

1- 1 
39% 145% 

Castaic 

520 

200 . 
100 

0 

2420 

2000 

Agenda Item 1 0. B. 

Midnight- June 12, 2022 

LEGEND 

+-----;-- Hist Avg 
Capacity 
(TAF) 

Historical 
Average 

% of Capacity I %of Hist Avg 

1000 



CALIFORNIA MAJOR WATER SUPPLY RESERVOIRS 
CURRENT CONDITIONS 

4552 

4000 

3000 

2000 

1000 

2441.7 

2000 

1000 

3538 I 
3000 

2000 . 

1000 

·. 

1000 

I 

977 1 
liDO 1 
300 ~ 

O J ____:~~~ 
85% 1110% 

Folsom 

300 i 2420 1 

Midnight- May 12, 2022 

LEGEND 

..,__...,_ Hist Avg 

Capacity Historical 
(TAF) 

% of Capacity I %of Hist Avg 

417 j v 

150 ·I 2000 I 

o J ~~--+-

~~~ ·~ 
15: · ,_ , 

37% 160% 
Sonoma 

1933 -~.~ 
100 . 

5~ • 

45% 158% 
Cachuma 

2041 

2000 

1000 

0 

46% 160% 
San Luis 

2545

1 l·~r 100 

s: ] .. 
32% 141% 

Casitas 

0 
0 

0 

0 

... 

Iill r. 1 
. 50% 158% 

Castaic 

soo 1___... _______ +-11 

500 i 
I 

20: 1 ___;,=='--

68% 190% 
Diamond Valley 

Updated 05/13/2022 12:18 PM 

0 
0 

52% 1 78% 1ooo 
Camanche 

0 

1025 ·.-D-
o i ,. 

42% 168% 
McClure 



CALIFORNIA MAJOR WATER SUPPLY RESERVOIRS 
CURRENT CONDITIONS 

4552 

4000 

3000 

2000 

_.... __ .....__ 

1000 ] 

0 --·---
SHA 38o/~ 47% 

2447.7 

2000 

1000 

CLE 

.· 

lSl ·~ 301) . 

15~ · ... 

C) -·~·--
WRS 38%160% 

..... .. 

·:~ l~ "'"I -·· 
ccH

0 

46%160% •;: !;;! 
CSI 32%142% 

I 

··' 

0 
oo / 

417 j 
300 ~--i--+-
150 ·I 

G: 
,CMN 54%185% 

0 
0 

........ . .... 

I 
325 ·1 1· 1 200 I tog } 

__,..;;~~~ 

CAS 56%166% 

soo ·i 

2420 i 
2000 l 

1000 

Mldnight-Apr1112, 2022 

LEGEND 

_,___-!- Hist Avg 

Historical 
Average 

% of Capacity I %of Hist Avg 

::1 
1100 1 

J 
DNP SJ%I 83o/; 

.. '\ . 

t 
1025 ~-F.i-

o l~=-
EXC 35%164% 

I 
l--+--+--

50!1 1 

... 
520 1--+==+-
200 .1 

1000 I 
soo !........_ _ ___.__ 

Updated 04/13/2022 10:48 AM 

200 -! 
! 

0 J ----"=='---
DMV 69%192% 

10~ j oJ _ __ _ 
MIL 66%193% PNF 43%178% 



CALIFORNIA MAJOR WATER SUPPLY RESERVOIRS 
CURRENT CONDITIONS 

4552 ~ 
4000 

353!1 
3000 3000 

2000 2000 i 

""l 1000 

0 . - 0 

! 

i 
917 

500 

SHA ORO 
., 

·~ . ' 24'17.) . . , ..... 

200:0 '· -··, 
'';, 

..... _ .......... . .. . .. 

_., ... ., .. . 
.•· .. 

. ~·~ 2041 

2000 .... ... 

300. 100.0 
-....... ... . 

....... 

Mldnlght-llan:h 7, 2022 

LEGEND ~ . ...,,.-.....1 

----His·! Avg 
Historical 
.P.varag(;! l 

2930'1 

201)1) {·--!----+-· 
I' 

' 11011- 1 
I 
r 

0 j --:::::;::::;;::;~
DNP 

.• _,~~~ . ............ .......... _ . .• • , r··J 

- -3&1· ~ ·--. ..... 
150 

0 

WRS 39o/~ 62% 

.......... ·· 

1933 j~,~-
JOO 

50 ] 

'0 --== = --
CCH 47%164% 

0. 

SNL 

.. . . 1 · .. · " . 

..... 

5451-r··r 1oo 1 
50; 

0 J ---===-'---
CSI 33%\43% 

soo 

500 

200 

0 
DMV 

Updated 03/08/2022 10:18 AM 

.. ....... 
Q ... ' -~ 0 

. , .... -······ . ~ 
- · _. ,.f ••••• ... ~ 

\ 

\ 
f 

' •. 
~· . 

iliJiiil 
CAS 59%172% 

_,.I' 
,. 1~ 

" .. 

l 
; 

' 

.. • 

·~· 

~ 
l .. 

520 i 

I 
200 ~ 
100 ~ 

0 1 
MIL 

. . ... .... 1 ,!.,, 

f, ' ~--
1025.'t f.J-

J---=-=:__ 
EXC 29~ 57% 

... , 
' 

\ 

1 
·~ 

,, 1000 

500 

0 

53%181% PNF 33%\ 68% 



CALIFORt'-:JIA MAJOR WATER SUPPLY RESERVOIRS 
CURRENT CONDITIONS 

45'5'2{ 

4000 

3,000 ' 

2000. 

1000 

0 
SHA 3 

2"'17.7 

2000 

10~0 

·' ~ 
: 

.; 0 
CLE 

3.&111 -iii--· 3.M · - . 
1S'B 

w~s -4do/~6lo/.J-

19;;"3 l' 
100 
50 

0 _.;:::;::=-,_ 
CCH 48°hj 68% 

353& 
3000 

1000 

0 

ORO 

800 l 
500 ~ 
200 ·I 

1 

i 

' 
1 

i 
J 
·' ' i 

) 
i ,. 

.. 0 

! 

• i 

32S !.......Y--+ .. ·· 
200 I 
100 -1 

o. .l 
CAS 

0 

520 

... '~. ~··· 

t.ilctnignt • FtbMry 15, 2022 

I L~~~~ 
-{o--"""l- \:lir;t A~·g 1 

Capacity 
(TAF) 

· %of CspecHy I %ceHi'.;ti.\Y.J . 

.... .i ... . 

10.25' 

0 

EXC 

1000 1 ~--

50.0. I· 
0 ~ --,==~-

0MV 74 

200 
100 

0 MIL -·""~''"'"'·..,..-,:>-:::-:--
IP_ ==--

PNF 31 %! '7!'.l% 

Updated 0211612022 02:48PM 



' f. 
i 

SELECTED WATER SUPPLY RESERVOIRS 

Trinity Lake 

2i~! :_Q __ 
·Lake Shasta 

4552 1' .. ' 400(t 

30.0.0 --···+---+-·-
2000 

fOliO · t.l 
6 __ ...,..._....,.._ 

1QOO 1 
'\ 0 '____.:;;;;:=--

-300lo l 49% 33%154% 

'· 
' ·. 

New Melones Lake 
2<14~ ,..._,__ 
2001l 

10.00 

~ 

40%171% 

San Lui's Reservoir . • · 

::: j-;-:1-
~ 0,0:\-~,~-'l,....,.. .... 

3~% 1 52% 

~·· 
Millerton Lake 

520 ~ 1 -. 1-- -o J: __ .. 

90% 1 109% 

,·· 

Lake Oroville 

3S3.Ui J ~ 30>)0 { 

20>)0 ·!- -
10~0 '! 

- ~ 1. __ --.--. 

43%178% 

.; ' .. 
Folsom Lake 

!117 1 

··' f ~ 

ol , .J 

57%1 iSS% 

.:' 

Castaic Lake 

Lake Perris 
I 
i ms!- --

o ~-'---·-· 51% I 65% 
8'i%1 i'l-5% 

Updated 01/12/2022 04:18PM 

.. 
'· 

LEGEI!'D 
R~d Lin&: Historic !tiel for date 

• .. ·,i.~ ~::-•· Total Reli!Voir Capacity 

. l.Jlu~t l3!It: Storage wet for date 

%·a( C~:;pacit)' I 'k ol Hisioric!'l\ 

Aval1!JlS 

Don Pedro Reservlir 

55% 1 J'~% 

Lal<e McClure 

tns{ -
o.i - r 

2~fu l 56'% 

Pine Rat Resarvoir 

1000 1 
l 

o .l -~.-
28%· I 78o/o 



Paeter Garcia 

From: lyris@swrcb18.waterboards.ca.gov 
Tuesday, June 14, 2022 6:50PM 
Paeter Garcia 

Sent: 
To: 
Subject: IN EFFECT: Second Water Conservation Emergency Regulation of 2022 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize 
the sender and know the content is safe. 

This is a message from the State Wa.ter Resources Control Board. 

The second State Water Board water conservation emergency regulation of 2022 is now in effect. (See the press 

release.) 

lhe State Water Board adopted this regulation on May 24th and t he Office of Administrative l aw approved it on June 10. 

The emergency regulation will remain in effect for one year, unless the State Water Board modifies it, readopts it, or 

ends it before t hen. 

The second water conservation emergency regulation of 2022 requires that: 

• Urban water suppliers immediately submit preliminary supply and demand assessments to the Department of 

Water Resources; 

• Urban water suppliers implement all conservation actions in their locally adopted plans meant to address at 

least a water shortage level of 10 to 20 percent (l evel2) by June 10, 2022; and 

• owners and managers of commercial, industrial, and institutional properties immediately cease using potable 

water for irrigating non-functional turt except for in circumstances identified in the regulation. 

The requirements of the first emergency regulation adopted in January 2022 are also still in effect. 

For more information on both emergency regulations, please see their respective Frequently Asked Questions 

documents on t he Water Conservation Emergency Regulations webpage at https:Ubit.ly/conservationreg. 

If after referring to the information on the webpage you have further questions about the emergency regulations, 

please contact both Chris Hyun (christopher.hyun@waterboards.ca.gov) and Paola Gonzalez 

(paola.gonzalez@waterboards.ca.gov). 

You are currently subscribed to water_conservation_regs as: pgarcia@syrwd.org. 

To unsubscribe click here: leave-9239681-5497854.5a9b9f4fb76366f41fdf4d362816abe8@swrcb18.waterboards.ca.gov 

1 



New statewide emergency water 
conservation regulation now in effect 

June 14, 2022 Contact: Edward Ortiz, Public Information Officer 

SACRAMENTO - A new statewide emergency water conservation regulation that bans 
using potable (drinkable) water on decorative or non-functional grass at commercial, 
industrial, and institutional properties went into effect Friday. It also requires urban water 
suppliers to implement all demand-reduction actions under Level 2 of their Water 
Shortage Contingency Plans. 

The State Water Board adopted the regulation at its May 24 board meeting, and the 
Office of Administrative Law gave it final approval on June 10. The new restrictions are 
in response to Governor Newsom's March 28 Executive Order calling for water 
conservation directives to address California's new normal of climate extremes. 

The regulation's ban on watering non-functional turf (turf is defined as mowed grass) at 
commercial, industrial and institutional properties includes areas like the grass in front of 
or next to large commercial buildings and common areas managed by homeowners' 
associations. The ban does not include watering grass used for human recreation or 
other community activities, watering residential grass or watering trees. The ban also 
does not prohibit the use of recycled water for irrigating non-functional turf. 

"With increased aridification as our new reality, there is an urgency to all of us 
understanding and acting to ensure that water conservation is a California way of life. 
These regulations are part of our shared responsibility to address non-essential outdoor 
water use as our communities experience record-breaking drought and plan for dry 
conditions into next year," said Joaquin Esquivel, chair of the State Water Board. 

There also are new options for addressing water waste. In addition to the State Water 
Board, agencies that are already authorized to enforce infractions, like water suppliers 
and local government, are empowered to address violations of this regulation. A 
violation of the non-functional turf irrigation provision, for example, would be an 
infraction and subject to a fine of up to $500. This is the second State Water Board 
water conservation emergency regulation of 2022; the prohibitions of the first 
emergency regulation, adopted in January, also are infractions and are still in effect. 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCV 

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 
1001 I Street, Sacramento, CA 95814 • Mallfng Addre5e: P.O. Box 100, Sacramento, CA 95812.0100 • www.watart>oarda.ca.goll 



. Media Release 
W:~ter Boards · 

The regulation also requires urban water suppliers to implement all demand-reduction 
actions under Level 2 of their Water Shortage Contingency Plans, which are actions 
meant to address a 10% to 20% water shortage. In addition, urban water suppliers are 
required to fast-track their submissions of supply and demand assessments to plan for 
potential extended dry conditions. 

"Level 2" actions vary for each water supplier, but they often include things such as: 

• Increasing communication about the importance of water conservation 
• Limiting outdoor irrigation to certain days or hours 
• Increasing patrolling to identify water waste 
• Enforcing water-use prohibitions 

Some water suppliers already have imposed strong new restrictions on customers' 
water use in accordance with their drought management plans; property managers 
should check with their local suppliers for details. However, about half of the state's 436 
water suppliers have not yet activated Level 2, and 36 have not submitted drought 
plans. 

The emergency regulation requires suppliers without drought plans to take certain 
conservation actions, such as conducting outreach to customers about conservation, 
restricting outdoor irrigation to two days a week and enforcing against wasteful water 
practices. 

Water suppliers are expected to communicate the requirements of the emergency 
regulation to their customers. The State Water Board encourages agencies to provide 
additional assistance to disadvantaged communities and translate conservation 
announcements and materials into the languages spoken in their service areas. People 
who see water waste should report it at savewater.ca.gov or to their local water 
supplier, city or county. Frequently Asked Questions and more information on the State 
Water Board's water conservation emergency regulations can be found at 
https://bit.ly/conservationreg. 

The State Water Board's mission is to preserve, enhance and restore the quality of 
California's water resources and drinking water for the protection of the environment, 
public health, and all beneficial uses, and to ensure proper allocation and efficient use 
for present and future generations. 



State of California 
Office of Administrative Law 

In re: 
State Water Resources Control Board 

Regulatory Action : 

Title 23, California Code of Regulations 

Adopt sections: 996 
Amend sections: 
Repeal sections: 

NOTICE OF APPROVAL OF EMERGENCY 
REGULA TORY ACTION 

Government Code Sec~ions 11346.1 and 
11349.6 

OAL Matter Number: 2022-0606·03 

OAL Matter Type: Emergency (E) 

This emergency action by the State Water Resources Control. Board adopts a new 
regu.lation which requires urban water suppliers to submit pr~liminary supply and 
derl)and assessments to the Department of Water Resources and to implement Level 2 
demand reduction actions (actions intended to result in a 10 to 20 percent savings). 
The regulation bans. the irrigation of non-functiona.l turf with potable water in 
commercial, industrial, and institutionql_ sectors and e~t~.blishes ~hat such irrigation is an 
infraction punishabl~ by a fine.of.up to.five hundred dqHar.s for each day in which. the 
viola.tion occt.Jrsp.ursuant to Wat,er Code section 1058.5(d) . . 

OAL aeproves this emergency regulatory action pursuant to sections 11346.1 and 
'{1349-.6 qHfie Government Cod'e:-P·ursu·ant to Waier Coci~ sedi~n 1058.5_(b)·, the 
Finding of Emergency in this ma.tter was exempt from Office of Administr.ative Law 
Review. · · · 

This emergency regulatory action is effective on 6/10/2022 and, pursuant to Water 
Code section 1 058.5(c), will expire on 6/10/2023. The Certificate of Compliance for this 
action is due no later than 6/9/2023. 

Date: June 10, 2022 

Original; Eileen Sobeck, Executive 
Director 
Copy: Garrett Lenahan 

Dale Mentink 
Assistant Chief Counsel 

For: Kenneth J . Pogue 
Director 



•. .. ·:-: ~ . . & • 

~ :""•!• 
l•i .... 
STATE OF CAI.IFORIM-OfFICE OF ADNIINISTAAIJii!'.!,_Y/.; 

NOTICE PU»LICA. 

NO'TlCE 

AGENCYWint 

State Water nc::.uiJI \,;l:::::. . •~u• Board 

..... ·.- .... 

v 
OFFICE OF ADMIN. LAW 

2022 ~U~ 6 PM3: ~8 

REGULATIONS 

. . 
A. PUBLICATION OF-NOTICE (Complete for publication in Notice Regist~r) 

For use by Secretary of State only 

END,O~$ED- f.ILED 
In U!t o!fice of the s~ r~sr. 

dille Stat8 ofCar.oflliTlia · ... . . · .. 

/JUN t'lll ·2022 

any) 

1a. SUBJECTOF.~EGUL.ATION(S) .: ' , · , 

Wate~.o.~Q:i~r)d .. ,Reduction Eme_rge~cy Regulati_on 
1b. AU. PRI;VIOUS RElATE~ !)AI. REGULATORY A0]0N NlJMBER(S) 

2. SPEP.Ifl' CP.J.IF.ORNIA.CODE OF REGU~TIQ.~S TniE(S)AND S,ECTION(S) (Including dUo 26,1floxlca rolatecU 

~ecrto~(s) .. ~F.Fecre_Q- ·. ADt;>P:r · 

(List ~ll .se~~p.n _11umb~r(s) 996 
.. :IO~~d~·~~~ ::· ~~D_ ~E~~~- ~, ----~, -- --~~~--.-... - -==---.--- .. ,-.. ---.---.--.. ---. -. -----.-. ----.~--.-.----.-.-.. -.:~~

_:·::.aMJJti.o.na(;s.b.eet:ifne~~: _, · · -·-- · =:=:::::..:.:.::.::.::.::::::::,.:-:.:.·-·.-~-- •4- --· · -----·-··- · · · ·--- - .. - ··- - - · 

TITLE($) 
23 : · 

, ........ -,__; ..._ -~ 

3. ·TYPE OF FILING . . . : · 

D Regular Rulemaklng (~ov. 
Colle. §H34~) · 

0 Resubmitta"r or dJ.sapproved 
or wjthdrawn nonemergency 
filing (Gov. Code §§11349.3, 
1134\1.4) .. 

REPEAL 

DCertiticate of Compnance: The agency officer named 
: . ,below certifies that this agency complied with the 

provisions of Gov. Code §§11346.2-11347.3 eilher 
before the emergency regulaUon was adopted or 
within the Ume f)e.riOd requjred by statute. 

D Eme.rgency Readopt 
(Gov, Code, §11346.1(h)) 

0Fne&Prlnt 

D Changes IM!hout 
Regulatory Effect (Cal. 
Code Regs., title 1, §100) 

·oPnntonly 

(gJ Eme.rQency (Gov. Code. 
§11346.1(b}) D Resubmittal or disapproved or withdrawn 

emergency filing (Gov. Code, §11346.1) .. 
[gJ other (Specify) Water Code Section 1 058.5 

4. AU. BEGINNINr;; AND ENDING OATES OF AVAILABILITY OF MODIFIED REGULATIONS AND/OR M,b.TERIAL ADDED TO THE RULEMAKING FILE (Cal. Code ~egs. title 1, ~4 and Gov. Code §11347.1) 

5. EFFECTIVE DATE. OF CHANGES (Gov. Code,§§ 11343.4, 11345.1(d); Cal. Code Regs., lhle 1, §100) 

DEffective JQnuary 1, Apri11, July 1, or £X1 Effective on filing with . 0§100 Ch~nges Without DEffectlve other 
October 1 (Gov. Code §11343.4(a)) ~Secretary of State Regulatory Effect (Specify) 

5. CHECK IF TH~.~!= ~_EGULATIONS R!;QUIRE NOTICE_lO, OR RG'/IEW, CQNSU~T'!TION, APP.~Oy,6J. OR CONC).JRRENC.E.BY. ANOnt~R Al>t;NCY OR ENllTY . 

0 Oepartmt)(l_t~j Finance (Form STD. 399) (SAM §.6660) · · ·· D Fair P~litical Practices Commlsslon ' 0 State Fire Marshal 

0 Othe.r (Specffy) 

1. CONTACTPERSON 
Garrett Lenahan I TELEPHONE NUMBER 

{916) 341-5179 
I FAX NUMBER (Opllonsl) I E-MAIL ADDRESS (Optional) 

s. I certify tha~ .the attached copy of the regulation(s) is a true and cqrr~ct copy 
of the regulalion(s) identified on this form, that the information specifie·d on this form 
is true and correct, and that I am the head of the agency taking this action, 
or a designee of the head of the agency, and am authorized to make this certification. 

SIGNATURE OF AGENCY HEAD OR !>ESIGNEE . 

Eric Oppenheimer ~~"::=."r!'~ 
TYPED ~E AND TITLE OF SIGNATORY 

I DATE 

16/6/2022 

Eric Oppenheimer, Chief Deputy Director, State Water Resources Control Board 

For use by Office pf ~~!"'linistratiy.e Law (CAL) only .. ·, ' 

AlllHOAJZEO·FOR FlUNG AND PRINTING 

JUN lo 2022 

Office of Administrative La~ 



.. .... ' . . . ' ~ .. 

:ADOPTED EMERGENCY REGULATION TEXT . . ~ . . . . . . . 

Titl~ 23. Waters 
OivJ.sJpn 3 .. S~~te Water Re_spurces Control Bo.ard. and Regional Water Ql!ali_ty 

. Control Boards - · · ... · · 
Chapter 3.S .. U_rhan Water Use Efficiency and Conservation 
Arti.cle 2: P~~vention of Dro~ught Wa~teful Water ~ses 

§ 996. Urban Drought Response Actions 
.; . ·. '. ' ' 

{a} As used in this section: . ·. ' . 

{1) "Commercial, industrial and institutional" refers to commercial water users, industrial 
water ·users. a·nd .institutional ,water users as respectively defined in Water Code. section 
10608:12; subaivisions (e). m. and m. and .induae's homeowners' associations, common 
·intere'sf aevelopm'Eints.· community se}vlce organizations. and other siml'lar entities but 
does nof include the residences of these entities' members or separate in-terests. . . :. . .... . ., . . . ~~.. . ·.. . · ... :: -:·:--· . . . '•. ~ . . : . ~. '•... : ' ; . 

{2) · .. common interest development".has the same'ineaninq as in section 4100 of the 
Civii CGde. ·· · .- · ·- · · · ·. · · ·· · ' · · , · · 

{3) "Community service organization or similar entity" has the same meaning as in 
s·ection 41fd' ofthe Civil Code. · · · ,. · · · ·. =· 

(4) "Home~wners; association" means an "association!) as defined in section 4080 of the 
Civil Code . 

• ·:·:. ::·! . 

{5) "Non-functional turf' means turf that is solely ornamental and not regularly used for 
human recreational pun?as·es or for Civic or comrrn.inity events. Non-functional turf does 
not include sports fie'lds' and turf that is regularly used for human rec-re-ational purposes 
or .f?r ~ivic: ~.t' ~C>~m.unl~y _e~_~nts. · · · · · · 

{6) "Plant factor" has the same meaning as in section 491. 
' . ' . ~ . ' ·. . ' . 

(7) "Separate interest" has the same meaning as in section 4185 of the Civil Code . . . '··.. . . ' . . . . ·•· . .;• .. · . . .. .. :. 

(8) "Turf' has the same meaning as in section 491 . 
• ! • •• ·.-:. :.~ • :._:: •• ' : · ·:: .... • ' • ~. t •• • • • • ... • •: ' 

(9) "Urban water supplier" has the same meaning as Water Code section 10617. 

{10) "Water shortage contingency plan" means the plan required by Water Code section 
10632. . . . . . . ' . . . . . . 

{b) Each urban water supplier shall submit to the Department of Water Resources a 
preliminary annual water supply and demand assessment consistent with section 10632.1 



"' .. 

of the Water Code no later than June 1. 2022 or the effective date of this section, whichever 
comes later, and s·ubmft·a final annual water supply and demand assessment to the 
Department of Water Resources no later· than the deadline set by section 10632.1 of the 
Water c6'de~ ... · · · · · ·. · · · .. · · .. · > · · · · · · ·.· 

{c) (1) Each urban wat~r supplier that has submitted a water shortage contingency plan to 
the-Department of Water Resources shall impiemerit By June .10, 2022. at a ni'iriimum. 
all demand reduction ·~actions identified in the supplier's water shortage coriiingency'btan 
adogted under Water:Code 10632 for a shortage 'ievel of ten {1 0) to.,.tWenty (26) percent 
(Level2). .· · . ::····.·. ···· · . - · ·, · . . · · .- · · '·· · · ·· .. · .. : · ' 

. -:··· 
. '•, 

{2) Notwithstanding subdivision (c)(1), urban water suppliers shall not be required to 
implement new residential connection moratoria pursuant to this section. . . ; : . ... _ .. . ~ .... . ,., . . .. - _., . . ···-·-:· " ., . · .. · .. ~ .. . -'"•.:. ~ -- . · ·.; : . ·:·· ·. ,-' . 

(3) Notwithstanding subdivision {c)(1 ). an urban water supplier may implement the 
aCtions .identified in subdivision (d) lrdieu of implementinCdhe deinaiid reduction actions 
identifiea in -the· supblier's"'wa·ter shi1rta.gecontingenc\(piar1· adopted linder\iViiter· Code 
section '10632 for a shortage 'Jevei of:teri (10) to.twenty {20) percent {level2); provided 
the suppii'er meets'"all of the foilowing: . · .... ; .. ·. . . ... ~ ' ::·: ··. 

(i) T~:~s~p~H~·r;: ·-a~~n~·~·~ · ~~~~r ·~~p~ly anddem~nd asses~ment submftt~d to ~he 
Department of Water:Hesources demonstrates an ability to maintain'reliable supply 
u·ntilseotember '3o, ·2o23: ··.- .. _. '::·,:,··-._ .. , .. -,. ... · · .. : .. ; , ....... ,,·: ·· ·,i·.; .. -. ·· 

··_yi·;)~·j~~;~·~·6~li:>d:6;~~ ~~6i. ~eiv on·. t~ran.y p~rt bt its. s.uppiy, the.'toio;~do·~;v~r, state 
Wated>io(eCi( or··ceiitra·t V~i'liey .. Proh~d. and no more. than ten {16) percent of its 
st:ip'ply comes,, from ~iitlcaily ove'rdrafted grotindwatel: basins as de'signated ·'by the 

........................ ~(j~~~pffi~ri~~~r~~t~r·:~~~~~-ot~~~~ : ··i·:·.·~·~-~~~~~-~:-:-·--~ -·~~- ~--~.---.- -·~:-~-··· ~~~~-·: · --·--
.o'm The ·s~pplier~s .av.erage.number.of gall~ns of water used per person per day by . 
-~reslderitlaFdisfo-meiilor~the 'yea·r,202(fis ihelow: 55 .. ga.llons. as reported ·to· the Board 
in the Electronic Annual Report. · :. · · · · 

.~ ··.;~ ·:_ ... -. ..... ·:. ·:-·..:=~:::: ~ '.t, . ' ... + ' <!·, ···· ·.. + • • • •• • : \ ' •• 

(d) Each urban water supplier that has not submitted a water shortage contingency plan tb 
the Dei:iartni'enf of Water Resot:irces shall, ··by June .. 1 0, 2022, and coritinuinci un~l th~ 
su.pplieThas .. lrrii:ftemen"te·a ·alf'd'~mana reauctic:i'rl adions 'l'der1tlfied ln'·th~"s'tiooliei"'s .. water 
shortage .contingenev pta·n adopted ·i.mder~Water c·od.e ·~ 6632 for a shortag·e level O'f ten C1 Ol 
to twenty C20> percent (Level 2), implement at a minimum the following actions: . · · 

{1)· 1~.i~·;~te ~ .. p~~li~· :~~f~r~~~:i.ont a-~~ -~~~r~-~~h·c~~~ai~~··;~~ ~ater-~o~~e·~~~-ion . ~nd 
promptly and effe'ctive'ly 're~ich the supplier's customers .. using efforts such as email, 
pape-r ~mail. bill ins.ertsi :co.sto.me'r··aoo noiffic'~tlo.ris. ·,neWs' articles. ·websites. community 
events. radio and television. billboards, and social media. 

' :; ' ' . --
. 

(2} Implement and enforce a rule or ordinance limiting landscape irrigation with potable 
water to no rr.iore thi:m two (il daYs per we'ek "and prohibiting ·landscape irrigation with 
potable water betw~en the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00p.m. 



,., . . . 

{3) Implement and enforce a rule or ordinance banning. at a minimum. the water uses 
prohibited by section 995. Adoption of a rule or ordinance is not required if the supplier 
has authority to enforce, as infractions, the prohibitions in section 995 and takes . 
enforcement against violations: . · · · · · · · ··: ·: · . . . ~ 

(e) {1) To prevent the unreasonable use of water and to promote water conservation. the 
use. of potable water is Prohibited for the irrigation of non-functional turf at commercial, 
industrial) and in-stitutional sites. ; . . .. .. . . 

{2) Notwithstanding\~-ubdivi~ion {e)(1 ). the use of water is not prohibited by this section 
to the extent necessary to ensure the health of trees and other perennial rion-tuif . 
plantings or''to 'the extent necessary lo address an immediate health arid safety need . 

•• ' • • • • - • • • • • • - · . • • t •• ' : •• •• • '. •• •• • • ' 

. \ 

{3) Notwithstanding subdivision (e)(1 ), an urban water suppiier may approve a request 
for continued irrigation of non-functional turf where the user certifies that the turf is a low 
water use plant with a plant factor of 0.3 or less, and demonstrates the actual use is less 
than 40% of reference evapotranspiration. . . . . .· . . . . . n 

(f) The taking of a~y action prohibited in subdivision (e) is an infraction punish-able by a fine 
of up to 'five·hundred dollars {$500) for each day in which the violation occurs. The fine for 
the infraction· is in addition to. and does not supe-rsede or limit. any other remedies. civil ·or 
crimirial. · ·. · ·: · ~ , · · ·· · - · 

... : ·, '/ .. 

(g) A decision or order issued under this section by the Board. or an officer or employee of 
'the .saara. Is subject to reconsideration t.i'nder article 2 <commenCing-with section .1122) of 
ch~pter 4 of part 1 of division~ of the· wa·ter Code: · .. ·. 

Authority: Section 1058.5, Water Code. 
~. .. : . . . .._. . .. : . ·... ' . : ' 

References: Article X. Section 2 . California Constitution: Sections 4080, 4100. 4110, and 
4185, Civil Code; Section 8627.7; Government Code; Sections 102, 104. 105, 275, 350. 
377. 491. 1058.5. 1122, 106'08.12. 10617. 10632, and 10632.1 . Water Code; Light v. State 
Water Resources Control Board (2014) 226 Cai.App.4th 1463; Stanford Vina Ranch 
Irrigation Co. v. State of California (2020) 50 Cai.App.5th 976 . ·. , .. : 



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022·0002 

TO ADOPT AN EMERGENCY REGULATION 
TO SUPPLEMENT VOLUNTARY WATER CONSERVATION 

WHEREAS: 

1. On April 21, May 10, and July 8, 2021, Governor Newsom issued 
proclamations that a state of emergency exists in a total of 50 counties due 
to severe drought conditions and directed state agencies to take 
immediate action to preserve critical water supplies and mitigate the 
effects of drought and ensure the protection of health, safety, and the 
environment. 

2. On October 19, 2021, Governor Newsom signed a proclamation extending 
the drought emergency statewide and further urging Californians to reduce 
their water use. 

3. There is no guarantee that winter precipitation will alleviate the current 
drought conditions. 

4. Many Californians have taken bold steps over the years to reduce water 
use; nevertheless, the severity of the current drought and uncertainty 
about Water Year 2022 require additional conservation actions from 
residents and businesses. 

5. Water conservation is the easiest, most efficient, and most cost-effective 
way to quickly reduce water demand and extend supplies into the next 
year, providing flexibility for all California communities. Water saved is 
water available next year, giving water suppliers-the flexibility to manage 
their systems efficiently. The more water that is conserved now, the less 
likely it is that a community will experience such dire circumstances or tha1 
water rationing will be required . 

6. Most Californians use more water outdoors than indoors. In many areas, 
50 percent or more of daily water use is for lawns and outdoor 
landscaping. Outdoor water use is generally discretionary, and many 
irrigated landscapes would not suffer greatly from receiving a decreased 
amount of water. 



7. Public information and awareness are critical to achieving conservation 
goals, and the Save Our Water campaign (SaveOurWater.com), run jointly 
by the Department of Water Resources (DWR) and the Association of 
California Water Agencies, is an excellent resource for conservation 
information and messaging that is integral to effective drought response. 

8. SaveWater.CA.Gov is an online tool designed to help save water in 
communities. This website lets anyone easily report water waste from their 
phone, tablet, or computer by simply selecting the type of water waste they 
see, typing in the address where the waste is occurring, and clicking send. 
These reports are filed directly with the State Water Resources Control 
Board (State Water Board or Board) and relevant local water supplier. 

9. Enforcement against water waste is a key tool in conservation programs. 
When conservation becomes a social norm in a community, the need for 
enforcement is reduced or eliminated. 

10. On October 19, 2021 , the Governor suspended the environmental review 
required by the California Environmental Quality Act to allow State Water 
Board-adopted drought conservation emergency regulations and other 
actions to take place quickly to respond to emergency conditions. 

11. Water Code section 1058.5 grants the State Water Board the authority to 
adopt emergency regulations in certain drought years in order to: "prevent 
the waste, unreasonable use, unreasonable method of use, or 
unreasonable method of diversion, of water, to promote water recycling or 
water conservation, to require curtailment of diversions when water is not 
available under the diverter's priority of right, or in furtherance of any of the 
foregoing, to require reporting of diversion or use or the preparation of 
monitoring reports." 

12. On November 30, 2021, the State Water Board issued public notice that 
the State Water Board would consider the adoption of the regulation at the 
Board's regularly scheduled January 4, 2022 public meeting, in 
accordance with applicable State laws and regulations. The State Water 
Board also distributed for public review and comment a Finding of 
Emergency that complies with State laws and regulations. 

13. The emergency regulation sets a minimum standard that many 
communities are already doing more but not everyone is taking these low
cost, easy to implement actions that can save significant amounts of water 
during a drought emergency. 

2 



14. Disadvantaged communities may require assistance in increasing water 
conservation, and state and local agencies should look for opportunities to 
provide assistance in promoting water conservation, including but not 
limited to translation of regulation text and dissemination of water 
conservation announcements into languages spoken by at least 1 0 percent 
of the people who reside in a water supplier's service area, such as in 
newspaper advertisements, bill inserts, website homepage, social media, 
and notices in public libraries. 

15. The Board directs staff to consider the following in pursuing any 
enforcement of section 995, subdivision (b)(1 )(A)-(F): before imposing 
monetary penalties, staff shall provide one or more warnings; monetary 
penalties must be based on an ability to pay determination, consider 
allowing a payment plan of at least 12 months, and shall not result in a tax 
lien; and Board enforcement shall not result in shutoff. 

16. The Board encourages entities other than Board staff that consider any 
enforcement of this regulation to apply these same factors identified in 
resolved paragraph 15. Nothing in the regulation or in the enforcement 
provisions of the regulation precludes a local agency from exercising its 
authority to adopt more stringent conservation measures. Moreover, the 
Water Code does not impose a mandatory penalty for violations of the 
regulation adopted by this resolution, and local agencies retain their 
enforcement discretion in enforcing the regulation, to the extent authorized, 
and may develop their own progressive enforcement practices to 
encourage conservation. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The State Water Board adopts California Code of Regulations, title 23, 
section 995, as appended to this resolution as an emergency regulation. 

2. State Water Board staff will submit the regulation to the Office of 
Administrative Law (OAL) for final approval. 

3. If, during the approval process, State Water Board staff, the State Water 
Board, or OAL determines that minor corrections to the language of the 
regulation or supporting documentation are needed for clarity or 
consistency, the State Water Board Executive Director or designee may 
make such changes. 

3 



4. This regulation shall remain in effect for one year after filing with the 
Secretary of State unless the State Water Board determines that it is no 
longer necessary due to changed conditions or unless the State Water 
Board renews the regulation due to continued drought conditions, as 
described in Water Code section 1058.5. 

5. The State Water Board directs State Water Board staff to work with the 
Department of Water Resources and the Save Our Water campaign to 
disseminate information regarding the emergency regulations. 

6. Nothing in the regulation or in the enforcement provisions of the regulation 
precludes a local agency from exercising its authority to adopt more 
stringent conservation measures. Local agencies are encouraged to 
develop their own progressive enforcement practices to promote 
conservation. 

CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned Clerk to the Board does hereby certify that the foregoing is a 
full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and regularly adopted at a meeting 
of the State Water Resources Control Board held on January 4, 2022. 

AYE: Vice Chair Dorene D'Adamo 
Board Member Sean Maguire 
Board Member Laurel Firestone 
Board Member Nichole Morgan 

NAY: None 
ABSENT: Chair E. Joaquin Esquivel 
ABSTAIN: None 

4 

Jean(!)~ Town send 
Clerk to the Board 



ADOPTED TEXT OF EMERGENCY REGULATION 

Title 23. Waters 
Division 3. State Water Resources Control Board and Regional Water Quality 
Control Boards 
Chapter 3.5. Urban Water Use Efficiency and Conservation 
Article 2. Prevention of Drought Wasteful Water Uses 

§ 995. Wasteful and Unreasonable Water Uses. 

(a) As used in this section: 
(1) 'Turf' has the same meaning as in section 491. 
(2) "Incidental runoff' means unintended amounts (volume) of runoff, such as 
unintended, minimal overspray from sprinklers that escapes the area of intended use. 
Water leaving an intended use area is not considered incidental if it is part of the facility 
or system design, if it is due to excessive application. if it is due to intentional overflow 
or application, or if it is due to negligence. 

(b)(1) To prevent the unreasonable use of water and to promote water conservation, the 
use of water is prohibited as identified in this subdivision for the following actions: 

{A) The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes in a manner that 
causes more than incidental runoff such that water flows onto adjacent property, 
non-irrigated areas, private and public walkways, roadways, parking lots, or 
structures; 
{B) The use of a hose that dispenses water to wash a motor vehicle, except 
where the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle or deVice attached to it that causes 
it to cease dispensing water immediately when not in use; 
(C) The use of potable water for washing sidewalks, driveways, buildings, 
structures, patios, parking Jots, or other hard surfaced areas, except in cases 
where health and safety are at risk; 
(D) The use of potable water for street cleaning or construction site preparation 
purposes, unless no other method can be used or as needed to protect the 
health and safety of the public; 
(E) The use of potable water for decorative fountains or the filling or topping-off of. 
decorative Jakes or ponds. with exceptions for those decorative fountains. lakes, 
or ponds that use pumps to recirculate water and only require refilling to replace 
evaporative losses; 
(F) The application of water to irrigate turf and ornamental landscapes during and 
within 48 hours after measurable rainfall of at least one fourth of one inch of rain. 
In determining Whether measurable rainfaJI of at least fourth of one inch of rain 
occurred in a given area. enforcement may be based on records of the National 
Weather Service, the closest CIMIS station to the parcel, or any other reliable 
source of rainfall data available to the entity undertaking enforcement of this 
subdivision; and 
(G) The use of potable water for irrigation of ornamental turf on public street 
medians. 

5 



{2) Notwithstanding subdivision (b)(1 ), the use of water is not prohibited by this section 
to the extent necessary to address an immediate health and safety need. This may 
include. but is not limited to, the use of potable water in a fountain or water feature when 
required to be potable because human contact is expected to occur. 

{c)(1) To prevent the unreasonable use of water and to promote water conservation. 
any homeowners' association or community service organization or similar entity is 
prohibited from: 

{A) Taking or threatening to take any action to enforce any provision of the 
governing documents or architectural or landscaping guidelines or policies of a 
common interest development where that provision is void or unenforceable 
under section 4735, subdivisions {a) and {b) of the Civil Code; 
(B) Imposing or threatening to impose a fine , assessment. or other monetary 
penalty against any owner of a separate interest for reducing or eliminating the 
watering of vegetation or lawns during a declared drought emergency, as 
described in section 4735, subdivision (c) of the Civil Code; or 
{C) Reguiring an owner of a separate interest upon which water-efficient 
landscaping measures have been installed in response to a declared drought 
emergency, as described in section 4735. subdivisions (c) and {d) of the Civil 
Code. to reverse or remove the water-efficient landscaping measures upon the 
conclusion of the state of emergency. 

(2) As used in this subdivision: 
(A) "Architectural or landscaping guidelines or policies" includes any formal or 
informal rules other than the governing documents of a common interest 
development. 
(B) ''Homeowners' association" means an "association" as defined in section 
4080 of the Civil Code. 
(C) "Common interest development" has the same meaning as in section 4100 of 
the Civil Code. 
(D) "Community service organization or similar entity" has the same meaning as 
in section 4110 of the Civil Code. 
(E) "Governing documents" has the same meaning as in section 4150 of the Civil 
Code. 
(F) "Separate interesf' has the same meaning as in section 4185 of the Civil 
Code. 

(3) If a disciplinary proceeding or other proceeding to enforce a rule in violation of 
subdivision (c)(1) is initiated, each day the proceeding remains pending shall constitute 
a separate violation of this regulation. 

(d) To prevent the unreasonable use of water and to promote water conservation, any 
city, county, or city and county is prohibited from imposing a fine under any local 
maintenance ordinance or other relevant ordinance as prohibited by section 8627.7 of 
the Government Code. 

6 



(e) The taking of any action prohibited in subdivisi.on (b), (c) or (d) is an infraction 
punishable by a fine of up to five hundred dollars ($500) for each day in which the 
violation occurs. The fine for the infraction is in addition to, and does not supersede or 
limit. any other remedies, civil or criminal. 

(f) A decision or order issued under this section by the Board or an officer or employee 
of the Board is subject to reconsideration under article 2 (commencing with section 
1122) of chapter 4 of part 1 of division 2 of the Water Code. 

Authority: Section 1058.5, Water Code. 
References: Article X, Section 2, California Constitution; Sections 4080, 4100, 4110, 
4150, 4185, and 4735, Civil Code; Section 8627.7, Government Code; Sections 102, 
104, 105, 275, 350, 491, and 1122, Water Code; Light v. State Water Resources 
Control Board (2014) 226 Cai.App.4th 1463; Stanford Vina Ranch Irrigation Co. v. State 
of California (2020) 50 Cai.App.Sth 976. 

7 



** ALERT** 
Below Normal Water Supply Conditions 

The State of California is facing unprecedented drought conditions and important steps are being taken at the statewide, 
regional, and local levels to conserve limited water supplies. In accordance with several Drought Proclamations and 
Executive Orders issued by Governor Newsom, and pursuant to Resolution No. 764 adopted by the Board ofTrustees of 
Improvement District No.1, the following water conservation measures and water use restrictions are in place for all 
customers of Improvement District No.1. 

1. Water shall be used for beneficial purposes only; all unnecessary and wasteful uses of water are prohibited. 

2. Water shall be confined to the customer's property and shall not be allowed to run off to adjoining properties 
or to the roadside ditch or gutter. Care shall be taken not to water past the point of saturation. 

3. landscape and lawn watering that causes runoff or within 48 hours of "measurable" rainfall is not allowed. 

4. Automatic shut-off devices must be attached on any hose or filling apparatus in use. 

5. All pools, spas, and ornamental fountains shall be equipped with a recirculation pump and shall be leak-proof. 

6. New swimming pool and spa filling is allowed. Draining and refilling of existing pools is allowed for health, 
maintenance, or structural considerations. Pool and spa covers are encouraged to avoid evaporation losses. 

7. leaking customer pipes or faulty sprinklers shall be repaired within (5) five working days or less if warranted 
by the severity of the problem. 

8. Washing streets, parking lots, driveways, sidewalks, or buildings, except as necessary for health or sanitary 
purposes is prohibited. 

9. Use of "Temporary" water classification from meters and fire hydrant meters is prohibited for any purpose 
outside the District's boundaries. 

10. Use of "Emergency" water is prohibited outside the District boundaries to supply water to private property 
owners with private wells, or for public or private entities with their own source of water supply. 

11. Filling, re-filling or using District potable water to maintain water levels in any pond, lake, waterbody, man
made stream, or waterway is prohibited. 

12. Customers are encouraged to take advantage of conservation programs and rebates. 

13. Restaurants, hotels, cafes, cafeterias, or other public places where food is served are encouraged to provide 
water only upon request. 

14. Operators of hotels and motels are encouraged to display water conservation signs and provide guests with 
the option of choosing not to have towels and linens laundered daily. The hotel or motel should prominently 
display notice of this option in each guestroom using clear and easily understood language. 

15. Voluntary 10% reduction in water use. 

Improvement District No.1 proudly serves potable water supplies for domestic, agricultural, commercial, and institutional 
needs within the communities of Santa Ynez, Los Olivos, Ballard, the Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians, and the City 
of Solvang on a limited basis. The Board of Trustees is comprised of President Jeff Clay, Vice President Brad Joos, and 
Trustees Mike Burchardi, Lori Parker, and Jeff Holzer. For more information about the District, please visit our website 
at www.svrwd.org or contact our office at (805) 688-6015 or via email at qenera/@svrwd.org. 



WATER SUPPLY 
ALERT! 

California is experiencing a severe drought, 
and with limited water we cannot afford to 
waste any of our supply. Water is a critical part 
to our way of life. Our economy, environment 
and day-to-day lifestyle needs water to flourish. 
If dry conditions continue, the State and the 
District will require water use reductions 
and/or mandatory restrictions. 

The good news is that voluntary conservation 
can help stretch our water supply. The District is 
encouraging customers to be smart about water 
use and make a difference by following some 
easy tips on the reverse side. 

By working together, we can make a difference 
NOW! 

::; 

Outdoor: 
• Adjust your watering schedule times to early morning or night. 
• Turn off automatic sprinklers, or water by hand only when needed. 
• Apply 3-4" of mulch around plants to reduce evaporation and build healthy soil. 
• Irrigate with drip systems and consider replacing turf with low water 

consuming plants. 
• Minimize washing down hardscape and concrete surfaces. 
• Test your irrigation system for leaks, runoff, and waste. 

Indoor: 
• Use running water sparingly, when washing hands, brushing teeth, and shaving. 
• Shorten your shower time. 
• Go low flow- install low flow faucets and shower heads. 
• Make sure to always run full loads in your dishwasher or washing machine. 

~· -( Visit www.syrwd.org for more helpful conservation tips. 

~~ ~ 
L ~ 

P.O. Box 157 
Santa Ynez, CA 93460 





Eric Friedman 
Chairman 

Ed Andrisek 
Vice Chairman 

Ray A. Stokes 
Executive Director 

Brownstein Hyatt 
Far bet' Schredc 

General Counsel 

Member Age11cies 

City of Buellton 

Carpinteria Valley 
Water District 

City of Guadalupe 

City of Santa Bnbara 

City of Santa Maria 

Goleta Water District 

Montecito Water District 

Santa Ynez River Water 
Conservation District; 
.Improvement District #1 

Associal~ Member 

La Cumbre Mutu.aJ 
Water Company 

255 Industrial Way 
Buellton, CA 93427 
(805) 688·2292 
Fa!C (805) 686·4700 
www.ccwa.com 

A Special Meeting of the 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

Agenda Item 1 o. c. 

will be held at 2:00 p.m., on Thursday, June 9, 2022 
at 255 Industrial Way, Buellton, California 

and 
Rincon Room, 1021 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, California 

Members of the public may participate by video call or telephone via 
URL: https://v.ringcentral.com{foin/597324184 

or by dialing (650) 419-1505 and entering access Code/Meeting ID; 597324184 # 

Public Comment on agenda items may occur via video call or telephonically, or by submissi.on to the 
Board Secretary via email at lfw@ccwa.com no later than 8:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting. In your 
email, please specify (1) the meeting date and agenda item (number and title) on which you are 
providing a comment and (2) that you would like your comment read into the record during the meeting. 
If you would like your comment read into the record during the meeting (as either general public 
comment or on a specific agenda item), please limit your comments to no more than 250 words. 

Every effort will be made to read comments into the record, but some comments may not be read due 
to time limitations. Please also note that if you submit a written comment and do not specify that you 
would like this comment read into the record during the meeting, your comment will be forwarded to 
Board members for their consideration. 

Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available on the CCWA internet web site, accessible at https://www.ccwa.com. 

I. Call to Order and Roll Call 

II. 

Ill. 

IV. 

v. 

CLOSED SESSION 
A. CLOSED SESSION: CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 

Government Code section 54956.8 
Property: Warren Act Contract 
Agency negotiator: Ray Stokes 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code§ 54956.9(d)(2) 
Number of cases: 1 

Agenda Item 1/, the Closed Session, is anticipated to take 30 minutes. The remainder of 
the Meeting wilf start no earlier than 2:30p.m. 

Return to Open Session 
A. Report on Closed Session Actions (if any) 

Public Comment- (Any member of the public may address the Board relating to 
any matter wi thin the Board's jurisdiction. Individual Speakers may be limited to 
five minutes; all speakers to a total of fifteen minutes.) 

Executive Director's Report 
• A. Temporary Warren Act Contract Between CCWA and United States Bureau of 

Reclamation 
Staff Recommendation: 
1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022..05 for Approval of Temporary Warren Act 
Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 with United States Bureau of Reclamation approving 
the Temporary Warren Act Contract and authorizing the Chair of the Board to 
execute the Temporary Warren Act Contract; and 

2. Authorize the Chair of the Board to do and cause to be done any and all 
acts and things necessary or appropriate to allow for CCWA's continued use of ttle 
Cachuma Project on a temporary, interim, or emergency basis for a period not to 
exceed 90 days. 

* Indicates attachment of document to origTnal agenda packet continued 



VI. Reports from Board Members for lnforrpation Only 

VII. Items for Next Regular Meeting Agenda 

VIII. Date of Next Regular Meeting: June 23, 2022 

IX. Adjournment 

#49695 _1 .dOC)( 



CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: CCWA Board of Directors 

FROM: Ray A. Stokes 
Executive Director 

Agenda Item V.A. 
Special Board of Directors 
June 9, 2022 

June 6, 2022 

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 2022-05 for Approval of Temporary Warren Act 
Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 with United States Bureau of Reclamation 

SUMMARY 

For consideration by the Board of Directors, Staff has prepared a Resolution for approval of a 
short-term Warren Act Contract with the United States Bureau of Reclamation ("Reclamation"), 
Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 (the UTemporary Warren Act Contract"}. The Temporary Warren 
Act Contract is necessary to continue the annual introduction, storage, and conveyance of up to 
13,750 acre-feet of water acquired by or available to CCWA from or through the State Water 
Project ("CCWA Water") into Cachuma Project facilities for delivery to CCWA's South Coast 
Participants1 beyond June 22, 2022, when the existing 1995 Warren Act Contract ("1995 
Contract") expires. The term of the Temporary Warren Act Contract would commence on the 
date executed by Reclamation (the ueffective date") and extend through September 30, 2024. 

Staff also requests that the Board authorize the Chair of the Board to obtain Reclamation's 
approval for CCWA's continued use of the Cachuma Project for a limited period of time, not to 
exceed 90 days, in the event Reclamation is delayed in executing the Temporary Warren Act 
Contract. including extending the 1995 Contract for a short period of time or other temporary, 
interim, or emergency use of the Cachuma Project as may be permitted by Reclamation. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-05 for Approval of Temporary Warren Act Contract No. 22-
WC-20-5954 with United States Bureau of Reclamation approving the Temporary 
Warren Act Contract and authorizing the Chair of the Board to execute the Temporary 
Warren Act Contract; and 

2. Authorize the Chair of the Board to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things 
necessary or appropriate to allow for CCWA's continued use of the Cachuma Project to 
introduce, store and/or convey in Cachuma Project facilities water acquired by or 
available to CCWA from or through the State Water Project for delivery to the CCWA 
South Coast Participants on a temporary, interim, or emergency basis for a period not to 
exceed 90 days. 

1 Carpinteria Valley Water District, the City of Santa Barbara, Goleta Water District, Montecito Water 
District, La Cumbre Mutual Water Company. La Cumbre Mutual Water Company, Morehart Land Co., and 
Raytheon Systems Co. 

1 



DISCUSSION 

1. Background 

CCWA was formed as a Joint Powers Agency formed pursuant to Government Code section 
6500 et seq. and the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated August 1, 1991, as amended, 
to construct necessary facilities to deliver supplemental water supplies from the State Water 
Project to communities in San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara Counties. 

In 1994, Reclamation released an Environmental Assessment (11EA") pursuant to the National 
Environmental Policy Act ("NEPA") that analyzed the construction of an extension of the State 
Water Project Coastal Branch that would allow the annual introduction, through issuance of a 
long-term Warren Act Contract, of CCWA Water into the Cachuma Project facilities for delivery 
to CCWA's South Coast Participants. Reclamation issued a Finding of No Significant Impact 
("FONSI") under NEPA on January 3, 1995 and subsequently issued a 25-year Warren Act 
Contract to CCWA that allowed the annual introduction, storage, and conveyance of up to 
13,750 acre-feet of water acquired by or available to CCWA from or through the State into 
Cachuma Project facilities for delivery to the CCWA South Coast Participants for municipal and 
industrial uses ("1995 Contract"). The Coastal Branch and CCWA facilities were completed in 
1997 and introductions of CCWA water under the 1995 Warren Act Contract began in 1997. 

CCWA's 1995 Contract expires on June 22, 2022. CCWA water has been and continues to be a 
much-needed supplemental water supply for the South Coast, especially during drought 
conditions. Particularly in light of current drought conditions, the status quo-expiration of the 
1995 Contract on June 22, 2022 without a new contract-could lead to a water supply 
emergency on the South Coast. Specifically, CCWA is currently attempting to purchase 
supplemental water supplies for some of the South Coast Participants under the CCWA 2022 
Supplemental Water Purchase Program. Without a new contract. CCWA will be unable to 
deliver these supplemental water supplies, potentially risking the water purchased and the 
ability of ohe or more South Coast Participants to meet their water supply needs. 

CCWA has therefore requested that, subject to compliance with applicable environmental laws, 
Reclamation enter into a short-term Warren Act Contract to continue the introductions, 
conveyance, and storage of CCWA Water into the Cachuma Project facilities for delivery to the 
CCWA South Coast Participants on the same terms and conditions as the 1995 Contract. 
Execution of the Temporary Warren Act Contract would allow time for CCWA and Reclamation 
to pursue and study the impacts of a new long-term Warren Act Contract for the same purpose. 
It would also allow time for Reclamation and the National Marine Fisheries Service ("NMFSn) to 
finalize the re-consultation on the Cachuma Project under the Endangered Species Act ("ESA"), 
which process is not anticipated to be complete by June 22, 2022. 

2. Temporary Warren Act Contract 

CCWA and Reclamation have negotiated the Temporary Warren Act Contract. The key terms of 
the Temporary Warren Act Contract are: 

Term: The Temporary Contract will take effect upon execution by Reclamation's Contracting 
Officer and will continue until September 30, 2024. The 1995 Contract expires on June 22, 
2022. Accordingly, Reclamation's execution of the Temporary Contract should occur on or 
before June 22, 2022. (1J 2.) 

2 



Quantity: The Temporary Contract authorizes CCWA to introduce up to13,750 acre-feet per 
Year (October 1 -September 31) of Non-Project Water2 into Lake Cachuma and to store and/or 
convey that water to the Operating Non-Federal Entity for delivery to the South Coast 
Participants. m 3(a).) This is the same quantity as authorized under the 1995 Contract. 

Transition between Existing and Temporary Contract: The Temporary Contract expressly 
authorizes CCWA to store and convey Non-Project Water already delivered to lake Cachuma 
under the 1995 Contract and to continue to introduce, store and/or convey Non-Project water for 
the period between the effective date and October 1, the commencement of the new Year. (1f 
3(a).) 

Excess Capacity: CCWA's right to introduce Non-Project Water into Lake Cachuma is limited 
to the right to use Excess Capacity.(~ 3(a).) "Excess Capacity" means capacity in the Project 
Facilities in excess of that needed to meet the Project's authorized purposes, as determined 
solely Reclamation. In the event of Lake Cachuma spills, CCWA's Non-Project Water is the first 
to spill from the lake. m 3(f).) CCW~s Non-Project Water is also subject to seepage and 
evaporation losses. (11 3(g).) 

Rate: The rate charged by Reclamation pursuant to the Temporary Contract is subject to 
change (increase) each Year, which begins on October 1, based on the formula set forth in 
Exhibit B of the Temporary Contract. Accordingly, the rate may adjust two times during the term 
of the Temporary Contract. The rate for the period between the effective date and September 
30, 2022 is $95.39/acre-foot (see Temporary Contract. Exhibit B). The rate does not ihclude the 
$43/acre-foot charge that CCWA pays to COMB pursuant to the 1995 Memorandum of 
Understanding for the Creation of a Trust Fund between CCWA and the Cachuma Project 
Authority and Reclamation. 

COMB: COMB is the Operating Non-Federal Entity. COMB is not a party to the 1995 Contract 
or Temporary Contract. Pursuant to the 1956 O&M Contract between Reclamation and COMB, 
Reclamation transferred responsibility for the operation and maintenance (O&M) of a portion of 
the Project Facilities and the costs of such O&M to COMB. 

3. Short-Term Interim or Temporary Measure If Necessary To Avoid Gap In 
CCWA's Use Cachuma Project 

As discussed in more detail below, Reclamation submitted a revised request for concurrence to 
NMFS on June 2, 2022. In the event Reclamation does not receive NMFS concurrence in 
sufficient time to allow for Reclamation's execution of the Temporary Contract on or before June 
22, 2022, or other delay occurs, Staff is exploring alternatives options to avoid a gap in CCWA's 
ability to introduce, store and/or convey CCWA Water in the Cachuma Project, if possible. For 
example, it may be possible to extend the 1995 Contract for a short period of time or otherwise 
provide for CCWA's interim or temporary continued use of the Cachuma Project until such time 
as the Temporary Contract is considered and executed by both parties, including on an 
emergency basis. 

2 See Exhibit C to Temporary Contract. 
3 



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

1. Reclamation's Informal Consultation with NMFS and Compliance with 
NEPA 

Reclamation issued a draft EA pursuant to NEPA for the Temporary Warren Act Contract on 
March 25, 2022, and the public comment period closed on April 22, 2022. 

Reclamation engaged in informal consultation with NMFS and as part of that process submitted 
an Biological Evaluation ("BE") dated March 30, 2022 to NMFS. Subsequent to issuance of the 
BE, NMFS and Reclamation discussed whether further constraints on mixing of CCWA Water 
with downstream water rights releases from the Cachuma Project were warranted as a condition 
of NMFS' concurrence. On June 2, 2022, USSR submitted a revised BE ("Revised BE"). The 
Revised BE incorporates additional conservation measures restricting the timing and rate of 
release of CCWA's Water into the Santa Ynez River that NMFS indicated would be necessary 
as a condition of its concurrence. 

Reclamation has indicated to Staff that it expects to soon receive concurrence from NMFS with 
Reclamation's determination that issuance of the Temporary Warren Act Contract would have 
either no effect on species listed under the ESA, or would be not likely to adversely affect such 
species or critical habitat. Reclamation has further indicated that after receiving NMFS' 
concurrence, it then expects to issue a Final EA and FONSI which would conclude that 
issuance of the Temporary Warren Act Contract would not have a significant impact on the 
environment. The final EA is expected to incorporate the constraint on mixing of CCWA Water 
with downstream water rights releases that NMFS ultimately may conclude is warranted as a 
condition of its concurrence. 

2. CCWA's Compliance with CEQA 

Pursuant to the authority delegated to the Executive Director under CCWA's local Guidelines 
for Implementing CEQA, Staff has determined that CCWA's approval of the Temporary Warren 
Act Contract is exempt from CEQA. CEQA Guidelines section 15301 (Class 1 exemption) sets 
forth an exemption from CEQA for the operation and permitting of existing facilities involving 
negligible or no expansion of existing or former use. The Temporary Warren Act Contract fits 
within this exemption because it will continue to allow the annual introduction, storage, and 
conveyance of up to 13,750 acre-feet of CCWA Water into Cachuma Project facilities for 
delivery to the CCW A South Coast Participants and will therefore not expand the use of 
Cachuma Project facilities beyond that permitted by the 1995 Warren Act Contract. A water 
distribution system, like the Cachuma Project facilities, is an existing facility for the purpose of 
the Class 1 exemption. (N. Coast Rivers A/I. v. Westlands Water Dist. (2014) 227 Cal. App. 4th 
832, 867 (citing Turlock Irrigation Dist. v. Zanker (2006) 140 Cal. App. 4th 1047, 1065-1066).) 

None of the exceptions to use of an exemption set forth in CEQA Guidelines section 153002 
apply and adoption of the Temporary Warren Act Contract will not have a significant impact on 
the environment. The Temporary Warren Act Contract will continue to allow the annual 
introduction, storage, and conveyance of the same quantity of CCWA Water into Cachuma 
Project facilities as has been authorized for the last 25 years. Under the Temporary Warren Act 
Contract, CCWA water would continue to be introduced and conveyed through Cachuma 
Project facilities (i.e., Bradbury Dam outlet works, Stilling Basin, Lake Cachuma, North Intake of 
the Tecolote Tunnel, and the South Coast Conduit) to the CCWA contractors located along the 
South Coast Conduit No modifications to existing infrastructure or construction would occur. 

4 



As described in the Revised BE, measures to avoid and minimize effects to listed species, 
including the Southern California Steelhead (Oncorhynchus mykiss) Distinct Population 
Segment have been and will continue to be implemented during CCWA operations under the 
Temporary Warren Act Contract. Reclamation has indicated that it anticipates that the NMFS 
will concur with Reclamation's conclusion that approval of the Temporary Warren Act Contract 
will either have no effect on listed species or will be not likely to adversely affect listed species 
and critical habitat. 

Over the last 25 years, CCWA has monitored and studied its operations under the 1995 
Contract, including water quality and temperature. A description of this monitoring and recent 
data is included in more detail in Reclamation's EA. Through its monitoring, Staff has not 
identified any reasonable possibility that the continued conveyance of 13,750 acre-feet of water 
pursuant to the Temporary Warren Act Contract will have a significant effect on the 
environment. 

CCWA evaluated the comments made by interested parties on the EA and on CCWA's 
consideration of the Temporary Warren Act Contract. One commenter raised the issue that any 
constraint on mixing of CCWA Water with downstream water rights releases in excess of those 
already imposed on existing operations, would cause potentially significant water quality 
impacts and therefore inconsistencies with the December 17, 2002 Settlement Agreement 
relating to operation of the Cachuma Project and the California State Water Resources Control 
Board's Order WRO 2019-0148. CCWA has determined that no comments identified any 
reasonable possibility that the Temporary Warren Act Contract will have a significant effect on 
the environment. 

CCWA's position, which it has shared with Reclamation, is that any additional constraints 
ultimately imposed by NMFS and adopted by Reclamation on mixing of CCWA Water with 
downstream water rights releases, as a condition of approval of the Temporary Contract, is 
unnecessary and unwarranted. Ultimately, however, CCWA cannot control conditions imposed 
by the federal government and CCWA lacks discretion to avoid or modify these conditions. 
Nonetheless, in response to the issues raised by commenters, CCW A retained an 
environmental consultant to evaluate the potential environmental impacts, including potential 
impacts on water quality, energy use, and greenhouse gas {"GHG") emissions, of a range of 
potential restrictions that might ultimately be adopted by the federal government on mixing of 
CCWA Water with downstream water rights releases, including those described in tbe BE and 
Revised BE. To capture a range of potential environmental impacts, the scenarios evaluated 
included a constraint on mixing of CCWA Water with downstream water rights releases in the 
month of November (i.e., November 2022 and 2023 during the term of the Temporary Contract) 
and a total prohibition on such mixing throughout the term of the 27 month term of the 
Temporary Warren Act Contract. 

The evaluation concluded that the potential impacts associated with new or additional NMFS' 
restrictions are not significant and therefore would not render inappropriate the use of a CEQA 
exemption. Specifically, the evaluation determined that NMFS' conditions will not: 

• Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise 
substantially degrade surface or groundwater quality; 

• Conflict or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable 
groundwater management plan; 

• Result in potentially significant environmental impacts due to wasteful, inefficient or 
unnecessary consumption of energy resources during project construction or operation; 

• Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency; 

5 



• Generate GHG emissions either directly or indirectly that may have a significant impact 
on the environment; or 

• Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing 
the emissions of GHGs. 

Although NMFS' new and additional restrictrons on mixing may cause changes in water quality 
as compared to the baseline condition, under Which CCWA Water is mixed with water rights 
releases when they occur in some, but not all, years, these changes are not significant and fall 
within the Class 4 categorical exemption, which exempts "minor public or private alterations in 
the condition of land, water, and/or vegetation which do not involve removal of healthy, mature, 
scenic trees." (CEQA Guidelines § 15304.) 

Staff also reviewed the Temporary Warren Act Contract and the December 17, 2002 Settlement 
Agreement relating to operation of the Cachuma Project and the California State Water 
Resources Control Board's Order WRO 2019-0148, to which CCWA is not a party, and 
confirmed that these authorities do not impose numerical limitations on water quality that would 
be violated due to adoption of the Temporary Warren Act Contract as conditioned by NMFS. 

Attachments: 

A. Resolution No. 2022-05 a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Central Coast 
Water Authority Approving Temporary Warren Act Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 with the 
United States Bureau of Reclamation 

Exhibit 1: 

Exhibit 2: 

Temporary Warren Act Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 Between Central 
Coast Water Authority and United States Bureau of Reclamation 

Notice of Exemption re. Temporary Warren Act Contract No. 22-WC-20-
5954 Between Central Coast Water Authority and United States Bureau 
of Reclamation 

B. March 25, 2022 Environmental Assessment 

C. March 30, 2022 Biological Evaluation 

D. June 2, 2022 Biological Evaluation 

6 



RESOLUTION NO. 22-05 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

APPROVING TEMPORARY WARREN ACT CONTRACT NO. 22-WC-20-5954 WITH 
THE UNITED STATES BUREAU OF RECLAMATION 

Recitals 

A The Central Coast Water Authority ("CCWA") is a Joint Powers Agency formed 
pursuant to Government Code section 6500 et seq. and that certain Joint Exercise 
of Powers Agreement dated August 1, 1991 , as amended, to construct necessary 
facilities to deliver supplemental water supplies from the State Water Project 
("SWP") to communities in San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara Counties; and 

B. In 1994, the United States Bureau of Reclamation ("Reclamation") released an 
Environmental Assessment ("EA") pursuant to the National Environmental Policy 
Act ("NEPA") that analyzed the construction of an extension of the SWP Coastal 
Branch that would allow the annual introduction, through issuance of a long-term 
Warren Act Contract, of SWP water into the Cachuma Project facilities for delivery 
to CCWA's South Coast Participants, including Carpinteria Valley Water District, 
the City of Santa Barbara, Goleta Water District, Montecito Water District, La 
Cumbre Mutual Water Company, Morehart Land Co., and Raytheon Systems Co. 
("CCWA's South Coast Participants"}; and 

C. Reclamation issued a Finding of No Significant Impact ("FONSI") under NEPA on 
January 3, 1995 and subsequently issued a 25-year Warren Act Contract to CCWA 
that allowed the annual introduction, storage, and conveyance of up to 13,750 
acre-feet of water acquired by or available to CCWA from or through the SWP 
("CCWA Water''} into Cachuma Project facilities for delivery to the CCWA South 
Coast Participants for municipal and industrial uses; and 

D. The SWP Coastal Branch facilities were completed in 1997 and introductions of 
CCWA water under the 1995 Warren Act Contract began in 1997; and 

E. The 1995 Warren Act Contract will expire on or about June 22, 2022; and 

F. CCWA Water introduced, stored, and conveyed pursuant to the existing 1995 
Warren Act Contract has been and continues to be a much-needed supplemental 
water supply for the South Coast, especially during drought conditions; and 

G. CCWA has requested, subject to compliance with applicable environmental laws, 
that Reclamation enter into a short-term Warren Act Contract to continue the 
introductions, conveyance, and storage of CCWA Water into the Cachuma Project 
facilities for delivery to the CCWA South Coast Participants while Reclamation and 
CCWA develop and study a new long-term Warren Act Contract for the same 
purpose and while Reclamation and the National Marine Fisheries Service finalize 
the re-consultation on the Cachuma Project under the Endangered Species Act 
("ESA"), which process is not anticipated to be complete by June 2022; and 

23970688 



H. The short-term Warren Act Contract, Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 (the 
MTemporary Warren Act Contract") is attached hereto as Exhibit 1; and 

I. The Temporary Warren Act Contract authorizes CCWA's continued introduction, 
conveyance, and storage of CCWA Water in Cachuma Project facilities for the 
period commencing with the effective date and terminating on September 30, 
2024;and 

J . Reclamation issued an EA pursuant to NEPA for the Temporary Warren Act 
Contract on March 25, 2022, and the public comment period closed on April 22, 
2022;and 

K. Prior to Reclamation's approval of the Temporary Warren Act Contract, 
Reclamation will obtain concurrence from NMFS that issuance of the Temporary 
Warren Act Contract would have either no effect on species listed under the ESA, 
or would be not likely to adversely affect such species or their critical habitat; and 

L Prior to Reclamation's approval of the Temporary Warren · Act Contract, 
Reclamation will issue a FONSI concluding that issuance of and operations under 
the Temporary Warren Act Contract would not have a significant impact on the 
environment; and 

M. Prior to execution of the Temporary Warren Act Contract, CCWA must comply with 
the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"); and 

N. Categorical exemptions from CEQA are set forth in Article 19 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations ("CEQA Guidelines" ); and 

0 . CEQA Guidelines section 15301 sets forth an exemption from CEQA for the 
operation and permitting of existing facilities involving negligible or no expansion 
of existing or former use and CEQA Guidelines section 15304 further exempts 
projects that entail minor alterations in the condition of water; and 

P. The Temporary Warren Act Contract will continue to allow the annual introduction, 
storage, and conveyance of up to 13,750 acre-feet of water acquired by or 
available to CCWA from or through the SWP into Cachuma Project facilities for 
delivery to the CCWA South Coast Participants and will therefore not expand the 
use of Cachuma Project facilities beyond that permitted by the 1995 Warren Act 
Contract; and 

Q . The CCWA Board of Directors has considered, agrees with, and incorporates 
herein all of the findings made by Staff in the Notice of Exemption attached hereto 
as Exhibit 2, including but not limited to, the determinations that approval of the 
Temporary Warren Act Contract falls within a categorical exclusion under CEQA 
and that none of the exceptions to use of an exemption set forth in CEQA 
Guidelines section 15300.2 apply and the Project will not have a significant impact 
on the environment. 

23970688 



NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DOES HEREBY FIND AND 
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution by this reference. 

SECTION 2. Based on the findings set forth herein, the Board of Directors 
approves the Temporary Warren Act Contract attached hereto as Exhibit 1. This 
resolution constitutes complete and final agreement by CCWA to be bound by the terms 
of the Temporary Warren Act Contract and this Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

SECTlON 3. The Board of Directors authorizes the Chair of the Board to execute 
the Temporary Warren Act Contract in a form substantially the same as attached hereto 
as Exhibit 1. 

SECTION 4. The Board of Directors authorizes and directs the Executive 
Director to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or appropriate 
to carry out the intention of this Resolution, including executing any and all documents 
related to the implementation of the Temporary Warren Act Contract. 

I certify that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly introduced and adopted by 
the Board of Directors of the Central Coast Water Authority at a special meeting held on 
June 9, 2022. 

Eric Friedman, Chairman 
[Seal] 

Attest: 

Elizabeth Watkins 
Secretary to the Board of Directors 

[Insert voting percentage tally tabl.e] 

Exhibits: 

23970688 

1. Temporary Warren Act Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 Between Central 
Coast Water Authority and United States Bureau of Reclamation 

2. Notice of Exemption re. Temporary Warren Act Contract No. 22-WC-20-
5954 Between Central Coast Water Authority and United States Bureau of 
Reclamation 



~Z[Ilf# 

Temporary Warren Act Contract - Year 2022 
M&I Only 

Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 
UNITED STATES 

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION 

Cachuma Project, California 

TEMPORARY CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES 
AND 

THE CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 
PROVIDING FOR STORAGE AND CONVEYANCE OF NON-PROJECT WATER 

Article No. 

Preamble 
Explanatory Recitals 

Table of Contents 

Page No. 

1 Definitions .. ........... ................................................... ............................................... 4 
2 Term of Contract. ..................................................................................................... 7 
3 Introduction, Storage, Conveyance, and Delivery ofNon-Project Water ............... 7 
4 Measurement of Non-Project Water ...................................................................... 11 
5 Operation and Maintenance by Operating Non-Federal Entity .............. ............... 13 
6 Payments and Adjustments ............ .......................... ............................. .. ............... t4 
7 Medium for Transmitting Payments ...................................................................... l6 
8 Excess Capacity ..................................................................................................... 17 
9 Acreage Limitation Provisions .... ........ ... .. ............................................................. 17 
10 Receipt and Distribution ofNon-Project Water- Sale, Transfer, or Exchange of 

Non-Project Water .................................... ... ........ .................................................. 18 
11 Water Conservation ............................................................................................... 18 
12 United States Not Liable .......... ....................... , ...................................................... IS 
13 Rules, Regulations, Opinions and Determinations ................................................ 19 
14 Protection of Water and Air Quality ............................................. .............. ........... 20 
15 Charges for Delinquent Payments ..... .................................................................... 21 
16 Equal Employment Opportunity ................................................................. ........... 22 
17 Certification of Non-Segregated Facilities ......................................... .............. ..... 23 
18 Compliance with Civil Rights Laws and Obligations ........................................... 24 
19 General Obligation - Benefits Conditioned Upon Payment... ............................... 25 
20 Books, Records, and Reports ........ ........................ ................................................. 25 
21 Contingent Upon Appropriations or Allotment ofFunds ...................................... 25 
22 Assignment Limited- Successors and Assigns Obligated .................................... 26 



Article No. 

Temporary Warren Act Contract - Year 2022 
M&IOnly 

Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

Table of Contents -continued 

Page No. 

23 Offici·als Not to Benefit ......................................................................................... 26 
24 Changes in Contractor's Organization .................... ........ ....................................... 26 
25 Notices .................................................................................................................... 26 
26 Incorporation ofExhibits ........................ ............................................................... 26 
27 Contract Draftipg Considerations .......................................................................... 26 

Signature Page . ................. ... .......... ... ... . ... ... . .. . .. ......... .. ... .. ... .. ...... .. 27 

Exhibit A - Contractor's Boundary Map 
Exhibit B - Rates 
Exhibit C- Source(s) of Contractor's Non-Project Water 
Exhibit 0 - Water Quality Standards 



Temporary Warren Act Contract- Year 2022 
M&l Only 

Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

UNITED STATES 
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 

BUREAU OF RECLAMATION 
Cachuma Project, California 

TEMPORARY CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES 
AND 

THE CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 
PROVIDING FOR STORAGE AND CONVEYANCE OF NON-PROJECT WATER 

THIS CONTRACT, made this __ day of ________ , 2022, 

2 pursuant to the Act of June 17, t 902 (32 Stat. 388), and acts amendatory thereof or 

3 supplementary thereto, including the Act of February 21 , 19 t I (36 Stat. 925), and Section 305 of 

4 the Reclamation States Emergency Drought Relief Act of 1991 , enacted March 5, 1992 

5 (I 06 Stat. 59), all collectively hereinafter referred to as the Federal Reclamation laws, between 

6 the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, hereinafter referred to as the United States, represented 

7 by the officer executing this Contract, hereinafter referred to as the Contracting Officer, and the 

8 CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY, hereinafter referred to as the Contractor; 

9 WITNESSETH, That: 

10 EXPLANATORY RECITALS 

11 [P'] WHEREAS, on September 12, 1949, the United States and the Santa 

12 Barbara County Water Agency, hereinafter referred to as the Agency, entered into Contract No. 

13 175r-1802, which was renewed by Contract No. 175r- t 802R dated April14, 1996, and amended 

14 by Contract No. 175r-1802RA dated September 28, 2020, pursuant to which water from the 

IS Cachuma Project is furnished to Carpinteria Valley Water District, the City ofSanta Barbara, 

16 Goleta Water District, Montecito Water District, and Santa Ynez River Water Conservation 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

] 7 District Improvement District No. 1, hereinafter collectively referred to as the Member Units; 

18 and 

19 [2"d] WHEREAS, on July 6, 1995, the Contractor and the Cachuma Project 

20 Authority, currently known as Cachuma Operations Maintenance Board (COMB), a joint 

21 exercise of powers authority comprised of the Member Units, entered into a Memorandum of 

22 Understanding (MOU) for the creation of a trust fund dedicated to developing and supporting 

23 water management programs and projects beneficial to the Cachuma Project with the expectation 

24 that the United States would become a party to such MOU in conjunction with entering into a 

25 contract permitting the Contractor's use of the Cachuma Project for the Storage and/or 

26 Conveyance of Non-Project Water; and 

27 [3nl] WHEREAS, on July 25, 1995, the United States and the Contractor 

28 entered into Contract No. 5-07-20-W1282, to Store and/or Convey through facilities of the 

29 Cachuma Project a supply of Non-Project Water for municipal and industrial uses; and 

30 [41h] WHEREAS, on June 2, 1997, the United States and the Contractor entered 

31 into an amendment to Contract No. 5-07-20-W 1282 for the purpose of changing the definition of 

32 "Year" in Contract No. 5-07-20-W1282; and 

33 [51h] WHEREAS, Contractor asserts rights in a long-term contract with the 

34 Californ ia Department of Water Resources, dated February 26, 1963, for the delivery of water 

35 from and/or through the State Water Project to the County of Santa Barbara; and 

36 (6111
] WHEREAS, Contractor holds contracts with public water providers, 

37 including the Member Units and parties collectively referred to as the Contractor Participants for 

38 the delivery of water from and/or through State Water Project to each of the Contractor 

39 Participants; and 



Contract No. 22-WG-20-5954 

40 [7111] WHEREAS, pursuant to the above-referenced contracts, Contractor is 

41 obligated to deliver water to Lake Cachuma for Carpinteria Valley Water District, the City of 

42 Santa Barbara, Goleta Water District, Montecito Water District, and other Contractor 

43 Participants, hereinafter collectively referred to as the South Coast Participants; and 

44 [8'11] WHEREAS, pursuant to Contract No. 5-07-20-Wl282, the Contractor has 

45 Stored and/or Conveyed Non-Project Water in and/or through the Project since 1997; and 

46 [9111) WHEREAS, pursuant to amended Contract No. 14-06-200-5222R, and as 

47 amended, the United States transferred responsibility for the operation and maintenance (O&M) 

48 of a portion of the Project Facilities and the costs of such O&M to the designated Operating 

49 Non-Federal Entity; and 

50 [l 01h] WHEREAS, Contractor has a continuing need for the Storage and/or 

51 Conveyance of Non-Project Water from and/or through Project to the extent that Excess 

52 Capacity is available in Project Facilities; and 

53 (11 111] WHEREAS, Contract No. 5-07-20-W1282 expires in June 2022, but 

54 "Year" under that contract and this Contract is defined as the period from and including October 

55 151 of the Calendar Year through September 30111 of the following Calendar Year. Therefore, this 

56 Contract includes accounting provisions that apply to only th~ 2021-2022 Contract Year, to 

57 adjust for the difference in contract expiration and contract year. 

58 [12111) WHEREAS, the United States is willing to Store and/or Convey said Non· 

59 Project Water through Excess Capacity in said Project Facilities in accordance with the tenns 

60 and conditions hereinafter stated; and 

61 ( l3 1h) WHEREAS, it is not the intention of the parties that this Contract will 

62 change the quantity of water diverted from the Santa Ynez River, the point of diversion, the 



63 quantities of the Project water made available to water purveyors who receive Project water or 

64 the rights and responsibilities of the Member Units concerning operation and maintenance; and 

65 (14111] WHEREAS, the environmental compliance requirements for the execution 

66 of this Contract have been met by Environmental Assessment CGB-EA-2022-023, entitled 

67 "Central Coast Water Authority Temporary Warren Act Contract," which resulted in a Finding 

68 of No Significant linpact, dated mg1/ddlyr. 

69 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants herein contained, the 

70 parties agree as follows: 

71 DEFINiTIONS 

72 I . When used herein unless otherwise distinctly expressed, or manifestly 

73 incompatible with the intent ofthe parties as expressed in this Contract, the term: 

74 (a) "Calendar Year'' shall mean the period January 1 through December 31, 

75 both dates inclusive; 

76 (b) "Contracting Officer'' shall mean the Secretary of the Interior's duly 

77 authorized representative acting pursuant to this Contract or applicable Reclamation law or 

78 regulation; 

79 (c) "Contractor's Boundaries'' shall mean the geographic area within which 

80 the Contractor is authorized to serve Non-Project Water as set forth on Exhibit "A", which may 

8 1 be modified in accordance with Article 24, without amendment of this Contract; 

82 (d) "Conveyance or Convey" shall mean the transportation ofNon-Proj~t 

83 water through any or aU of the following: (i) Lake Cachuma, if the water is released from Lake 

84 Cachuma within 30 days of its introduction, or (ii) other Project facilities; 

4 



85 

86 

87 

88 

89 

90 

91 

92 

93 

Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

(e) "CCWA Participants'' shall mean water providers and water users in Santa 

Barbara County that contract with CCWA for the delivery of imported water; 

(t) ''CCWA's South Coast Participants" shall mean Carpinteria Valley Water 

District, City of Santa Barbara, Goleta Water District, Montecito Water District, La Cumbre 

Mutual Water Company, Morehart Land Co. and Raytheon Systems Co.; 

(g) "Excess Capacity" shall mean excess capacity, diversion, Storage, 

Conveyance, or pumping capacity in Project Facilities that is not needed to meet Reclamation's 

obligations for authorized Project purposes, as detennined solely by the Contracting Officer; 

(h) "Member Units" shall mean Carpinteria Valley Water District, City of 

94 Santa Barbara, Goleta, Water District, Montecito Water District and Santa Ynez River Water 

95 Conservation District Improvement District No. 1; 

96 

97 

98 

99 

tOO 

101 

102 

103 

104 

105 

106 

107 

(i) "Non-Project Water" shall mean water not appropriated by the United 

States for the Project which is acquired by or available to the Contractor from or through the 

State Water Project from the sources identified in Exhibit "C" and from other sources as may be 

approved by the Contracting Officer, all of which shall be treated to California drinking water 

quality standards at Contractor's Polonio Pass Water Treatment Facility, which is located in 

northeastem San Luis Obispo County; 

(j) "Operating Non-Federal Entity" or "Cachuma Operations Maintenance 

Board" or "COMB" shall mean the non-Federal entity that has the obligation pursuant to a 

separate agreement with the United States to operate and maintain n portion of the Project 

Facilities, and which may have funding obligations with respect thereto; 

(k) "Project" shall mean the Cachuma Project including but not limited to 

Bradbury Dam, Lake Cachuma (Lake), Tecolote Tunnel (Tunnel}, Lauro Reservoir, and the 

5 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

I 08 South Coast Conduit (Conduit) facilities constructed by the United States and managed by the 

I 09 Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation; 

J 10 (I) "Project Facilities'' shall mean the associated facilities, constructed as 

Ill features of the Cachuma Project; 

112 

113 

114 

115 

116 

117 

118 

119 

120 

121 

122 

123 

(m) "Project Water" shall mean all water that is developed, diverted, stored, or 

delivered by the Secretary in accordance with the statutes authorizing the Project and in 

accordance with the tenns and conditions of water rights acquired pursuant to California law; 

(n) "Rates" shall mean the amount to be paid to the United States by the 

Contractor, as set forth in Exhibit "B", for the use of Excess Capacity in the Project Facilities 

made available pursuant to this Contract; 

(o) "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Interior, a duly appointed 

successor, or an authorized representative acting pursuant to any authority of the Secretary and 

through any agency of the Department of the Interior; 

(p) "South Coast Member Units" shall mean Carpinteria Valley Water 

District, City of Santa Barbara, Goleta Water District and Montecito Water District; 

(q) "Spill" shall mean an event during which (i) the Lake surface is above the 

I 24 Maximum Conservation Storage Pool Elevation and releases are being made through the 

125 spillway, or (ii) releases are being made through the outlet works valves to maintain the Lake 

I 26 surface at the Maximum Conservation Storage Pool Elevation. "Maximum Conservation 

127 Storage Pool Elevation" is the elevation above which water may not be stored for the purpose of 

128 conservation under applicable law, regulation, or operating criteria and procedures. As of the 

129 effective date of this Contract, the Maximum Conservation Storage Pool Elevation is 750.0 feet 

130 above Mean Sea Level; 

6 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

131 (r) "Storage or Store" shall mean the retention of Non-Project Water in the 

132 Lake Cachuma for a period in excess of30 days; 

133 (s) "Year" shall mean the period from and including October P1 of the 

134 Calendar Year through September 30111 of the following Calendar Year. 

135 

136 

137 

138 

139 

140 

141 

142 

143 

144 

145 

146 

147 

148 

149 

150 

151 

152 

153 

TERM OF CONTRACT 

2. This Contract shall become effective on the date hereinabove written and shall 

remain in effect through September 30, 2024: Provided, That upon written notice to the 

Contractor, this Contract may be terminated by the Contracting Officer at an earlier date, if the 

Contracting Officer determines that the Contractor has not been complying with one or more 

terms or conditions of this Contract. 

fNTRODUCTION, STORAGE, CONVEYANCE, AND DELIVERY OF NON-PROJECT 

WATER 

3. (a) During the tenn of this Contract, the Contractor may introduce, Store 

and/or Convey up to 13,750 acre-feet each Year of Non-Project Water, as identified in Exhibit 

"C", into the Project Facilities at Lake Cachuma. In addition, Contractor may Store and/or 

Convey Non-Project Water introduced into the Project Facilities pursuant to Contract No. 5-07-

20-Wl282 for Year 2021 -2022 only, and further may introduce, Store and/or Convey Non

Project Water up to 10,000 acre-feet for the period comm.encing with the effective date of this 

Contract and continuing through September 30, 2022: Provided, however, that the total quantity 

of water introduced, Stored and/or Conveyed for the Year commencing on October 1, 2021 and 

ending on September 30, 2022, shall not exceed 13,750 acre-feet. ln addition, the Contractor 

may have the right to introduce and store additional Non-Project Water to the extent the 

Contractor determines that it has the need for such services and to the extent the Contracting 

7 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

154 Officer detennines that tlie necessary Excess Capacity is available. The United States, acting by 

!55 or through the designated Operating Non-Federal Entity, shall Store and/or Convey Non-Project 

156 Water through Excess Capacity in the Project Facilities from said point(s) of introduction for 

157 de1ivery to the Contractor's South Coast Participants at the Tunnel or other location(s) mutually 

158 agreed to in writing by the United States, acting by or through its agent the designated Operating 

159 Non-Federal Entity, and the Contractor, acting by or through the Contractor's South Coast 

160 Participants, in accordance with an approved schedule submitted by the Contractor pursuant to 

161 subdivision (d) of this Article: Provided, That the quantity of Non-Project Water to be Stored 

162 and/or Conveyed on behalf of the Contractor's South Coast Participants in/through Project 

163 Facilities shall not exceed the quantity ofNon-Project Water previously introduced into the 

164 Project Facilities by the Contractor at said point(s) of introductiol\. 

165 (a. I) In the event the quantity of water introduced by Contractor under this 

I 66 Contract exceeds the quantity ofNon-Project water authorized pursuant to subdivision (a) of this 

167 Article, the Operating Non-Federal Entity shall immediately take all reasonable actions to make 

168 available a like amount of water, plus conveyance toss, into the Project Facilities for use by the 

169 United States· for Project purposes. The provisions of this subdivision are not exclusive and shall 

170 not prohibit the United States from exercising any other remedy under existing law, including 

171 but not limited to the early tennination of this Contract pursuant to Article 2 of this Contract. 

172 (b) Exhibit "C'' may be modified or replaced by mutual agreement of the 

173 Contractor and the Contracting Officer to reflect changes to the Non-Project water without 

174 amendment of this Contract: Provided, however, That no such modification or replacement shall 

175 be approved by the Contracting Officer absent the completion of all appropriate environmental 

176 documentation, including but not limited to documents prepared pursuant to the National 

8 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

177 Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) and the Endangered Species Act of 1973 (ESA), as 

178 amended. 

179 

180 

181 

182 

183 

184 

185 

186 

187 

188 

189 

190 

191 

192 

193 

194 

195 

196 

197 

198 

(c) All Non-Project Water Stored and/or Conveyed and delivered to the 

Contractor's South Coast Participants pursuant to this Contract shall be used for Municipal and 

Industrial purposes. 

(d) Prior to the introduction ofNon-Project Water into the Project Facilities, 

the Contractor shall submit a schedule to the Contracting Officer and the designated Operating 

Non-Federal Entity showing the quantities of Non-Project Water to be introduced into the 

Project Facilities, Provided That the desired time or times for delivery of said Non-Project Water 

will be scheduled by the Contractor's South Coast Participants with the Operating Non-Federal 

Entity: Provided further, That the Contractor's South Coast Participants are not required to 

initially schedule delivery of the maximum quantity ofNon-Project Water for which the 

Contractor desires Storage and/or Conveyance during the term of this Contract. Contractor's 

schedule for introduction of Non-Project Water, and any revision(s) thereof, shall be in a fonn 

acceptable to the Contracting Officer and shall be submitted at such times and in such manner as 

determined by the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall not introduce Non-Project Water 

into the Project Facilities unless and until the schedule and any revision(s) thereof have been 

approved by the Contracting Officer. 

(e) All Non-Project Water remaining in the Project Facilities upon expiration 

or termination of this Contract shall be deemed to be unused water donated to the United States 

for Project purposes. Further, aU Non-Project Water introduced by Contractor into the Project 

Facilities and made available for delivery to the Contractor's South Coast Participants from the 

9 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

199 Project Facilities and not accepted by the Contractor's South Coast Participants shall be deemed 

200 to be unused water donated to the United States for Project purposes. 

201 (f) If Spill occurs from the Lake, the first water Spilled shall be deemed to be 

202 the Non-Project Water then in the Lake. No Non-Project Water shall be introduced into the Lake 

203 during a Spill: Provided. That the Contracting Officer will, to the extent possible, inform the 

204 Contractor by written notice, or otherwise, of any impending Spill from the Lake: and Provided 

205 further. That to the extent Non-Project Water is enroute to and/or Stored in the Lake, when the 

206 Contractor has been so informed, such Non-Project Water shall, at the Contractor's South Coast 

207 Participants' request. be released into the Tunnel or into the Santa Ynez River, to the extent the 

208 United States is able to do so as conclusively determined by the Contracting Officer. 

209 (g) The quantity of Non-Project Water shall be subject to seepage and/or 

21 0 evaporation loss when Stored in the Lake. The quantity of water which seeps or evaporates from 

211 the Lake shall be determined by the Contracting Officer in coordination with the Operating Non-

212 Federal Entity and prorated between the Non-Project Water and Project water on a monthly 

213 basis. 

214 (h) The Contracting Officer shall permit the Contractor to utilize Excess 

215 Capacity to Store andfor Convey Non-Project Water each Year prior to permitting such use by 

216 any other individual, agency or entity, excepting use of Excess Capacity by a Member Unit (or 

217 successor) pursuant to an agreement between the United States and that Member Unit, which use 

218 shall be considered to be of equal priority with a use of Excess Capacity by the Contractor. 

219 (i) Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Contracting Officer, the Non-

220 Project Water shall be introduced into the Lake and delivered to the Contractor's South Coast 

221 Participants through existing Project Facilities. If temporary inflow or delivery facilities are 

10 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

222 required to effectuate the introduction of Non-Project Water into the Project Facilities or the 

223 delivery of the Non-Project Water to the Contractor's South Coast Participants from the Project 

224 Facilities, the Contractor shall, at its own cost and expense obtain all appropriate environmental 

225 documents, necessary rights-of-way for such facilities, including the appropriate right of-use 

226 agreement(s) or other authorizations issued by the United States for any such facilities located on 

227 right-of-way for existing Project Facilities. The Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall be 

228 responsible for providing, installing, operating, maintaining, repairing, replacing, and removing 

229 said inflow and delivery facilities. The Contractor hereby grants to the Contracting Officer and 

230 the Operating Non-Federal Entity access, for the purposes of this Contract, to all temporary 

231 inflow and delivery facilities installed by the Contractor. 

232 (j) The introduction of Non-Project Water into the Project Facilities by the 

233 Contractor shall be conditioned upon compliance by the Contractor with the environmental 

234 measures described in the environmental documentation prepared in connection with the 

235 execution of this Contract and with the tenns of the applicable operations procedures approved 

236 by the Contracting Officer. 

237 

238 4. (a) 

MEASUREMENT OF NON-PROJECT WATER 

The quantity of Non-Project Water shall be measured and recorded prior 

239 to the point of introduction into the Lake and at the point of diversion from the Lake as provided 

240 in this article. 

24t (b) The Non-Project Water introduced into the Lake shall be measured and 

242 recorded at the Santa Ynez Pumping Plant by the Contractor with devices approved by the 

243 Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall examine, test and service the measuring and recording 

244 devices. Upon the written request of either party or at least once a Calendar Year, the Contractor 

11 



245 

246 

247 

248 

249 

250 

251 

252 

253 

254 

255 

256 

257 

258 

259 

260 

261 

262 

263 

264 

265 

266 

267 

Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

and the Contracting Officer shall investigate the accuracy of the measuring and recording 

devices required by this Contract and the Contractor shall promptly correct any errors in 

measurement or recording disclosed by such investigation. If such device is found to be 

defective or inaccurate, it shall be adjusted, repaired, or replaced without expense to the United 

States. In the event the Contractor neglects or fails to make such repairs or replacements within 

a reasonable time and to the reasonable satisfaction of the Contracting Officer, the Contracting 

Officer shall detennine the appropriate measurements to be used to implement this Contract 

pending the Contractor's completion of the necessary repairs or replacements. 

(c) The Non-Project water delivered from the Lake to the South Coast 

Participants shaU be measured and recorded at the Tunnel. The South Coast Participants 

currently provide for measurement and recordation of water delivered by or through a portion of 

the Project Facilities including the Tunnel, and are responsible for the accuracy and servicing of 

the measuring and recording devices at the Tunnel, which responsibilities are carried out through 

COMB. Therefore, the Contractor and/or the Contractor's South Coast Participants shall seek to 

engage the services of COMB or any successor entity thereof designated by the South Coast 

Member Units to measure and record the quantity of Non-Project Water at the Tunnel. If COMB 

or any successor entity declines or is unable to perform such service, the Contractor and/or the 

Contractor's South Coast Participants shall otherwise provide for measurement and recordation 

ofNon~Project Water diverted from the Lake including the accuracy of measuring and recording 

devices in a manner similar to that described in paragraph 4{b) above. 

(d) Upon the request of either party to this Contract, the Contracting Officer 

shall investigate, or cause to be investigated by the Operating Non-Federal Entity, the accuracy 

of all measurements of Non-Project Water required by this Contract. If the investigation 

12 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

268 discloses errors in the recorded measurements, such errors shall be promptly corrected. If the 

269 investigation discloses that measurement devices are defective or inoperative, the Contracting 

270 Officer shall take any necessary actions to ensure that the responsible party makes the 

271 appropriate adjustments, repairs, or replacements to the measurement devices. In the event the 

272 Contractor, as the responsible party, neglects or fails to make such adjustments, repairs, or 

273 replacements to the measurement devices within a reasonable time and to the reasonable 

274 satisfaction of the Contracting Officer, the Contracting Officer may cause such adjustments, 

275 repairs, or replacements to be made and the costs thereof shall be charged to the Contractor and 

276 the Contractor shall pay said charges to the United States immediately upon receipt of a detailed 

277 billing. For any period of time during which accurate measurements of the Non-Project Water 

278 have not been made, the Contracting Officer shall consult with the Contractor and the Operating 

279 Non-Federal Entity prior to making a determination of the quantity of Non-Project Water 

280 introduced, Stored and/or Conveyed and delivered for that period of time and such determination 

281 by the Contracting Officer shall be final and binding on the Contractor. 

282 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BY OPERATING NON-FEDERAL ENTITY 

283 5. (a) The operation and maintenance (O&M) of a portion of the Project 

284 Facilities to be used to introduce, Store and/or Convey and deliver the Non-Project Water to the 

285 Contractor's South Coast Participants, and responsibility for funding a portion of the costs of 

286 such O&M, have been transferred from the United States to the COMB, the designated 

287 Operating Non-Federal Entity, pursuant to a separate agreement, identified as amended Contract 

288 No. 14-06-200-5222R, as amended. That separate agreement shalt not interfere with or affect 

289 the rights or obligations of the Contractor or the United States hereunder. 

l3 



290 

291 

292 

293 

294 

295 

296 

297 

298 

299 

300 

301 

302 

303 

304 

Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

(b) The Contractor or the Contractor's South Coast Participants, if applicable~ 

may pay directly to the COMB, or to any successor approved by the Contracting Officer under 

the tenns and conditions of the separate agreement described in subdivision (a) of this Article 5, 

all rates, charges, or assessments of any kind, including any assessment for reserve funds, that 

the COMB or such successor determines, sets, or establishes for the operation and maintenance 

of the portion of the Project Facilities operated and maintained by the COMB or such successor 

used to Store and/or Convey and deliver the Non-Project Water to the Contractor's South Coast 

Participants. 

(c) For so long as the O&M of any portion of the Project Facilities used to 

Store and/or Convey and deliver the Non-Project Water to the Contractor's South Coast 

Participants is performed by the COMB, or any successor thereto, the Contracting Officer shall 

adjust those components of the Rates for the Non-Project Water Stored and/or Conveyed under 

this Contract by deleting the costs associated with the activity being performed by the COMB or 

its successor. 

(d) In the event the United States reassumes O&M of any portion of the 

305 Project Facilities from the Operating Non-Federal Bntity, the Contracting Officer shall so notify 

306 the Contractor, in writing, and shall revise the Rates on Exhibit "B .. to include the costs 

307 associated with the O&M activities reassumed by the United States. 

308 

309 6. (a) 

PAYMENTS AND ADJUSTMENTS 

At the time the Contractor submits a schedule, or any revision(s) thereof 

310 pursuant to subdivision (d) of Article 3 of this Contract, the Contractor shall make an advance 

31 1 payment to the United States equal to the total amount payable pursuant to the applicable Rates 

312 shown on Exhibit "B", revised each Year, for each acre-foot of Non-Project Water to be 

14 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

313 introduced into the Project Facilities: Provided, however, a reconciliation for Contract No. 5-07-

314 20-W1282 will be perfonned for the period October 1, 2021 through the effective date of this 

315 Contract. Contractor shall be credited for overpayment and will be billed for any outstanding 

316 obligations with regard to Contract No. 5-07-20-WI282. Non-Project Water shall not be 

317 introduced into Project Facilities by the Contractor prior to such payment being received by the 

318 United States. 

319 

320 

321 

322 

323 

324 

325 

326 

327 

328 

329 

330 

331 

332 

333 

334 

335 

(b) In the event the quantity of water delivered by the Operating Non-Federal 

Entity to the Contractor's South Coast Participants exceeds the quantity of Non-Project Water 

authorized to be introduced into the Project Facilities pursuant to subdivision (a) of Article 3 of 

this Contract, that additional amount of water shall be deemed Project water delivered to the 

South Coast Participants in accordance with subdivision (a)(i) of Article 3 of this Contract. The 

Contracting Officer in coordination with the Contractor may invoke provisions not described 

herein to resolve the unauthorized delivery of water. The provisions of this subdivision are not 

exclusive and shall not prohibit the United States from exercising any other remedy, including 

but not limited to the early tennination of this Contract pursuant to Article 2 of this Contract. 

(c) The amount of any overpayment by the Contractor by reason of the 

quantity of Non-Project Water introduced into the Project Facilities and Stored and/or Conveyed 

pursuant to this Contract, as conclusively detennined by the Contracting Officer, having been 

less than the quantity which the Contra~tor otherwise under the provisions of this Contract would 

have been required to pay for, shall be applied first to any accrued indebtedness arising out of 

this Contract then due and owing to the United States by the Contractor. Any an1ount of such 

overpayment then remaining shall be refunded to the Contractor: Provided, however, That no 

refund shall be made by the United States to the Contractor for any quantity of Non-Project 

15 



336 

337 

338 

339 

340 

341 

342 

343 

344 

345 

346 

347 

348 

349 

350 

351 

352 

353 

354 

355 

356 

357 

358 

Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

Water deemed to be unused water donated to the United States for Project purposes pursuant to 

subdivision (e) of Article 3 of this Contract. 

(d) All payments made by the Contractor pursuant to subdivision (a) of this 

Article 6 shall be covered into the Reclamation Fund pursuant to Section 3 of the Act of 

February 21 , 191 1 (36 Stat. 925). 

(e) The payment of the Rates set forth in this Article 6 for the use of Excess 

Capacity are exclusive of any applicable O&M costs to be paid directly to the Operating Non

Federal Entity by the Contractor. In accordance with the Act ofFebruary 21, 1911 (36 Stat. 

925), the Contractor may not impose on its water users any charge for the use of Excess 

Capacity, as applicable, that exceeds the total amount paid to the United States and to the 

Operating Non-Federal Entity: Provided, That the Contractor may not impose on Contractor's 

Participants any charge for the use of Excess Capacity, as applicable, that exceeds the total 

amount paid to the United States and to the Operating Non-Federal Entity: Provided, That the 

Contractor may also charge its water users such additional amounts as are necessary to cover the 

Contractor's reasonable administrative costs in contracting with the United States for the use of 

Excess Capacity in the Project Facilities. 

MEDIUM FOR TRANSMITfrNG PAYMENTS 

7. (a) All payments from the Contractor to the United States under this Contract 

shall be by the medium requested by the United States on or before the date payment is due. The 

required method of payment may include checks, wire transfers, or other types of payment 

specified by the United States. 

(b) Upon execution of the Contract, the Contractor shall furnish the 

Contracting Officer with the Contractor's taxpayer's identification number (TrN). The purpose 

16 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

359 for requiring the Contractor's TIN is for collecting and reporting any delinquent amounts arising 

360 out of the Contractor's relationship with the United States. 

EXCESS CAP A CITY 361 

362 8. (a) The availability of Excess Capacity shall be determined solely by the 

363 Contracting Officer. Nothing contained in this Contract shall limit or preclude the United States 

364 from utilizing available capacity in the Project Facilities for the storage and conveyance of 

365 Project Water pursuant to Federal law, Reclamation law or policy, and existing contract(s); or for 

366 using Excess Capacity in the Project Facilities for the storage and conveyance of any other 

367 supplies ofNon-Project Water. 

368 (b) The Contracting Officer and the Operating Non-Federal Entity shall not be 

369 obligated to Store and/or Convey Non-Project Water during periods of maintenance or for other 

370 operating requirements. 

371 (c) If at any time the Contracting Officer determines that there will not be 

372 Excess Capacity in the Project Facilities sufficient to allow the Non-Project Water to be 

373 introduced into, Stored and/or Conveyed, and delivered in accordance with an approved schedule 

374 submitted by the Contractor, the Contracting Officer shall so notify the Contractor in writing. 

375 Within 24 hours of said notice, the Contractor shall revise its schedule accordingly. 

376 {d) No provision of this Contract shaH be construed in any way as a basis for 

377 the Contractor to establish a priority to or a pennanent right to the use of Excess Capacity in the 

378 Project Facilities nor to set a precedent to obligate the United States to enter into contracts with 

379 any other entities or individuals for the conveyance or storage of Non-Project Water. 

380 ACREAGE LIMITATION PROVISIONS 

381 9. (a) Omitted 

17 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

382 RECEIPT AND DISTRlBUTION OF NON-PROJECT WATER SALE, TRANSFER, OR 
383 EXCHANGE OF NON-PROJECT WATER 

384 10. (a) The parties hereto acknowledge that this Contract does not grant any 
385 permission or entitlement to the Contractor to extract and/or divert Non-Project Water, as 
386 described on Exhibit "C", or to change the nature or place of use of its rights to said Non~ Project 
387 Water in any way. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to comply with all applicable 
388 Federal, State, and local laws, rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, State water Jaw 
389 in relation to the Non-Project Water. It is expressly understood by the parties that the United 
390 States is only providing Storage and Conveyance capacity for the Non-Project Water and does 
391 not claim any interest in the acquisition or use of the Non ... Project Water beyond the temts 
392 specifically set forth in this Contract. 

393 (b) The Contracting Officer makes no representations as to the accuracy of the 

394 description or ofthe validity ofthe Contractor's rights to the Non-Project Water described in 

395 Exhibit "C". 

396 WATERCONSERVATION 

397 11 . (a) Prior to the conveyance of water provided from or conveyed through 
398 federally constructed or federally financed facilities pursuant to this Contract, the Contractor's 
399 South Coast Participants shall develop a water conservation plan consistent with the plans 
400 required by subsection 210(b) of the Reclamation Refomt Act of 1982 and 43 C.F.R. 427.1 
401 (Water Conservation Rules and Regulations). 

402 UNITED STATES NOT LlABLE 

403 12. (a) The United States, its officers, agents and employees, including the 

404 Operatiflg Non-Federal Entity, shall not be responsible for the control, care, or distribution of the 

405 Non-Project Water before it is introduced into or after it is delivered from the Project Facilities . 

406 It is specifically understood by the parties hereto that the United States is only providing Storage 

407 and/or Conveyance capacity for the Non-Project Water and does not claim any interest in the 

408 Non-Project Water beyond the temts specifically set forth in this Contract. 

409 (b) The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the United States, its 

410 officers, agents and employees from any loss or damage and from any liability on account of 

411 personal injury, death, or property damage, or claims for personal injury, death, or property 

18 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

412 damage, of any nature whatsoever arising out of any actions or omissions of the Contractor, its 

413 directors, officers, agents, contractors, and employees, under this Contract, including the manner 

414 or method in which the Non-Project Water identified on Exhibit "C" is introduced into the 

415 Project Facilities. The Contractor further releases the United States, its officers, agents and 

416 employees from every claim for injury to persons, death, or property damage, direct or indirect, 

417 resulting from the Contracting Officer's determination of the quantity of Excess Capacity 

4 l 8 available in the Project Facilities for Storage and/or Conveyance of the Contractor's Non-Project 

419 Water, the determination pursuant to Article 3 that the Non-Project Water introduced into Project 

420 Facilities must be terminated, and the elimination from Exhibit "C" of any source(s) of Non-

421 Project Water. Nothing contained in this Article shall be construed as an assumption ofliability 

422 by the Conttactor with respect to such matters. 

423 RULES. REGULATIONS. OPINIONS AND DETERMINA TlONS 

424 I 3. (a) The parties agree that the delivery of water or the use of Federal facilities 
425 pursuant to this Contract is subject to Federal reclamation law, as amended and supplemented, 
426 and the rules and regulations promulgated by the Secretary of the Interior under Federal 
427 reclamation law. 

428 (b) The Contracting Officer shall have the right to make detenninntions 
429 necessary to administer this Contract that are consistent with the provisions of this Contract, the 
430 laws ofthe United States and the State of California, and the rules and regulations promulgated 
431 by the Secretary of the Interior. Such determinations shall be made in consultation with the 
432 Contractor. 

433 (c) Where the terms of this Contract provide for actions to be based upon the 

434 opinion or determination of either party to this Contract, said terms shall not be construed as 

435 pennitting such action to be predicated upon arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable opinions or 

436 detenninations. Both parties, notwithstanding any other provisions of this Contract, expressly 

437 reserve the right to seek relief from and appropriate adjustment for any such arbitrary, capricious, 

438 or unreasonable opinion or detennination. Each opinion or detennination by either party shall be 

19 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

439 provided in a timely manner. Nothing in subdivision (c) of this Article 13 is intended to or shall 

440 affect or alter the standard of judicial review applicable under Federal law to any opinion or 

441 detcnnination implementing a specific provision of Federal law embodied in statute or 

442 regulation. 

443 PROTECTION OF WATER AND AIR QUALITY 

444 14. (a) Project Facilities used to make available and deliver Non-Project Water to 
445 the· Contractor's South Coast Participants shall be operated and maintained in the most practical 
446 manner to maintain the quality ofthe Non-Project Water at the highest level possible as 
447 detennined by the Contracting Officer: Provided, That tbe United States does not warrant the 
448 quality of the Non-Project Water delivered to the Contractor's South Coast Participants and is 
449 under no obligation to furnish or construct water treatment facilities to maintain or improve the 
450 quality of the Non-Project Water delivered to Contractor's South Coast Participants. 

451 (b) The Contractor shall comply with all applicable water and air pollution 
452 laws and regulations of the United States and the State of California; and will obtain all required 
453 pennits or licenses from the appropriate Federal, State, or local authorities necessary for the 
454 introduction of Non-Project Water by the Contractor; and will be responsible for compliance 
455 with all Federal, State, and local water quality standards applicable to surface and subsurface 
456 drainage and/or discharges generated through the use of Project Facilities or Contractor facilities 
457 or Non-Project Water provided by the Contractor within the Contractor's Boundaries. 

458 (c) This Article L4 shall not affect or alter any legal obligations ofthe 
459 Secretary to provide drainage or other discharge services. 

460 {d) The Non-Project Water introduced into the Project Facilities shall be of 

461 such quality, as determined solely by the Contracting Officer, as to not significantly degrade the 

462 quality of the Project Water. If it is determined by the Contracting Officer that the quality of the 

463 Non-Project Water, as identified in Exhibit "C", will significantly degrade the quality of Project 

464 Water in or introduced into the Project Facilities, the Contractor shall, upon receipt of a written 

465 notice from the Contracting Officer, acrange for the immediate termination of the introduction of 

466 such Non-Project Water into the Project Facilities, and Exhibit "C" shall be modified 

467 accordingly. 

20 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

468 (e) Exhibit "0'' identifies the minimum water quality standards for 

469 monitoring the quality ofNon-Project Water introduced by the Contractor into Project Facilities. 

470 Exhibit "0" identifies the laboratories approved by the Contracting Officer that are to be used for 

471 conducting water quality analyses. The Contractor is responsible for sampling and analytical 

472 costs associated with evaluating quality of the Non-Project Water. Non-Project Water 

473 introduced into Project Facilities for purposes of water quality testing is considered Project 

474 water. 

475 (f) At all times during the term of this Contract, the Contractor shall be in 

476 compliance with the requirements of the then-current Quality Assurance Project Plan (Plan) 

477 approved by the Contracting Officer to monitor Non-Project Water introduced into, stored in and 

478 conveyed through the Project Facilities. The Plan describes the sample collection procedures, 

479 water testing methods, and data review process, including quality control/quality assurance 

480 protocols, to verify analytical results. 

481 {g) The Contracting Officer reserves the right to require additional analyses to 

482 ensure the Non-Project Water meets the Bureau of Reclamation's water quality acceptance 

483 criteria. 

484 CHARGES FOR DELINQUENT PAYMENTS 

485 15. (a) The Contractor shall be subject to interest, administrative, and penalty 
486 charges on delinquent payments. If a payment is not received by the due date, the Contractor 
487 shall pay an interest charge on the delinquent payment for each day the payment is delinquent 
488 beyond the due date. [fa payment becomes 60 days delinquent, the Contractor shall pay, in 
489 addition to the interest charge, an administrative charge to coyer additional costs of billing and 
490 processing the delinquent payment. If a payment is delinquent 90 days or more, the Contractor 
491 shall pay in addition to the interest and administrative charges, a penalty charge for each day the 
492 payment is delinquent beyond the due date, based on the remaining balance of the payment due 
493 at the rate of 6 percent per year. The Contractor shall also pay any fees incurred for debt 
494 collection services associated with a delinquent payment. 

21 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

495 (b) The interest charge rate shall be the greater of either the rate prescribed 
496 quarterly in the Federal Register by the Department of the Treasury for application to overdue 
497 payments or the interest rate of0.5 percent per month. The interest charge rate will be 
498 determined as of the due date and remain fixed for the duration of the delinquent period. 

499 (c) When a partial payment on a delinquent account is received, the amount 
500 received shall be applied first to the penalty charges, second to the administrative charges, third 
501 to the accrued interest, and finally to the overdue payment. 

502 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

503 The following language is required by Executive Order No. 1 I 246 of September 24, 1965, in all 
504 government contracts unless and until it is superseded or amended. 

505 16. During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor agrees as follows: 

506 (a) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
507 employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national 
508 origin. The Contractor will take affinnative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and 
509 that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, 
510 sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be 
511 limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or 
512 recruitment advertising; layoff or tennination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and 
513 selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous 
514 places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the 
515 Contracting Officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

516 (b) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees 
517 placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive 
518 consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 
519 gender identity, or national origin. 

5.20 (c) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate 
521 against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has 
522 inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another 
523 employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has 
524 access to the compensation infonnation of other employees or applicants as a part of such 
525 employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or 
526 applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such 
527 disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, 
52& proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is 
529 consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information. 

530 (d) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers 
531 with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, 
532 to be provided by the Contracting Officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of 
533 the Contractor's commitments under Section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 

22 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

534 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
535 applicants for employment. 

536 (e) The Contractor will comply with all provisions ofExecutive Order No. 
537 11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and ofthe rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of 
538 Labor. 

539 (f) The Contractor will furnish aU information and reports required by 
540 Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of 
541 the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and 
542 accounts by the Contracting Agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to 
543 ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

544 (g) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination 
545 clauses of this Contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this Contract may be 
546 canceled, tenninated or suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared 
547 ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in 
548 Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and 
549 remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, 
550 regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

551 (h) The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (a) through (h) in 
552 every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by the rules, regulations, or orders of the 
553 Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 
554 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor:. The Contractor 
555 wilt take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the 
556 Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for 
557 noncompliance: Provided, however, That in the event the Contractor becomes involved in, or is 
558 threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the 
559 Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of 
560 the United States. 

561 CERTIFICATION OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES 

562 17. The Contractor hereby certifies that it does not maintain or provide for its 
563 employees any segregated facilities at any of its establishments and that it does not permit its 
564 employees to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities 
565 are maintained. It certifies further that it will not maintain or provide for its employees any 
566 segregated facilities at any of its establislunents and that it wilt not permit its employees to 
567 perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities are 
568 maintained. The Contractor agrees that a breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal 
569 Employment Opportunity clause in this Contract. As used in this certification, the term 
570 ~'segregated facilities" means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms, 
571 restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, 
572 parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing 
573 facilities provided for employees which are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact 

23 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

574 segregated on the basis of race, creed, color, or national origin, because of habit, local custom, 
575 disability, or otherwise. The Contractor further agrees that (except where it has obtained 
576 identical certifications from proposed subcontractors for specific time periods) it will obtain 
577 identical certifications from proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts 
578 exceeding $10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions ofthe Equal Employment 
579 Opportunity clause; that it will retain such certifications in its files; and that it will forward the 
580 following notice to such proposed subcontractors (except where the proposed subcontractors 
581 have submitted identical certifications for specific time periods): 

582 NOTICE TO PROSPECTIVE SUBCONTRACTORS OF REQUIREMENT FOR 
583 CERTIFICATIONS OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES 

584 A Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities must be submitted prior to the award 
585 of a subcontract exceeding $1 0,000 which is not exempt from the provisions of 
586 the Equal Employment Opportunity clause. The certification may be submitted 
587 either for each subcontract or for all subcontracts during a period (i.e~, quarterly, 
588 semiannually, or annually). Note: The penalty for making false statements in 
589 offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. 1001. 

590 COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS AND REGULA T10NS 

591 18. (a) The Contractor shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
592 (Pub. L. 88-352; 42 U.S.C. § 2000d), the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112, Title V, as 
593 amended; 29 U.S.C. § 791, et seq.), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-135, 
594 Title III; 42 U.S.C. § 6101, et seq.), [Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 
595 (Pub. L. 1 01-336; 42 U.S.C. § 12131, et seq.),] and any other applicable civil rights laws, and 
596 with the applicable implementing regulations and any guidelines imposed by the U.S. 
597 Department of the Interior and/or Bureau of Reclamation. 

598 (b) These statutes prohibit any person in the United States from being 
599 excluded from participation in, being denied the benefits of. or being otherwise subjected to 
600 discrimination under any program or activity receiving financial assistance from the Bureau of 
601 Reclamation on the grounds of race, color, national origin, disability, or age. By executing this 
602 contract, the Contractor agrees to immediately take any measures necessary to implement this 
603 obligation, including permitting officials of the United States to inspect premises, programs, and 
604 documents. 

605 (c) The Contractor makes this agreement in consideration of and for the 
606 purposeofobtaining any and all Federal grants, loans, contracts, property discounts, or other 
607 Federal financial assistance extended after the date hereof to the Contractor by the Bureau of 
608 Reclamation, including installment payments after such date on account of arrangements for 
609 Federal financial assistance which were approved before such date. The Contractor recognizes 
610 and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance on the representations and 
611 agreements made in this Ar1icle and that the United States reserves the right to seek judicial 
612 enforcement thereof. 

24 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

61 3 (d) Complaints of discrimination against the Contractor shall be investigated 
614 by the Contracting Officer's Office of Civil Rights. 

615 GENERAL OBLIGATION - BENEFITS CONDITIONED UPON PAYMENT 

616 19. (a) The obligation ofthe Contractor to pay the United States as provided in 
617 this Contract is a general obligation ofthe Contractor notwithstanding the manner in which the 
618 obligation may be distributed among the Contractor's water users and notwithstanding the 
619 default of individual water users in their obligation to the Contractor. 

620 (b} The payment of charges becoming due pursuant to this Contract is a 
621 condition precedent to receiving benefits under this Contract. The United States shaH not make 
622 Non-Project Water available to the Contractor's South Coast Participants through Project 
623 Facilities during any period in which the Contractor is in arrears in the advance payment of Rates 
624 and charges due the United States. The Contractor .shall not deliver Non-Project Water under the 
625 tenns and conditions of this Contract for lands or parties that are in arrears in the advance 
626 payment of rates and charges as levied or established by the Contractor. 

627 BOOKS, RECORDS, AND REPORTS 

628 20. (a) The Contractor sbaU establish and maintain accounts and other books and 
629 records pertaining to administration ofthe terms and conditions of this Contract, including the 
630 Contractor's financial transactions; water supply data; Project operation, maintenance, and 
631 replacement logs; Project land and rights-of-way use agreements; the water users' land-use (crop 
632 census), land-ownership, land-leasing, and water-use data; and other matters that the Contracting 
633 Officer may require. Reports shall be furnished to the Contracting Officer in such fonn and on 
634 such date or dates as the Contracting Officer may require. Subject to applicable Federal Laws 
635 and regulations, each party to this contract shall have the right during office hours to examine 
636 and make copies of the other party's books and records relating to matters covered by this 
637 contract. 

638 (b) Nothing in this Article 20 shall be construed to limit or constrain the 

639 ability of the Bureau of Reclamation to conduct contract compliance reviews of this Contract in 

640 accordance with Reclamation Manual Directives and Standards PEC 05-08, last revised October 

641 11, 2019, as may be further revised, amended, modified, or superseded. 

642 CONTINGENT UPON APPROPRIATION OR ALLOTMENT OF FUNDS 

643 21. The expenditure or advance of any money or the performance of any obligation of 
644 the United States under this contract shall be contingent upon appropriation or allotment of 
645 funds. Absence of appropriation or allotment of funds shall not relieve the Contractor from any 
646 obligations under this contract. No liability shaH accrue to the United States in case funds are 
64 7 not appropriated or allotted. 

25 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

648 ASSIGNMENT LIMlTED- SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS OBLIGA 'ffiD 

649 22. The provisions of this Contract shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns 
650 ofthe parties hereto, but no assignment or transfer of this Contract or any right or interest therein 
651 by either party shall be valid until approved in writing by the other party. 

652 OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT 

653 23. No Member of or Delegate to the Congress, Resident Commissioner, or official of 
654 the Contractor shalJ benefit from this Contract other than as a water user or landowner in the 
655 same manner as other water users or landowners. 

656 CHANGES IN CONTRACTORS ORGANIZATION 

657 24. While this Contract is in effect, no change may be made in the Contractor's 
658 organization, by inclusion or exclusion of lands or by any other changes which may affect the 
659 respective rights, obligations, privileges, and duties of either the United States or the Contractor 
660 under this Contract including, but not limited to, dissolution, consolidation. or merger, except 
661 upon the Contracting Officer's written consent. 

662 NOTICES 

663 25. Any notice, demand, or request authorized or required by this Contract shall be 
664 deemed to have been given, on behalf of the Contractor, when mailed, postage prepaid, or 
665 delivered to Bureau of Reclamation, Area Manager, South-Central California Area Office, 1243 
666 N Street, Fresno, California 93 72 I, and on behalf of the United States, when mailed, postage 
667 prepaid, or delivered to Central Coast Water Authority, 255 Industrial Way, Buellton, CA 93427. 
668 The designation of the addressee or the address may be changed by notice given in the same 
669 manner as provided in this Article for other notices. 

670 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS 

671 26. Exhibits "A" through "D" are attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
672 reference. 

673 CONTRACT DRAFTING CONSIDERATIONS 

674 27. This Contract has been negotiated and reviewed by the parties hereto, each of 
675 whom is sophisticated in the matters to which this Contract pertains. The double-spaced articles 
676 of this Contract have been drafted, negotiated, and reviewed by the parties, and no one party 
677 shall be considered to have drafted the stated articles. 

26 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

678 IN WiTNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract as of 
679 the day and year first above written. 

680 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

681 By:--------------
682 Area Manager 
683 South-Centr~l California Area Office 
684 Interior Region 10: California-Great Basin 
685 Bureau of Reclamation 

686 
687 (SEAL) 

688 
689 
690 Attest: 

CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

By: - - - ---,-.,-------,---,------
President of the Board of Directors 

691 By:----.,------.,----------~----
692 Secretary of the Board of Directors 

27 



.!f.:, .d:o 'lfh .• c ·~~ _)q' i'&'5 :~6~ 

Kern County ~ 

.305 17". JQ<, 10': 30; i':!E 

llas""-9,." San lui·S Qb,ispc:> C:·oun\ y 
~,"'-.. 

)IS ISE 31; ~\,1' 3l'i p~ ~IS Ti'~ J1S l!'r ! i .'<.· 

\ 

11tl27''/ i l:·l~:WI llN2SW 
IIN2llW 

10i-!JOW 
li.<H >< ~') 1(iN 27W 

YN ?.0\V 
9t~ ?aw :m nw ~lN 26W 

Santa B arb a r a C:·o u n t.y 

"'·• ·, /'t.' eN 26V/ il: 25V/ 

Santa Vnez RWCD 
Improvement District No.1 

Tecolote Tunnel 

(g Contractor's Boundary Local Connection 

- California Aqueduct CCWA Extention 

Conduit 

A Dam 

Pumping Plant 

Tank 

-- Coastal Branch, Phase II - Tunnel * Water Treatment Plant Turnout 0 

Wasco 
?'?'(, ?-·.. 27' ·5 

Ventura Coun.ty 
. •/ •\• 

IC 



Contract No; 22-WC-20-5954 

EXHIBITB 

CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 
YEAR 20221 

(Per Acre-Foot) 

·---· 

O&M Cost Component 
Water Marketi_!lg -
Storage 

---

Water 

$29.75 
$62.59 - c.-.....,... 

-:9~~3~ --·-j XO&M I '---·- - -- -·-- --· -- -··· -· 
~--Conveyance 

-·-~---· " 

O&M Sub-Total 

I i .. _ .. ,., 
Capital Compone~t .. _ -· ___ $0.00 I - 1 

Deficit Rate $0.00 --··- ·-····---- --- -------

----·- --
~Total Water Rate: $95.39 
:----··- ·- -- -··- --·- - -- -
' -· 

EXPLANATORY NOTES: 

I. Exhibit ''B" Period coverage begins on 07101 /2022 to 09/30/2022. Exhibit "B" is 
adjusted annually beginning on October 1st of each year. 

Directives and Standards PEC 05-10 and PEC 05-11 refer to the following link: 
https://www.usbr.gov/recman/DandS.html 

03:'1812022 slf 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

EXHIBITC 

SOURCE(S) OF CONTRACTOR'S 
NON-PROJECT WATER 

SOURCE: "Non-Project Water" means water not appropriated by the United States for the 
Project which is acquired by or available to the Contractor from or through the State Water 
Project from the following sources: 

State Water Project water acquired by or available to the Contractor from the State Water 
Project, including but not limited to State Water Project water previously stored in a surface 
water reservoir or groundwater bank; and water from sources other than the State Water Project, 
including but not limited to the Sacramento River watershed and the San Joaquin-Sacramento 
Delta, acquired by or available to the Contractor and conveyed to the Contractor through the 
State Water Project, which conveyance requires the approval ofDWR pursuant to the Water 
Supply Contract. 

POINTS OF INTRODUCTION AND DELIVERY: Non-Project water introduced into Lake 
Cachuma shall be measured and recorded at the Santa Ynez Pumping Plant. Non-Project water 
diverted from Lake Cachuma shall be measured and recorded at the Tecolote Tunnel and 
conveyed thro1.1gh the South Coast Conduit for delivery to the South Coast Member Units. 



Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 

EXHIBITD 

WATER QUALITY STANDARDS 

CCW A monitors water quality within its facilities. Prior to its introduction into Lake Cachuma, 
CCWA water is treated in CCWA 's Polonio Pass Water Treatment Plant in San Luis Obispo 
County to applicable drinking water standards. This treatment process includes adding 
chloramine (a mix of chlorine and ammonia) to the water. From the Polonio Pass Water 
Treatment Plant, CCWA 's water is conveyed to the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility where it is 
treated with sodium bisulfite to remove the chloramine before the water is conveyed to Bradbury 
Dam for introduction into Cachuma Project facilities. 

Built-in safety systems at the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility automatically shut off the pumps if a 
chlorine concentration?. 0.05 mg/L is detected, or if residual sodium bisulfite concentrations 
drop to 0.1 mg/L or rise above 1 rng/L. Slightly more sodium bisulfite is added to the water than 
needed to completely neutralize the chlorine, which results in a small amount of unreacted 
sodium bisulfite left in the water (i.e. >0.1 mg!L and :5 1 mg!L). Based on ~e chemistry of the 
chemical reaction between sodium bisulfite and chloramine, as long as there is a detectable 
sodium bisulfite concentration in the water there is no free chlorine left in the water {i.e., 
chlorine residual is 0 mg!L) 



Notice of Exemption 

To: Office of Planning and Research 

Post Office Box 3044, Room 113 

Sacramento, California 95812-3044 

Clerk of the Board 

County of Santa Barbara 

105 E. Anapamu Street, Room 407 

Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

From: Central Coast Water Authority 

255 Industrial Way 

Buellton, CA 93427 

Exhibit 2 

Project Title: Temporary Warren Act Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 between Central Coast Water Authority 

and United States Bureau of Reclamation 

Location- Specific: United States Bureau of Reclamation's ("Reclamation") existing Cachuma Project 

facilities (i.e., Bradbury Dam and lake Cachuma, Tecolote Tunnel, and the South Coast Conduit), the lower 

Santa Ynez River below Bradbury Dam, and the service areas of Central Coast Water Authority's South 

Coast Participants (Carpinteria Valley Water District, the City of Santa Barbara, Goleta Water District, 

Montecito Water District, La Cumbre Mutual Water Company, La Cumbre Mutual Water Company, 

Morehart Land Co., and Raytheon Systems Co.). 

locat ion- County: Santa Barbara County 

Description of Activity: Approval of a short-term Warren Act Contract between Central Coast Water 
Authority (''CCWA") and Reclamation, Contract No. 22-WC-20-5954 (the ''Temporary Warren Act 
Contract''). The Temporary Warren Act Contract is necessary to continue the annual introduction, storage, 
and conveyance of up to 13,750 acre-feet of water acquired by or available to CCWA from or through the 
State Water Project ("SWP") into Cachuma Project facilities for delivery to CCWA's South Coast Participants 
beyond June 2022, when CCWA's existing 25-year Warren Act Contract (Contract No. 5-07-20-W1282) 
expires. The term of the Temporary Warren Act Contract will extend through September 30,2024. 

Name of Public Agency Approving or Carrying Out Activity: Central Coast Water Authority 

Exempt Status: 

0 Ministerial 

0 Declared Emergency 

0 Emergency Project 

0 Categorical Exemption 

D Statutory Exemption (Not a Project Under CEQA) 

23970461 



Reasons why activity is exempt: 

CEQA Guidelines section 15301 (14 Cal. Code Regs. § 15301 [Class 1 exemption]) sets forth an exemption 
from CEQA for the operation and permitting of existing facilities involving negligible or no expansion of 
existing or former use. CEQA Guidelines section 15304 (14 Cal. Code Regs. § 15304 [Class 4 exemption]) 
further provides an exemption for "minor public or private alterations in the condition of land, water, 
and/or vegetation which do not involve removal of healthy, mature, scenic trees except for forestry and 
agricultural purposes." The Temporary Warren Act Contract is exempt because it will continue to allow the 
annual introduction, storage, and conveyance of up to 13,750 acre-feet of water acquired by or available to 
CCWA from or thro1..1gh the SWP into Cachuma Project facilities for delivery to the CCWA South Coast 
Participants and will therefore not expand the use of Cachuma Project facilities beyond that now permitted 
by CCWA's existing 25-year Warren Act Contract. 

None of the exceptions to use of an exemption set forth fn CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2 apply and the 
Temporary Warren Act Contract will not have a significant impact on the environment where it will 
continue to allow the annual introduction, storage, and conveyance of the same quantity of water available 
to CCWA from or through the SWP into Cachuma Project facilities as has been authorized for the last 25 
years. Under the Temporary Warren Act Contract, CCWA water would continue to be introduced and 
conveyed through Cachuma Project facilities (i.e., Bradbury Dam outlet works, Stilling Basin, Lake Cachuma, 
North Intake of the Tecolote Tunnel, and the South Coast Conduit) to the CCWA Participants located along 
the South Coast Conduit. No modifications to existing infrastructure or construction would occur. 

Through the Temporary Warren Act Contract, measures to avoid and minimize effects to listed species1 

including the Southern California Steelhead (Oncorhynchus mykiss) Distinct Population Segment will be 
implemented. Reclamation issued an Environmental Assessment ("EA") pursuant to the National 
Environmental Policy Act for the Temporary Warren Act Contract on March 25, 2022, and the public 
comment period closed on April 22, 2022. Reclamation's approval of the Temporary Warren Act Contract is 
contingent on its issuance of a Finding of No Significant Impact (''FONSI") concluding that issuance of the 
Temporary Warren Act Contract would not have a significant impact on the environment. Reclamation has 
indicated that it will issue its FONSI after obtaining concurrence from the National Marine Fisheries Service 
that issuance of the Temporary Warren Act Contract would have either no effect on species listed under 
the Endangered Species Act. o r would be not likely to adversely affect such species or their critfcal habitat. 

As more fully described in Reclamation's EA, over the last 25 years, CCWA has monitored and studied its 
operations under its existing long~term 25-year Warren Act Contract, including water quality and 
temperature. Through its monitoring, CCWA has not identified any information suggesting that that there is 
a reasonable possibility that the continued conveyance of 13,750 acre-feet of water pursuant to the 
Temporary Warren Act Contract will have a significant effect on the environment. 

Agency Contact Person: Ray Stokes Telephone: (805) 688-2292 

Signature: Date: ______________________ __ 

Ray Stokes 

Title: Executive Director, Centraf Coast Water Authority 

Date received for f iling OPR: --------

23970461 



-BUREAU OF

RECLAMATION 

Central Coast Water Authority 
Temporary Warren Act Contract 

CGB-EA-2022-023 
Draft Environmental Assessment 

U.S. Department of the Interior March 2022 



Mission Statements 
The U.S. Department of the Interior protects and manages the 
Nation's natural resources and cultural heritage; provides scientific 
and other information about those resources; and honors its trust 
responsibilities or special commitments to American Indians, Alaska 
Natives, and affiliated Island Communities. 

The mission of the Bureau of Reclamation is to manage, develop, and 
protect water and related resources io an environmentally and 
economically sound manner in the interest of the American public. 



Contents 
Page 

1 Introduction .......................................................... ............................................................... 1 
1.1 Background ....... ................................................................................................................................... . 1 
1.2 Purpose and Need for the Proposed Action .................................................................................... 2 

2 Alternatives Including Proposed Action .............................................. ............................... 2 
2.1 No Action Alternative ......................................................................................................................... 2 
2.2 Proposed Action ................................................. .................................................................................. 2 

2.2.1 Introduction of CCW A Water into Cachuma Project Facilities ...................................... 3 
2.2.2 CCWA Water T reatment ............................................ ......... , ................................................. 3 
2.2.3 Conservation Measures .......................................................................................................... 4 

3 Affected Environment and Environmental Consequences ................................................. S 
3.1 Resources Eliminated from Further Analysis .................................................................................. 5 

3.1.1 Air Quality ............................................................................................................................... 5 
3.1.2 Climate Change ....................................................................................................................... 5 
3.1.3 Cultural Resources.-............................................................................................................... 6 
3.1.4 Environmental Justice .. .................................................................................... ...................... 6 
3.1.5 Indian Sacred Sites .................................................................................................................. 6 
3. 1.6 Indian Trust Assets ................................................................................................................ 6 

3.2 Biological Resources ............................................................................................................. , .............. 6 
3.2.1 Mfected Environment .............................. .............. ............. .................................................. 6 
3.2.2 Environmental Consequences ..................................... - ..................................................... 11 

3.2.2.1 No Action ................................................. .................................................................... 11 
3.2.2.2 Proposed Action .......................................................................................................... 11 

3.3 Water Resources ............................................... .................................................................................. 13 
3.3.1 Affected Environrnent ............................... ................................................... ....................... 13 

3.3.1.1 Cachuma Project .......................................................................................................... 13 
3.3.1.2 Lower Santa Ynez River ............................................................................................. 13 
3.3.1.3 Lake Cachuma Water Quality .......................................................... .......................... 13 
3.3.1.4 SWP Water Quality ...................................................................................................... 14 
3.3.1.5 Central Coast Water Authority .................................................................................. 14 

3.3.2 Environmental Consequences ................... ......................................................................... 14 
3.3.2.1 No Action ................... ................................................................................... ... ............ 14 
3.3.2.2 Proposed Action .......................................................................................................... 14 

3.4 Cumulative Impacts ......................................... ......... ................ ........ ................... ... , .......................... 15 
4 Consultation and Coordination ......................................................................................... 16 

4.1 Agencies and Persons Consulted ............................................................................ ......................... 16 
4.2 Public l nvolvernent ............................................................................................................................ 16 
4.3 Endangered Species Act (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq.) ........... ........................................................... 16 

5 References ..................... .............................. ....................................................................... 16 

Table 1. Federally Listed Threatened and Endangered Species .................................................................. 7 
Table 2. CCWA Water Quality and Lake Cachuma Water Quality Annual Results .............................. 14 
Table 3. South Coast Cachuma Member Units Total Water Supplies over the Last Five Years in 
Acre-Feet .... ....................... ................................................................................................................................ 14 

iii 



Draft EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

1 Introduction 

1.1 Background 

Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA) is -a California Joint Powers Agency that was formed in 
1991 to construct necessary facilities to deliver supplemental water supplies from the State Water 
Ptoject (SWP) to the communities in San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara Counties. The SWP 
Coastal Branch facilities were completed in 1997. 

In 1994, the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) released an Environmental Assessment (EA) that 
analyzed the construction of an extension of the SWP Coastal Branch that would allow the annual 
introduction through issuance of a long-term Warren Act Contract1 ofSWP water into the Cachuma 
Project facilities for delivery to CCWA's South Coast Participants2. A Finding of No significant 
Impact was issued on January 3, 1995. 

In 1995, Reclamation issued a 25-year Warren Act contract to CCWA that allowed the annual 
introduction, storage, and conveyance of up to 13,750 acre-feet (AF) of water acquired by or 
available to CCWA from or through the SWP into Cachuma Project facilities for delivety to the 
South Coast Participants for municipal and industrial uses. Introductions of SWP water under the 
199 5 Warren Act contract began in 1997. 

Prior to entering Lake Cachuma, the treated water is dechlorinated at the Santa Y nez Pumping 
Facility located near the town of Santa Ynez. After being delivered to Lake Cachuma, CCWA water 
supplies are delivered to the South Coast via the Tecolote Tunnel and the South Coast Conduit 
CCWA water is delivered to the Santa Y nez River Water Conservation District Improvement 
District No.1 (ID No.1) directly from a connection to the SWP pipeline before it reaches the Santa 
Ynez Pumping Facility. 

CCWA's water is treated at the Polonio Pass Water Treatment Plant in San Luis Obispo County and 
then dechlorinated at CCW A's Santa Y nez Pumping Facility near the town of Santa Y nez using 
sodium bisulfite prior to its introduction into Lake Cachuma. Built-in safety systems automatically 
shut off the pumps of the Santa Y nez Pumping Facility if sodium bisulfite residual levels fall below 
0.1 mg/L or above 1 mg/L protecting water quality in Lake Cachuma and the Lower Santa Ynez 
River3

. 

1 A contract that allows non-Reclamation Project watcr to be introduced into Reclamation facilities. 
2 CCW A's South Coast Participants include: Carpinteria Valley Water District, the City of Santa Barbara, Golet:a Water 
District, Montecito Warer District, La Cumbre Mutual Water, Raytheon Systems Co. and Morehart Land Co. 
3 A detectable concentration of Sodium Bisulfite is needed to confirm the water has been fully dechlorinated. CCWA 
nlso monitors for chlorine concentrations and its pumping plant will shut down if chlorine concentrations are detected, a 
further mechanism fox protecting watcr quality in Lake Cachuma. 

1 



1.2 Purpose and Need for the Proposed Action 

DraftEA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

CCW A water has been and continues to be a much-needed supplemental water supply for the water 
deficient South Coast especially during drought conditions, As the existing Warren Act Contract 
expires in J une2022, CCWA has requested a new short-term Warren Act Contract to continue the 
introductions, conveyance, and storage of non-Reclamation Project water into Cachuma Project 
facilities for delivery to the CCWA's South Coast: Participants. Reclamation and CCWA are in the 
process of negotiating a new long-teem Warren Act Contract. In addition, Reclamation is curreody 
in re-consultation with the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) under the Endangered Species 
Act (ESA) regarding operation and maintenance of the Cachuma Project. As negotiations for the 
long-term Warren Act contract and re-consultation on the Cachuma Project are not anticipated to 
be complete by June 2022, CCWA and Reclamation need to enter into a short-term contract to 
allow the continued delivery of a much-needed water supply to the South Coast Participants. 

2 Alternatives Including Proposed Action 

2.1 No Action Alternative 

Under the No Action Alternative Reclamation would not issue short-term Warren Act Contract(s) 
to CCWA for the annual introduction, conveyance, and storage of up to 13,750 AF of CCWAwater 
within Cachuma Project facilities. 

2.2 Proposed Action 

Reclamation proposes to issue short-term (up to five-years) Warren Act Contract(s) to CCWA that 
would allow the annual introduction, conveyance, and storage of up to 13,750 AF of CCWNs water 
within Cachuma Project facilities. 

CCW A water includes SWP water from the Sacramento Rivet watershed, previously banked SWP 
water, and other non-SWP water supplies acquired from the Sacramento River watershed, the San 

.Joaquin River watershed, and the San Joaquin-Sacramento Delta. CCW A's acquired non-SWP water 
supplies can include groundwater pumping, groundwater substitution) land fallowing, or other 
transfers and exchanges that are common in Reclamation's Central Valley Project and the SWP. The 
conveyance of non-SWP water supplies through the SWP are reviewed and approved independently 
by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) prior to this water being conveyed in 
State facilities to CCWA's facilities. Prior to introduction into Cachuma Project facilities, CCWNs 
watet will continue to be treated as done under baseline conditions. 

Under the short-te.rm Warren Act Contract(s), CCW A water would continue to be inu:oduced and 
conveyed through Cachuma Project facilities (i.e., Bradbury Dam outlet works, Stilling Basin, Lake 
Cachuma, North Intake of the Te.colote Tunnel, and the South Coast Conduit) to the CCWA 

2 



Draft EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

contractors located along the South Coast Conduit. No modifications to existing infrastructure or 
operations or construction would be needed for the Proposed Action. 

2.2.1 Introduction of CCWA Water into Cachuma Project Facilities 
There are two existing mechanisms for the introduction of CCW A water into Lake Cachurna: (1) a 
direct connection of the CCWA pipeline to the Bradbury Dam oudet works penstock; and (2) a 
high-density polyethylene penstock bypass pipeline (bypass pipeline) that introduces CCW A water 
dit:ectly into Lake Cachuma4

• These mechanisms would remain unchanged under the proposed 
action. 

When releases from the oudet works occur at the same time as CCW A water is being introduced 
through the outlet works, CCW A water mixes with water from Lake Cachuma and is released intO' 
the Stilling Basin where it flows into the Lower Santa Y nez River. This mixing of CCWA water has 
certain advantages to downstream entities for enhancing water quality (I.e., reduced total dissolved 
solids) and the Cachuma Project Member Units5

, Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District 
(SYRWCD), '3Jld the City of Lompoc entered into a Settlement Agreement in September 2002 to 
max.imlze introduction of CCWA water during tl1eir Water Rights Releases6 from the outlet works. 

When CCWA water is released into the Stilling Basin, CCW A water is exchanged for Cachuma 
Project water in Lake Cachuma on a one-to-one basis. 

2.2.2 CCWA Water Treatment 
Prior to its introduction into Lake Cachuma, CCWA water is treated in CCW A's Polonio Pass Water 
Treatment Plant in San Luis Obispo County to applicable drinking water standards. This treatment 
process includes adding chloramine (a mix of chlotine and ammonia) to the water. From the 
Polonio Pass Water Treatment Plant, CCW A's water is conveyed to the Santa Y nez Pumping 
Facility where it is treated with sodium bisulfite to remove the chloramine before the water is 
conveyed to Bradbury Dam for introduction into Cachuma Project facilities. 

Built-in safety systems at the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility automatically shut off the pumps if a 
chlorine concentration ?: 0.05 mg/L is detected, or if residual sodium bisulfite concentrations drop 
to 0.1 mg/L or rise above 1 mg/L. Slighdy more sodium bisulfite is added to the water than needed 
to completely neutralize the chlorine, which results in a small amount of unreacted sodium bisulfite 
left in the water (t.e. >0.1 mg/L and :S 1 mg/L). Based on the chemistry of the chemical reaction 
between sodium bisulfite and chloramine, as long as there is a detectable sodium bisulfite 
concentration in the water there is no free chlorine left in the water (i.e., chlorine residual is 0 
mg/L). 

4 The bypass pipeline has been routed previously in three configurations: bypass pipeline through the spillway onto the 
bedrock shelf (used when lake levels ate low and bedrock shelf is exposed), bypass pipeline co the spillway gate threshold 
(used when the bedrock shelf is submerged and lake level is below the spillway gate threshold) and bypass pipeline over 
the top of the dam (used when lake level is above the threshold of the spillway gate). 
5 Cachuma Project Member Units include Carpinteria Water Disrrict, City of Santa Barbara, Goleta Water District, 
Montecito Water District, and Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District Improvement District No. 1. 
6 Non-discretionacy Water Rlghts Releases have occurred since the completion of Bradbury Dam. These releases are 
made in accordance with State Water Resources Control Board permits 11308 and 11310 issued to Reclamation for the 
Cachuma Project, as condirioned by WR Ordet 73-37, as amended by WR Order 89·18, and WR Order 2019·0148. 

3 



DraftEA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

Free ammonia is a byproduct of the sodium bisulfite water treatment process. A study conducted by 
CCWA that tracked the fate of free ammonia thtough the eight-tnile pipeline that runs from the 
Santa Y nez Pumping Facility to Lake Cachuma found that only small concentrations of free 
ammonia reach Lake Cachuma. Samples collected at the Lake Cachuma delivery point over the 12-
month study period (2016 to 2017) had free ammonia concentrations ranging from 0 mg/L to 0.14 
mg/L with an average concentration of 0.04 mg/L (CCWA 2021 ). This represents an average 
removal efficiency of over 90% from the average free ammonia concentrations measured at the 
oudet vault of the Santa Y nez Pumping Facility. 

2.2.3 Conservation Measures 
Measures to avoid and t:ninimize effects to the endangered Southern California Steelhead 
(01JcorhyncbJIS nrykiu) Distinct Population Segment (DPS) have been and will continue to be 
implemented during CCWA operations. Measures are primarily related to preventing steelhead from 
imprinting on CCWA water and preventing CCWA water from being released to Hilton Creek 
When CCWA deliveries to Lake Cachuma via the outlet works coincide with releases from Lake 
Cachuma via the oudet works, Reclamation proposes to implement the following restrictions to 
minimize potential effects to steelhead: 

• General restrictions on all CCWA water deliveries: 
o There is no delivery of CCW A water to Lake Cachuma during spill events; 
o CCWA water is not introduced into the penstock if the Hilton Creek Emergency 

Backup System (EBS) is on standby, to eliminate any possibility of CCWA water 
being delivered to Hilton Creek. 

• Restrictions on CCWA water deliveries through the Bradbury Dam oudet works: 
o When releases from the oudet works and deliveries of CCWA water through the 

oudet works are simultaneously scheduled to achieve mixing, Reclamation will notify 
NMFS that CCWA water will be entering the Santa Ynez River; 

o There is no delivery of CCWA water to Lake Cachuma via the oudet works when the 
EBS is delivering water; 

o CCWA water will not be mixed into the waters of the Santa Y nez River during the 
months of December to June, unless flow is discontinuous in the mainstem; 

o Delivery of CCW A water to Lake Cachuma is not made during spill events; 
o Releases of CCWA water to the mainstem only occurs during water right releases 

from May to October, with the bulk of releases occurring July through September; 
o CCWA water will not exceed 50 percent of the total rate of releases to the Lower 

Santa Ynez River; and 
o When releases of CCW A water to the Lower Santa Y nez River occur, Reclamation 

will ensure that water is released from Lake Cachuma in such a proportion that the 
blended CCW A and Lake Cachuma water entering the Stilling Basin has a 
temperature of :5 18°C, as estimated pursuant to the Penstock Temperature 
Monitoring Plan Qetter to Reclamation from CCWA, dated October 61 2011). 

CCWA water may be introduced to Lake Cachuma or the Lowe.r Santa Yoez River at rates ranging 
up to 22 cubic feet per second (cfs), as limited by the capacity of the four pumps at CCW A's Santa 
Y nez Pumping Facility. Operation of the Santa Y nez Pumping Facility can be highly variable, but in 
general the Pumping Facility operates minimally when Lake Cachuma is full and may operate at 
maximum capacity for extended periods of time during drought conditions. 

4 



Draft EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

When Reclamation is releasing water from the outlet works at Bradbu.ry Dam, and CCW A is 
delivering CCWA water to Lake Cacbuma, commingled water will be released to the Lower Santa 
Ynez River pursuant to the restrictions noted above. When Reclamation is releasing water from the 
EBS, no CCWA water can be delivered via the outlet works as the EBS is plumbed into the outlet 
works. When the only water Reclamation is releasing to the Lower Santa Y nez River is from Hilton 
Creek via the lake-based Hilton Creek WaterJng System (HCWS), no CCWA water will be released 
to the Lower Santa Y nez River. 

Tempe.t:ature monitoring sensors and related equipment in the penstock at the Bradbu.ry Dam outlet 
works and in the CCWA pipeline collect and transmit data to both CCWA and Reclamation's 
Supervisory Control and D ata Acquisition (SCAD A) System. From 2004 through present, the 
average temperature of CCWA's water from May through November (before entering the penstock) 
was 22.4°C with a low of13.6°C and a high of27.7°C (CCWA 2021). 

The system uses a flow weighted average of lake water temperature and CCW A water temperature 
to calculate an estimate of the blended temperature of water releases to the Stilling Basin. 
Reclamation monitors the temperature of CCW A water and water in the penstock. When the 
temperature of blended water is approaching the 18°C-temperature limit for steelhead Reclamation 
will immediately reduce or suspend delivery of CCWA water or increase delivery of Cachuma Lake 
water until CCWA deliveries can be reduced or suspended, to avoid exceeding the 18°C-temperature 
limit. 

3 Affected Environment and Environmental 

Consequences 

3.1 Resources Eliminated from Further Analysis 

Reclamation analyzed the affected environment and determined that the Proposed Action does not 
have the potential to cause adverse effects to the following resources: 

3.1.1 Air Quality 
There will be no impacts to air quality as there would be no change in baseline conditions. 

3.1 .2 Climate Change 
The Proposed Action does not include construction of new facilities or modification to existing 
facilities that would impact greenhouse gas emissions, Pumping to deliver CCW A water to Lake 
Cachuma would be similar to what has been done in the past and is part of baseline conditions and 
would not result in emissions that would impact climate change. Cachuma Project operations and 
allocations are flexible, any changes in hydrologic conditions due to global climate change would be 
addressed within Reclamation's operational flexibility. 

5 



DraftEA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

3.1.3 Cultural Resources 
There would be no impacts to cultural resources as a result of implementing the Proposed Action as 
the Proposed Action would facilitate the flow of water through existing facilities to existing users. 
No new construction or ground disturbing activities would occur as part of the Proposed Action. 
Reclamation has determined that these activities have no potential to cause effects to historic 
properties pursuant to 36 CPR Part 800.3(a)(1). 

3.1 .4 Environmental Justice 
Executive Order 12898 requires each federal agency to identify and address disproportionately high 
and adverse human health or environmental effects, including social and economic effects of its 
program, policies, and activities on minority populations and low-income populations. The 
Proposed Action would not cause dislocation, changes in employment, o~ increase flood, drought, 
or disease nor would it disproportionately impact economically disadvantaged or minority 
populations. 

3.1.5 Indian Sacred Sites 
Executive Order 13007 (May 24, 1996) a requires that federal agencies accommodate access to and 
ceremonial use of Indian sacred sites by Indian religious practitioners and avoids adversely affecting 
the physical integrity of such sacred sites. The Proposed Action would not limit access to and 
ceremonial use of Indian sacred sites on Federal lands by Indian religious practitioners or affect the 
physical integrity of such sacred sites. There would be no impacts to Indian sacred sites as a result 
of the Proposed Action. 

3.1.6 Indian Trust Assets 
Indian Trust Assets are legal interests in assets that are held in trust by the United States for federally 
recognized Indian tribes or individuals. There are no Indian reservations, rancherias or allotments in 
the Proposed Action area. The nearest Indian Trust Asset is a public domain allotment which is 
about 5 miles to the south of the Proposed Action area. The Proposed Action does not have a 
potential to affect Indian Trost Assets. 

3.2 Biological Resources 

3.2.1 Affected Environment 
The Proposed Action Area includes Lake Cachurna, the Lower Santa Y nez River below Bradbury 
Dam, conveyance facilities used to deliver CCWA water (i.e._, Tecolote Tunnel, South Coast 
Conduit), and the South Coast Participant service areas where CCWA water would ultimately be 
delivered. 

On March 18, 2022, Reclamation obtained an official species list from the United States Fish and 
Wildlife Service (Service) via the Service's website, http:// ecos.fws.gov /ipac, (Project Code: 2022-
0021550). On March 18,2022, Reclamation also obtained a species list from NMFS using the 
species list tool from the now unavailable National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration's West 
Coast Region website, 
https://archive.fisheries.noaa.gov /wcrlmaps data/california species list tools.html. The species 
lists cover the Proposed Action Area described above. The California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife's California Natutal Diversity Database (CNDDB) was also queried for records of protected 

6 



DraftEA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

species within the vicinity of the Proposed Action area (CNDDB 2022). The species lists and the 
best available data were combined to determine the likelihood of protected species occurrence 
within the Proposed Action Area (fable 1). -

T bl 1 F d ll L' d Th a e e era lY rste rea ene an n angere d dE d dS 1peCJes 
Species Status1 Effects2 Potential to occu r and summary basis for ESA 

determination 3 

Amphibians 

Arroyo Toad E, X NE Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
Anaxyrus species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
californicus would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 
California red- T,X NE Present. There are CNDDB records of this species in the 
legged frog Lower Santa Ynez River, and within portions of the CCWA 
Rona draytonii South Coast Participants' service area. Designated critical 

habitat for this species is not present within the Proposed 
Action Area. The Proposed Action does not involve any 
construction, land use changes, or conversion of suitable 
habitat. The Proposed Project would not alter the amount of 
water released to the Lower Santa Ynez River, and releases of 
CCWA's Warren Act water would be subject to temperature 
and water quality requirements. There would be No Effect to 
this species from the Proposed Action. 

California tiger T,X NE Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
salamander species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
Ambystoma would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 
californiense 
Birds 

California condor E,X NE Possible. This species may forage in portions of the Proposed 
Gymnogyps Action Area. Designated critical habitat for this species does 
californianus not occur within the Proposed Action Area. The Proposed 

Action would not involve any construction, land use changes, 
or conversion of suitable habitat. There would be No Effect to 

this species from the Proposed Action. 

California least tern E NE Present. There are CNDDB records of this species near the 
Sterna antillarum Lower Santa Ynez River estuary. The Proposed Action would 
browni not alter the amount of water released to the Lower Santa 

Ynez River, and would therefore have no effect on estuarine 
habitat. There would be No Effect to this species from the 
Proposed Action. 

Least Bell's vireo E,X NE Present. There is a CNDDB record of this species in riparian 

Vireo bellii pusillus habitat along the Lower Santa Ynez River. Designated critical 
habitat for this species does not occur within the Proposed 
Action Area. The Proposed Action would not alter the amount 
of water released to the Lower Santa Ynez River, and would 

therefore have no effect on this species habitat. There would 
be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 

Light-footed E NE Present. There are CNDDB records of this species in portions 
clapper rail of the CCWA South Coast Participants' service area. The 

7 



Species Status1 

Rallus longirostris 

Marbled murrelet T, X 
Brachyramphus 
marmoratus 
Short-tailed E 
Albatross 
Phoebastria 
(=Diomedea) 
albatrus 
Southwestern E, X 
willow flycatcher 
Empidonax traillii 
extimus 

Western snowy T,X 
plover 
Charadrius nivosus 
nivosus 

Crustaceans 
Riverside fairy E, X 
shrimp 
Streptocephalus 
woott 
Vernal pool fairy T,X 
shrimp 
Branchinecta lynchi 

Fish 
Tidewater goby E,X 
Eucyclogobius 
newberryi 

Effects2 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

OraftEA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

Potential to occur and summary basis for ESA 
determination 3 

Proposed Action would not involve any construction, land 
use changes1 or conversion of suitable habitat. There would 
be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 
Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 
Absent. This species does not occur within the Proposed 
Action Area. There would be No Effect to this species from 
the Proposed Action. 

Present. There are CNDDB records of this species along the 
Lower Santa Ynez River and designated critical habitat for this 
species is present along the Lower Santa Ynez River. The 
Proposed Action would not alter the amount of water 
released to the Lower Santa Ynez River. There would be No 
Effect to this species or its critical habitat from the Proposed 
Action. 
Present. There are CNDDB records of this species near the 
Lower Santa Ynez River estuary and within portions of the 
CCWA South Coast Participants' service area. Designated 
critical habitat for this species is present within one CCWA 
South Coast Participants' service areas. The Proposed Action 
would not alter the amount of water released to the Lower 
Santa Ynez River and would not involve any construction, 
land use changes, or conversion of suitable habitat. There 
would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 

Absent. This species and designated 'Critical habitat for this 
species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
would be No Effect to thls species from the Proposed Action. 

Possible. There are no records of this species within the 
Proposed Action Area; however, designated critical habitat 
for this species occurs within one of the CCWA South Coast 
Participants' service areas. The Proposed Action would not 
involve any construction, land use changes, or conversion of 
suitable habitat. The Proposed Action would have No Effect to 
this species or its desiqnated critical habitat. 

Present. This species is present in the Lower Santa Ynez River 
estuary, and in estuaries of streams within the CCWA South 
Coast Participants' service areas on the South Coast. 
Designated critical habitat for this species is present in the 
estuaries of some streams on the South Coast. The Proposed 
Action would not alter the amount of water released to the 

8 



Species Status1 

Southern California E, X 
steelhead Distinct 
Population 
Segment (DPS) 
Oncorhynchus 
mykiss 

Insects 
Monarch Butterfly c 
Danaus plexippus 

Mammals 
Southern sea otter T, 
Enhydra lutris MMPA 
nereis 

Plants 

Beach Layia E 
Layia carnosa 

California Orcutt E 
grass 
Orcuttia cali{ornica 
Contra Costa E, X 
goldfields 
Lasthenia conjugens 
Gambel's watercess E 
Rarippa gambellii 

Effectsl 

NLAA 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

Draft EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

Potential to occur and s ummary basis for ESA 
determination 3 

Lower Santa Ynez River. Furthermore, any SWP Water 
released to the Lower Santa Ynez River would be subject to 
water quality and temperature requirements. The Proposed 
Action does not involve any release of water to streams on 
the South Coast. The Proposed Action would have No Effect 
to this species or its designated critical habitat. 
Present. This species, and designated critical habitat for this 
species, are present within the Lower Santa Ynez River and in 
streams within the CCWA South Coast Participants' service 
a.reas on the South Coast. The Proposed Action would not 
alter the amount of water released to the Lower Santa Ynez 
River. The requirements described in Section 2.2 for 
Introduction of this water would be implemented to avoid 
potential negative effects to water quality or the imprinting 
of juvenile Oncorhynchus mykiss. The Proposed Action does 
not involve any release of water to streams on the South 
Coast. With the implementation of these requirements, the 
Proposed Action is Not Likely to Adversely Affect the Southern 
California steelhead DPS or designated critical habitat for this 
species. 

Poss ible. There are records of this species adjacent to the 
Santa Ynez River near the estuary. The Proposed Action 
would not involve any construction, land use changes, or 
conversion of suitable habitat. The Proposed Action would 
have No Effect to this species. 

Absent. This species does not occur within the Proposed 
Action Area. There would be No Effect to this species from 
the Proposed Action. 

Absent. This species does not occur within the Proposed 
Action Area. There would be No Effect to this species from 
the Proposed Action. 
Absent. This species does not occur within the Proposed 
Action Area. There would be No Effect to this species from 
the Proposed Action. 
Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 
Absent. This species does not occur within the Proposed 
Action Area. There would be No Effect to this species from 
the Proposed Action. 

9 



DraftEA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

Species Status1 Effects2 Potential to occur and summary basis for ESA 
determination 3 

Gaviota tarplant E, X NE Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
Deinandra species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
increscens ssp. would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 
villosa 
La Graciosa thistle E, X NE Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
Cirsium loncholepis species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 

would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 

Lompoc yerba E,X NE Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
santa species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
Eriodictyon would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 
capitatum 
Marsh sandwort E NE Absent. This ~pedes does not occur within the Proposed 
Arenaria paludicola Action Area. There would be No Effect to this species from 

the Proposed Action. 

Salt marsh bird's- E NE Present. There are records of this species within one of the 
beak CCWA South Coast Participants' service areas on the South 

Cordylanthus Coast. The Proposed Action would not involve any 
maritimus ssp. construction, land use changes, or conversion of suitable 
maritimus habitat. There would be No Effect to this species from the 

Proposed Action. 
Spreading T, X NE Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
Navarretia species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
Navarretia (ossalis would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 

Vandenberg E, X NE Absent. This species may be present adjacent to the Lower 
monkeyflower Santa Ynez River, but does not occur within the Proposed 
Diplacus Action Area. There would be No Effect to this species or its 
vandenberqensis designated Critical Habitat from the Proposed Action. 

Ventura marsh E, X NE Possible. There are no records of this species within the 
milk-vetch Proposed Action Area; however, designated critical habitat 
Astragalus for this species occurs within one of the CCWA South Coast 
pycnostachyus var. Participants' service areas. The Proposed Action would not 
lanosissimus involve any construction, land use changes, or conversion of 

suitable habitat. The Proposed Action would have No Effect to 
this species or its designated c_ritical habitat. 

1 Status = Status of federally protected species protected under the ESA 
E: Listed as Endangered 
T: Listed as Threatened 
C: Candidate for listing 
X: Critical Habitat designated for this species 
MMPA: Species protected under the Marine Mammal Protection Act 

2 Effects = ESA Effect determination 
NE: No Effect anticipated from the Proposed Action to federally listed species or designated critical 

habitat 
NLAA: The Proposed Action is Not Likely to Adversely Affect federally listed species or designated 
critical habitat 

3 Definition of Occurrence Indicators 

10 



Draft EA 
CGB-EA-.2022-023 

Present: Species recorded In area and suitable habitat present 
Possible: Species recorded In area and habitat suboptimal 
Absent: Species not recorded in study area and suitable habitat absent 

3.2.2 Environmental Consequences 

3.2.2.1 No Action 
Under the No Action Altetnative, Reclamation would not allow CCWA to introduce, store and 
convey up to 13,750 acre-feet of CCWA water in Cachuma Project facilities. The amount of water 
released to the Lower Santa Y nez River would not change from current baseline conditions (when 
CCWA's 1995 Warren Act Contract was implemented); howeve.r, upon expiration of the existing 
Warren Act Contract, only Santa Y nez River water frotn Lake Cachuma would be released from the 
dam. There would be No Effect to proposed or listed species or Critical Habitat, and no take of 
migratory birds. 

3.2.2.2 Proposed Action 
Under the Proposed Action, CCWA would continue to .introduce, store and convey CCWA water in 
Cachuma Project facilities . The amount of water released to the Lower Santa Ynez River below 
Bradbury Dam would not change as releases of this water to the river ate subject to the 
requirements described in Section 2.2. The Proposed Action would not result in any changes in the 
operation of the Cachuma Project. The Proposed Action would not involve any construction, land 
use changes, or conversion of habitat that may be suitable for listed species. The Proposed Action 
does not involve the release of any water to streams on the South Coast. 

As noted in Section 1, CCW A's water is treated at the Polonio Pass Water Treatment Plant in San 
Luis Obispo County and then dechlorinated at CCW A's Santa Y nez Pumping Facility using sodium 
bisulfite prior to its introduction into Lake Cachuma. Built-in safety systems automatically shut off 
the pumps of the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility if chlorine is detected (2:0.05 mg/L) or if the sodium 
bisulfite concentration falls below 0.1 mg/L or rises above 1 mg/L, which prevents treated water 
from reaching Cachuma Project facilities or the Lower Santa Yne-z Rivet. Based on the chemistry of 
the chemical reaction between sodium bisulfite and chloratn.ine, as long as there is a detectable 
sodium bisulfite concentration in the water there is no free chlorine left in the water (i.e., chlorine 
residual is 0 mg/L). 

Although sodium bisulfite in highet concentrations (i.e. 2: 39 mg/L) can deplete dissolved oxygen 
levels in water resulting in fish mortality, it is non-toxic to aquatic life at lower concentrations (Basu 
& Dorner, 2010). CCWA watet enters Cachuma Project facilities with a residual sodium bisulfite 
concentration of ~0.1 mg/L and <1 mg/L, which is considered non-toxic; this residual 
concentration of sodium bisulfite is further reduced as CCWA water is diluted at least 50 percent 
with Cachuma Project water. 

Ammonia is also a byproduct of the sodium bisulfite treatment process. In higher concentrations, 
ammonia can be toxic to fish and other aquatic life; however, the small amount of ammonia 
remaining in CCWA's water (0.00 mg/L to 0.14 mg/L) falls well below the Environmental 

11 



OraftEA 
CGB-EA-2022.023 

Protection Agency's (EPA) current ammonia water quality criteria for the protection of aquaticlife7 

(EPA, 2013). Furthermore, CCW A's water is diluted by at least 50% with Cachuma Project water 
which would further reduce ammonia concentrations before this water reaches the Lower Santa 
Ynez River. 

In accordance with the 2000 biological opinion for the operation and maintenance of the Cachuma 
Project (NMFS, 2000), CCWA water has been and would continue to be blended with Cachurna 
Project water in the proportion needed to meet the temperature requirement of 18°C or less prior to 
introduction into the Stilling Basin/Lower Santa Y nez River. This is confttmed through SCAD A 
monitoring within the SWP facilities that convey CCW A's water as well as by Reclamation and 
COMB at Bradbury Dam. Therefore, the introduction of CCWA water into the Lower Santa Ynez 
Riv.er is not expected to have any negative effects on water quality in the river that could affect 
biological resources. 

Under the Proposed Action, CCW A water would occasionally be released into the Lower Santa 
Ynez River where Southern Calif-ornia steelhead and its designated critical habitat are present. Before 
downstream migtation to the ocean, juvenile 0. "!Jkiss imprint on chemical odors in their natal 
streams during smolcification, which later guide their upstream homing migration as adults (Dittman 
et al., 1995; Nevitt & Dittman, 1999). In the Lower Santa Ynez Rivet, smolts may migrate 
downstream from November through June, with peak outmigration occurring from March through 
May. To minimize potential negative effects from the introduction of CCWA water on olfactory 
imprinting of juvenile 0. mykiss, Reclamation would continue to implement mixing criteria so that 
no more than 50 percent of the total water being released below the dam is CCW A water. Further, 
releases of CCWA water to the river would only occur during 89-18 Water Rights Releases frotn 
May through October, with a majority of releases occurring july through September, when juvenile 
0. 11rykiss are unlikely to be undergoing olfactory imprinting. 

A majority of releases would be conducted during the summer months when juvenile outmigration 
and olfactory imprinting are not occurring. Juvenile 0. 11!Jkiss may undergo olfactory imprinting in 
May and June; however, because CCW A water is only released to the Lower Santa Y nez Rivet 
during 89-18 Water Rights Releases, which typically are made in dry years when the river is not 
connected to the ocean, and because there is a requirement that the rivet must be discontinuous in 
the mainstem to release CCW A water to the river in May and June, 0. tnykiii are not expected to be 
outmigrating and/ or undergoing olfactory imprinting when CCWA water is released to the Lower 
Santa Y nez River. 

The 2000 biological opinion for the operation and maintenance of the Cachuma Project concluded 
that potencial effects from CCW A's water deliveries and releases on Southern California sreelhead 
were expected to be minimal and that the risk of incorrect imprinting from the release of CCWA 
water into the Lower Santa Y nez River was remote (NMFS, 2000). The Proposed Action would 
have no new or additional effects beyond those analyzed in the 2000 biological opinion. 

With the Conservation Measures listed in 2.2.3, Reclamation has determined that the Proposed 
Action is Not Likefy to Ad.verse!J A.ffect the endangered South em C~fornia steelhead DPS or 

7 The EPA's Frohwaler Ammonia Aq11ati~: Lift Ambient Water Quality Critma are: Acute 1-hour average of 17 mg/L total 
ammonia and a chronic 30-day rolling average7 of 1.9 mg/L total ammonia at a pH of 7.0 and a temperatute of 20°C 
(EPA, 2013). 

12 



Draft EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

designated critical habitat for this species. As described in Table 1, Reclamation has determined that 
the Proposed Action would have No EJ!ect to any other proposed or listed species or critical habitat 
under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (16 U.S.C. §1531 et seq.), and would not 
result in take of birds protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (16 U.S.C. §703 et seq.). 

3.3 Water Resources 

3.3_1 Affected Environment 
The affected environment is located in Santa Barbara County, California and includes Cachuma 
Project facilities (J.e., Bradbury Dam and Lake Cachuma, Tecolote Tunnel, and the South Coast 
Conduit), the Lower Santa Yoez River below Bradbury Dam, and the semce areas on the South 
Coasrwhere CCWA water would ultimately be delivered. 

3.3.1.1 Cachuma Project 
The Cachuma Project consists of Bradbury Dam, Lake Cachuma, the Tecolote Tunnel, the South 
Coast Conduit, four regulating reservoirs (Glen Anne Reservoir, Lauro Reservoir, Ortega Reservoir, 
and Carpinteria Reservoir) and appurtenant facilities in Santa Barbara County. Reclamation diverts, 
stores, and delivers Santa Ynez River water pursuant to permits issued by the State Water Resources 
Control Board. 

Reclamation provides up to 25,714 acre-feet/per year of Cachuma Project water to the Cachuma 
Project Member Units. Cachuma Project water is delivered to the South Coast Cachuma Member 
Units via the Tecolote Tunnel and South Coast Conduit system and is made available to ID No.1 
pursuant to an exchange agreement between ID No. 1 and the South Coast Member Units. 

3.3.1.2 Lower Santa Ynez River 
The Lower Santa Ynez River runs for approximately 48.7 river miles between Bradbury Dam and 
the Pacific Ocean. Below Bradbury Dam, the river passes south of the town of Santa Ynez and then 
flows through the broad section of the Santa Ynez Valley, near Buellton. West of Buellton, near the 
City of Lompoc, the river flows through a narrow section referred to as " the Narrows" and emerges 
onto the broad, flat Lompoc Plain. From there the river travels approximately 13 miles, transitioning 
to the Santa Ynez River estuary on Vandenberg Air Force Base and then directly into the Pacific 
Ocean at Surf Beach. 

3.3. 7.3 Lake Cachuma Water Quality 
Raw lake water quality is measured monthly at Lake Cachuma for key constituents related to 
water treatment processes. The annual average concentrations measured for specific 
conductivity, total dissolved solids, total organic carbon, turbidity, and sulfate concentrations 
for Lake Cachuma and CCW A watet between 2015 and 2020 are pro~ded in Table 2. 

13 



Table 2. CCWA Water Quality and Lake Cachuma Water Quality Annual Results 
Specific 

Draft EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

Total Dissolved Total Organic 
Conductivity Turbidity (NTU) Sulfate (mg/L) 

Year Solids (mg/L) Carbon (mg/L) 
(mmhos/cm) 

CCWA Cachuma CCWA Cachuma• CCWA Cachuma CCWA Cachuma CCWA Cachuma 

2015 781 963 437 626 2.5 4.7 0.17 12.11 97 

2016 609 1027 346 668 2.3 4 .2 0.11 12.98 100 

2017 306 825 165 536 2.0 5.7 0.18 3.74 30 

2018 481 876 220 569 2.1 5.5 0.13 8.33 55 

2019 403 836 260 543 1.9 4.6 0.10 3.83 46 

2020 503 918 280 597 2.0 4.9 0.12 2.75 63 

Average 514 908 285 590 2.1 4.9 0.14 7.29 65 

•specific Conductance multiplied by 0.65 conversion factor 
Sources: CCWA Polonio Pass Treatment Plant Water Quality Tables 2016 to 2020 http://www.ccwa.com/archives.html; 
City of Santa Barbara Public Works Department Water Resources laboratory - Lake Cachuma Monthly Monitoring 
2015 to 2020 

3.3.1.4 SWP Water Quality 
CCWA monitors water quality within CCWA's facilities. Average annual water quality data is 
included in Table 2 for the past five years. Water ln the CCWA system prior to delivery to Lake 
Cachuma had consistently lower concentrations of total dissolved solids, total organic carbon, 
turbidity, and sulfates than the water in Lake Cachuma. 

3.3.1.5 Central Coast Water Authority 
As noted previously, CCWA is a public entity that was organized to construct, operate, and maintain 
South Coast facilities in order to bring supplemental water supply to its member agencies. CCWA 
has a SWP water contract for 45,486 acre-feet per year. Between 2016 and 2020, CCWA has 
delivered a total of 43,187 AP to the CCWA South Coast Participants (fable 3). Since 1997, an 
average of approximately 2,040 AF per year has been exchanged for Cachuma Project water through 
the Santa Y nez Bltchange Agreement, with a low of 0 AF in 2016 and a high of 3,155 AF in 2003 
(CCWA 2021). The water delivered to Lake Cahuma by CCW A has been used for supplemental 
water supplies especially during drought years. In the most recent drought, CCWA water was the 
primary source of water being introduced into Lake Cachuma. 

T bl 3 h a e . Sout Coast Cachuma Mem b er Units Total Water Suoo ies over the Last Five Years in Acre-Feet 

Water Supply 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Cachuma Project 8,216 3,584 5,070 10,704 17,895 

CCWA Water 14,427 12,547 13,751 1,460 1,002 

3.3.2 Environmental Consequences 

3.3.2.1 No Action 
Under the No Action, supplemental water supplies would no longer be available to the CCWA 
South Coast Participants, This could cause shortages ln water supplies for their customers especially 

14 

263 

272 

110 

236 

217 

90 

198 



Draft EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

during drought years. As shown in Table 3 above, during the recent critical drought, CCWA water 
was crucial for the South Coast being as high as 3.5 times the amount of Cachuma Project water 
supplies, which occurred in 2017. Not having this water supply available would substantially 
negatively affect the South Coast water supply. 

3.3.2.2 Proposed Action 
The Proposed Action would continue to allow up to 13,750 acre-feet/year of CCWA water to 
continue to be introduced, stored, and conveyed through Cachuma Project facilities when excess 
capacity is available. The introduction, storage and conveyance of CCWA water would not increase 
or change operations in the Sacramento~San Joaquin River Delta. The additional water would be 
used by CCW A South Coast Participants to meet existing municipal and industrial demands. In 
general, CCW A water delivered t<T Lake Cachuma is used first by the CCW A South Coast 
Participants in order to carry over (store) their Cachuma Project water allocations for later use to 
better manage all available water supplies to meet existing demands. There would be no change in 
district boundaries or growth associated with use of this water. As shown in Table 3, this water is 
critical for the CCWA South Coast Participants to meet their existing demands, especially during 
drought years. As noted previously, there would be no modification of facilities in order to covey or 
deliver this water. The Proposed Action would be beneficial to water supplies within the Action 
area and would not adversely impact Cachuma Project operations. 

As noted in Section 2.2, CCWA water would not be introduced into Lake Cachuma during spill 
events, i.e. when water is released from the dam to prevent overtopping. If any CCW A water is 
stored in Cachuma during these periods of time, this amount would be miniscule compared to water 
in the Lake. Any release of CCW A water from Lake Cachuma to the Lower Santa Y nez River is 
required to be mixed with Cachuma Project water up to 50 percent and subject to temperature and 
seasonal requirements as set forth in the 2000 biological opinion for Cachuma Project operations. 
As this water is mixed and flows over narural substrates in the civer, its water chemistry is modified 
until it becomes indistinguishable from natutal river water, aod would, therefore, have no adverse 
impacts to water quality or beneficial uses in the Lower Santa Y nez River. 

3.4 Cumulative Impacts 

In the Council on Environmental Quality's (CEQ's) July 16, 2020 "Update to Regulations 
Implementing the Procedural Provisions of the National Environmental Policy Act" (85 FR 43304) 
the definicion of cumulative impacts provided in 40 CFR 1508 . .7 was repealed. The CEQ conveyed 
the position that the analysis of cumulative effects, as defined in the 1978 regulations, is not required 
under NEP A. This regulation update does not preclude the analysis of cumulative effects, but 
identifies that all analyses of environmental effects, including cumulative effects, should focus on 
those effects that are reasonably foreseeable and have a reasonably close causal relationship to the 
proposed action. 

Reclamation has made the determination that the effects of the Proposed Action evaluated in this 
EA, combined with other. reasonably foreseeable projects, would not result in cumulative impacts to 
any of the resources described above. Cachuma Project operations would not be impacted as there 
would be no change from baseline conditions and the Proposed Action would be subject to all 
applicable environmental, operational, and regulatory requirements associated with operation of the 
Cacbuma Project. 

15 



DraftEA 
CGB-EA-2022.{)23 

4 Consultation and Coordination 

4.1 Agencies and Persons Consulted 

Reclamation is consulting and coordinating with CCWA, Cachuma Operation and Maintenance 
Board, and NMFS in the preparation of this EA. 

4.2 Public Involvement 

Reclamation intends to provide the public with an opportunity to cotntnent on the Draft 
Environmental Assessment during a 30-day public review period. 

4.3 Endangered Species Act (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq.) 

Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act requires Federal agencies, in consultation with the 
Secretary of the Interior and/ or Commerce, to ensure that their actions do not jeopardize the 
continued existence of endangered or threatened species, or result in the destruction or adverse 
modification of the critical habitat of these species. 

Reclamation is consulting with NMFS regarding potential impacts from the Proposed Action on the 
federally endangered Southern California steelhead Distinct Population Segment (DPS) and its 
critical habitat. 

5 References 
CNDDB (California Natural Diversity Database). 2020. California Department of Fish and 

Wildlife's Natural Diversity Database, May 2020. 

Dittman, A. H., T. P. Quinn, and G. A. Nevitt. 1995. Timing of imprinting to natural and artificial 
odors by coho salmon (Oncorhynchm kimtch). Canadia11 J ottmal of Fisheries and Aq11atic S cimcer 
53:434-442. 

Nevitt, G., and A. Dittman. 1999. A new model for olfactory imprinting in salmon. Integrative Biology 
No.1: 215-223. 

NMFS. 2000. Bl{reau of Reclamation Operation and Maintenance of the Cachlima Project on the Santa Ynez 
River in Santa Barbara County, California. National Marine Fisheries Set\'ice, Southwest Region. 

16 



-BUREAU OF

RECLAMATION 

Central Coast Water Authority 
Temporary Warren Act Contract 

CGB-EA-2022-023 
Final Environmental Assessment 

U.S. Department of the Interior June 2022 



Mission Statements 
The U.S. Department of the Interior protects and manages the 
Nation's natural resources and cultural heritage; ptovides scientific 
and other information about those resources; and honors its trust 
responsibilities or special commitments to American Indians, Alaska 
Natives, and affiliated Island Communities. 

The mission of the Bureau of Reclamation is to manage, develop, and 
protect water and related resources in an environmentally and 
economically sound manner in the interest of the American public. 



Contents 
Page 

1 Introduction ............................................................................................... .......................... 1 
1.1 Background .......................................................................................................................................... . 1 
1.2 Pu.tpose and Need for the Proposed Action .................................................................................... 2 

2 Alternatives Including Proposed Action ....... ...................................................................... 2 
2.1 No Action Alternative ............... ................................................. _ ............................. -.......................... 2 
2.2 Proposed Action ..... " ........................................................................... ........... ................. ..................... 2 

2.2.1 Mechanisms of CCWA Water Introduction to the Cachuma Project ............................ 4 
2.2.2 CCWA WaterTreatment ....................................................................................................... S 

3 Affected Environment and Environmental Consequences ................................................. 6 
3.1 Resources Eliminated from Further Analysis .................................................................... .............. 6 

3.1.1 Air Quality ................................ ................................................................................. .... .......... 6 
3.1.2 Climate Change ....................................................................................................................... 6 
3.1.3 Cultural Resources ....................................... ........................................................................... 6 
3.1.4 Environmental Justice .... .......................... .......................... ...................... , ............................. 6 
3.1.5 Indian Sacred Sites .................................................................................................................. 6 
3.1.6 Indian Trust Assets ................................................................................................................ 7 

3.2 Biological Resources .................. ........... .................... ......... ......... .......................... ............................... 7 
3.2.1 Affected Environment ........................................................................................................... 7 
3.2.2 E nvironmental Consequences ....................................................................... ..................... 11 

3.2.2.1 No Action ..................................................................................................................... 11 
3.2.2.2 Proposed Action ............................................................................. ............................. 11 

3.3 Water Resources ........................................................................................................................ ......... 13 
3.3.1 Affected Environment ............ .............. ................................................................................ 13 

3.3.1.1 Cachuma Project .................... .............................. .................... ...................... .............. 13 
3.3.1.2 Lower Santa Ynez River ............................................................................................. 14 
3.3.1.3 Lake Cachuma Water Quality .............. .... .................................................................. 14 
3.3.1.4 SWP Water Quality ......... ........................... ................................................... ............... 14 
3.3.1.5 Central Coast Water Authority ......... ......................................................................... 14 

3.3.2 Environmental Consequences ........ ............................. ........... .................. .......................... lS 
3.3.2.1 No Action ..................................................................................................................... 15 
3.3.2.2 Proposed Action .. ............. ............................................... ............................................ 15 

3.4 Cumulative Impacts ........................................................................................................................... 16 
4 Consultation and Coordination ................................. ...... ... ............................................... 16 

4.1 Agencies and Persons Consulted ..................................................................................................... 16 
4.2 Public Involvement ............................................................................................................................ 16 
4.3 Endangered Species Act (16 U .S.C. § 1531 et seq.) .................................... -...... , .......................... 17 

5 References ......................................................... ......... ................................. ...................... . 17 

Table 1. Federally Listed Threatened and Endangered Species .................................................................. 7 
Table 2. CCWA Water Quality and Lake Cachuma Water Quality Annual Results .............................. 14 
Table 3. South Coast Cachuma Member Units Total Water Supplies over the Last Five Years in 
Acre-Feet ........................................................................................................................................................... 15 

I Appendix A Comment Letter on Draft Environmental Assessment 

iii 



I Appendix B National Marine Fisheries Service Letter of Concurrence 

lv 



1 Introduction 

Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

The Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) provided the public with an opportunity to comment on 
the Draft EnvU:onmental Assessment (EA) between Match 25, 2022 and April 22, 2022. One 
comment letter was received. The comment letter is included in Appendix A and responses are 
included in Section 4.2 of this EA. Changes between this Final EA and the Draft EA, which are not 
minor editorial changes, are indicated by vertical lines in the left margin of this document. 

1.1 Background 

Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA) is a California Joint Powers Agency that was formed in 
1991 to construct necessary facilities to deliver supplemental water supplies from the State Water 
Project (SWP) to the communities in San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara Counties. The SWP 
Coastal Branch facilities were completed in 1997. 

In 1994, Reclamation released an EA that analyzed the construction of an extension of the SWP 
Coastal Branch that would allow the annual introduction through issuance of a long-term Warren 
Act Contract' of SWP water into the Cachuma Project facilities for delivery to CCW A's South Coast 
Participants2

• A Finding of No significant Impact was issued on January 3, 1995. 

In 1995, Reclamation issued a 25-year Warren Act contract to CCWA that allowed the annual 
introduction, storage, and conveyance of up to 13,750 acre-feet (AF) of water acquired by or 
available to CCWA from or through the SWP into Cachuma Project facilities for delivery to the 
South Coast Participants for municipal and industrial uses. Introductions of SWP water under the 
1995 Warren Act contract began in 1997. 

Prior to entering Lake Cachuma, the treated water is dechlorinated at the Santa Ynez Pumping 
Facility located near the town of Santa Ynez. After being deliveted to Lake Cachuma,_ CCWA water 
supplies are delivered to the South Coast via the Tecolote Tunnel and the South Coast Conduit. 
CCWA water is delivered to the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District Improvement 
District No.1 (ID No.1) directly from a connection to the SWP pipeline before it reaches the Santa 
Ynez Pumping Facility. 

CCWA's water is treated at the Polonio Pass Water Treatment Plant in San Luis Obispo County and 
then dechlorinated at CCWA's Santa Ynez Pumping Facility near the town of Santa Yoez using 
sodium bisulfite prior to its introduction into Lake Cachuma. Built-in safety systems automatically 
shut off the pumps of the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility if sodium bisulfite residual levels fall below 

1 A contract rhat allows non-Reclamation Project water to be introduced into Reclamation facilities. 
2 CCWA's South Coast Participants include: Carpinteria Valley Water District, the City ofS>mta Barbara, Goleta Watex 
District, Montecito Water District, La Cumbre Mutual Water, Raytheon Systems Co. and Morehart Land Co. 



Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

0.1 mg/L or above 1 mg/L protecting water quality in Lake Cachuma and the Lower Santa Ynez 
Rive-2. 

1.2 Purpose and Need for the Proposed Action 

CCWA water has been and continues to be a much-needed supplemental water supply for the water 
deficient South Coast especially during drought conditions. As the existing Warren Act Contract 
expires in June 2022, CCWA has requested a new short-term Warren Act Contract to continue the 
introductions, conveyance, and storage of non-Reclamation Project water into Cachuma Project 
facilities for delivery to the CCW A's South Coast Participants. Reclamation and CCWA are in the 
process of negotiating a new long-term Warren Act Contract. In addition, Reclamation is currently 
in re-consultation with the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) under the Endangered Species 
Act (ESA) regarding operation and maintenance of the Cachuma Project. As negotiations for the 
long-term Warren Act contract and re-consultation on the Cachuma Project are not anticipated to 
be complete by June 2022, CCWA and Reclamation need to enter into a short-term contract to 
allow the continued delivery of a much-needed water supply to the South Coast Participants.. 

2 Alternatives Including Proposed Action 

2.1 No Action Alternative 

Under the No Action Alternative Reclamation would not issue short-term Warren Act Contract(s) 
to CCWA for the annual introduction, conveyance, and storage of up to 13,750 AF of CCWA water 
within Cachuma Project facilities. 

2.2 Proposed Action 

Reclamation proposes to issue short-term (up to five-years) Warren Act Contract(s) to CCWA that 
would allow the annual introduction, conveyance, and storage of up to 13,750 AF of CCWA's water 
within Cachuma Ptoject facilities. 

Measures to avoid and minimize effects to the endangered Soutbetn California steelhead Distinct 
Population Segment (DPS; 01Jcori!Jnchm mykiss) have been, and will continue to be, implemented 
during CCW A operations. Measures are primarily related to preventing steelhead from imprinting 
on CCWA water and preventing CCWA water from being released to Hilton Creek. Reclamation 
proposes to implement the following: 

>A detectable concentration of Sodium Bisulfite is needed to confirm the water has been fully dechlorinated, CCW.A 
-also monitors for chlorine concentrations and its pumping plant will shut down if chlorine concentrations are detected, a 
further mechanism for protecting water quality in Lake Cachuma. 

2 



Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

• Releases of GCWA water to the Santa Ynez River mainstem may not occur during 
December through May. 

• Releases of CCWA water to the Santa Ynez River mains tern may only occur during Water 
Right (WR) 89-18 water tight .releases when flow is discontinuous in the tnainstem, primarily 
between July to October. 

• During June and November CCWA water may be introduced into the Lower Santa Ynez 
River only when: (1) 0. mykist ate not present based on snorkel and trapping surveys 
conducted under WR 89-18 water rights release monitoring pursuant co technical sessions 
with NMFS regarding Reasonable and Prudent Measure 6 of the 2000 Biological Opitlionfor the 
Operation and Maintenance of the CachiU!Jo Project (2000 BiOp) and (2) no rain is predicted for at 
least 14 days. Two traps would be operated in the Lower Santa Ynez River, with one located 
neat the confluence of Hilton Creek and the river and the other located further downstream 
(e.g., Meadowlark crossing). Releases of blended CCWA water to the Lower Santa Ynez 
River in June and November would cease immediately if any 0. mykiss ate caught in the 
ttaps, or observed during the snorkel surveys. 

• CCWA water may be mixed up to 50 percent of the total rate of releases to the Lower Santa 
Ynez River. 

• CCWA and Lake Cachuma water entering the Stilling Basin would be blended to a 
temperature of~ 18°C, as estimated pursuant to the Penstock Temperature Monitoring 
Plan. 

• There is no delivery of CCWA water into Lake Cachwna via the outlet works when the 
Hilton Creek Emergency Backup System (EBS) is delivering water. 

• There will be no delivery of CCWA water via the outlet works when the lake-based Hilton 
Creek Watering System Pumping Platform is in operation or the EBS is set to stand-by 
mode to deliver water to Hilton Creek.4 

CCWA water includes SWP water from the Sacramento River watershed, previously banked SWP 
water, and other non-SWP water supplies acquired from the Sacramento River watershed, the San 
Joaquin River watershed, and the San Joaquin-Sacramento Delta. CCW A's acquired non-SWP water 
supplies can include groundwater pumping, groundwater substitution, land fallowing, ot other 
transfers and exchanges that are common in Reclamation's Centtal Valley Project and the SWP. 
The conveyance of non-SWP wate.t supplies through the SWP are reviewed and approved 
independently by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) prior to this water being 
conveyed in State facilities to CCW A's facilities. Prior to introduction into Cachuma Project 
facilities, CCW A's water will continue to be treated as done under baseline conditions. 

Under the short-term Warren Act Contract(s), CCWA water would continue to be introduced and 
conveyed through Cachuma Project facilities (i.e., Bradbury Dam outlet works, Stilling Basin, Lake 
Cachuma, North Intake of the Tecolote Tunnel, and the South Coast Conduit) to CCWA South 
Coast Participants located along the South Coast Conduit. 

"' EBS standby is defined as the condition of being aligned and configured to automatically initiate fiow upon loss of 
power during pumped flow from the Jake-based Hilton Creek Watering System (HCWS). The system may be available 
for use at other times (e.g. during gravity flow from the lake-based HCWS); however, standby on!J occurs when the lake
based HCWS is delivering pumped fiow and the EBS is only triggered to start automatically when there is a loss of 
power. 

3 



Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

No modifications to existing infrastructute or construction would be needed for the Proposed 
Action. 

2.2.1 Mechanisms of CCWA Water Introduction to the Cachuma Project 
There ate two existing mechanisms for the introduction of CCWA water into Lake Cachuma: (1) a 
direct connection of the CCWA pipeline to the Bradbury Dam outlet works penstock; and (2) a 
high-density polyethylene penstock bypass pipeline (bypass pipeline) that introduces CCWA water 
directly into Lake Cachuma5

. These mechanisms would remain unchanged under the proposed 
action. 

When releases from the outlet works occur at the same time as CCWA water is being introduced 
through the outlet works, CCWA water mixes with water from LakeCachum'4 and is released into 
the Stilling Basin where it flows into the Lower Santa Ynez Rivet. 1bis mixing of CCWA water has 
certain advantages to downstream eo cities for enhancing water quality (i.e., reduced total dissolved 
solids) and the Cachuma Project Member UnitsG, Santa Ynez Rlver Water Conservation District 
(SYRWCD), and the City of Lompoc entered into a Settlement Agreement in September 2002 to 
maximize introduction of CCWA water during their Water Rights Releases7 from the outlet works. 

I 
The 2002 Settlement Agreement has been incorporated into Cachuma Project WR Order 2019-0148 
(WR 2019~0148) . 

CCWA water may be introduced to Lake Cachuma or the Lower Santa Ynez River at rates ranging 
from 3 cubic feet per second (cfs) up to 22 cfs, as limited by the capacity of the four pumps at 
CCWA's Santa Ynez Pumping Facility. Three of the four pumps operate only at 100 percent, while 
the remaining pump has a variable frequency drive which allows for any flow rate from 3 to 22 cfs. 
Operation of the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility is variable, but in general the Pumping Facility 
operates minimally when Lake Cachuma is full and may operate at maximum capacity for extended 
periods of time during drought conditions. 

When Reclamation is releasing water from the outlet works at Bradbury Dam, and CCWA is 
delivering CCWA water to Lake Cachuma, commingled water will be released to the Lower Santa 
Ynez River pursuant to the measures noted in Section 2.2 above. When Reclamation is releasing 
water from the EBS, CCWA water will not be introduced into the outlet works as the EBS is 
plumbed into the outlet works, 

Temperature monitoring sensors and related equipment in the penstock at the Bradbury Dam outlet 
works and in the CCWA pipeline collect and transmit data to both CCWA and Reclamation's 
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) System. 

s The bypass pipeline has been touted previously in three configurations: bypass pipeline through the spillway onto the 
bedrock shelf (used when lake levels are low and bedrock shelf is exposed), bypass pipeline to the spillway gate threshold 
(used when the bedrock shelf is submerged and lake level is below the spillway gate threshold) and bypass pipeline over 
the top of the dam (used when lake level is above the threshold of the spillway gate). 
6 Cachutru1 Project Member Units include Carpinteria Water District, City of Santa Bubua, Goleta Water District, 
Montecito Water District, and Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District Improvement District No. 1. 
1 Non-discretionary Water Rights Releases have occurred since the completion of Bradbury Dam. These releases are 
made in accordance with State Water Resources Control Board permits 11308 and 113 t 0 issued to Reclamation for the 
Cachutna Project, as conditioned by WR Order 73-37, as amended by WR Order 89-18, and WR Order 2019~148. 

4 



Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

The system uses a flow weighted average of lake water temperature and CCWA watet temperature 
to calculate an estimate of the blended temperature of water releases to the Stilling Basin. These 
calculations are done continuously using a programmable logic controller at a set frequency of once 
every 1-15 minutes. The Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board (COMB) and Reclamation 
monitor the temperature of CCWA water and water in the penstock, and· there is a SCAD A alarm 
set to alert CCWA and Reclatnation when the temperature of blended water is approaching a certain 
threshold below 18°C O· Brady, CCWA, personal communication, 3/21/2022). When the 
temperature of blended water is approaching the 18°C-temperatute limit for steelhead, Reclamation 
will immediately reduce or suspend delivery of CCWA water or increase delivery of Cachuma Lake 
water to avoid exceeding the 18°C-temperature limit. 

2.2.2 CCWA Water Treatment 
Prior to its introduction into Lake Cachuma, CCWA water is treated in CCW A's Polonio Pass Water 
Treatment Plant in San Luis Obispo County to applicable drinking water standards. This treatment 
process includes adding chloramine (a mix of chlorine and ammonia) to the water. From the 
Polonio Pass Water Treatment Plant, CCW A's water is conveyed to the Santa Ynez Pumping 
Facility where it is treated with sodium bisulfite to remove the chloramine before the water is 
conveyed to Bradbury Dam for introduction into Cachuma Project facilities. 

Built-in safety systems at the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility automatically shut off the pumps if a 
I chlorine concentration ~ 0.03 mg/L is detected, or if residual sodium bisulfite concentrations drop 

to 0.1 mg/L or rise above 1 mg/L. Slightly more sodium bisulfite is added to the water than needed 
to completely neutralize the chlorine, which results in a small amount of unreacted sodium bisulfite 
left in the water (i.e. >0.1 mg/L and :S 1mg/L). Based on the chemistry of the chemical reaction 
between sodium bisulfite and chloramine, as long as there is a detectable sodium bisulfite 
concentration in the water there is no free chlorine left in the water (Le., chlorine residual is 0 
mg/L). 

Free ammonia is a byproduct of the sodium bisulfite water treatment process. A study conducted 
by CCWA that tracked the fate of free ammonia through the eight-mile pipeline that runs from the 
Santa Ynez Pumping Facility to Lake Cachuma found that only small concentrations of free 
ammonia reach Lake Cachuma. Samples collected at the Lake Cachuma delivery point over the 12-
month study period (2016 to 2017) had free ammonia concentrations ranging from 0 mg/L to 0.14 
mg/L with an average concentration of 0.04 mg/L (CCWA 2021). This represents an average 
removal efficiency of over 90 percent from the average free ammonia concentrations measrued at 
the outlet vault of the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility. 

5 



Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

3 Affected Environment and Environmental 

Consequences 

3.1 Resources Eliminated from Further Analysis 

Reclamation analyzed the affected environment and determined that the Proposed Action does not 
have the potential to cause adverse effects to the following resources: 

3.1.1 Air Quality 
There will be no impacts to air quality as there would be no change in baseline conditions. 

3.1.2 Climate Change 
The Proposed Action does not include construction ofnew facilities or modification to existing 
facilities that would impact greenhouse gas emissions. Pumping to deliver CCWA water to Lake 
Cachuma would be similar to what has been done in the past and is part of baseline conditions and 
would not result in emissions that would impact climate change. Cachuma Project operations and 
allocations ate flexible, any changes in hydrologic conditions due to global climate change would be 
addressed within Reclamation's operational flexibility. 

3.1.3 Cultural Resources 
There would be no impacts to cultural resources as a result of implementing the Proposed Action as 
the Proposed Action would facilitate the flow of water through existing facilities to existing users. 
No new construction or ground disturbing activities would occur as part of the Proposed Action. 
Reclamation has determined that these activities have no potential to cause effects to historic 
properties pursuant to 36 CFR Part 800.3(a)(1). 

3.1.4 Environmental Justice 
Executive Order 12898 requires each federal agency to identify and address disproportionately high 
and adverse human health or environmental effects, including social and economic effects of its 
program, policies, and activities on minority populations and low-income populations. The 
Proposed Action would not cause dislocation, changes in employment, or increase flood, drought, 
or disease nor would it disproportionately impact economically disadvantaged or minority 
populations. 

3.1.5 Indian Sacred Sites 
Executive Order 13007 (May 24, 1996) a requires that federal agencies acconunodate access to and 
ceremonial use of Indian sacred sites by Indian religious practitioners and avoids adversely affecting 
the physical integrity of such sacred sites. The Proposed Action would not limit access to and 
ceremonial use of Indian sacred sites on Federal lands by Indian religious practitioners or affect the 
physical integrity of such sacred sites. There would be no impacts to Indian sacred sites as a result 
of the Proposed Action. 

6 



Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

3.1.6 Indian Trust Assets 
Indian Trust Assets ate legal interests in assets that ate held in trust by the United States for federally 
recognized Indian tribes or individuals. There ate no Indian reservations, rancherias or allotments in 
the Proposed Action area. The neatest Indian Trust Asset is a public domain allotment which is 
about five miles to the south of the Proposed Action area. The Proposed Action does not have a 
potential to affect Indian Trust Assets. 

3.2 Biological Resources 

3.2.1 Affected Environment 
The Proposed Action Area includes Lake Cachuma, the Lower Santa Y nez Rlvet below Bradbury 
Dam, conveyance facilities used to deliver CCWA water (i.e., Tecolote Tunnel, South Coast 
Conduit), and the South Coast Participant service areas where CCWA water would ultimately be 
delivered. 

On Match 18, 2022, Reclamation obtained an official species list from the United States Fish and 
Wildlife Service (Service) via the Service's website, http:/ /ecos.fws.gov/ipac, (Project Code: 2022-
0021550), On Match 18, 2022, Reclamation also obtained a species list from NMFS using the 
species list tool from the now unavailable National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration's West 
Coast Region website, 
https://archive.fisheries.noaa.gov /wcr/maps data/california s,pecies list tools.html. The species 
lists cover the Proposed Action Area described above. The California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife's California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB) was also queried for records of protected 
species within the vicinity of the Proposed Action area (CNDDB 2022). The species lists and the 
best available data were combined to determine the likelihood of protected species occurrence 
within the Proposed Action Area (fable 1). 

T bl 1 F d II L. d Th a e e era IY 1ste reatene d dE d an n anqere dS )pec1es 
Species Status1 Effects2 Potential to occur and summary basis for ESA 

determination 3 

Amphibians 
Arroyo Toad E,X NE Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
Anaxyrus species do not occur withrn the Proposed Action Area. There 
californicus would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 
California red- T, X NE Present. There are CNDDB records of this species in the 
legged frog Lower Santa Ynez River, and within portions of the CCWA 
Rona draytonii South Coast Participants' service area. Designated critical 

habitat for this species is not present within the Proposed 
Action Area. The Proposed Action does not involve any 
construction, land use changes, or conversion of suitable 
habitat. The Proposed Project would not alter the amount of 
water released to the Lower Santa Ynez River, and releases of 
CCWA's Warren Act water would be subject to temperature 
and water quality requirements. There would be No Effect to 
this species from the Proposed Action. 

7 



Species Status1 

California tiger T, X 
salamander 

Ambystoma 
californiense 
Birds 

California condor E, X 
Gymnogyps 
california nus 

California least tern E 
Sterna antillarum 
browni 

Least Bell's vireo E,X 
Vireo bellii pusillus 

Light-footed E 
clapper rail 
Rallus longirostris 

Marbled murrelet T,X 
Brachyramphus 
marmoratus 
Short-tailed E 
Albatross 
Phoebastria 
(:=Diomedea) 
albatrus 
Southwestern E,X 
willow flycatcher 
Empidonax traillii 
extimus 

Western snowy T, X 
plover 

Effects2 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

Potential to occur and summary basis for ESA 
determinat ion 3 

Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 

species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 

Possible. This species may forage in portions of the Proposed 
Action Area. Designated critical habitat for this species does 
not occur within the Proposed Action Area. The Proposed 

Action would not involve any construction, land use changes, 
or conversion of suitabl.e habitat. There would be No Effect to 
this species from the Proposed Action. 

Present. There are CNDDB records of this species near the 
Lower Santa Ynez River estuary. The Proposed Action would 
not alter the amount of water released to the Lower Santa 
Ynez River, and would therefore have no effect on estuarine 
habitat. There would be No Effect to this species from the 
Proposed Action. 

Present. There is a CNDDB record of this species in riparian 
habitat along the Lower Santa Ynez River. Designated critical 
habitat for this species does not occur within the Proposed 
Action Area. The Proposed Action would not alter the amount 
of water released to the Lower Santa Ynez River, and would 

therefore have no effect on this species habitat. There would 
be No Effect to t his species from the Proposed Action. 
Present. There are CNDDB records of this species in portions 
of the CCWA South Coast Participants' service area. The 
Proposed Action would not involve any construction, land 

use changes, or conversion of suitable habitat. There would 
be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 

Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
would be No Effect to t his species from the Proposed Action. 

Absent. This species does not occur within the Proposed 
Action Area. There would be No Effect to this species from 

the Proposed Action. 

Present . There are CNDDB records of this species along the 
Lower Santa Ynez River and designated critical habitat for this 
species is present along the Lower Santa Ynez River. The 
Proposed Action would not alter the amount of water 

released to the Lower Santa Ynez River. There woul.d be No 
Effect to this species or its critical habitat from the Proposed 
Action. 

Present. There are CNDDB records of this species near the 
Lower Santa Ynez River estuary and within portions of the 

8 



Species Status1 Effects2 

Charadrius nivosus 
nivosus 

Crustaceans 
Riverside fairy E. X NE 
shrimp 
Streptocephalus 
woo toni 
Vernal pool fairy T,X NE 
shrimp 
Branchinecta lynchi 

Fish 
Tidewater go by E, X NE 
Eucyclogobius 
newberryi 

Southern California E,X NLAA 
steelhead Distinct 
Population 
Segment (DPS) 
Oncorhynchus 
my kiss 

Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

Potential to occur and summary basis for ESA 
determination 3 

CCWA South Coast Participants' service area. Designated 
critical habitat for this species is present within one CCWA 
South Coast Participants' service areas. The Proposed Action 
would not alter the amount of water released to the Lower 
Santa Ynez River and would not involve any construction, 
land use changes, or conversion of suitable habitat. There 
would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 

Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 

Possible. There are no records of this species within the 
Proposed Action Area; however, designated critical habitat 
for this species occurs within one of the CCWA South Coast 
Participants' service areas. The Proposed Action would not 
involve any construction, land use changes, or conversion of 
suitable habitat. The Proposed Action would have No Effect to 
this species or its desiqnated critical habitat. 

Present. This species is present in the Lower Santa Ynez River 
estuary, and in estuaries of streams within the CCWA South 
Coast Participants' service areas on the South Coast. 
Designated critical habitat for this species is present in the 
estuaries of some streams on the South Coast. The Proposed 
Action would not alter the amount of water released to the 
Lower Santa Ynez River. Furthermore, any SWP Water 
released to the l ower Santa Ynez River would be subject to 
water quality and temperature requirements. The Proposed 
Action does not involve any release of water to streams on 
the South Coast. The Proposed Action would have No Effect 
to this species or its designated critical habitat. 
Present. This species, and designated critical habitat for this 
species, are present within the Lower Santa Ynez River and in 
streams within the CCWA South Coast Participants' service 
areas on the South Coast. The Proposed Action would not 
alter the amount of water released to the Lower Santa Ynez 
River. The requirements described in Section 2.2 for 
introduction of this water would be implemented to avoid 
potential negative effects to water quality or the imprinting 
of juvenile Oncorhynchus mykiss. The Proposed Action does 
not involve any release of water to streams on the South 
Coast. With the implementation of these requirements, the 
Proposed Action is Not Likely to Adversely Affect the Southern 
California steel head DPS or designated critical habitat for this 
species. 

9 



Species Status1 

Insects 
Monarch Butterfly c 
Dana us plexippus 

Mammals 
Southern sea otter T, 
Enhydra lutris MMPA 
nereis 

Plants 
Beach Layia E 
Layia carnosa 

California Orcutt E 
grass 
Orcuttia californica 
Contra Costa E, X 
goldfields 
Losthenia conjugens 
Gambel's watercess E 
Rorippa gambellii 

Gaviota tarplant E, X 
Deinandra 
increscens ssp. 
villosa 
La Graciosa thistle E,X 
Cirsium loncholepis 

Lompoc yerba E, X 
santa 
Eriodictyon 
capita tum 
Marsh sandwort E 
Arenaria paludicola 

Salt marsh bird's- E 
beak 
Cordylanthus 
maritimus ssp. 
maritimus 

Effects2 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

NE 

FinaiEA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

Potential to occur and summary basis for ESA 
determination 3 

Possible. There are records of this species adjacent to the 
Santa Ynez River near the estuary. The Proposed Action 
would not involve any construction, land use changes, or 
conversion of suitable habitat. The Proposed Action would 
have No Effect to this species. 

Absent. This species does not occur within the Proposed 
Action Area. There would be No Effect to this species from 
the Proposed Action. 

Absent. This species does not occur within the Proposed 
Action Area. There. would be No Effect to this species from 
the Proposed Action. 
Absent. This species does not occur within the Proposed 
Action Area. There would be No Effect to this species from 
the Proposed Action. 
Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 
Absent. This species does not occur within the Proposed 
Action Area. There would be No Effect to this species from 
the Proposed Action. 
Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 

Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 
Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 

Absent This species does not occur within the Proposed 
Action Area. There would be No Effect to this species from 
the Proposed Action. 
Present . There are records of this species within one of the 
CCWA South Coast Participants' service areas on the South 
Coast. The Proposed Action would not involve any 
construction, land use changes. or conversion of suitable 
habitat. There would be No Effect to this species from the 
Propos-ed Action. 

10 



Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

Species Status1 Effects2 Potential to occur and summary basis for ESA 
determination 3 

Spreading T,X NE Absent. This species and designated critical habitat for this 
Navarretia species do not occur within the Proposed Action Area. There 
Navarretia fossa/is would be No Effect to this species from the Proposed Action. 
Vandenberg E, X NE Absent. This species may be present adjacent to the Lower 
monkeyflower Santa Ynez River, but does not occur within the Proposed 
Diplacus Action Area. There would be No Effect to this species or its 
vandenberaensis designated Critical Habitat from the Proposed Action. 
Ventura marsh E, X NE Possible. There are no records of this species within the 
milk-vetch Proposed Action Area; however, designated critical habitat 
Astragalus for this species occurs within one of the CCWA South Coast 
pycnostachyus var. Participants' service areas. The Proposed Action would not 
lanosissimus involve any construction, land use changes, or conversion of 

suitable habitat. The Proposed Action would have No Effect to 
this species or its desiqnated critical habitat. 

1 Status = Status of federally protected species protected under the ESA. 
E: Listed as Endangered 
T: Listed as Threatened 
C: Candidate for listing 
X: Critical Habitat designated for this species 
MMPA: Species protected under the Marine Mammal Protection Act 

2 Effects = ESA Effect determination 
NE: No Effect anticipated from the Proposed Action to federally listed species or designated critkal 
habitat 
NLAA: The Proposed Action is Not likely to Adversely Affect federally listed species or designated 
critical habitat 

3 Definition of Occurrence Indicators 
Present Species recorded in area and suitable habitat present 
Possible: Species recorded in area and habitat suboptimal 
Absent: Species not recorded in study area and suitable habitat absent 

3.2.2 Environmental Consequences 

3.2.2.1 No Action 
Under the No Action Alternative, Reclamation would not allow CCWA to introduce, store and 
convey up to 13,750 acre-feet of CCWA water in Cachwna Project facilities . The amount of water 
released to the Lower Santa Ynez River would not change from current baseline conditions (when 
CCW A's 1995 Watren Act Contract was implemented); howeV'er, upon expiration of the existing 
Warren Act Contract, only Santa Ynez River water from Lake Cachuma would be released from the 
dam. There would be No Effect to proposed or listed species or Critical Habitat, and no take of 
migratory birds. 

3.2.2.2 Proposed Action 
Under the Proposed Action, CCW A would continue to introduce, store and convey CCWA water in 
Cachuma Project facilities . The amount of water released to the Lower Santa Ynez River below 
Bradbury Dam would not change as releases of this water to the river are subject to the 

I requirements described in Section 2.2. The Proposed Action would not involve any construction, 

11 



Final EA 
CGB·EA-2022-023 

land use changes, or conversion of habitat that may be suitable for listed species. The Proposed 
Action does not involve the release of any water to streams on the South Coast. 

As noted in Section 1, CCWA's water is treated at the Polonio Pass Water Treatment Plant in San 
Luis Obispo County and then dechlorinated at CCWA's Santa Ynez Pumping Facility using sodium 
bisulfite prior to its introduction into Lake Cachuma. Built-in safety systems automatically shut off 

I the pumps of the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility if chlorine is detected (~0.03 mg/L) or if the sodium 
bisulfite concentration falls below 0.1 mg/L or rises above 1 mg/L, which ptevents treated water 
from reaching Cachuma Project facilities or the Lower Santa Ynez River. Based on the chemistry of 
the chemical reaction between sodium bisulfite and chloramine, as long as there is a detectable 
sodium bisulfite concentration in the water there is no free chlorine left in the water (i.e., chlorine 
residual is 0 mg/L). 

Although sodium bisulfite in higher concentrations (i.e. ~ 39 mg/L) can deplete dissolved oxygen 
levels in water resulting in fish mortality, it is non-toxic to aquatic life at lower concentrations (Basu 
& Dorner, 2010). CCWA water enters Cachuma Project facilities with a residual sodium bisulfite 
concentration of~O. l mg/L and <1 mg/L, which is considered non-toxic; this residual 
concentration of sodium bisulfite js further reduced as CCWA water :is diluted at least SO percent 
with Gachuma Project water. 

Ammonia is also a byproduct of the sodium bisulfite treatment process. In higher concentrations, 
ammonia can be toxic to fish and other aquatic life; however, the small amount of ammonia 
remaining in CCWA's water (0.00 mg/L to 0.14 mg/L) falls well below the Environmental 
Protection Agency's (EPA) current ammonia water quality criteria for the protection of aquatic life8 

(EPA, 2013). Furthecmore, CCWA's water is diluted by at least SO% with Cachuma Project water 
which would further reduce ammonia concentrations before this water reaches the Lower Santa 
Ynez River. 

CCWA water has been and would continue to be blended with Cachuma Project water in the 
proportion needed to meet the temperature requirement of18°C or less prior to introduction into 
the Stilling Basin/Lower Santa Ynez River. This is confirmed through SCADA monitoring within 
the SWP facilities that convey CCWA's water as well as by Reclamation and COMB at Bradbury 
Dam. Therefore, the introduction of CCWA water into the Lower Santa Ynez River is not expected 
to have any negative effects on water quality in the rive.t that could affect biological resources. 

Under the Proposed Action, blended CCWA water may be released into the Lower Santa Ynez 
River where Southern California steelhead (0. H!Jkiss) and its designated critical habitat are present. 
Juvenile 0. l!lykiss imprint on chemical odors in their natal stream which later guide their upstream 
homing migration as adults. 0. 17!JkisS undergo olfactory imprinting primarily during smoltification 
and downstream migration to the ocean, and potentially as alevins and emergent fry (Dittman et al., 
1995; Nevitt & Dittman, 1999; Carruth et. al. 2002; Salrnenkova, 2017; Bett &Hinch, 2015); In the 
Action Mea, this may occur as early as November and extend as late as June in some years. 
Releasing CCWA water to the Lower Santa Ynez River could potentially cause incorrect imprinting 
and interfere with upstream adult migration back to their natal river. The Proposed Action avoids or 

s The EPA's Fmhwafer Alnmonio Aquatic IJje An1bient Water Q11ality Crituio are: A cure 1-hou.r average of 17 mg/L total 
ammonia and a chronic 30-day rol.li.ng averages of1 .9 mg/L total ammonia at a pH of7.0 and a temperature of20°C 
(EPA, 2013). 

12 



Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

minimizes the risk of incortect olfactory imprinting from the release of CCWA water to the Lower 
Santa Ynez River by avoiding releases of this water to the river from December through May and by 
only allowing the release of CCWA water to the river in June and November when steelhead ate not 
present. 

Releases of blended CCWA water supplies to the Lower Santa Ynez River do not occur when there 
is surface water connectivity with the ocean. Releases of CCWA watet to the Lower Santa Ynez 
River would only occur during WR 89-18 water rights releases. WR 89-18 water rights releases are 
made such that flows do not go past the H-Street Bridge in Lompoc, resulting in no streamflow 
connectivity to the lagoon and ocean. 

With the implementation of the conservation measures restricting the timing and rate of release of 
CCW A's water to the rivet, the Proposed Action is highly unlikely to disrupt the olfactory 
imprinting of juvenile 0. "!}kiss. Furthermore, with the use of automatic safety shut-off systerns at 
the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility and the continued implementation of water temperature 
requirements, the Proposed Action is not expected to have any negative effects on water quality. 
With the Conservation Measures listed in 2.2, Reclamation has determined that the Proposed Action 
is Not Uke!J to Adverse!J A./ftc! the endangered Southern California steelhead DPS or designated 
critical habitat for this species. On June 2, 2022, Reclamation requested written concurrence from 
NMFS that the Proposed Action is Not Like!J to Adverse!J A.fftct the Southern California steelhead 
DPS or critical habitat for this species. NMFS concuned with the Not Uke!J to Advcrse!J Affict 
determination for the Proposed Action on June 13, 2022. 

Reclamation has also determined that the Proposed Action would have No Effie/ to any other 
proposed or listed species or critical habitat under the ESA (16 U.S.C. §1531 et seq.), and would not 
result in take of birds protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (16 U .S.C. §703 et seq.). 

3.3 Water Resources 

3.3.1 Affected Environment 
The affected environment is located in Santa Barbara County, California and incfudes Cachuma 
Project facilities (i.e., Bradbury Dam and Lake Cachuma, Tecolote Tunnel, and the South Coast 
Conduit), the Lower Santa Ynez River below Hradbury Dam, and the service areas on the South 
Coast where CCW A watet would ultimately be deli-.rered. 

3.3.1.1 Cachuma Project 
The Cachuma Project consists of Bradbury Dam, Lake Cachuma, the Tecolote Tunnel, the South 
Coast Conduit, four regulating reservoirs (Glen Anne Reservoir, Lauro Reservoir, Ortega Reservoir, 
and Carpinteria Resertoir) and appurtenant facilities in Santa Barbara County. Reclamation diverts, 
stores, and delivers Santa Ynez. River water pursuant to permits issued by the State Water Resources 
Control Board. 

I 
Pursuant to a contract with Santa Barbara County (County), Reclamation makes available up to 
25,714 acre-feet/per year of Cachuma Project water to the County for subsequent beneficial use by 
the Cachuma Project Member Units. Cachuma Project water is delivered to the South Coast 
Cachuma Member Units via the Tecotote Tunnel and South Coast Conduit system and ls made 

13 



Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

available to ID No.1 pursuant to an exchange agreement betWeen ID No. 1 and the South Coast 
Member Units. 

3.3.1.2 Lower Santa Ynez River 
The Lower Santa Ynez Rivet runs for approximately 48.7 ri1rer miles between Bradbury Dam and 
the Pacific Ocean. Below Bradbury Dam, the rivet passes south of the town of Santa Y nez and then 
flows through the broad section of the Santa Ynez Valley, near Buellton. West of Buellton, near the 
City of Lompoc, the river flows through a narrow section referred to as ''the Narrows" and emerges 
onto the broad, flat Lompoc Plain. From there the river travels approximately 13 miles, transitioning 
to the Santa Ynez River estuary on Vandenberg Air Force Base and then directly into the Pacific 
Ocean at Surf Beach. 

3.3.1.3 Lake Cachuma Water Quality 
Raw lake water quality is measw:ed monthly at Lake Cachuma for key constituents related to 
water treatment processes. The annual average concentrations measw:ed for specific 
conductivity, total dissolved solids, total organic carbon, turbidity, and sulfate concentrations 
for Lake Cachuma and CCW A water between 2015 and 2020 are provided in Table 2. 

Ta bl e 2. CCWA Water Quality and Lake Cachuma Water Quality Annual Results 
Specific 

Total Dissolved Total Organic 
Conductivity Turbidity (NTU) Sulfate (mg/l) 

Year Solids (mg/l) Carbon (mg/L) (mmhos/cm,} 

CCWA Cachuma CCWA Cachuma* CCWA Cachuma CCWA Cachuma CCWA Cachuma 

2015 781 963 437 626 2.5 4.7 0.17 12.11 97 
2016 609 1027 346 668 2.3 4.2 0.11 12.98 100 
2017 306 825 165 536 2.0 5.7 0.18 3.74 30 
2018 481 876 220 569 2.1 5.5 0.13 8.33 55 
2019 403 836 260 543 1.9 4.6 0.10 3.83 46 

2020 503 918 280 597 2.0 4.9 0.12 2.75 63 
Average 514 908 285 590 2.1 4.9 0.14 7.29 65 .. 

*Spec1frc Conductance multipfied by 0.65 conversion factor 
Sources: CCWA Polonio Pass Treatment Plant Water Quality Tables 2016 to 2020 http://www.ccwa.com/archives.html; 
City of Santa Barbara Public Works Department Water Resources Laboratory - Lake Cachuma Monthly Monitoring 
2015 to 2020 

3.3. 7.4 SWP Water Quality 
CCWA monitors water quality within CCWA's facilities. Average annual water quality data is 
included in Table 2 for the past five years. Water in the CCWA system ptior to delivery to Lake 
Cachutna had consistently lower concentrations of total dissolved solids, total organic carbon, 
tutbidity, and sulfates than the water in Lake Cachuma. 

3.3. 7.5 Central Coast Water Authority 
As noted previously, CCWA is a public entity that was organized to construct, operate, and maintrun 
South Coast facilities in order to bring supplemental water supply to its member agencies. CCWA 
has a SWP water contract for 45,486 acre-feet per year. Between 2016 and 2020, CCWA has 
delivered a total of 43,187 AF to the CCWA South Coast Participants (Table 3). Since 1997, an 
a1Tetage of approximately 2,040 AF per year has been exchanged for Cachuma Project water through 

14 

263 

272 

110 

236 

217 

90 

198 



Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

the Santa Ynez Exchange Agreement, with a low of 0 AF in 2016 and a high of3,155 AF in 2003 
(CCWA 2021). The water delivered to Lake Cahuma by CCWA has been used for supplemental 
water supplies especially during drought years. In the most recent drought, CCWA water was the 
primary source of water being introduced into Lake Cachuma. 

T bl 3 5 th C a e . ou oast c h ac uma M b U. T IW em er n1ts ota ater s r h L F Y . A F t up )Jiles overt e ast 1ve ears tn ere- ee 

Water Supply 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Cachuma Project 8,216 3,584 5,070 10,704 17,895 

CCWA Water 14.427 12,547 13,751 1,460 1,002 

3.3.2 Environmental Consequences 

3.3.2.1 No Action 
Under the No Action, supplemental water supplies would no longer be available to the CCWA 
South Coast Participants. This could cause shortages in water supplies for their customers especially 
during drought years. As shown in Table 3 above, during the recent critical drought, CCWA watet 
was crucial for the South Coast being as high as 3.5 times the amount of Cachuma Project water 
supplies, which occurred in 2017. Not having this watet supply available would substantially 
negatively affect the South Coast water supply. 

3.3.2.2 Proposed Action 
The Proposed Action would continue to allow up to 13,750 acte-feet/year of CCWA water to 
continue to be introduced, stored, and conveyed through Cachuma Project facilities when excess 
capacity is available. The in traduction, storage and conveyance of CCW A water would not increase 
or change operations in the Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta. The additional water would be 
used by CCW A South Coast Participants to meet existing municipal and industrial demands. In 
genetal, CCWA water delivered to Lake Cachuma is used first by the CCWA South Coast 
Participants in order to carry over (store) their Cachuma Project watet allocations for later use to 
better manage all available water supplies to meet existing demands. There would be no change in 
district boundaries or growth associated with use of this water. As shown in Table 3, this water is 
critical for the CCW A South Coast Participants to meet their existing demands, especially during 
drought ye.ars. As noted previously, there would be no modification of facilities in order to covey or 
deliver this water. The Proposed Action would be beneficial to water supplies within the Action 
area and would not adversely impact Cachuma Project operations. 

As noted in Section 2.2, CCWA water would not be introduced into Lake Cachuma during spill 
events, i.e. when water is released from the dam to prevent overtopping. If any CCWA water is 
stored in Cachuma during these periods of time, this amount would be miniscule compared to water 
in the Lake. Any release ofCCWA water from Lake Cachuma to the Lower Santa Ynez Rivetis 
required to be mixed with Cachuma Project water up to 50 percent and subject to temperature and 
seasonal requirements as set forth in the 2000 biological opinion for Cachuma Project operations. 
As this water is mixed and flows over natural substrates in the riv«,, its water chemistry is modified 
until it becomes indistinguishable from natural river water, and would, therefore, have no adverse 
impacts to water quality or beneficial uses in the Lower Santa Ynez River. 

15 



3.4 Cumulat ive Impacts 

Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

In the Council on Environmental Quality's (CEQ's) July 16,2020 ''Update to Regulations 
Implementing the Procedural Provisions of the National Environmental Policy Act" (85 FR 43304) 
the deftnition of cumulative impacts provided in 40 CPR 1508.7 was repealed. The CEQ conveyed 
the position that the analysis of cumulative effects, as defined in the 1978 regulations, is not required 
under NEP A. This regulation update does not preclude the analysis of cumulative effects, but 
identifies that all analyses of environmental effects, including cumulative effects, should focus on 
those effects that are reasonably foreseeable and have a reasonably close causal relationship to the 
proposed action. 

Reclamation has made the determination that the effects of the Proposed Action evaluated in this 
EA, combined with other reasonably foreseeable projects, would not result in cumulative impacts to 
any of the resources described above. Cachuma Project operations would not be impacted as there 
would be no change from baseline conditions and the Proposed Action would be subject to all 
applicable environmental, operational, and regulatory requirements associated with operation of the 
Cachuma Project. 

4 Consultation and C·oordinatio·n 

4.1 Agencies and Persons Consulted 

I 
Reclamation consulted a.nd coordinated with CCWA, Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board, 
and NMFS in the preparation of this EA. 

4.2 Public Involvement 

Reclamation provided the public with an opportunity to comment on the Draft EA between March 
25, 2022 and April22, 2022. One comment letter was received from the SYRWCD and it is included 
in Appendix A. The comment letter includes two primary assertions (1) Reclamation did not notify 
the SYRWCD of release of the EA ot provide the biological evaluation as part of the release for 
public review, and (2) that the Draft EA Proposed Action included additional restrictions on the 
mixing of CCWA water with WR 89-18 Water Rights Releases that are contrary to the 2002 
Settlement Agreement, 2000 BiOp, WR 2019-0148, and Reclamation's water rights permits. 
Reclamation disagrees with both assertions. 

For the first assertion, notification of the availability of the Dtaft EA was provided to the public on 
the day it was released. In addition, Section 3.2 of the Draft EA included the analysis that was 
included in the biological evaluation referenced in the comment letter. Further, Reclamation has 
ongoing biweekly coordination meetings with the Cachutna Project interested parties, including 
SYRWCD. Prior to release of the Draft EA, Reclamation discussed CCWA's short-term Warren 
Act contract, the Draft EA, and the informal consultation that would be needed for the Proposed 

16 



Final EA 
CGB-EA-2022-023 

Action during several of the coordination calls. Reclamation provided CCWA with an 
administrative draft of the EA prior to its release and was notified by CCWA that it was shared with 
its South Coast Participants and the SYRWCD prior to its release for public review. 

For the second assertion, the restrictions included in the Draft EA wete consistent with the 2000 
BiOp and were not additional restrictions. Those restrictions were analyzed in the 2000 BiOp and 
are therefore consistent with WR 2019-0148 and the 2002 Settlement Agreement which requires 
mixing to be consistent with the 2000 BiOp. Specifically, page 11 of the 2000 BiOp states: 
''Releases of CCWA water to the mains tern would only occur during water .rights releases from May 
to Octobet:, with the bulk of releases occurring July - Septetnber." Reclamation attempted to 
address previously noted confusion in mixing requirements from the 2000 BiOp to expressly state 
when mixing is allowed. As noted in Section 1.2, the current CCWA long-term Warren Act 
Contract expires in June 2022. The short-term Warren Act Contract analyzed in this EA is a 
separate action not covered in the 2000 BiOp. 

Since release of the Draft EA, the Proposed Action has been revised in coordination and 
cooperation with SYRWCD and the Cachuma Project local interests, all of whom pro'lided helpful 
information to address some of the concerns expressed by SYRWCD in their cotnment letter. The 
Proposed Action was also revised in coordination with NMPS to address concerns expressed during 
informal consultation regarding the timing of 0. mykiss olfactory imprinting in the Lower Santa Ynez 
River. The revisions are included in Section 2.2 of this Final EA and the concurrence memorandum 
received from N:MFS for the Proposed Action (Appendbc R). 

4.3 Endangered Species Act (16 U.S.C. § 1 531 et seq.) 

Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act requires Federal agencies, in consultation with the 
Secretary of the Interior and/ or Commerce, to ensure that their actions do not jeopardize the 
continued existence of endangered or threatened species, or result in the destruction or adverse 
modification of the critical habitat of these species. 

Reclamation consulted with NMFS regarding potential impacts from lhe Proposed Action on the 
federally endangered Southern California steelhead DPS and its critical habitat. On June 13, 2022, 
NMFS concurred with Reclamation's determination that the Proposed Action is Not L!ee!J to 
Adverse!J AJ!ect the endangered South em California steelhead DPS or its designated critical habitat 
(Appendix B) . 

5 References 

'

Basu, Onita D . & S.M. Dorner. 2010. Potential Aquatic Health Impacts of selected 
Dechlorination Chemicals. Water QJia/iry Research ]011mal of Canada 45: 353-363. 

I 
Bett, N.N. and Hinch, S.G. 2015. Olfactory navigation during spawning migrations: a .review and 

introduction of the Hierarchical Navigation Hypothesis. Biol. Rev. (2015), pp. 000-000. 

17 



Final EA 
CGB·EA-2022-023 

Carruth, L.L., R.E. J ones, and D.O. Norris. 2002. Cortisol and Pacific salmon; a new look at the 
role of stress hormones in olfactory aod home~strearo migration. Integrative and Comparative 

Biology 42(3): 574-581. 

CNDDB (California Natural Diversity Database). 2020. California Department ofFish and 
Wildlife's Natural Diversity Database, May 2020. 

EPA (Envitoomental Protection Agency). 2013. Aquatic Ufe Ambient Water Quality Criteria for 
Ammonia- Freshwater 2013. Office ofWater. Office of Science and Technology. 
Washington, D.C. 

Dittman, A. H., T. P. Quinn, and G. A. Nevitt. 1995. Timing of imprinting to natural and artificial 
odors by coho salmon (Oncori!JnchH.r kimtch) . Ca11adian fqumaL of Fisheries and Aquatic-Sciences 
53:434-442. 

Nevitt, G., and A. Dittman. 1999. A new model for olfactory imprinting in salmon. Integrative Biology 
No. 1: 215-223. 

NMFS. 2000. BHreau of Reclamation Operation mrd Maintenance of the Cach11t11a Project on the Santa Yntz 
River in Santa Barbara Cou11ty, California. National Marine Fisheries Service, Southwest Region. 

I 
Salmenkova, E . A. 2017. Mechanisms of Horning in Salmonids. Biology Bulletin Reviews, 7 ( 4), 287-

298. 

18 



CGB-EA-2022·023 
Final EA 

Appendix A: Comment Letter on Draft Environmental 
Assessment 



DIRECTORS: 

DIVISION 1 
CYNTHIA AllEN, President 
LoiT)poc 

Dl\iiSIONl 
STIOPHEN E. JORDAN 
Lompoc 

DIVISION 3 
MARK AlTSHULER 
Vandenberg Vill<~ge- Mission 
f·fflls 

DIVISION 4 
ARTHIBBITS 
Buellton - lompoc 

DIVISION 5 
J. BREIT MARYMEE 
Solvang- Santa Ynez 

Via Mail and Email 

Rain L. Emerson, M.S. 

WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

P.O. Box 719-3669 Sagunto Street, Suite 101 

Santa Ynez, Calffomia 93460 

Telephone: (805) 693-1156 
FAX: (805) 693-4607 

April 22, 2022 

Environmental Compliance Branch Chief 
Bureau of Reclamation 
Interior Region I 0 - California-Great Basin 
South-Central California Area Office 
1243 N Street 
Fresno. CA 93 727 
remerson@usbr.gov 

GENERAL MllNAGER: 

KEVIN 0, WALSH 

SECRETARY: 

AMBER M. THOMPSON 

TREASURER: 

WILLIAM J, BUELOW, PG 

CONSULTANTS: 

STEVE TORIGIANI 
General Counsel 

STETSON ENGINEERS 
Eo!#lleef 

Re: Parent District Comments on Draft Environmental Assessment (EA) for Central 
Coast Water Authority (CCWA) Temporary Warren Act Contract 
[CGB-EA-2022-023] 

The Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District (Parent District) submits the foUowing 
comments on the above-referenced EA for the CCWA Temporary Warren Act Contract (Project). 
The Parent District just learned of this EA and associated Biological Evaluation (BE) yesterday as 
they were included as part ofCCWA's Board Packet1 for its April28, 2022 Board meeting. The 
Parent District is disappointed that it was not advised of the EA being out for public review and 
comment by the United States Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation), and also notes that the BE 
is not referred to in the EA and has not been made publicly available by Reclamation during the 
EA comment period or otherwise. Be that as it may, as explained below, the Project appears to 
include additional restrictions on the mixing of CCWA's SWP supplies with downstream water 
rights releases contrary to the 2002 Settlement Agreement, the 2000 Biological Opinion 

1 Available at: https://www.ccwa.com/files/acb8a II OfJBoard.Packet04282022.pdf. 



Ms. Rain L. Emerson, M.S. 
April 22, 2022 
Page2 

(Biological Opinion), WRO 20 19-01482, and Reclamation's Cachuma Project water rights 
permits. As you know, mixing is critical to ensuring that the Cachuma Project is not impairing 
downstream water quality. There is no evidence that exclusion of November from the months in 
which mixing can occur - even when the flow is discontinuous in the mainstem, among other 
restrictions, is warranted3, and imposing such additional restrictions through the EA does not 
follow required procedures. Any modification to the Biological Opinion to add restrictions on 
mixing should be evaluated as part of the ongoing formal reinitiation of consultation -not by de 
facto amendment. 4 If further pursued, any additional unmitigated restrictions on mixing should 
be discussed with relevant stakeholders and evaluated as part of the ongoing consultation before 
being approved or implemented. 

The Parent District covers approximately 180,000 acres, principalty downstream of the 
Cachuma Project. The Parent District's constituents rely upon regular water rights releases being 
made from the Project's Bradbury Dam of sufficient quality and quantity to serve downstream 
beneficial uses, which include agricultural and domestic users of Santa Ynez River water. Such 
releases replenish downstream alluvial aquifers and groundwater basins. The Parent District' s 
constituents include Santa Y nez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No. 1, 
the cities of Solvang, Buellton and Lompoc, and various communities. The City of Lompoc, in 
particular, consists of various disadvantaged communities, who rely on Santa Ynez River releases 
as their sole source of supply and replenishment. The City of Lompoc previously raised claims 
with the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) regarding the Cachuma 
Project's impairment of downstream water quality. 

On December 17, 2002, the Cachuma Conservation Release Board (CCRB), the Parent 
District, Improvement District No. 1 and the City of Lompoc entered into a Settlement Agreement 
relating to the operation of the Cachuma Project (Cachuma Project Settlement Agreement). The 
Cachuma Project Settlement Agreement resolved 50 years of disputes relative to operation of the 
Project, including litigation and claims regarding downstream water quality impacts raised by the 
City of Lompoc. The Cachuma Project Settlement Agreement' s provisions are incorporated by 
reference, discussed in, and attached as Appendix 2 to the State Water Board's WR Order 2019-
0148 (WRO 2019-1048 or Order) In the Matter of Permits 11308 and 11310 (Applications 11331 
and 11332) held by the United States, Bureau of Reclamation for the Cachuma Project on the Santa 
Ynez River. (Order, §§ 6.1-6.5, pp. 100-110.) 

As explained in WRO 2019-0148 (Order, § 6.2 .1, pp. 102-103), the following recited 
provision (Subparagraph 1.5- Deliveries During Releases) of the Settlement Agreement, which 

2 Available at: https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water issues/programs/hearings 
/cachuma/docs/ wro20 19 _ 0148 _ withagreement_ final. pdf 
3 In fact, the EA indicates that per the draft 2016 biological opinion additional restrictions on mixing do 
not appear to be necessary: "the effects of .. Central Coast Water Authority state water project deliveries 
and releases are expected to be avoided by measures that are currently in place and are expected to 
continue." (Board Packet, pdfp. 106; BE, p. 12.) 
4 U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service and NMFS, Consultation Handbook (March 1998 Final), p. 4-63, 64; 50 
CFR §402.16. 



Ms. Rain L. Emerson, M.S. 
April 22, 2022 
Page3 

provides for commingling of SWP water imported by CCW A, is a key component of resolving the 
City of Lompoc' s Cachuma Project water quality concerns. returning tbe groundwater quality in 
the Lompoc Plain Groundwater Basin to a no project condition, and avoiding impairment to senior 
groundwater rights: 

''The parties to this Agreement will, as provided in Exhibit D, make best efforts to 
maximize the delivery by ... [CCW A of SWP] water with lower concentrations of 
total dissolved solids ('TDS ' ) into the outlet works at Bradbury Dam during WR 
89-18 water rights releases consistent with the NMFS 80. This will be 
accomplished through the commingling ofSWP water with WR 89-18 water rights 
releases in the Outlet Works at Bradbury Dam when downstream water rights 
releases are being made. Generally, SWP deliveries by CCWA are of lower TDS 
concentrations compared to water releases from Lake Cachuma under WR 89-18. 
The objective of such commingling operations is to maximize the delivery of SWP 
Water to lower the TDS in the lower Santa Ynez River and at the Narrows. Such 
coordinated program shall be carried out as set forth in Exhibit "D" hereto." 
(Emphasis added.) 

Reclamation approved of and supported the Cachuma Project Settlement Agreement in the 
WRO 2019-0148 proceedings as a way of resolving 50 years of disputes between the Cachuma 
Project Member Units and the downstream parties, including the Parent District and the City of 
Lompoc, with respect to the operation of the Project. This included disputes relating to water 
rights and water quality issues among them, including key hearing issues 4, 5 and 6, and resolution 
of the City of Lompoc' s litigation and claims regarding the Project's injury to its senior water 
rights including water quality impairment caused by the Project. (Order, p. 1 00.) 

Key Hearing Issue 4 was: 

"Has any senior, legal user ofwatet been injured due to changes in water quality 
resulting from the operation ofthe Cachuma Project? (Order p. 101.)" 

According to the Order, the City of Lompoc owns 9 domestic wells providing the sole 
source of water to 39,000 people including disadvantaged communities. (Ibid.) Lompoc asserted 
that historic operation of the Cachuma Project impaired the water quality in the groundwater basin 
in such a manner as to injure the city's senior downstream water rights. (Ibid.) In WRO 2019-
0148, the State Water Board concluded that under the current operating regime under the 2000 
Biological Opinion, "which includes the downstream water rights releases as required by 
Order WR 89-18 and the commingling of SWP water that is imported by the CCW A, the 
groundwater quality in the eastern portion of the Lompoc PJain Groundwater Basin will return to 
a no project condition, and should ensure that the Cachuma Project does not impair the City of 
Lompoc's senior groundwater rights." (Order, pp. 102-103, emphasis added.) 

The State Water Board found that "operation of the Cachuma Project in accordance with 
the Settlement Agreement will protect senior water right holders from injury due to either changes 
in water quality or a reduction in the quantity of water available to serve prior rights." (Order, p. 



Ms. RainL. Emerson, M.S. 
April 22, 2022 
Page4 

I 09, emphasis added.) The State Water Board further found that "Reclamation should operate the 
Cachuma Project pursuant to the new accounting, monitoring, and operating procedure set forth in 
the Settlement Agreement, and the Permits should be amended as proposed by Reclamation and 
agreed to by the parties to the agreement." (Ibid.) In making these findings, the State Water 
Board recognized that the 2000 Biological Opinion (Biological Opinion) limited the amount of 
SWP water that can be "mixed" and referenced the only other restrictions related to the delivery 
ofSWP water as stated in the Final EIR for the Order, as follows: 

"2.4.4.3 Restrictions of State Water Project Releases 

The Biological Assessment described restrictions on the delivery of SWP water to 
the reservoir. SWP water will not exceed 50 percent of the amount of water 
released from Bradbury Dam at any given time. In addition, SWP water will not 
enter the stilling basis with a temperature over 18 degrees Celsius. Finally, the 
Biological Opinion requires that releases of SWP water to the mainstem in 
conjunction with water rights and fish enhancement releases shall not occur during 
the migration period of December through June, unless flow in the mainstem is 
discontinuous. This requirement has been met since 2001. (Order, p. 102, fn. 65; 
FEIR, Vol. II5, p. 2.0-38, emphasis added.) 

In contrast to the above, the Project adds significant additional restrictions on mixing of 
SWP deliveries with downstream water rights releases. In particular, the EA adds the following 
restrictions on CCW A deliveries through the Bradbury Dam outlet works: 

"Releases of CCW A water to the mainstem only occurs during water right releases 
from May to October, with the bulk of releases occurring July through 
September;" (EA, p. 4, emphasis added.) 

These additional restrictions are not part of the Biological Opinion's reasonable and 
prudent measures, and they are not referenced in the Settlement Agreement or WRO 2019-0148. 
Neither the EA nor any other relevant document, to our knowledge, evaluates the need for such 
additional restrictions on mixing. Presently, there is no limit on mixing during any particular 
months whatsoever when the mainstem flow is discontinuous, and when it is not discontinuous 
mixing can still occur in November, as is sometimes necessary and as may be necessary more 
often in the future due to climate change. 

The Parent District was not consulted regarding the need for these additional unmitigated 
mixing restrictions, which represent a significant departure from the baseline and will cause water 
quality impacts to the Parent District's constituents, including tbe City of Lompoc and its 
disadvantaged citizens. These additional restrictions are conflict with the Biological Opinion and 
WRO 2019-0148, including its underlying environmental review and the State Water Board's 

s Available at: https://www. waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water issues/programs/hearings/cachuma/ 
feir/cachuma_feir _ vo12.pdf. 



Ms. Rain L. Emerson, M.S. 
April 22, 2022 
PageS 

conclusions regarding water quality· impacts ofthe Project meant to be addressed by the Cachuma 
Project Settlement Agreement. 

If these additional restrictions are not removed the Project, they represent a new 
impairment to water quality and possible injury to downstream water rights. To our knowledge, 
no evaluation whatsoever of the environmental impacts of adding such additional restrictions and 
making associated changes to Project's release operations has been performed, as would be 
necessary for the Project to comply with NEPA and CEQA, as applicable. CCWA's approval of 
the Project, along with the significant new additional unmitigated restrictions on mixing, would 
represent a substantial change to existing conditions and constitute a Project as defined by CEQA 
that may result in ~ignificant water quality impacts to downstream resources including 
groundwater in the Lompoc Plain Groundwater Basin; thus, a mitigated negative declaration or 
environmental impact report (or subsequent or supplemental EIR) would be required prior to 
consideration ofProject approval. (Public Resources Code,§ 21065; Cal Code Regs, § 15064.) 

For the above reasons, the Parent District urges that Reclamation delete the additional 
restrictions on mixing from the Project. The Parent District does not support the Project with such 
additional restrictions for the reasons expressed herein. These additional restrictions will likely 
degrade water quality conditions downstreamJ without any environmental analysis (or mitigation) 
and at the worst possible time - during a multi-year drought emergency. All the while, downstream 
GSAs have to comply with SGMA including avoidance of undesirable results including significant 
and unreasonable degraded water quality. The Parent District also fears that modifying Cachuma 
Project operations so as to impair downstream water quality and possibly injure downstream water 
rights, contrary to the Cachuma Project Settlement Agreement, the Biological Opinion, WRO 
2019-1048 and Reclamation's water rights permits, presents a significant risk of resumption of 
Litigation and/or regulatory or administrative proceedings regarding the Project's impact on 
downstream water quality and water rights. This would be very unfortunate after decades were 
spent resolving disputes regarding Cachuma Project operations and on development of appropriate 
downstream release permits terms and conditions. 

The Parent District recognizes the importance of and supports CCW A obtaining a 
temporary Warren Act Contract and has no desire to obstruct, complicate or delay that worthy 
endeavor. The simple solution here is to delete the additional restrictions on mixing from the 
Project, and ifReclamation desires to pursue them further, they should be considered and evaluated 
as part of the ongoing reinitiation of consultation as required by the federal Endangered Species 
Act. 

Sincerely, 

Kevin Walsh 
General Manager 



Ms. Rain L. Emerson, M.S. 
April 22, 2022 
Page 6 

Cc: (Email only) 

CCWA 
Attn: Ray Stokes 
RAS@ccwa.com 

Ernest A. Conant, USBR, Regional Director 
econant@usbr .gov 

Michael Jackson, P.E., USBR, Area Manager 
m jackson@usbr .gov 

City of Lompoc 
Attn; Kristin Worthley 
kworth ley@ci.lom poc.ca. us 

City of Buellton 
Attn: Rose Hess 
roseh@citybuellton.com 

City of Solvang 
Attn: Xenia Bradford 
xeniab@cityofsolvang.com 

Improvement Dist. No. 1 
Attn: Paeter Garcia 
pgarcia@syrwd.org 



CGB-EA-2022-023 
Final EA 

Appendix B: Concurrence letter from National Marine 
Fisheries Service 



Michael Jackson 
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
1243 N. Street 
Fresno, California 93721-1813 

UNITED STAlES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Admlnlslfatloo 
NATIONAL MA~INE FISHERIES SERVICE 
West Coasl Region 
501 West Ocean Boulevard. Suite 4200 
Long Beach. California 90802-42S.D 

June 13, 2022 

Refer to NMFS No: 
WCR0-2022-00071 

Re: Endangered Species Act Section 7(a)(2) Concurrence Letter for the Proposed Issuance of 
a Temporary Warren Act Contract to the Central Coast Water Authority 

Dear Mr. Jackson: 

On June 2, 2022, NOAA's National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) received the U.S. Bureau 
ofReclamation' s (Reclamation) request for written concurrence that proposed issuance of a 
temporary (not to exceed five years) Warren Act contract to the Central Coast Water Authority 
(CCWA) is not likely to adversely affect the endangered Southern California Distinct Population 
Segment (DPS) ofsteelhead (Oncorhynchus mykiss) and critical habitat for the species 
designated under the Endangered Species Act (ESA). This response to Reclamation's request 
was prepared by NMFS pursuant to section 7(a)(2) of the ESA and implementing regulations at 
50 CFR402. 

This Jetter underwent pre-dissemination review using standards for utility, integrity, and 
objectivity in compliance with applicable guidelines issued under the Data Quality Act (section 
515 of the Treasury and General Government Appropriations Act for Fiscal Year 2001, Public 
Law 1 06-554). The document will be available within two weeks at the Environmental 
Consultation Organizer [https://eco.iisheries.noaa.gov]. A complete record of this consultation is 
on file at the Southern California Branch of the California Coastal Office in Long Beach, 
California. 

Consultation History 
The proposed action is associated with Reclamation's Cachuma Project1 specifically Bradbury 
Dam and Cachuma Reservoir on the Santa Ynez River. NMFS analyzed the potential effects of 
CCWA delivery of out-of-basin water from the State Water Project into Cachuma Reservoir and 



2 

the Santa Ynez River in a September 8, 2000, biological opinion (Bi0p). 1 Potential incorrect 
olfactory imprinting in juvenile steelhead was identi'fied as the principal potential adverse effect 
if out-of-basin water was released directly into the Santa Ynez River during the likely period of 
olfactory imprinting (i.e., November through June) when juvenile steelhead are preparing for or 
undertaking seaward migration. However, NMFS concluded risk of incorrect olfactory 
imprinting was remote because release of out-of-basin water into the Santa Ynez River was 
expected to generally avoid the principal period when juvenile steelhead undergo parr-smolt 
transformation and imprint on their natal river. 

On June 26, 2020, Reclamation requested informal consultation regarding issuance of a 
temporary (five years) Warren Act contract for CCWA to continue delivery and distribution of 
State Water Project water under the presumption the existing 25-year contract would expire on 
July 25, 2020. NMFS concluded consultation with issuance of a letter on July 14, 2020, 
concurring with Reclamation' s determination that the proposed action was not likely to adversely 
affect the Southern California DPS of steelhead and critical habitat designated for this species. 
However, on July 15, 2020, CCW A withdrew its request for a temporary contract upon realizing 
the existing contract with Reclamation would not expire until June 24, 2022, and instead 
requested that Reclamation focus on developing another 25-year contract. Negotiations for 
issuing a 25-year contract between CCW A and Reclamation remain incomplete. 

Although Reclamation has reinitiated ESA section 7 consultation with NMFS on the operation 
and maintenance of the Cachuma Project, that consultation will not be completed before the 
existing Warren Act contract with CCWA expires on June 24, 2022.2 Therefore, on March 30, 
2022, Reclamation requested informal consultation regarding issuance of a temporary Warren 
Act contract for CCWA to continue delivery and distribution ofState Water Project water into 
Cachuma Project faci lities tor up to five years. 

Subsequent to the March 30, 2022, consultation request, Reclamation modified the proposed 
action based on their collaboration with local water purveyors associated with the Cachuma 
Project. Furthermore, during informal consultation our review of the scientific literature 
regarding olfactory imprinting in juvenile steelhead revealed information that does not support 
Reclamation's March 30, 2022, request for concurrence. We shared that information with 
Reclamation, which subsequently revised the proposed action and then sent us a new request 
dated June 2, 2022. 

Proposed Action and Action Area 
Reclamation proposes to issue a temporary Warren Act contract to CCWA, not to exceed five 
years. Under the terms of the contract, CCWA would introduce, store and convey up to 13,750 

1 A sub-element of Reclamation's proposed operation and maintenance of the Cachuma Project was annual delivery 
of up to 12,545 acre-feet of State Water Project water per year at a rate not to exceed 22 cfs into Cachuma Reservoir 
and the Santa Ynez River via the Bradbury Dam outlet works. The delivery of State Water Project water was under 
a Warren Act contract issued by Reclamation to CCW A in July 1995. 
2 NMFS is currently providing Reclamation technical assistance in discussions to assist Reclamation in developing a 
consultation request package with sufficient information to begin formal ESA consultation. 



3 

acre-feet of State Water Project water in Cachurna Project facilities at a rate of no more than 22 
cubic feet per second. See Central Coast Water Authority Temporary Warren Act Contract
Biological Evaluation (Reclamation June 2, 2022) for a complete description oftbe proposed 
action. 

Because State Water Project water released into the Santa Ynez River under the proposed action 
may flow from Bradbury Dam to the City of Lompoc (approximately 35 miles), the action area 
includes that 35-mile reach ofthe Santa Ynez River, as well as Cachuma Reservoir. 
Additionally, the transmission system for delivering water from Cachuma Reservoir for 
residential, agricultural and industrial purposes (i.e., Tecolote Tunnel and South Coast Conduit) 
is part of the action area. However, the existence, operation, and maintenance of this water
transmission system will continue regardless of the proposed action. 

Release of State Water Project water into the Santa Ynez River below Bradbury Dam would only 
occur during June through November and only when Reclamation is releasing water from 
Bradbury Dam to support downstream water-right holders under the Water Resources Control 
Board's Water Order WR 89-18 and when surface water is discontinuous between the dam and 
the Santa Ynez River Lagoon. Because steelhead may be undergoing olfactory imprinting 
during June and November and exposure to out-of-basin water could result in incorrect olfactory 
imprinting, the proposed action precludes discharge of State Water Project water into the river 
during June and November if steelhead are observed to be present. Any State Water Project 
water released directly into the Santa Ynez River below Bradbury Dam would be mixed (diluted) 
with an equal or greater amount of water released from Cachuma Reservoir and the release 
would be conducted in a manner to ensure released water does not exceed l8°C. 

Prior to discharge into Cachuma Reservoir or the Santa Ynez River, the water is chlorinated at 
the Polonio Pass Water Treatment Plant in San Luis Obispo aod then dechlorinated at CCWA's 
Santa Ynez Pumping Facility using sodium bisulfite. The Santa Ynez Pumping Facility 
automatically halts water transmission if chlorine concentration exceeds 0.03 mg!L or residual 
sodium bisulfite concentration is :::;0.1 mg!L or> 1.0 mg/L. The purpose for retaining residual 
sodium bisulfite is to ensure no residual chlorine remains in CCW A water before it is discharged 
into Cachuma Reservoir or the Santa Ynez River. 

We considered under the ESA whether the proposed action would cause any other activities and 
determined that it would not. 

Background and Action Agency's Effects Determination 
Reclamation determined the proposed action is not likely to adversely affect the endangered 
Southern California DPS of steelhead (71 FR 834; January 5, 2006) or critical habitat designated 
for this species (70 FR 52488; September 2, 2005). In general, the physical or biological 
features of designated critical habitat relevant to the action area are freshwater spawning sites, 
freshwater rearing sites, and freshwater m\gration corridors. Reclamation's determination was 
based on: (1) restricting the release of State Water Project water into the Santa Ynez River to 
times when steelhead are unlikely to be undergoing olfactory imprinting or otherwise not 
present, thus avoiding or minimizing potential for incorrect olfactory imprinting, and (2) 



4 

measll!es to ensure potential discharge of residual sodium bisulfite and ammonia would be at 
concentrations that would not adversely affect aquatic life including endangered steelhead. 

Effects of the Action 
Under the ESA, "effects of the action" are all consequences to listed species or critical habitat 
that are caused by the proposed action, including the consequences of other activities that are 
caused by the proposed action. A consequence is caused by the proposed action if it would not 
occur but for the proposed action and it is reasonably certain to occur. Effects of the action may 
occur later in time and may include consequences occurring outside the immediate area involved 
in the action (SO CFR 402.02). ln our analysis, which describes the effects ofthe proposed 
action, we considered 50 CFR 402.17(a) and (b). When evaluating whether the proposed action 
is not likely to adversely affect listed species or critical habitat, NMFS considers whether the 
effects are expected to be completely beneficial, insignificant, or discountable. Completely 
beneficial effects are contemporaneous positive effects without any adverse effects to the species 
or critical habitat. Insignificant effects relate to the size of the impact and should never reach the 
scale where take occurs. Effects are considered discountable3 if they are extremely unlikely to 
occur. 

The proposed action is similar to an action consulted on as part ofthe operation and maintenance 
of the Cachuma Project, which resulted in the September 8, 2000, BiOp and July 14, 2020, letter 
of concurrence that the proposed action may affect, but is not likely to adversely affect the 
endangered Southern California DPS of steel head or critical habitat designated for this species. 
That is, CCWA would introduce, store, and convey State Water Project water through Cachuma 
Project facilities at a rate not to exceed 22 cfs. The proposed action subject to this consultation 
differs from that analyzed as part ofthe September 8, 2000, BiOp because the proposed action 
now excludes releasing CCW A water into the river during May and includes potential releases 
during November, and discloses potential discharge of residual sodium bisulfite and ammonia 
associated with the wateHreatment process. It also includes a minor increase in potential annual 
water deliveries from a maximum of 12,545 acre~feet to a maximum of 13,750 acre.-feet. The 
proposed action differs from that analyzed in the July 14, 2020, informal consultation by 
disclosing potential discharge of ammonia, reducing annual water deliveries from a maximum of 
17,706 acre-feet to 13,750 acre-feet per year, and expanding the period for releasing State Water 
Project water into the river below the dam from July 1 through October 31 to June 1 through 
November 30. 

Juvenile steelhead in the action area undergo olfactory imprinting principally in preparation and 
during their seaward migration, and potentially as alevins and emergent fry. This is expected to 
occur as early as November and continue into June. Discharging out ... of-basin State Water 
Project water (Sacramento-San Joaquin River system) into the Santa Ynez River could cause 
incorrect olfactory imprinting. Incorrect olfactory imprinting may cause adult Santa Ynez River 
steelhead to not locate their natal river when returning to freshwater to spawn. However, the 
proposed action avoids or minimizes the likelihood of exposure to out-of-basin water when 

3 When the terms ''discountable" or "discountable effects" appear in this document, they refer to potential effects 
that are found to support a "not likely to adversely affecf' conclusion because they are extremely unlikely to occur. 
The use of these terms should not be interpreted as having any meaning inconsistent with our regulatory deftnition 
of"effects of the action." 



5 

steelhead are undergoing olfactory imprinting and long-tenn olfactory learning for returning to 
their natal river by not discharging State Water Project water into the river during December 
through May, and only discharging State Water Project water into the river in June and 
November when steelhead are not present. Therefore, the effect of incorrect olfactory imprinting 
is discountable. 

Residua] sodium bisulfite could be discharged into the Santa Ynez River, potentially exposing 
steelhead to this chemical. However, the concentration that sodium bisulfite would be 
discharged from CCWA's pipeline (sodium bisulfite ~! mg!L) is considered non-toxic to aquatic 
life (Basu & Dorner 2010).4 Adverse effects, including death, to stream fishes bas been 
observed during exposure to a high-concentration release of sodium bisulfite, attributed to 
sudden reduction of dissolved oxygen in the water. Ryon et al. (2002)5 concluded instream 
concentrations of sodium bisulfite equal to or exceeding about 39 mg/L may reduce dissolved 
oxygen sufficient to kill fish. This amount is about 40 times the concentration in the water that 
may be delivered under the proposed action. Furthermore, the concentration of sodium bisulfite 
potentially delivered under the proposed action would be diluted by a factor of0.5 or more 
before being discharged into the Santa Ynez River, likely rendering it undetectable. Therefore, 
the effects of discharging residual sodium bisulfite under the proposed action are insignificant. 

Water discharged from the CCWA pipeline into the Santa Ynez River could contain ammonia, 
potentially exposing steelhead to this chemical. However, measured concentrations of total 
ammonia6 in water discharged from CCW A's pipeline (:$0.14 mg/L) are less than the amount 
EPA (2013)7 concluded is protective ofESA-listed salmonids, including steelhead; that is, acute 
toxicity criteria ( 1-hour average) 17 mg/L and chronic toxicity criteria (30-day rolling average) 
1.9 mg!L. EPA (2013) reports the mean acute (SMA V)8 and chronic (SMCV)9 total ammonia 
toxicity values for 0. mykiss as 82.88 mg/L and 6.663 mg/L, respectively, normalized for water 
pH 7.0 and temperature 20° C. Furthermore, the concentration of ammonia potentially delivered 
under the proposed action would be diluted by a factor of 0.5 or more before discharging into the 
Santa Ynez River. Consequently, this reduces the observed concentration levels to between 0 
and 0.07 mg/L, which are nearly two orders of magnitude less than the EPA calculated chronic 
toxicity value for 0. mykiss and below the minimum effects concentrations reported in NMFS 
(2017) 10 for behavioral (0.4 mg/L, 4.8-hour exposure), growth (0.3 mg/L, 120-day exposure), 

4 Onita D. Basu and Sarah M. Domer. 2010. Potential Aquatic Health Impacts of Selected Dechlorination 
Chemicals. Water Quality Research Journal of Canada. Vol. 45, No.3. · 
5 Michael G. Ryon, Arthur J. Stewert, Lynn A. Kszos, Terry L. Phipps. 2002. Impacts on Streams from the Use of 
Sulfur-Based Compounds for Dechlorinating Industrial Effluents. Water Air and Soil Pollution. May 2002. 
6 Total ammonia refers to the combined concentration of the ionized (NH/) and un-ionized (NH,) forms. 
1 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 2013. Aquatic Life Ambient Water Quality Criteria For Ammonia
Freshwater. EPA-822-R-13-001. Apri12013. 
8 Species Mean Acute Value (SMA V) is the geometric mean of the results of all acceptable flow-through acute 
toxicity tests (for which the concentrations of the test material were measured) with the most sensitive tested life 
stage of the species. 40 CFR 132,2. 
9 Species Mean Chronic Value (SMCV) is the geometric mean of the results of all accep1able life-cycle and partial 
life-cycle toxicity tests with the species; for a species of fish for which no such result is available, the SMCV is the 
geometric mean of all acceptable early life-stage tests. 
10 NOAA's National Marine Fisheries Service. 2017. Endangered Species Act Section 7(a)(2) Biological Opinion, 
and Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act Essential Fi.sh Habitat Response for Renewing 
the Operating License for the Columbia Generating Station, Richland, Washington. March 10, 2017. 



6 

and physiological (0.23, 42-day exposure) effects. Therefore, the effects of discharging 
ammonia under the proposed action are insignificant. 

The aforementioned effects of the proposed action on steelhead also regard physical or biological 
features of designated critical habitat for this species (i.e., freshwater spawning sites, freshwater 
rearing sites and freshwater migration corridor) . Based on the discussion above regarding the 
potential effects of the proposed action on steel head, the effects of the proposed action on 
physical or biological features of critical habitat for this species are insignificant. 

Conclusion 
Based on this analysis, NMFS concurs with Reclamation that the proposed action is not likely to 
adversely affect the subject listed species and critical habitat designated for this species. 

Reinitiation of Consultation 
Reinitiation of consultation is required and shall be requested by Reclamation or by NMFS, 
where discretionary Federal involvement or control over the action has been retained or is 
authorized by law and (l) tile proposed action causes take; (2) new information reveals effects of 
the action that may affect listed species or critical habitat in a manner or to an extent not 
previously considered; (3) the identified action is subsequently modified in a manner that causes 
an effect to the listed species or critical habitat that was not considered in the written 
concurrence; or ( 4) a new species is listed or critical habitat designated that may be affected by 
the identified action (50 CFR 402.16). This concludes the ESA consultation. 

Please direct a question regarding this letter to Darren Brumback at (562) 980-4060 or 
Darren.Brumback@noaa.gov. 

cc: David Hyatt, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
Lisa Buck, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
Copy toE-File: FRN 151422WCR2022CC00071 

Branch 



-BUREAU OF

RECLAMATION 

Central Coast Water Authority 
Temporary Warren Act Contract 
Finding of No Significant Impact 
CGB-FONSI-2022 -023 

U.S. Department of the Interior June 2022 



Mission Statements 
The U.S. Depattrnent of the Interior protects and manages the 
Nation's natural resources and cultural heritage; provides scientific 
and other information about those resources; and honors its trust 
responsibilities or special cot:nJnitmeots ro American Indians, Alaska 
Natives, and affiliated Island Communities. 

The mission of the Bureau of Reclamation is to manage, develop, and 
protect water and related resources in an envirorunentally and 
economically sound manner in the interest of the American public. 



CGB-FONSI-2022-023 

BUREAU OF RECLAMATION 
South-Central California Area Office, Fresno, California 

CGB-FONSI-2022-023 

Central Coast Water Authority Temporary Warren 
Act Contract 

RAIN 
EMERSON 

OigllaiiY signed by RAIN 
EMERSON 
Date: 2022.06.14 
12:52:42 .07'00' 

Concurred by: Rain L. Emerson 
Environmental Compliance Branch Chief 

Digitally signed by LISA 

LISA BUCK~~~~~2022.06.14 
12:5]:02 .07'00' 

Concurred by: Lisa Buck 
Wt.ldlife Biologist 

MICHAEL 
JACKSON 

Olgltally slgned by 
MICHAEL JACKSON 
Dale: 2022.06.14 
14:26:26 .07'00' 

Approved by: Michael P. J ackson, P.E. 
Area Manager 



CGB-FONSI-2022-023 

Introduction 
In accordance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) of1969, as amended, the 
Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) prepared this Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) 
which is supported by Reclamation's attached Environmental Assessment (EA) CGB-EA-2022-023, 
Central Coa.rt Water Atlthori!J Tenrporary Warnlt Act Contract, hereby incorporated by reference. 

Background 

Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA) is a California Joint Powers Agency that was formed in 
1991 to construct necessary facilities to deliver supplemental water supplies from the State Water 
Project (SWP) to the communities in San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara Counties. The SWP 
Coastal Br-anch facilities were compLeted in 1997. 

In 1994, Reclamation released an EA that analyzed the construction of an extension of the SWP 
Coastal Branch that would allow the annual introduction through issuance of a long-term Warren 
Act Con trace of SWP wate.r into the Cachuma Project facilities for deli't1ery to CCW A's South Coast 
Participants2

. A Finding of No significant Impact was issued on Januaty 3, 1995. 
In 1995, Reclamation issued a 25-year Warren Act contract to CCWA that allowed the annual 
introduction, storage, and conveyance of up to 13,750 acre-feet (A F) of water acquired by or 
available to CCWA fr.om or through the SWP into Cachuma Project facilities for delivery to the 
South Coast Participants fot municipal and industrial uses. Introductions of SWP water under the 
1995 Warren Act contract began in 1997. 

Prior to entering Lake Cachuma, the treated water is dechlorinated at the Santa Ynez Pumping 
Facility located neat the town of Santa Ynez. After being delivered to Lake Cachuma, CCWA water 
supplies are delivered to the South Coast via the Tecolote Tunnel and the South Coast Conduit. 
CCWA water is delivered to the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District Improvement 
District No.1 (ID No.1) directly from a connection to the SWP pipeline before it reaches the Santa 
Ynez Pumping Facility. 

CCWA's water is treated at the Polonio Pass Water Treatment Plant in San Luis Obispo County and 
then dechlorinated at CCWA's Santa Ynez Pumping Facility near the town of Santa Ynez using 
sodium bisulfite prior to its introduction into Lake Cachuma. Built-in safety systems automatically 
shut off the pumps of the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility if sodium bisulfite .residual levels fall below 
0.1 mg/L or above 1 mg/L protecting water quality in Lake Cachuma and the Lower Santa Ynez 
River3

. 

1 A contract that allows non-Reclamation Project water to be introduced into Reclamation facilities. 
2 CCW A's South Coast Participants include: Carpinteria Valley Water District, the City of Santa Barbata, Goleta Water 
District, Montecito Water Distr.ict, La Cumbre Mutual Water, IU.ytheon Systems Co. and Morehart Land Co. 
J A detectable concentration of Sodium Bisulfite is needed to confinn the water has been fully dechlorinated. CCW A 
also monitors for chlocine concentrations and its pumping plant will shut down if chlorine concentrations are detected, a 
further mechanism for protecting water quality in Lake Cach\ll'ru\. 



CGB-FONSI-2022-023 

CCWA water has been and continues to be a much-needed supplemental water supply for the water 
deficient South Coast especially during drought conditions. As the existing Warren Act Contract 
exphes in June 2022, CCWA has requested a new short-term Wam:n Act Contract to continue the 
introductions, conveyance, and storage of non-Reclamation Project water into Cachuma Project 
facilities for delivery to the CCW A's South Coast Participants. Reclamation and CCWA are in the 
process of negotiating a new long-term Warren Act Contract. In addition, Reclamation is currently 
in re-consultation with the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) under the Endangered Species 
Act (ESA) regarding operation and maintenance of the Cachuroa Project. As negotiations for the 
long-term Warren Act contract and re-consultation on the Cachuma Project are not anticipated to 
be complete by June 2022, CCWA and Reclamation need to enter into a short-term contract to 
allow the continued delivery of a much-needed water supply to the South Coast Participants. 

Alternatives Considered 

No Action Alternative 

Under the No Action Alternative Reclamation would not issue short-term Warren Act Contract(s) 
to CCWA for the annual introduction, conveyance, and storage of up to 13,750 AF of CCWA water 
within Cachuma Project facilities. 

Proposed Action 

Reclamation proposes to issue short-term (up to five-years) Warren Act Contract(s) to CCWA that 
would allow the annual introduction, conveyance, and storage of up to 13,750 AF of CCWA's water 
within Cachuma Project facilities. 

Measures to avoid and minimize effects to the endangered Southern California steelhead Distinct 
Population Segment (DPS; Oncorf?ynclms mykiss) have been, and will continue to be, implemented 
during CCW A operations. Measures are primarily related to preventing steelhead from imprinting 
on CCWA water and preventing CCWA water from being released to Hilton Creek. Reclamation 
proposes to implement the following: 

• Releases of CCWA water to the Santa Ynez River mainstem tnay not occur during 
December through May. 

• Releases of CCWA water to the Santa Ynez River mainstem tnay only occur during Water 
Right (\VR) 89-18 water right releases when flow is discontinuous in the mainstem, primarily 
between July to October. 

• During June and November CCWA water may be introduced into the Lower Santa Ynez 
River only when: (1) 0. mykiss are not present based on snorkel and trapping surveys 
conducted under WR 89-18 water tights release monitoring pursuant to technical sessions 
with NMFS regarding Reasonable and Prudent Measure 6 of the 2000 Biological Opinion for the 
Operation and Moi!ttenance of the Cochuma Project (2000 BiOp) and (2) no rain is predicted for at 



CGB-FONSI-2022-023 

least 14 days. Two traps would be operated in the Lower Santa Ynez River, with one located 
near the confluence of Hilton Creek and the river and the other located further downstream 
(e.g., Meadowlark crossing). Releases of blended CCW A water to the Lower Santa Y nez 
River in June and November would cease immediately if any 0. n!Jkiss are caught in the 
traps, or observed during the snorkel surveys. 

• CCWA water may be mixed up to 50 percent of the total rate of releases to the Lower Santa 
Yoez River. 

• CCWA and Lake Cachuma water entering the Stilling Basin would be blended to a 
temperature of .:S l8°C, as estimated pursuant to the Penstock Temperature Monitoring 
Plan. 

• There is no delivery of CCW A water into Lake Cachuma via the outlet works when the 
Hilton Creek Emergency Backup System (EBS) is delivering water. 

• There will be no delivery of CCWA water via the outlet works when the lake-based Hilton 
Creek Watering System Pumping Platform is in operation or the EBS is set to stand-by 
mode to deliver water to Hilton Creek. 

CCWA water includes SWP water from the Sacramento River watershed, previously banked SWP 
water, and other non-SWP water supplies acquired from the Sacramento River watershed, the San 
Joaquin River watershed, and the San Joaquin-Sacramento Delta. CCWA's acquired non-SWP water 
supplies can include groundwater pumping, groundwater substitution, land fallowing, or other 
transfers and exchanges that are common in Reclamation's Central Valley Project and the SWP. 
The conveyance of non-SWP water supplies through the SWP are reviewed and approved 
independently by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) prior to this water being 
conveyed in State facilities to CCWA's facilities . Prior to introduction into Cachuma Project 
facilities, CCWA's water will continue to be treated as done under baseline conditions. 

Under the short-term Warren Act Contract(s), CCWA water would continue to be introduced and 
conveyed through Cachuma Project facilities (I.e., Bradbury Dam outlet works, Stilling Basin, Lake 
Cachurna, North Intake of the Tecolote Tunnel, and the South Coast Conduit) to CCWA South 
Coast Participants located along the South Coast Conduit. 

No modifications to existing infrastructure or construction would be needed for the Proposed 
Action. 

Mechanisms of CCWA Water Introduction to the Cachuma Project 
There are two existing mechanisms for the introduction of CCWA water into Lake Cachuma: (1) a 
direct connection of the CCW A pipeline to the Bradbury Dam outlet works penstock; and (2) a 
high-density polyethylene penstock bypass pipelihe (bypass pipeline) that introduces CCWA water 
directly into Lake Cachuma 4 • These mechanisms would remain unchanged under the proposed 
action. 

4 The bypass pipeline has been routed previously in three configurations: bypass pipeline through the spillway onto the 
bed:ock shelf (used when take levels :ue low and bedrock shelf is exposed), bypass pipeline to the spillway gate threshold 
(used when the bedrock shelf is submerged and lake level is below the spillway gate threshold) and bypass pipeline over 
the top of the dam (used when lake level is above the threshold of the spillway gate). 

3 



CGB-FONS I-2022-023 

\Vhen releases from the outlet works occur at the same time as CCWA water is being introduced 
through the outlet works, CCWA water mixes with water from Lake Cachuma and is released into 
the Stilling Basin where it flows into the Lower Santa Ynez River. This mixing of CCWA water has 
certain advantages to downstream entities for enhancing watet quality (i.e., reduced total dissolved 
solids) and the Cachuma Project Member Units5

, Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District 
(SYRWCD), and the City of Lompoc entered into a Settlement Agreement in September 2002 to 
maximize introduction of CCWA water during their Water Rights Releases6 from the outlet works. 
The 2002 Settlement Agreement has been incot:porated into Cachuma Project WR Order 2019-0148 
(WR 2019-0148). 

CCWA water may be introduced to Lake Cachuma or the Lower Santa Y nez River at rates ranging 
from 3 cubic feet per second (cfs) up to 22 cfs, as limited by the capacity of the four pumps at 
CCW A's Santa Ynez Pumping Facility. Three of the four pumps operate only at 100 percent, while 
the remaining putnp has a variable frequency drive which allows for any flow rate from 3 to 22 cfs. 
Operation of the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility is variable, but in general the Pumping Facility 
operates minimally when Lake Cachuma is full and may operate at maximum capacity for extended 
periods of time during drought conditions. 

When Reclamation is releasing water from the outlet works at Bradbury Dam, and CCW A is 
delivering CCW A water to Lake Cachuma, commingled water will be released to the Lower Santa 
Ynez River pursuant to the measures noted in Section 2.2 above. When Reclamation is releasing 
water from the EBS, CCWA water will not be introduced into the outlet works as the EBS is 
plumbed into the outlet works. 

Temperature monitoring sensors and related equipment in the penstock at the Bradbury Dam outlet 
works and in the CCWA pipeline collect and transmit data to both CCWA and Reclamation's 
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) System. 

The system uses a flow weighted average of lake water temperature and CCWA water temperature 
to calculate an estimate of the blended temperature of water releases to the Stilling Basin. These 
calculations are done continuously using a programmable logic controller at a set frequency of once 
every 1"15 minutes. The Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board (COMB) and Reclamation 
monitor the temperature of CCWA water and water in the penstock, and there is a SCADA alarm 
set to alert CCWA and Reclamation when the temperature of blended water is approaching a certain 
threshold below 18°C. When the temperature of blended water is approaching the 18°C
temperature limit for steelhead, Reclamation will immediately reduce or suspend delivery of CCWA 
water or increase delivery of Cachuma Lake water to avoid exceeding the 18°C-temperature limit. 

CCWA Water Treatment 
Prior to its introduction into Lake Cachuma, CCWA water is treated in CCWA's Polo.nio Pass Water 
Treatment Plant in San Luis Obispo County to applicable drinking water standards. This treatment 
process includes adding chloramine (a mix of chlorine and ammonia) to the water. From the 

s Cachuma Project Member Units include Carpinteria WateJ: District, City of Santa Barbara, Goleta Water District, 
Montecito Water District, and Santa Y nez River Water Conservation District Improvement District No. 1. 
6 Non-discretionary Water Rights Releases have occurred since the completion of Bradbury Dam. These releases are 
made in accordance with State Water Resources Control Board permits 11308 and 11310 issued to Reclamation for the 
Cachuma Project, as conditioned by WR Order 73-37, as amended by WR OrdeJ: 89-18, and WR Order 2019-0148. 

4 



CGB-FONSI-2022-023 

Polonio Pass Water Tre'<ltment Plant, CCWA's water is conveyed to the Santa Ynez Pumping 
Facility where it is treated with sodium bisulfite to remove the chloramine before the water is 
conveyed to Bradbury Dam for introduction into Cachuma Project facilities. 

Built-in safety systems at the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility automatically shut off the pumps if a 
chlorine concentration "2: 0.03 mg/L is detected, or if residual sodium bisulfite concentrations drop 
to 0.1 mg/L or rise above 1 mg/L. Slightly more sodium bisulfite is added to the water thah needed 
to cornpletely neutralize the chlorine, which results in a small amount of unreacted sodium bisulfite 
left in the water (i.e. >0.1 mg/L and~ 1mg/L). Based on the chemistry of the chemical reaction 
between sodium bisulfite and chloramine~ as long as there is a detectable sodium bisulfite 
concentration in the water there is no free chlorine left in the water (i.e., chlorine residual is 0 
tn.g/L). 

Free ammonia is a byproduct of the sodium bisulfite water treatment process. A study conducted 
by CCWA that tracked the fate of free ammonia through the eight-mile pipeline that runs from the 
Santa Ynez Pumping Facility to Lake Cachuma found that only small concentrations of free 
ammonia reach Lake Cachuma. Samples collected at the Lake Cachuma delivery point over the 12-
month study period (2016 to 2017) had free ammonia concentrations ranging from 0 mg/L to 0.14 
mg/L with an average concentration of 0.04 mg/L. 1bis represents an average removal efficiency 
of over 90 percent from the average free ammonia concentrations measured at the outlet vault of 
the Santa Ynez Pumping Facility. 

Comments on the EA 
Reclamation provided the public with an opportunity to comment on the Draft EA between Match 
25, 2022 and April22, 2022. One comment letter was received &om the SYRWCD and it is 
included in Appendix A of the Final EA. The comment letter includes two primary assertions (1) 
Reclamation did not notify the SYRWCD of release of the EA or provide the biological evaluation 
as part of the release for public. review, and (2) that the Draft EA Proposed Action included 
additional restrictions on the mixing of CCWA water with WR 89-18 water rights releases that are 
contrary to the 2002 Settlement Agreement, 2000 BiOp, WR 2019-0148, and Reclamation's water 
rights permits. Reclamation disagrees with both assertions. 

For the first assertion, notification of the availability of the Draft EA was provided to the public on 
the day it was released. In addition, Section 3,2 of the Draft EA. included the analysis that was 
included in the biological evaluation referenced in the conunent letter. Further, Reclamation has 
ongoing biweekly coordination meetings with the Cachuma Project interested parties, including 
SYR.WCD. Prior to release of the Draft EA, Reclamation discussed CCW A's short-term Warren 
Act contract, the Draft EA, and the informal consultation that would be needed for the Proposed 
Action during several of the coordination calls. Reclamation provided CCWA with an 
administrative draft of the EA prior to its release and was notified by CCWA that it was shared with 
its South Coast Participants and the SYRWCD p.rio.r to its release for public review. 

For the second assertion, the restrictions included in the Draft EA were consistent with the 2000 
BiOp and were not additional restrictions. Those .restrictions were analyzed in the 2000 BiOp and 



CGB-FONSI-2022·023 

are therefore consistent with WR 2019-0148 and the 2002 Settlement Agreement which requires 
mixing to be consistent with the 2000 BiOp. Specifically, page 11 of the 2000 BiOp states: 
"Releases of CCWA water to the mainstem would only occur during water rights releases from May 
to October, with the bulk of releases occurring July- September." Reclamation attempted to 
address previously noted confusion in mixing requirements from the 2000 BiOp to expressly state 
when mixing is allowed. As noted in Section 1.2 of the EA, the current CCWA long-term Warren 
Act Contract expU:es in June 2022. The short-term Warren Act Contract analyzed in the EA is a 
separate ac.tion not covered in the 2000 BiOp. 

Since release of the Draft EA, the Proposed Action has been revised in coordination and 
cooperation with SYRWCD and the Cachuma Project local interests, all of whom provided helpful 
information to address some of the concerns expressed by SYRWCD in their comment letter. The 
Proposed Action was also revised in coordination with NMFS to address concerns expressed dutin.g 
informal consultation regarding the timing of 0. nrykiss olfactory imprinting in the Lower Santa Ynez 
River. The revisions are included in Section 2.2 of the Final EA and the concurrence memorandum 
received from NMFS for the Proposed Action (Appendix B of the Final EA). 

Findings 
Reclamation consulted with NMFS regarding potentlal impacts from the Proposed Action on tbe 
federally endangered Southern California steelhead DPS and its critical habitat. On June 13,2022, 
NMFS concurred with Reclamation's determination that the Proposed Action is Not L.ikefy to 
Adversefy Affect the endangered Southern California steelhead DPS or its designated critical habitat 
(Appendix B of the Final EA). Reclamation has also determined that the Proposed Action would 
have No E.ffoct to any other proposed or listed species or critical habitat under the ESA (16 U.S. C. 
§1531 et seq.), and would not result in take of birds protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act 
(16 U.S.C. §703 et seq.). 

Reclamation has determined that the Proposed Action has no potential to cause effects to historic 
properties pursuant to 36 CFR Part 800.3(a)(1). 

In accordance with NEPA, Reclamation considered potential short-term and long-term effects of 
the Proposed Action, both beneficial and adverse. Following are the .reasons why the impacts of the 
Proposed Action are not significant, with respect to the affected environment and degree of effects 
of the action (40 CFR 1501.3(b)). 

1. The Proposed Action will not significantly affect public health or safety (40 CFR 
1501.3(b)(2)(iii)). 

2. The Proposed Action will not violate federal, state, tribal, or local law protecting the 
environment (40 CFR 1501.3(b)(2)(iv)). 

3. The Proposed Action will not affect any Indian Trust Assets (512 DM 2, Policy 
Memorandum-July 2, 1993). 

4. Implementing the Proposed Action will not disproportionately affect minorities or low
income populations and communities (EO 12898- February 11, 1994). 

6 



CGB-FONSI-2022·023 

5. The Proposed Action will not limit access to, and ceremonial use of, Indian sacred sites on 
Federal lands by Indian religious practitioners or significantly adversely affect the physical 
integrity of such sacred sites (EO 13007-May 24, 1996 and 512 DM 3-June 5, 1998). 

7 



Agenda Item 11. Reports \ 

Tom Fayram, President 
Brad Ross, Vice-President 
Mike Arme, Director 
Brian O' Neill, Director 
lisa Palmer, Director 

LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING 

June 8, 2022, 6:00 PM 
Please observe decorum and Instructions from the President 

Posted: 6-3·2022 

This meeting will be held both in-person and electronically via Zoom meetings. In-person the meeting will be held at the 
following location: St Mark's in the Valley Episcopal Church, Stacy Hall- 2901 Nojoqui Ave, Los Olivos CA 93441 

The public will also be able to hear and participate electronically via Zoom by using the following links: 
On Zoom: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/l/89407884419?pwd=QmVCVUMwK2xgSWpoY2pteTJDYOxgUT09 
By Phone: 

+1669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
Meeting 10: 894 0788 4419 
Passcode: 208251 
One tap mobile: +16699006833,89407884419#,1,*208251# US (San Jose) 

MEETING AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Members of the public may address the Committee on any Items of interest within the subject matter and jurisdiction of 
the Committee but not on the agenda today (Gov. Code • 54954.3). Speakers are limited to 3 minutes. Due to the 
requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act, the District cannot take action today on any matter not on the agenda, but a 
matter raised during Public Comments can be referred to District staff for discussion and possible action at a future 
meeting. 

5. DIRECTOR COMMENTS 
Directors will give reports on any meetings that they attended on behalf of the Board and/or choose to comment on 
various District-related activities. 

6. GENERAL MANAGER AND DISTRICT ENGINEER COMMENTS 
The GM and DE wil l give reports on any meetings that they attended on behalf of the District, comment on various 
District-related activities and/or provide status on projects. The GM may also review Budget Reports (see packet), 

7. ADMINSTRATIVE AGENDA 
All matters listed hereunder constitute a consent agenda and will be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Board. 
Matters listed on the Administrative Agenda will be read only on the reql!est of a member of the Board, in which event 
the matter may be removed from the Administrative Agenda and considered as a separate item. 
A. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

Regular Meeting Minutes of April13, 2022. 
Regular Meeting Minutes of May 11, 2022. 
Workshop Minutes of May 11, 2022. 

Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (80S) 500·4098 
losolivoscsd@gmail.com. www.losolivoscsd.com 

Page 1 of 2 



B. REVIEW AND APPROVE PAYMENT OF INVOICES RECEIVED BY MAY 31 2022 , . 
No. lnvolce Date Invoice# Provider Amount 
1 May 13,2022 00876.001·14 GSI Water Solutions, Inc. $1,838.75 

- Groundwater Quality 
Management Services 

2 May 14,2022 67767 Aleshire & Wynder - Legal Services $3,960.00 

3 Mayl7, 2022 1922529 Stantec- Design & Loading Study $21,398.75 

4 May31, 2022 220531 Savage- GM Services $5,400.00 

8. BUSINESS ITEMS 
A. FY 2022·23 BUDGET 

Review the Finance Committee's recommended proposed Budget for FY 2022·23 (see packet) and direct the GM to: 
(1) set the Public Hearing for the FY 2022·23 Budget for July 13, 2022 and (2) post all applicable notices In a timely 
manner. 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
It is the intention of the Board to adjourn the Regular meeting and convene a Workshop related to wastewater 
treatment and alternative approaches to traditional wastewater treatment. 

The los Olivos Community Service~ District Is committed to ensuring equal access to meetings. In compliance with the American 
Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate In the meeting or need this agenda provided In a dlsablllty·related alternative 
format, please call 805.500.4098 or email to losollvosc.sd@gmall.com. Any public records, which are distributed less than 72 hours prior to 

this meeting to all, or a majority of ail, of the District's Board members in connection with any agenda item (other than closed sesslonsl 
will be available for public Inspection at the time of such distribution at a location to be determined In Los Olivos, California 93441. 

Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500·4098 
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losollvoscsd.com 

Page 2 of 2 



Tom Fayram, President 
Brad Ross, Vice-President 
Mike Arme, Director 
Brian O'Neill, Director 
lisa Palmer, Director 

LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT WORKSHOP 

June 8, 2022, 6 :30 PM 
(or immediately after the June 8, 2022 Regular Meeting) 

Please observe decorum and instructions from the President 

Posted: 6-3~2022 

This meeting will be held both in-person and electronically via Zoom meetings. In-person the meeting will be held at the 
following location: St M ark's in the Va lley Episcopal Church, Stacy Hall - 2901 Nojoqui Ave, Los Olivos CA 93441 

The public will also be able to hear and participate electronically via Zoom by using the fo llowing links: 
On Zoom: 

llttps://us06web wom.us/!/891107884ll19?owrl=OrnVCVUMwK2xgSWpoY2pteTJDYOxqUT09 
By Phone: 

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
Meeting ID: 894 0788 4419 
Passcode: 208251 
One tap mobile: +16699006833,89407884419#,, *208251# US (San Jose) 

WORKSHOP AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Members of the public may address the Committee on any items of interest within the subject matter and jurisdiction of 
the Committee but not on t he agenda today (Gov. Code - 54954.3). Speakers are limited to 3 minutes. Due to the 

requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act, the District cannot take action today on any matter not on the agenda, but a 
matter raised during Public Comments can be referred to District staff for discussion and possib le action at a future 
meeting. 

3. WORKSHOP 
Presentations will be made by the General Manager, Steve Braband (BIOSOLUTIONS INCORPORATED), and Nick Weigel 
(NorthStar Engineering). A question-and-answer period w ill follow. 
Direction from the Board may be provided; b ut, no action will be taken. 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

The Los Olivos Community Services District Is committed to ensuring equal access to meetings. In compliance with the American 
Disabilities Act, If you need special assistance to participate In the meeting or need this agenda provided 1n a dlsab111ty· related alternatlve 
format, please caii80S.S00.4098 or email to losolivoscsd@gmail.com. Any public records, wnich are distributed less than 72 hours prior to 

this meeting to all, or a majority of all, of the District's Board members in connection with any agenda Item (other than closed sessions) 
will be available for public Inspection at the time of such dlstrlbution at a location to be determined In los Olivos, Californ1a 93441. 

1 or15 



Los Olivos 
Community 
Services 
District 

Guy Savage 
General Manager 

2 or 15 



Very Brief History 

• Special Problems Area designation 1974 

• District formed in January 2018 by voters 
• 73% in favor of formation 
• Ensures local control 

•If we didn't form, County (or State) will build a sewer 
or require connection to another facility. Doing 
nothing is not an option. 

• For more details, read what's on the website: 
www.LosOiivosCSD.com 

3 ot 15 



THE 
DISTRICT 

~392 Parcels 
IV52 downtown 

IV340 residentia I 

4 or 15 



Why All The Studies? 

• Costs 

• Constraints 

• Issues 

I 

[ 
Basis for making decisions 

5 Of 15 



What Studies are Underway? 

De·s~gri of Gra~i.ty F~d s·ew~r I Loa.d.ihg-$'t~dy ',• 
~ . •' . . 

• - • .. ' - ~ • • , "'- ~ • • -- j v 

• 30% design in June/July 

• September? 

• September? 

Mo8iiQ~i>n~ , y\,~lt(s) , - -- -- _ ----- , --- - · 
.... - - .. _ .. --- ~ -lf-- .... ....... -. . -- --- ... - ,:..: ------- ---. -·------ -·- • ..J" 

• First well this summer 

6 ot 15 



How Does It Fit Together? 

Discussion 
and 

Decisions Vote 

7 of 15 



Septic System 

Conventional Septic System 

Drain Field 
Perforated Pipe; & 
Grnvol Trenchos 

Septic Tank System 
ln~pe"Ctlon pipe Inspection pipe 

8 or 15 



Alternatives to Septic Systems 

9 of 15 



Traditional Gravity Sewer 
(no pump station) 

How the Sewer Wor.ks 

10 of 15 



Traditional Gravity Sewer 

How the Sewer Works 

11 Of 15 



Advanced Onsite Systems 
Treatment sewage beyond 
the secondary or 
biological water treatment 
stage and includes the 
removal of nutrients, such 
as nitrogen and 
phosphorus and a high 
percentage of suspended 
solids 

12 or 15 



Septic Tank Effluent Pump (STEP) .-.::. ........ 
Systems 

• No leach field 

• Pumps transfer 
effluent from septic 
tanks to a collection 
and processing plant 

13 ol 15 



Grinder and Pump Systems 

Not covered in LOWMP- there are better solutions for our situation 
14 of 15 



What About Other Alternatives? 

•Workshop tonight to provide more details on 
solutions other than traditional gravity 
wastewater treatment systems, or that might 
work in conjunction with traditional systems 

• Future workshop to cover Membrane 
Bioreactor (MBR) systems in more detail, 
answer other questions 

t5 or 15 



Agenda Item 11. 

Protecting Water for Western Irrigated Agriculture 

11/Jonthly Briefing 
A Summary of the Alliance"s Recent and Upcoming Activities and Important Water News 

Western Drought Impacts Every American 
House Committee on Natural Resources Ranking Mem

ber Bruce Westerman (R-Ark.) last month led a Republican 
forum titled "How Western Drought Affects Every Ameri
can." The Family Farm Alliance 
and several of its members and 
allies also testified remotely at the 
May 11 event. 

"While much of the West con
tinues to suffer through a multi
year drought, Americans nation
wide are experiencing record food 
prices due to drought and other 
factors," said Rep. Westerman. 
"American consumers depend on 
food produced from irrigated agri
culture, especially in California, 
which normally yields the majority 
of fruits, vegetables and nuts that 
are sold domestically at American 
grocery stores and serve as valua
ble commodities in international 
markets." 

Another Year of "Unprecedented Drought" 

At a time when Western water projects typically begin 
diversions, allowing delivery canals to charge and bringing 
essential water supplies to the headgates of thousands of 
farmers and ranchers, crushing drought conditions are leav
ing millions of acres of productive farm and ranch land with
out water this spring. 

"Many of our farmers and ranchers this year are going to 
be hit hard by this 'unprecedented' drought, the second 
straight year we've used the term 'unprecedented ' when de
scribing the Western drought," said Alliance Executive Di-

STORIES INSIDE ...•••.. . 

rector Dan Keppen at the Western drought forum. 
Water users in nearly every region of the West are 

scrambling, looking for creative ways to stretch scant water 

sin. 

supplies. In mountain watershed are
as from the Sierra Nevada to the 
Rockies, the driest of conditions have 
prevailed. Forecasting has been an 
incredible challenge, and much of 
what runoff there has been, has been 
consumed by dry upstream soils. 

"These severe drought conditions, 
coupled with the arid nature of many 
parts of the West, again make for a 
trying, shortened water year," said 
Alliance President Pat O'Toole. 

Dire challenges are being faced 
by agricultural water users in Cali
fornia's Central Valley, the Klamath 
Basin, the Columbia River Basin and 
its tributaries in Idaho, Oregon and 
Washington, the Rogue River Basin 
in southern Oregon, the Colorado 
River watershed, and the Great Ba-

California Governor Gavin Newsome warned that the 
state could enact mandatory water restrictions to combat the 
current drought if conservation efforts at the local level do 
not result in significant statewide water reduction over the 
summer. 

"Every water agency across the state needs to take more 
aggressive actions to communicate about the drought emer
gency and implement conservation measures;' Gov. New
som said on May 23rd. "Californians made significant chang
es since the last drought, but we have seen an uptick in water 

Co1rtinued on Page 2 

Page# 

It's Real: Looming Global Food InsecuritY and Rising Food Prices 3 
WOTUS Regional Roundtables Begin . .. .Alliance Set io Engage in W-estern Forum Later This Month 5 
Carrington is New Reclamation PNW ~egional DireCtor 6 
.senate ENR Subcommittee Considers 17 Water Bills 8 
.Reclamation Announces Over $240M fromllJA to Repair Aging Infiastructure ... a11d other IIJANews 9 
2022 WRDA Moves Forward in Congress - 11 
A Big "Thank You'' to our New and Supporting Members! 12 



Monthly BFiefing June 2022 

f Unprecedented Drought (Cont'd (rom Pg_. 1) 
use, especially as we enter the summer months. We all have 
to be more thoughtful about how to make every drop count." 

The water level in Lake Mead - the nation's largest res
ervoir - dropped below 1,050 feet elevation for the flrst time 
last month, a critical milestone that signals more stringent 
water cuts are around the comer for water users dependent on 
the Colorado River. 

In April, with approval from Idaho Governor Brad Little 
(R), the ldaho Department of Water Resources (IDWR) is
sued an emergency drought 
declaration for southern 
Idaho. That same month, 
New Mexico Governor 
Michelle Lujan Grisham 
(D): 1) declared a 
statewide emergency for 
severe drought and fire 
conditions; 2) submitted a 
request for a Presidential 
Disaster Declaration 
through the Federal Emer
gency Management Agen
cy; and 3)applied for a haz
ard mitigation assistance 
grant. 

culture. 
Mike Verboon, a county supervisor from Kings County 

(CALIFORNIA), pointed out in his testimony that as agricul
ture continues to bear full responsibility for the current water 
issues facing everyone in his state, more and more farming 
operations will continue to shrink "to the point of extinction." 

"As more farms in Kings County leave the state due to 
insufficient resources and crippling regulations, rural and local 
communities in the county will continue to be adversely im

pacted," said Supervisor 
Verboon. 

"Unfortunately, 
many of these rural agri
cultural communities 
being affected are ma
jority minority commu
nities. As farmers sell 
ranches and move out of 
the state, field workers, 
migrants, and the coun
ty's most vulnerable lo
cal communities will be 
left to deal with the re
percussions." 

The forum was cut 
short early due to con
flicts with votes that 
were occurring on the 
House floor at the same 
time. However, eacl1 of 

"The state has aggres
sively pursued a Presiden
tial Disaster Declaration 
for New Mexico, using 
every available tool and 
technology to document '"'"'"=-----=-----=-----------------""--------_. the ten witnesses was 
the damage that we know New Mexico communities have 
sustained and are still experiencing in order to expedite the 
process," the governor said in a press statement. 

Utah and portions of California, Oregon and Washington 
were also declared as drought disaster areas earlier this year. 

Although details vary by region, the universal theme is 
that drought hurts water suppliers and farmers. 

GOP Drought Forum 

The panel of Republican members invited witnesses from 
their districts to testify during the forum, including Alliance 
members Paul Arrington (executive director and general 
counsel, Idaho Water Users Association), Mike Britton 
(executive director, North Unit lrrigation District, Oregon), 
and Bill Diedrich (Diedrich Farms, California). 

"Agricultural production in the West is an irreplaceable, 
strategic national resource that is vital to U.S. food security, 
the ecosystem, and overall drought resilience," Mr. Keppen 
said at the hearing. "The role of the federal government in the 
21st Century should be to protect and enhance that resource 
by doing whatever it can to ensure that water remains on 
farms.'' 

During Ranking Member Westerman's opening remarks, 
he pointed to the April2, 2022 full-page Wall Street Journal 
ad that was produced by California Fann Water Coalition, the 
Alliance, and Klamath Project producers, intended to draw 
attention to the critical importance ofWestern irrigated agri-

able to deliver their 3-minute statements before the forum end-
ed. 

"When people talk about taking millions of acres of Cali
fornia farmland out of production, those are just numbers," 
Mr. Diedrich testified. "Let me put them in perspective for 
you. For every acre that is left unplanted because of a lack of 
irrigation water, it is the equivalent of 50,000 salads that will 
not be available to consumers." 

Some Members were able to tee up a few questions for the 
witnesses from their own districts. 

David Guy (Northern California Water Association) and 
Rep. Doug LaMa! fa (R-CA) discussed Sites Reservoir and 
Delta outflow requirements in California. Rep. Jolm Curtis (R
UT) addressed the complexities of addressing federal regulato
ry requirements on water projects. Mr. Britton and Rep. Cliff 
Bentz (R-OR) underscored the importance of irrigation mod
ernization projects underway in Central Oregon. 

Several hearing participants also noted that drought is not 
the only factor impacting food availability and pricing. The 
ongoing supply chain crisis has left many of the region's farm
ers with higher input prices and an inability to export some 
products overseas. For example, farmers already reeling from 
narrow profit margins due to drought are now hit with cost 
increases from pesticides, fertilizer, and other necessary mate
rials to keep a farm operational. 

"All these factors have led to significant increases in food 
prices and food scarcity worldwide," said Rep. Westerman. 

Page2 



Monthly Briefing June 2022 

It's Real: Looming Global Food Insecurity and Rising Food Prices 

It's beginning to sink in with policy leaders around the 
globe: war in Ukraine, sanctions and destroyed ports could 
take nearly 30% of the world's grain supply out of production 
or off the market this year. 

Ukraine and Russia are among the top five grain export
ers, and the war poses a massive blow to both production and 
shipments, causing food prices to rise at their fastest pace yet 
(Bloomberg). 

Drought persists 
across Western and cen
tral North America, the 
heart of the U.S. wheat, 
barley, com and soy
bean supply. 

Amid growing con
cerns of higher food 
prices and a looming 
global wheat shortage, 
the recent national in
fant formula shortage 
has further underscored 
the importance of a 
strong national domestic 
food supply system. 

"The recent baby 
formula crisis seems to 
be coming as a major 
shock to many in the 
country right now," one 
Alliance member from 
California recently observed. "This is hitting an extremely 
important demographic and may be opening the eyes of many 
to broader messages about root causes." 

Consumers are aware of rising prices in the grocery store. 
World leaders are nervously eying what the Russian actions in 
Ukraine mean to global famine that could emerge later this 
year. And, media outlets and lawmakers in Washington are 
now connecting those concerns to Western farms and ranches 
and a lack of water. 

Global Food Insecurity Implications of Ukraine Conflict 

National media outlets are increasingly reporting on what 
the Russian invasion of Ukraine portends for global food se
curity. 

The Wall Street Journal on May 30 reported, "Across 
Ukraine, farmers are navigating mines, traversing bombed 
bridges and risking dangerous maneuvers at overworked ports 
to circumvent a Russian blockade and get their grains toa 
world desperate for them. But for all their efforts, Ukraine's 
strained infrastructure has little hope of being able to handle 
the 30 million metric tons of grain and sunflower oil that is 
expected after harvesting starts in June." 

World leaders are calling the Russian naval blockade a 
deliberate attack on the global food supply chain. The Wash
ington Post reports that this has raised further fears of politi
cal instability and shortages unless grain and other essential 
agricultural products are allowed to flow freely from Ukraine. 

A food supply expert warns that the world faces a global 
crisis in just 10 weeks, echoing a warning from Ukraine Presi
dent Volodymyr Zelenskyy, Fox News recently reported. 

The world bas less than 10 weeks' worth of wheat left to 
deal with the crisis, according to Sara Menker, CEO of Gro 
Intelligence. 

"Russia has blocked almost all ports and all, so to speak, 
maritime opportunities to export food - our grain, barley, sun

flower and more. A lot 
of things," President 
Zelenskyy said last 
month. "There will be a 
crisis in the world. The 
second crisis after the 
energy one, which was 
provoked by Russia." 

"Now it will create a 
food crisis if we do not 
unblock the routes for 
Ukraine, do not help the 
countries of Africa, Eu
rope, Asia, which need 
these food products," he 
added. 

"This is seismic," 
Menker said during a 
special meeting of the 
U.N. Security Council. 
"Even if the war were to 
end tomorrow, our food 

security problem isn' t going away anytime soon without con
certed action." 

Meanwhile, back in the U.S.A . . .. 

Many Western producers are dismayed that, at a time when 
the world's best farmers and ranchers could be called on to 
provide more food for the country and the world, government 
policies are not prioritizing domestic food production. 

"Irrigated agriculture that was built to provide food securi
ty at precisely this moment, is being dried up by our govern
ment,'' said Ty Kliewer, an Oregon producer served by the 
Klamath Irrigation Project, which is receiving only 15% of the 
water needed in a dry year like this one. 

There is definitely a strong regulatory component to the 
drought impacting California and Oregon water users served 
by federal water projects, like the Klamath Project. Much of 
the water that once flowed to farms and ranches is instead be
ing directed to help fish populations, although nearly 30 years 
of empirical data has failed so far to show a positive response 
to such water shifting schemes from those targeted fish popu
lations. 

"In other words, federal water policy is shutting down wa
ter avrulability for hundreds of thousands of acres of produc
tive farmland," Family Farm Alliance Executive Director Dan 

Continued 011 Page 4 

Page3 



Monthly Briefing; June 2022 

Global Food Insecurity and Rising Food Prices (Cont'd (rom Pg 3) 

Keppen recently stated before a House GOP Western drought 
forum last month. (see related story, Page 1). 

The Bureau of Reclamation recently said that it will not be 
able to provide some farmers with water from the Central 
Valley Project, a vast system of dams, reservoirs and canals 
that it oversees in California. That means farmers in the agri
cultural region that produces much of the country's fruits, nuts 
and vegetables will again need to find other water sources 
or leave land idle as many have done in recent years. 

"New estimates are emerging on the number of acres 
without enough water to grow food, and it doesn't look good," 
said Mike Wade, executive director of the Sacramento-based 
California Farm Water Coalition (CFWC). "We believe the 
state could see as much as 691 ,000 acres taken out of produc
tion this year, a 75% increase over Last year and 151,000 acres 
more than the previous high in 2015." 

According to CFWC, to meet future needs, California 
must invest in additional conservation and recycling, as well 
as new supplies that can be stored in reservoirs or groundwa
ter aquifers and moved efficiently to parts of the state where 
they're needed. 

"In addition to Lack of storage, our water policy has also 
failed to adapt and remains mired in outdated science and 
cumbersome bureaucracy," said Centra.! Valley farmer Bill 
Diedrich, a CFWC board member and supporter of the Alli
ance. 

. His organization estimates that up to 40% of California's 
irrigated cropland will receive little or no surface water this 
year. 

While not directly addressing these issues, President 
Biden last month did acknowledge U.S. farmers as essential 
to maintaining global food supplies and curbing record-high 
inflation, according to Bloomberg. 

"Our farmers are helping on both fronts: reducing the 
price of food at home and expanding production and feeding 
the world," President Biden said during a visit last .month to a 
family farm in Illinois. 

Alliance Outreach Efforts 

Driven by concerns with rising food prices and the Russian 
invasion of Ukraine, the Family Farm Alliance board at its 
meetings in Reno last February directed contractors to work 
with others in an effort to improve communications on what 
rising inflation and the Ukraine crisis means to American con
sumers. 

In April, the Alliance partnered with CFWC and Klamath 
Basin producers to place a full-page ad in the Wall Street Jo_ur
nal warning of the consequences if State and federal offictals 
ignore the need for reliable water supplies and a stable, afford
able, domestic food supply. 

"Immediate action is necessary because by the time the 
grocery shelves are empty, it will be too late," said Mr. 
Diedrich. 

Other related recent efforts include: 

• Alliance Director Paul Orme and Mr. Keppen co
authored another guest opinion which the Arizona 
Republic published last month: "Water Policy_ Threll;t
ens Our Food Supply''. The Republic, pubhshed m 
Phoenix, is circulated throughout Arizona and is the 
state's largest newspaper. The Arizona Capitol Times 
included a full-page ad paid for by the Alliance, a full 
-page reprint ofthis guest column . 

• Alliance director Don Schwindt (COLORADO) and 
Mr. Keppen co-authored an opinion piece that was 
published in the May I I edition of the Colorado Sun. 

• The Farm Bureau in Fresno County (CALIFORNIA)
the largest ag production county in America- re-ran 
the story the Alliance published in the April 2022 
"Monthly Briefing" about food supply concerns. 

• Progressive Grocer, an industry trade publication, 
recently covered the issue of land fallow
ing, impending food shortages, and higher ~rices as 
described in an informational graphic published by 
CFWC. 

• Two California producers and CFWC Executive Di
rector Mike Wade appeared on a recent segment that 
was reported on by Lester Holt on NBC Nightly 
News. 

As reported further in a related article on Page I, House 
Republicans last month hosted an overs~ght forum exa~g 
how the ongoing Western drought contributes to skyrocketmg 
grocery and electricity prices nationwide. Me~be~s heard fr~m 
witnesses across the country who are expenencmg these liD

pacts firsthand and further examine the need to implement 
short and long-term drought solutions for American c~nsu~
ers. Mr. Keppen, several Alliance members and Mr. Diedrich 
testified at that forum. 

"We certainly have the public's attention in a way we have 
not had in the past," said Mr. Wade. "As sad as the situation is, 
it provides us with a tremendous opportunity to deliver a mes
sage about the value of Western farms." 

Page4 



Monthly Briefing June 2022 

WOTUS Regional Roundtables Begin 
Alliance set to engage in Western forum later this ntonth 

The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has begun hydrology of the West, where much of the stored water resides 
the first of ten virtual stakeholder meetings regarding changes in mountain snowpack. State and federal agency implementa-
to the definition of''Waters of the U.S." (WOTUS) under the tion and regulatory roles on water quality matters will also be 
federal Clean Water Act. The Family Farm Alliance is prepa.r- discussed. 
ing to participate at the Western roundtable scheduled for Mr. Keppen will represent the Alliance at the June 16 
later this month. roundtable and will advance the Alliance position that expand-

"We will be represented at the WOTUS Western Region ed federal CW A jurisdiction would negatively impact irrigated 
roundtable, scheduled for June 16," said Alliance Executive agriculture and Western communities in many ways, such as 
Director Dan r.;:;:;:::::o;;-.......,======"ir" .................. = ..................................... - -:--........ == ................ ------------, adding addi-
Keppen. "Our tional regulato-
thanks go out ry burdens to 
to California water resiliency 
Farm Bureau projects. 
for including "This ere-
us in their ates uncertainty 
formal region- that brings with 
at roundtable it the risk of 
proposal to time-
EPA." consuming and 

EPA and potentially ex-
the Army pensive regula-
Corps of En- tory processes, 
gineer (Corps) expanded op-
most recently portunities for 
proposed an litigation and a 
interim shift from local 
WOTUS defi- and state water 
nition and management 
took comment toward in-
on it through creased federal 
February 7, 2022. The Alliance developed a formal comment agency regulation and oversight," said Mr. Keppen. 
letter on this matter. That proposed rule interprets WOTUS to 
mean the waters defined by a collection of Corps and EPA 
regulations referred to as the "1986 regulations," with amend
ments to reflect the agencies' interpretation of the statutory 
limits on the scope of WOTUS as informed by past Supreme 
Court decisions, including Rapanos v. United States. 

The agencies have said they plan a second "more durable' ' 
WOTUS rulemaking "that they anticipate proposing in the 
future" and "which would build upon the foundation of this 
proposed rule.'' 

The series of virtual regional roundtables planned for this 
spring and summer are intended to foster discussion on re
gional differences in water bodies. 

The Corps and EPA are "committed to gaining a better 
understanding of the various regional perspectives through 
these roundtables to develop an implementation approach that 
accounts for these diverse voices and regional variations," 
said Assistant Secretary of the Army for Civil Works Michael 
Connor. 

Western Regional Roundtable 

The Western Regional Roundtable will delve into the 
unique features of Western water bodies, including vernal 
pools, intermittent and ephemeral streams, and the distinctive 

Ag Organizations Engage in Other Regional Roundtables 

Other farming organizations have been engaged in the ini
tial roundtables. 

Ray Gaesser, an Iowa com and soybean grower who serves 
on the board of directors for Solutions from the Land, spoke at 
the second roundtable, where he told participants that farmers 
do not need top-down regulation, but instead, seek to partner 
with federal and state agencies to improve water quality. 

"The greatest thing the agencies can do to improve imple
mentation is provide a durable definition ofWOTUS that 
stands the tests of time and makes it very clear what waters are 
and are not jurisdictional," said Mr. Gaesser. "The implemen
tation ofWOTUS "should enhance a farmer's ability to imple
ment conservation, not penalize us for circumstances beyond 
our control or Unfairly remove conservation tools from our 
toolbox." 

Some farm groups have been critical of the initial sessions. 
Courtney Briggs, AFBF senior director of government 

affairs, says the first roundtable lacked diversity needed to 
discuss WOTUS. 

Continued on Page 6 

PageS 



Monthly BFiefing; June 2022 

Carrington is New Reclamation PNW Regional Director 
Long-time Bureau ofReclamation employee Jennifer Car

rington on May 8 assumed her duties as Regional Director for 
the Pacific Northwest Region. 

She has more than 27 years of Reclamation experience. 
"Jennifer has been deeply immersed in the issues and op

erations of the Columbia-Pacific Northwest Region for much 
of her Reclamation career," said Palumbo. "This extensive 
experience, combined with her executive leadership experi
ence and collaborative approach, will serve our stakeholders 
well." 

Ms. Carrington has served as the deputy regional director 
for the Columbia-Pacific Northwest Region since 2015. In 
that role, she focused on integrating business service func
tions to create program efficiencies as well as management 
oversight of complex water issues in Washington and Ore
gon. 

She actively engaged with water users and other affected 
stakeholders to balance competing demands and resolve con
flicts. 

She participated in the Family Farm Alliance's 
"Reclamation Roundtable" at the organization's 2022 Annual 
Conference last February in Reno (NEVADA). 

Ms. Carrington is a native ofldabo. 
She holds a bachelor's degree in political science as well 

as a master 's degree in public administration-both from Boi
se State University. 

Jennifer Carrington (R), Pacific Northwest 
Regional Director. Photo source: U .S.B.R. 

WOTUS Western Regional Roundtable (Cont'd (rom Pg. 5) 
"ln theory, these meetings are designed to bring folks with 

different perspectives together to talk about regionally specif
ic implementation concerns pertaining to WOTUS," said 
Courtney Briggs, senior director of government affairs for the 
American Farm. Bureau Federation (AFBF). "And the list of 
participants for this first roundtable was diverse on paper, but 
we are very concerned about the lack of diversity of experi
ence on the panel. And few of these participants have actually 
navigated the regulatory process associated with Clean Water 
Act compliance." 

Complicating Factors 

The changes to the WOTUS rules may already be a done 
deal, Harvest Public Media recently reported. The public 
comment period for that change ended months before the vir
tual roundtables started. 

"The public comment period on that proposal closed on 
February 7th, and we are reviewing the comments were
ceived," said Navis Bermundez, deputy assistant administra
tor with the EPA. "While we cannot consider any new infor
mation provided here today as part of that process, we look 
forward to hearing your feedback and experiences with how 
we have implemented that term so that we can do a better job 
of making sure we all have access to clean water going for-

ward." 
The matter is further complicated by the Supreme Court's 

recent decision to hear Sackett v. EPA . This closely watched 
case will determine whether the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 
9th Circuit "set forth the proper test for determining whether 
wetlands are 'waters of the United States"' under the CWA. 

As reported in the May 2022 "Monthly Briefing", the AL
liance is joining in an "agriculture" brief in this case, led by 
AFBF. 

Now that the Supreme Court agreed to hear the appeal in 
Sackett v. United States, Republican lawmakers and other 
supporters of the Trump-era WOTUS definition have urged 
EPA and the Corps to pause development of any new 
WOTUS definition until after the high court rules. Over 200 
House Republicans in March sent a letter urging the Biden 
Administration to halt their rulemaking until the U.S. Su
preme Court rules on Sackett v. EPA. 

"A premature rulemaking will compound existing uncer
tainty and confusion for stakeholders, who have already expe
rienced years of uncertainty over WOTUS definition and 
scope changes," the legislators stated. 

The virtual roundtables will continue through June 24. 
Final changes to the definition ofWOTUS and how rules are 
implemented will likely be announced by the end of the year. 

Page6 



Monthly Briefing June 2022 

Senate ENR Subcommittee Considers 17 Water Bills 
The Senate Energy and Natural Resources (ENR) Sub

committee on Water and Power last month heard testimony 
on 17 bills dealing with drought mitigation and hydropower 
projects. Bureau of Reclamation Commissioner Camille 
Touton was the sole government witness at the hearing. 

The Family Farm Alliance since early last year has been 
engaged with Senate staff as several ofthe regional and West
wide bills were being developed. The Subcommittee also 
included a number of additional bills that address specific 
water issues and needs in California, North and South Dakota, 
Montana, New Mexico, and Wyoming. 

"We have members in all of these states and are support
ive of solutions that come from the ground-up and help im
prove operations and infrastructure," the Alliance stated in 
written testimony submitted prior to the hearing. "We stand 
ready to work 
with the Com
mittee on these 
bills." 

Several of 
the bills were 
intended to ad
dress aging in
frastructure in 
various parts of 
the West, like 
the Goshen Irri
gation District 
tunnel collapse 
that occurred in 
Wyoming. 

"Wyoming, 
and other west
em states, want 
to see improve
ments to the new infrastructure law," said Senate ENR Com
mittee ranking member John Barrasso (R-WYOMING). 
"They are also eagerly awaiting implementation of its existing 
water infrastructure provisions. That is why we need to move 
legislation to improve the new Bipartisan Infrastructure Law 
to allow projects that suffered a recent critical failure to get 
access to this vital funding. Implementing these provisions 
will allow funding to be released for farming and ranching 
communities in the West that really need it." 

A summary of each bill the Alliance engaged in is dis
cussed further below. 

Water for Conservation and Farmi11g Act (S. 953) 

The "Water for Conservation and Farming Act," from Sen. 
Ron Wyden (D-OR), would create a Bureau of Reclamation 
Infrastructure Fund that would receive $300 million annually 
from the Reclamation Fund for 30 years starting in FY2031 to 
support water recycling projects, water-use efficiency projects 
under WaterSMART, and dam safety. It would also authorize 
$25 million over five years to support fish passage projects in 
California, Idaho, Montana, Oregon and Washington state. 

"This bill provides important tools to address water and 

natural resources challenges across the West that are important 
to our members. However, certain provisions in the legislation 
do raise some concerns," said Alliance Executive Director Dan 
Keppen. 

The Alliance strongly supports the bill's provisions for the 
Fisheries Restoration and Irrigation Mitigation Act (FRIMA). 

"Our members in California, Idaho, Oregon, Montana, and 
Washington are strong supporters and benefactors ofFRIMA, 
which supports voluntary fish screen and passage projects," 
said Mr. Keppen. 

However, several other provisions of the bill that appear 
intended to focus on drought impacts to species also raise 
questions and concerns. Significant implementation questions 
also exist. 

"We will closely examine any proposal-particularly at 
this time when 
promoting do
mestic food 
production will 
be more im
portant than 
ever before -
that seeks to 
move water 
away from ag
riculture 
through volun
tary water 
transfers, in
cluding through 
groundwater 
substitution 
activities," said 
Mr. Keppen. 

The Canal Conveya11ce Capacity Restoration Act (S. 1179) 

S. 1179 from Sen. Dianne Feinstein (D-CALlFORNIA) 
would authorize cost shared federal funding to restore San 
Joaquin Valley canals that support groundwater recharge are
as, as well as authorize funds to restore salmon runs on the San 
Joaquin River. 

"S. 1179 will address the severe subsidence impacts that 
have substantially xeduced the carrying capacity of the water 
delivery system of the State of California to provide for a 
more resilient water supply, especially during the severe 
droughts of these past several years," the Alliance testimony 
states. "For these reasons, the Alliance is in full support of the 
enactmentofS. 1179." 

The Watershed Results Act (S. 3539) 

The "Watershed Results Act," from Sen. Wyden would 
direct the Department of Interior to work with the U.S. Depart
ment of Agriculture (USDA) and the Environmental Protec-

Continued on Page 6 

Page 7 



Monthly Briefing June 2022 

Senate ENR Subcommittee Hears 17 Bills (Cont'd front Pg. 7) 

tion Agency (EPA) to establish two to five watershed restora
tion pilot programs that would use advanced analytics to pri
oritize performance-based conservation projects across the 
West 

"In Oregon, communities in the Klamath and Deschutes 
Basin are looking at another devastating drought year - only 
made worse with the t.breats of wildfires and extreme heat," 
said Subconunittee Chairman Wyden. ' 'As these pressures 
continue to mount, it's essential to get a lot more high-impact 
water projects on the ground and fast That's what my Water
shed Results Act is all about." 

Each pilot program must incorporate predictive data anal
ysis to analyze millions of acres of a watershed to precisely 
locate the most effective acres for restoration that will make 
the largest impact. 

"By prioritizing investments in conservation and measur
ing results, we believe we can create a market for farmers to 
grow ''bushels of nature" alongside our food supply," said Mr. 
Keppen. "The Alliance strongly supports S. 3539." 

The Upper Colorado & San Juan River Basins Recovery Act 
(S. 3693) 

S. 3693 from Sens. John Hickenlooper (D-COLORADO) 
and Mitt Romney (R-UT AH) would continue endangered fish 
recovery programs in the Upper Colorado River Basin. 

"The Alliance supports S 3693 and we worked with other 
Upper Basin interests and the Hickenlooper and Romney of
fices earlier this year in support of putting a bipartisan stamp 
on this legislation," said Mr. Keppen. 

Amendments to Existing Law Proposed by Senator Risch 

The Alliance supports S. 4175, from Sen. Jim Risch (R
IDAHO) which would amend the Omnibus Public Land Man
agement Act of2009 (P.L. 111-11) to authorize "certain ex
traordinary operation and maintenance work" for canals 
through densely populated areas, and for other purposes. 

These canals, typically delivering irrigation water to farms 
and ranches in Reclamation watersheds in the West. were 
originally built in the desert environment of a developing 
watershed. As time went on, communities sprang up and 
housing tracts were developed alongside these canals creating 
potential hazards that, if a failure occurred, could result in 
loss of life and property. 

S. 4176 from Sen. Risch would amend the Infrastructure 
[nvestment and Jobs Act (IIJA) to modify eligibility require
ments for small water storage and groundwater storage pro
j ect grants program, and to expand eligibility of funds for 
rehabilitation of projects developed and operated under the 
Carey Act. The Alliance supports S. 4176, which would re
duce the minimum size of an eligible small surface and 
groundwater storage facili ty from 2,000- to 2-acre-fee~ mak
ing important small regulating reservoirs eligible for grant 
funding under the program. 

STREAM Act (S. 4231) 

The "Support to Rehydrate the Environment, Agriculture 
and Municipalities (STREAM) Act" (S. 4231) from Sen. Fein
stein (D-CALIFORNIA) would authorize $750 million in cost 
shared funding for nonfederal water and groundwater storage, 
$300 million in cost shared funds for water recycling, $150 
million in cost shared funds for desalination projects, $100 
million for drinking water and $150 million for low-interest 
loans for water supply projects. 

"If we don't take action now to improve our drought resili
ence, it' s only going to get worse." said Senator Feinstein. 
"We need an 'aU-of-the-above' strategy to meet this challenge, 
including increasing our water supply, incentivizing projects 
that provide environmental benefits and drinking water for 
disadvantaged communities, and investing in environmental 
restoration efforts." 

The STREAM Act includes provisions that continue the 
"Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation 
Act" (WIIN Act) storage program in a revised form, as well as 
extending the availability for cost~hared grant funding for 
non-congressionally authorized Title XVI water recycling, 
reuse, and desalination projects. Importantly, the STREAM 
Act would grandfather storage and conveyance infrastructure 
projects that receive construction funding in the bipartisan 
infrastructure bill enacted earlier this Congress to receive new 
funding autl1orized by tbe STREAM Act to complete construc
tion. 

Family Farm Alliance members are involved with several 
of those projects in California, Idaho and Washington state. 
The bill would also provide some non-reimbursable funding 
for modifications to extraordinary maintenance on aging Rec
lamation projects that would provide additional public bene
fits. 

"We appreciate Senator Feinstein's longtime, continued 
work to improve water security and drought resilience in the 
Western United States,'' said Mr. Keppen. ' 'Her STREAM Act 
contains a number of provisions that could be helpful to our 
members, if enacted." 

Colorado River Basin Project Cost Recovery (S. 4232) 

S. 4232 from Sen. Mark Kelly (0-ARIZONA) is intended 
to address costs associated with Reclamation hydropower fa. 
cilities in the Colorado River Basin. Colorado River Storage 
Project (CRSP) customers - through power revenues - annual
ly fund operation and maintenance, capital investment (with 
interest), irrigation assistance and environmental programs in 
the CRSP and Colorado River Basin. With the institution of 
the latest Western Area Power Administration (W AP A) rate 
case, CRSP customers took on the obligation of replacing 
power that is not produced due to drought. 

·•senator Kelly's S. 4232 is critical to mitigate significant 
drought impacts for federal hydropower customers in Arizona 

Continued on Page 10 

PageS 



Monthly, Briefiliflg June 2022 

BORAnnounces Over $240M from IIJA to Repair Aging Infrastructure 

.... and other Reclanzation infrastructure news 

The Department ofinterior last month announced an in- restoration and resilience, dramatically expanding Reclama-
vestment of $240.4 million for infrastructure repairs in fiscal tion' s ability to use existing program authorities to serve com-
year 2022 from the Infrastructure and Investment Jobs Act munities through infrastructure improvements that fundamen-
(IIJA), also referred to as the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law, tally impact their quality of life. 
signed into law by President Biden last November. The projects selected for funding last month are found in 

"The Bureau of Reclamation, in partnership with states all the major river basins and regions where Reclamation oper-
and local water ates. Among the 46 
districts receiving projects selected for 
municipal water funding are large 
and irrigation wa- projects to conduct 
ter from federally- canal repairs in Ari-
owned projects, is zona, California, Ida-
responsible for ho, Nevada and Wyo-
much of the water ming, dam spillway 
infrastructure in repairs in Nebraska, 
the West," said pipeline repairs in 
Acting Bureau of Utah and investments 
Reclamation Com- in a pumping plant in 
missioner David Montana. Projects in 
Palumbo. "These Colorado, Oregon 
water systems and Washington are 
work because of also being funded. 
this federal to non- Reclamation con-
federal partner- eluded the initial ap-
ship, and this plication period for 
funding will help these funds on Janu-
to complete neces- ary 31, 2022. The 
sary extraordinary second application 
maintenance keep- period for extraordi~ 
ing projects viable L----.....;:;~-------....... --------~---........,.-------=-=-:.1 nary maintenance 
and partnerships 
strong." 

Importantly, the IIJA aligns with the solutions advanced 
by a Western water coalition in 2021 that included more than 
230 organizations from 15 states that collectively represent 
nearly one-third of all agricultural production in the country, 
and many of the local and regional public water agencies that 
supply water to more than 75 million urban, suburban, and 
rural residents. 

The coalition was led by a steering committee that includ
ed the Family Farm Alliance, Association of California Water 
Agencies, California Farm Bureau" National Water Resources 
Association and Western G;owers. 

Public Law 116-260, signed in December 2020, created a 
revolving fund called the Aging Infrastructure Account. 

"The authorization for an aging infrastructure account at 
the U.S. Treasury Department is a game-changer for most 
transferred work operators and reserved work project benefi
ciaries in the Rec.lamation system," said Alliance Executive 
Director Dan Keppen. "With this authority in place, we are 
now seeing 'once-in-a-generation' funding to back it." 

The program, facilitated through the Bureau of Reclama
tion, includes significant repairs on canal linings, dam spill
ways and water pipeline replacements. 

The IIJA makes one of the largest investments in drought 
resilience in American history, including $8.3 billion for wa
ter infrastructure programs and $ 1.4 billion for ecosystem 

funding is planned for October 2022. 

Reclamation Funds $17.3 million to improve water effi
ciency in West 

Reclamation last month also selected 22 projects to share 
$17.3 million in WaterSMART Water and Energy Efficiency 
Grants. These competitive projects improve water use efficien
cy, increase renewable energy production, and reduce the risk 
of water conflicts in the Western United States. 

''Conserving water is saving energy and helping Western 
communities become more resilient to drought," said Acting 
Reclamation Commissioner David Palumbo. "Water and Ener
gy Efficiency Grants provide communities with the necessary, 
cost-shared funding to modernize their existing infrastructure 
and conserve water for their communities and the environ
ment." 

The selected projects include lining and piping canals, in
stalling and upgrading water meters and timers, installing solar 
to reduce power demand, and adding automated gate controls. 

For example, the Quincy-Columbia Basin Irrigation Dis
trict- an Alliance member in central Washington - will line 
2,500 feet of the earthen West Canal. The project will help 
address regional water reliability concerns, including drought, 

Continued on Page II 

Page9 



Monthly Briefing June 2022 

2022 WRDA Moves Forward in Congress 
The U.S. Senate and House in the past month each moved 

versions of biennial water projects legislation that lays out a 
blueprint for how the Army Corps of Engineers tackles flood 
control, navigation and ecosystem restoration. 

Recent versions of the Water Resources Development Act 
(WRDA) have also included provisions for Bureau of Recla
mation projects, something the 2022 WRDA does not pro
vide. 

"The 2022 WRDA being advanced in each chamber of 
Congress appears to be more Corps-centric, although there are 
provisions that focus on the Western U.S.," said Family Farm 
Alliance Executive Director Dan Keppen. 

Senate WRDA Bill Clears Committee with No Opposition 

The Senate WRDA bill passed the Senate Environment 
and Public Works Committee in early May by a vote of20-0. 
Committee Chair Tom Carper (D-DE) and Ranking Member 
Shelley Moore Capito (R-WV) have said their legislation 
builds on the recently passed $1.2 trillion bipartisan infra
structure package and would authorize Corps projects in all 
50 states. 

"Since 2014, Congress has enacted WRDA legislation 
every two years, and I am thrilled that we reached a bipartisan 
agreement to continue that tradition of addressing our nation's 
water resources needs," said Ranking Member Moore Capito. 

The Senate bill includes several sections of interest to 
Western water users, 

"We'll be keeping an eye on those areas of the Senate 
WRDA that address agency coordination on Western water 
matters, water supply conservation provisions, Columbia River 
flood management, NEPA reporting, and Western water infra
structure studies," said Mr. Keppen. 

House T&I Approves WRDA Bill 

The House Transportation and Infrastructure (T &I) Com
mittee later in the month passed their version ofWRDA, only 
approving a handful ofthe multitude of amendments proposed 
to the bill during their earlier markup. 

The panel approved by voice vote H.R. 7776 from Chair 
Peter DeFazio (D-OREGON) and ranking member Sam 
Graves (R-MO), which was unveiled earlier in the week. The 
legislation approves new projects and policies for the Corps 
work on navigation, flood control and ecosystem restoration, 
and contains various bipartisan provisions to boost the agen
cy's ability to tackle sea-level rise, erosion and the threat of 
increasingly destructive coastal storms. 

"H.R. 7716 was developed in a bipartisan manner, with 
input and ideas from both sides of the aisle," said Chairman 
DeFazio. "From studying the impacts of coastal stonns on 
inland flooding to addressing the future water supply needs of 
the arid West, this bill works to make communities more resil
ient." 

Many expect that H.R. 7776 will move to the floor of the 
House for a vote later this month. 

Senate ENR Subcommittee Hears 17 Bills ( Cont' d from Pg. 8) 

and across the Colorado River Basin," the Alliance written 
lestimony states. "This bill would ensure that Hoover, Parker
Davis, and CRSP hydropower ratepayers are not responsible 
for covering certain costs associated with these federal facili· 
ties ifthey are not producing and delivering power." 

When the CRSP hydropower is not available, it is inequi
table to require the CRSP customers to continue to pay the 
full imn.ual obligations (for a highly reduced or unavailable 
product), plus the replacement cost of market-based power to 
replace the unavailable federal power. Coupled with extreme 
drought impacts, power revenue funding is unsustainable at 
current levels. 

"While the Alliance fully supports S. 4232, we would ask 
that it be expanded to not on.ly address impacts to power cus
tomers if generation is fully lost, but also help mitigate the 
impacts they are already experiencing from the current signif
icant reductions in generation," the Alliance recommends in 
its testimony. 

Water Data a11d Security Acl of 2022 (S. 4236) 

New Mexico's Democrat Senators Martin Heinrich and 
Ben Ray Lujan have introduced S. 4236, which would create 

a national framework for data generated by the planning and 
management of water resources to include stream flows, pre
cipitation, groundwater and soil moisture, as well as water use 
by the agriculture, industrial and municipal sectors. The bill 
would also direct the Interior Department to set up a federal 
working group to create an integrated water resource manage
ment plan for the Rio Grande Basin. 

"We support the water data framework provisions of S 
4236," said Mr. Keppen. "Western water resources decision
making demands accurate and timely. Critical and vital infor
mation is gathered and disseminated through a number of 
importan_t federal programs. There is a serious need to focus 
on coordinated data collection and dissemination." 

Rep. Melanie Stansbury (D-NEW MEXICO) introduced 
companion legislation earlier in the month. Alliance contrac
tors met virtually with Rep. Stansbury in early May to discuss 
the legislation, which the Alliance board of directors unani
mously supported at its monthly board meeting. 

"Water is the lifeblood of our communities," Rep. Stans
bury said in a statement. ' 'As we are facing historic drought 
and wildfires, we must address the immediate needs of our 
communities, while transforming water management across 
the West." 

Page 10 



Monthly BFiefing June 2022 

$17.3 M for Water Efficiency Projects (Cont'd from Page 9) 

groundwater issues, and improved stream flows to assist 
salmon recovery. The project will receive $300,000 with a 
total project cost of$750,000. 

The projects will be completed in two or three years, de
pending on the funding received. To view all the selected 
projects, please visit www.usbr.gov/watersmart/weeg/. 

This funding supplements the investments from the IIJA, 
which contains $400 million over five years for 
WaterSMART grants, including drought resiliency projects. 
In 2022, Reclamation is making $160 million available and 

DOT Waivcs 1'Buy America'' Requirements 

Bloomberg Government reports that the U.S. Transporta
tion Department (DOT) is giving states and industry 180 days 
to start working on procedures to comply with 'Buy America' 
requirements, although the administration touted the need for 
domestic sourcing of all materials for building infrastructure. 
The notice was published in the Federal Register on May 25, 
and notes that the department had beard frorn stakeholders 
worried about the mandate. 

will re- "Because 
lease construe-
other tion rna-
funding terials 
opportu- ' have not 
nities this previous-
spring. ly been 
To learn subject to 
more Madein 
about America 
how Rec- 17:~~~~:::;:::;;~~::S: rules as 

tarnation ia Buin lr·rigation District have iron 
imple- L...-.--.._ ......-....i:i.__.--... ......... ___ ooooiiiiooiiioiiiiiiiio0~---........ --...--.... ......... .---:--~--..:..;--:-----:-:--"""";"'..-..----.---7.'--:=7~ and steel, 
meats the there is a need to gather data on domestic sourcing capacity to 
UJA, please visit www.usbr.gov/bil. inform stronger standards," the notice says. "For example, 

Small Water Storage Grant Program Webinar 

Reclamation is conducting a webinar on June 2, 2022 at 
12:00 p.m. MDT regarding feasibility studies for the new 
Small Water Storage Grant Program as part of the IIJA. The 
feasibility standards, published in January 2022 following the 
llJA, are available on Reclamation's website. To be eligible 
to receive a grant from this program, project sponsors must 
submit a feasibility study for Reclamation's review and ap
proval. 

The llJA authorized this new program and provides fund
ing for surface and groundwater storage projects between 
2,000 and 30,000 acre-feet. It must also increase the storage 
or move water to or from the storage project. 

The program is available for non-federal water storage 
projects in the Western States. Federal funding is available for 
up to 25-percent of eligible project costs. No more than $30 
million is available per project Up to $100 million will be 
available over the next five years. 

The funding opportunity for this program will be pub
lished later this year. 

The learn more about this program, visit Reclamation's 
Small Storage Grant Program at https://www.usbr.gov/ 
smallstorage/index.html. 

Detailed information on Reclamation programs and fund
ing provided in the IIJA is available at https:// 
www.usbr.gov/bill. 

while the exact impact on highway project construction is un
known, the Department believes that it could be significant." 

The administration last month issued guidance requiring 
that projects funded by the infrastructure package source 
American steel, iron, and construction materials. The infra
structure law (Public Law 117-58) mandated that the guidance 
be put in place by May 14. 

The construction industry quickly raised concerns, accord
ing to Bloomberg. 

"It makes no sense to place unrealistic limitations on firms' 
ability to source key materials at a time when prices for those 
products are skyrocketing and supplies are limited," Associat
ed General Contractors of America CEO Stephen Sandherr 
said last month. 

The Alliance - along with the Association of California 
Water Agencies, California Farm Bureau, National Water Re
sources Association and Western Growers Association earlier 
this year sent a letter to the Interior Department and Bureau of 
Reclamation, urging Interior to employ discretion and flexibil
ity regarding the "Build America" mandate. 

"We specifically request that you provide a general ap
plicability waiver consistent with the law's public interest cri
terion to ensure that we can deliver on the Administration's 
commitment to modernize our water infrastructure to address 
climate resiliency and safe and reliable water deliveries to 
Western water users," the parties wrote on January 18. 

As this Monthly Briefing was going to press, it was not 
clear whether Interior was following DOT on delaying imple
mentation of''Buy America" provisions for IIJA projects. 

Page 11 



Monthly Briefing; June 2022 

A Big Thank You to Our New and Supporting Members! 

MARCH- APRIL 2022 

CHAMPION ($10,000 and Above) 
Westlands Water District (CALIFORNIA) 

DEFENDER ($1000-$4999) 
A Tumbling T Ranches (AZ) Bowles Farming Company, Inc. (CA) 

California Agricultural Irrigation Association 
Central Arizona Irrigation & Drainage District 
Garrison Diversion Conservancy District (ND) 

Maricopa Water District (AZ) 
Middle Rio Grande Conservancy District (NM) 

Nampa & Meridian Irrigation District (ID) 
Payette River Water Users Association (ID) Salt River Project (AZ) 

Twin Falls Canal Company (ID) 

PARTNER ($500-$999) 
Camelback 240 Ltd. Partnersl1ip (AZ) Columbia Canal Company (CA) Don Schwindt (CO) 

East Fork Irrigation District (OR) H-Four Farms (AZ) Resource Environmental Solutions (TX) 
Three Sistea·s Irrigation District (OR) Westside Irrigation Company (WA) 

SUPPORTER ($250-$499) 
Deschutes Basin Board of Control (OR) Love Farms, lnc. (OR) Mark Booker (W A) 
Mark Deutschman (MN) North Unit Irrigation District (OR) Tempe Farming (AZ) 

DONOR SUPPORT 
Make your tax-deductible gift to the Alliance today! Grassroots membership is 

vital to our organization. Thank you in advance for your loyal support. 

If you have questions, please call our fundraising coordinator, Jane Townsend, 
at (916)206-7186 OR EMAIL jane@familyfarmalliance.org 

OR EMAIL jane@familyfarmalliance.org 

Protecting Water for Western Irrigated Agriculture 

Page 12 



Agenda Item 12. 
CORRESPONDENCE LIST 

JUNE2022 

1. May 13, 2022- Notice and Agenda received from the Santa Ynez Community Services District for the 
May 18, 2022 Board of Directors Regular Board Meeting 

2. May 18, 2022- Public Records Act Request received from Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District 

3. May 18,. 2022 - Notice and Agenda received from the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board for 
the May 23, 2022 Board of Directors Regular Board Meeting 

4. May 25, 2022 - Notice and Agenda received from the Santa Barbara Local Agency Formation 
Commission' for the June 2, 2022 Board of Directors Meeting 

5. May 25, 2022- Agenda and Final Budget presentation materials foi" the Santa Barbara Local Agency 
Formation Conunission' s June 2, 2022 Board of Directors Regular Meeting · 

6. May 16,2022- Letter from District regarding Existing Water Service- APN 141-380-045 

7. May 16, 2022 - Can and Will Serve letter from District - New detached additional dwelling unit and 
detached garage- APN 141-380-030 

8. May 26, 2022- Existing Water Service Letter from District- Conversion of existing storage barn to 
additional dwelling unit - APN 141-400-011 

9. May 24, 2022- Public Records Act request received from Center for Contract Compliance 

10. May 27, 2022- Public Records Act Request Response letter from District to Santa Ynez River Water 
Conservation District 

11. May 30,2022- Agenda received from the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District for the May 31, 
2022 Special Board of Directors Meeting 

12. May 31, 2022- Agenda received from Los Olivos Community Services District for the June 3, 2022 
Finance Committee Meeting 

13. May 31, 2022- Agenda received from the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District for the June 1, 
2022 Board of Directors Meeting 

14. June 1, 2022- Letter from District to Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District regarding comments 
to the Forty-Fourth Annual Engineering and Survey Report on Water Supply Conditions of the Santa 
Ynez River Water Conservation District, 2021-2022 

15. June 2, 2022- Letter from District sent to nineteen customers regarding backflow testing requirement 

16. June 2, 2022 - Agenda received from the Santa Ynez Community Services District for the June 8, 2022 
Special Board of Directors Meeting 

17. June 3,. 2022- Notice and Agenda received from the Los Olivos Community Services District for the June 
8, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

June 2022 Correspondence List Pagel of2 



18. June 3, 2022- Board Packet materials received from the Los Olivos Community Services District for the 
June 8, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

19. June 4, 2022- Notice and Agenda received from the Los Olivos Community Services District for the June 
8, 2022 Wastewater Treatment Workshop 

20. June 6, 2022 - Letter from District to City of Solvang regarding DWR/ CCWA Variable O&M Invoice for 
May 1, 2022 -September 30, 2022 

21. June 6,. 2022 - · Public Records Act Request Response letter from District to Center for Contract 
Compliance 

22. June 9, 2022- Public Records Act Request received from Transparent California 

23. June 10, 2022 - ·Notice and Agenda received from the Santa Ynez Community Services District for the 
June 13, 2022 Special Board of Directors Meeting 

24. June 10, 2022- Notice and Agenda received from the Santa Ynez Community Services District for the 
June 15,2022 Board of Directors Meeting 

June 2022 Correspondence LiSt Page2 of2 




